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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT S

Statements contained in this Annual Report on FbBAK (this “Annual Report”yelating to plans, strategies, economic performamzetrends, projections
results of specific activities or investments arideo statements that are not descriptions of hcstbfacts may be forwarbboking statements within the meanincg
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and SecH1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.waodlooking information is inherently subject to risksc
uncertainties, and actual results could differ mallg from those currently anticipated due to aner of factors, which include, but are not limitedfactors discuss
under the captions “Business — General — Allowaflocd_oan Losses” and “Business — General — MarketaAand Competition” in Item 1 below, “Risk Factoirs
Item 1A below, in “Management’s Discussion and A& of Financial Condition and Results of Operagie- Overview'in Item 7 below, and elsewhere in this Anr
Report and in other documents filed by the Compaitly the Securities and Exchange Commission franetto time. Forwardboking statements may be identified
terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “ggects,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “beliesg “estimates,” “predicts,” “forecasts,” “potenitiaor “continue” or
similar terms or the negative of these terms. Altffowe believe that the expectations reflectechanforwardlooking statements are reasonable, we cannot gea
future results, levels of activity, performanceachievements. We have no obligation to updateetfesvard-looking statements.

PART I

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thedsdwe,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiand ou
consolidated subsidiaries, including the surviverdity of the merger (the “Merger'dn February 28, 2013 of our wholly owned subsidi&tyshing Savings Bank, F
(the “Savings Bank”) with and into Flushing Commiat@Bank (the “Commercial Bank”)The surviving entity of the Merger was the Comnag¢gank, whose name t
been changed to “Flushing Bank.” References heteithe “Bank” mean the Savings Bank (including its wholly owndubsgliary, the Commercial Bank) prior to
Merger and the surviving entity after the Merg

ltem 1. Business.
GENERAL
Overview

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 19%% Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Newk SBtatechartered mutual savings bank. In 1¢
the Savings Bank converted to a federally charteratlal savings bank and changed its name fromhigsSavings Bank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSB: $hving
Bank converted from a federally chartered mutuairgs bank to a federally chartered stock savirgskibon November 21, 1995, at which time FlushingaRcia
Corporation acquired all of the stock of the SasiBgnk. On February 28, 2013, in the Merger, tharfga Bank merged with and into the Commercial Bamikh the
Commercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuarthe Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter wasgkd to a fullservice New York State commercial bank cha
and its name was changed to Flushing Bank. Alsmimection with the Merger, Flushing Financial Gugiion became a bank holding company. We havenadie an
significant changes to our operations or services gesult of the Merger. The primary businesslasting Financial Corporation has been the operaifche Bank. Th
Bank owns three subsidiaries: Flushing Preferreddiig Corporation, Flushing Service Corporationd &5B Properties Inc. The Bank has an internet dbr,
iGObanking.con® . The activities of Flushing Financial Corporatior arimarily funded by dividends, if any, receivedrfi the Bank, issuances of junior subordin
debt, and issuances of equity securities. Flushingncial Corporation’s common stock is tradedf@nNASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol ItEF

Flushing Financial Corporation also owns FlushimgaRcial Capital Trust Il, Flushing Financial Capifrust Ill, and Flushing Financial Capital Trugt(the
“Trusts”), which are special purpose business trusts formébte a total of $60.0 million of capital secastiand $1.9 million of common securities (which theeonly
voting securities). Flushing Financial Corporatawns 100% of the common securities of the Trudte Trusts used the proceeds from the issuancesé tecurities
purchase junior subordinated debentures from FhgshRinancial Corporation. The Trusts are not inetlith our consolidated financial statements as waldvnot absor
the losses of the Trusts if losses were to occur.




Unless otherwise disclosed, the information presein this Annual Report reflects the financial dibion and results of operations of Flushing Final
Corporation, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiariese@onsolidated basis (collectively, the “Companilanagement views the Company as operating desurgt —a
community bank. Therefore, segment informatiomas provided. At December 31, 2013, the Company tosal assets of $4.7 billion, deposits of $3.2idyl anc
stockholders’ equity of $432.5 million.

Our principal business is attracting retail demoBibm the general public and investing those diéptmgether with funds generated from ongoing apiens an
borrowings, primarily in (1) originations and puedes of multi-family residential properties andatiesser extent, one-to-four family (focusing omed-use propertie
which are properties that contain both residemiva¢lling units and commercial units) and commerogal estate mortgage loans; (2) construction lopnmarily for
residential properties; (3) Small Business Admmaisbn (“SBA”) loans and other small business lga(® mortgage loan surrogates such as mortpag&ed securitie
and (5) U.S. government securities, corporate fikedme securities and other marketable securli#salso originate certain other consumer loansuding overdra:
lines of credit. At December 31, 2013, we had giossis outstanding of $3,423.0 million (before #ilwwance for loan losses and net deferred coslfis), gros:
mortgage loans totaling $3,028.5 million, or 88.6%@ross loans, and nanertgage loans totaling $394.6 million, or 11.5%gofss loans. Mortgage loans are primi
multi-family, commercial and one-to-four family neid-use properties, which combined totaled 82.4% o$gitoans. Our revenues are derived principatignfmteres
on our mortgage and other loans and mortdegsed securities portfolio, and interest and dimids on other investments in our securities paotfdDur primary sourci
of funds are deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank af Nerk (“FHLB-NY”) borrowings, repurchase agreemgnprincipal and interest payments on loans, mgega
backed and other securities, proceeds from salsesaifrities and, to a lesser extent, proceeds &ales of loans. On July 21, 2011, as a resulteCbddFrank Wal
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the DBdank Act”), the Savings Bark’primary regulator became the Office of the Conifar of the Currenc
(“OCC") and Flushing Financial Corporation’s prigaegulator became the Federal Reserve Board oéfBovs (“Federal Reserve'Jlpon completion of the Merg:
the Bank’s primary regulator became the New Yokt&Department of Financial Services (“NYSDFSOriherly, the New York State Banking Department)d ats
primary federal regulator became the Federal Déposurance Corporation (“FDIC")Deposits are insured to the maximum allowable arndaynthe FDIC
Additionally, the Bank is a member of the Federaht¢ Loan Bank (“FHLB") system.

Our operating results are significantly affectedrnagional and local economic conditions, includthg strength of the local economy. The national lacd!
economies were generally considered to be in asseme from December 2007 through the middle of 20D8is resulted in increased unemployment andiniag
property values, although the property value deslim our market, the New York City metropolitaearhave not been as great as many other arebe abtintry
While the national and local economies have shdgmssof improvement since the middle of 2010, inmeraents in unemployment have lagged, with the utheyngen
rate decreasing but remaining at an elevated Eveb% at December 2013 and 8.8% at December 20d.the New York City region, according to the N¥erk Statt
Department of Labor. We have also seen improvemerisr level of non-performing loans, althoughyttstill remain at elevated levels. N@erforming loans totale
$49.0 million, $89.8 million and $117.4 million Btecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.itidddlly, we have not experienced a significantrease i
foreclosed properties due to an extended foreatogrocess in our market. Net chaafés of impaired loans have decreased in 2013 &3bmillion from $20.2 milliol
and $18.9 million for the years ended Decembe812 and 2011, respectively. In response to thea@o@ conditions in our market and the increaseanperforming
loans resulting from the recession, we tightenedconservative underwriting standards in 2008 tluce the risk associated with lending.

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatedending on income producing real estate prijps

=  When borrowers requested a refinance of an existioggage loan when they had acquired the progerpbtained their existing loan within t
years of the request, we generally required evideidmprovements to the property that increasedpitoperty value to support the additic
funds and generally restricted the I-to-value ratio for the new loan to 65% of the appisalue.

=  The debt coverage ratio was increased and th-to-value ratio decreased for income producing propestiith fewer than ten units. This requ
the borrower to have an additional investment ia pinoperty than previously required and provideditamhal protection should rental ur
become vacan




=  Borrowers who owned multiple properties were reeglito provide detail on all their properties tooallus to evaluate their total cash f
requirements. Based on this review, we may dettisdoan application, or require a lower |-to-value ratio and a higher debt coverage r:

= Income producing properties with existing rentg tiiare at or above the current market rent for Isinproperties were required to have a hi
debt coverage ratio to provide protection shouldseecline

=  Borrowers purchasing properties were required toafestrate they had satisfactory liquidity and mamagnt ability to carry the property sho
vacancies occur or increa:

The following changes were made in our underwrititgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk on orfiedtofamily residential property mortgage loans
home equity lines of credit:

=  We discontinued originating home equity lines addit without verifying the borrow’s income. This was done in two stages. Beginninigldy
2008, we began verifying the borroneihcome when the home equity line of credit exede®tL00,000. Beginning in October 2009, we ver
the income of all borrowers applying for a homeisgline of credit.

=  We discontinued offering o-to-four family residential property mortgage loanséti-employed individuals based on stated income anifialde
assets in June 201

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatedusiness lending:

= All borrowers obtaining a business loan were regquito submit a complete financial information pagkaregardless of the amount of the |
Previously, borrowers for SBA Express loans aneéobbans under $150,000 had been exempt fromehisirement

= Background checks on all borrowers and guarantorddisiness loans were expanded to identify angweinformation in more public recor
including a search for judgments, liens, negatiesg articles, and affiliations with other entiti

= The guarantee of related business entities prayidash flow to the borrowing entity became requfedusiness loan
= The allowable percentage of inventory and accorgusivable pledged as collateral for a businegs s reducec
=  We established specific risk acceptance criterigfivate not for profit school:

The economic conditions we have experienced sireme@ber 2007 resulted in loan originations dedljniear-overyear from 2008 through 2011. In 2012
trend of declining loan originations reversed witlan originations improving year-ovgear in 2012 and 2013. Loan originations and pwgebdor 2013 increas
$203.5 million, or 32.2%, to $836.0 million from&B5 million for 2012.

Our operating results are also affected by extassioenewals, modifications and restructuring @nk in our loan portfolio. When extending, reney
modifying or restructuring a loan, other than anldlaat is classified as a troubled debt restrudtf€DR"), the loan is required to be fully underwritten ircaanc
with our policy for new loans. The borrower mustderent to have a loan extended, renewed or smed. Our policy for modifying a mortgage loanedio the
borrowers request for changes in the terms will depencherchange requested. The borrower must be cumerta/e a good payment history to have a loan neokt
If the borrower is seeking additional funds, tharlas fully underwritten in accordance with ouripglfor new loans. If the borrower is seeking auetbn in the intere
rate due to a decline in interest rates in the etaske generally limit our review as follows: (Drfincome producing properties and business Idana,review of th
operating results of the property/business andtisfaetory inspection of the property, and (2) €ore-tofour residential properties, to a satisfactory awjon of thi
property. Our policy on restructuring a loan whiee lban will be classified as a TDR requires thanlto be fully underwritten in accordance with Cemyp policy. Th:
borrower must demonstrate the ability to repayltf@m under the new terms. When the restructurisgltg in a TDR, we may waive some requirements ahgan)
policy provided the borrower has demonstrated thiktyato meet the requirements of the restructuiemh and repay the restructured loan. While oumé& lending
policies do not prohibit making additional loansatborrower or any related interest of the borrowko is past due in principal or interest more tB@rdays, it has be
our practice not to make additional loans to adwer or a related interest of the borrower if therbwer is past due more than 90 days as to pahacipinterest. Durin
the most recent three fiscal years, we did not naalyeadditional loans to a borrower
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or any related interest of the borrower who wag gas in principal or interest more than 90 dayseAtensions, renewals, restructurings and modalifims must be
approved by either the Board of Directors of thalBéhe “Bank Board of Directors”) or its Loan Corttee (the “Loan Committee”).

Our operating results are also affected by lossesomperforming loans. Our policy requires a reappraisean independent third party when a loan bec
twelve months delinquent. We generally obtain gpeaisal by an independent third party for loanerd®0 days delinquent when the outstanding loaanal is at lea
$1.0 million. We also obtain reappraisals wheninternally prepared valuation of a property indésathere has been a decline in value below théamalisig balance
the loan, or when a property inspection has inditaignificant deterioration in the condition o throperty. These internal valuations are prepatezh a loan becom
90 days delinquent.

The Bank has a business banking unit. Our busisteagegy includes a transition from a traditiortaift to a more “commercial-likebanking institution b
focusing on the development of a full complement@ihmercial business deposit, loan and cash maragermoducts. As of December 31, 2013, the busibasking
unit had $378.3 million in gross loans outstanding $138.5 million of customer deposits.

The Bank has an internet branch, iGObanking.coml®ch provides access to consumers in marketsdautsir geographic locations. Accounts can be of
online at www.iGObanking.com or by mail. The imter branch does not currently accept loan apptinati As of December 31, 2013, the internet brdrazh $293.
million of customer deposits.

The Savings Bank formed a wholly owned subsidi&tyshing Commercial Bank, a New York Stateartered commercial bank, for the limited purpot
providing banking services to public entities irdihg counties, cities, towns, villages, schoolriiss, libraries, fire districts and the variousuas throughout the Ne
York City metropolitan area. The Commercial Bankswarmed in response to New York State law, whiefuires that municipal deposits and state fundst e
deposited into a bank or trust company as definddew York State law. The Savings Bank was not iclemed an eligible bank or trust company for thispmse. O
February 28, 2013, in the Merger, the Savings Baekged with and into the Commercial Bank, with @@mmercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuantht
Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter was changedftill-service New York State commercial bankrtdra and its name was changed to Flushing Bank.

On December 19, 2008, under the Troubled AsseeRetbgram (“TARP”), we entered into a Letter Agremt (including the Securities Purchase Agreement
Standard Terms incorporated by reference theretn;Rurchase Agreement”) with the United Statesdb@pent of the Treasury (the “U.S. Treasumytlrsuant to whic
we issued and sold to the U.S. Treasury (i) 708@0es of our Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual RegfeStock Series B having a liquidation prefereoc1,000 pe
share (the “Series B Preferred Stock”), and (i@rayear warrant (the “Warrantty purchase up to 751,611 shares of the our constomk, par value $0.01 per share
an initial price of $13.97 per share, for an aggtegurchase price of $70.0 million in cash. TheeSeB Preferred Stock qualified as Tier 1 Capitader the riskbase:
capital guidelines of the Office of Thrift Supenais (“OTS”) (“Tier 1 Capital”)and paid cumulative dividends at a rate of 5% peuan. Dividends were payable on
Series B Preferred Stock quarterly and were payablEebruary 15, May 15, August 15 and Novembeofl®ach year. The Series B Preferred Stock had atarity
date and ranked senior to our common stock withemisto the payment of dividends and distributiang amounts payable upon liquidation and windingotithe
Company. The Warrant would have expired ten yeams fthe issuance date and was immediately exeleisaid transferable. The Purchase Agreement cet
limitations on the payment of dividends on and ygurchase of our common stock and certain prefesteck. The Purchase Agreement also required uhét suct
time as the U.S. Treasury ceased to own any sexsuatquired from us thereunder, we take all n@cgsaction to ensure that benefit plans with respecsenio
executive officers complied with Section 111(b)tleé Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 200BESA”) as implemented by any guidance or regulation t
Section 111(b) of EESA that has been issued andmeffect as of the date of issuance of the Sdi€seferred Stock and the Warrant and not adopbanefit plan
with respect to, or which cover, senior executiffecers that do not comply with EESA. Our senioeeutive officers consented to the foregoing. Du20§9, we issue
in a public offering, 9.3 million common shares fotal consideration, after expenses, of $101.5anil This public offering was a Qualified Equityfféring as define
in the Warrant. As a result of this Qualified Equidffering, the number of shares of common stoc#tentying the Warrant was reduced by draf. On October 2:
2009, we redeemed the Series B Preferred StocR7@:0 million plus all accrued and unpaid dividen@s December 30, 2009, we repurchased the Wdioas0.¢
million.




Market Area and Competition

We are a community oriented financial institutidfeang a wide variety of financial services to rmége needs of the communities we serve. The Bamidir
office is in Flushing, New York, located in the Bagh of Queens. At December 31, 2013, the Bankatge out of 17 fulkervice offices, located in the New York C
Boroughs of Queens, Brooklyn, and Manhattan, aridassau County, New York. We also operate an ietdsranch, iGObanking.cof. We maintain our executi
offices in Lake Success in Nassau County, New Y8ubstantially all of our mortgage loans are saetbyeproperties located in the New York City meblian area.

We face intense competition both in making loard iamattracting deposits. Competition for loan®ur market is primarily based on the types of loaffisrec
and the related terms for these loans, includirgdfirate versus adjustabiate loans and the interest rate on the loan. #ostable rate loans, competition is also b
on the repricing period, the index to which thesriatreferenced, and the spread over the indexAdte, competition is influenced by the ability afinancial institutio
to respond to customer requests and to providbdh®wer with a timely decision to approve or déimg loan application.

Our market area has a high density of financiditintons, many of which have greater financialo@ses, name recognition and market presence, lané
which are competitors to varying degrees. Partibulatense competition exists for deposits, ascampete with over 115 banks and thrifts in the ¢iesnn which w:
have branch locations. Our market share of depwsttsese counties is approximately 0.35% of thal tdeposits of these competing financial institn$i, and we are t
24th largest financial institution. In addition, wempete with credit unions, the stock market anduad funds for customer$unds. Competition for deposits in «
market and for national brokered deposits is prilpmaased on the types of deposits offered andpaié on the deposits. Particularly intense contipetalso exists in €
of the lending activities we emphasize. In additiorthe financial institutions mentioned above, senpete against mortgage banks and insurance ciespacate
both within our market and available on the inteér@»mpetition for loans in our market is primariigsed on the types of loans offered and the celatens for thes
loans, including fixed-rate versus adjustatalee loans and the interest rate on the loan. Hustable rate loans, competition is also basetherrepricing period, tt
index to which the rate is referenced, and theagperer the index rate. Also, competition is infloed by the ability of a financial institution tespond to custom
requests and to provide the borrower with a tintagision to approve or deny the loan applicatidre Thternet banking arena also has many largendiahinstitution:
which have greater financial resources, name retogrand market presence. Our future earningspgacts will be affected by our ability to competéeefively with
other financial institutions and to implement ousimess strategies. Our strategy for attractingsiépincludes using various marketing techniqdesyering enhance
technology and customer friendly banking serviees] focusing on the unique personal and small kasibanking needs of the mwdthnic communities we serve. (
strategy for attracting new loans is primarily degent on providing timely response to applicant$ eraintaining a network of quality brokers. SeeslRFactors The
Markets in Which We Operate Are Highly Competitivetluded in Item 1A of this Annual Report.

For a discussion of our business strategies, sandgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdtmn and Results of Operations — Overview
Management Strategy” included in Item 7 of this AahReport.

Lending Activities

Loan Portfolio Composition Our loan portfolio consists primarily of mortgaloans secured by multi-family residential, cormoiaé real estate, one-four
family mixed-use property, one-four family residential property, and commercialsiness loans. In addition, we also offer constamctioans, SBA loans, Te
medallion loans and other consumer loans. Subathnéll of our mortgage loans are secured by prtigee located within our market area. At Decembkr 213, w
had gross loans outstanding of $3,423.0 millioridigethe allowance for loan losses and net defezosts).

Since 2009 we have focused our mortgage loan atigim efforts on multfamily residential mortgage loans. In prior years ad focused our mortgage |
originations on multi-family residential, commerciaal estate and one-to-four family mixade property mortgage loans. These loans gendrally higher yields thi
one-tofour family residential properties, and includegagment penalties that we collect if the loans ipafyll prior to the contractual maturity. We expég continu
this emphasis on mulfamily residential mortgage loans through marketmgl by maintaining competitive interest rates arigination fees. Our marketing effc
include frequent contact with mortgage brokers atteér professionals who serve as referral soufides reduced emphasis on commercial real estatetoeioer family
mixed-use property mortgage loans, and construction learte 2009 was due to the increased level ofiniskese types of loans in the current economidrenment
While we expect to continue this reduced emphasighe origination of commercial real estate and-tmfour family mixeduse property mortgage loans,
construction loans, in the near term, we have oasly resumed the origination of non-owner occugiechmercial real estate and one-to-four family rdixee propert
mortgage loans.




Fully underwritten one-tdeur family residential mortgage loans generallg aonsidered by the banking industry to have lesssthan other types of loal
Multi-family residential, commercial real estatedaone-to-four family mixed-use property mortgaganse generally have higher yields than onésto-family residentie
property mortgage loans and shorter terms to nigfuout typically involve higher principal amourdad may expose the lender to a greater risk ofitdass than one-
to-four family residential property mortgage loa@ur increased emphasis on multi-family residentigrtgage loans since 2009, and on nfaltiily residentia
commercial real estate and one-to-four family mixed property mortgage loans during years prioiO@02 has increased the overall level of credit mgierent in oL
loan portfolio. The greater risk associated witHtirfamily residential, commercial real estate aee-to-four family mixedise property mortgage loans could requi
to increase our provisions for loan losses andamtain an allowance for loan losses as a percergbgptal loans in excess of the allowance weenity maintain. W
continually review the composition of our mortgdgan portfolio to manage the risk in the portfolfss a result of this ongoing review, we reduced @liance o
commercial real estate and one-to-four family mixed property mortgage loans during the most reeemyears, and tightened our conservative undengritandarc
to further reduce the risk associated with lend®ee “General — Overviewn this Item 1 of this Annual Report. To date, waré not experienced significant losse
our multi-family residential, commercial real estaind one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgégan portfolios.

Our mortgage loan portfolio consists of adjustaiale mortgage (“ARM”) loans and fixedte mortgage loans. Interest rates we charge amslare affecte
primarily by the demand for such loans, the sugblynoney available for lending purposes, the rédfiered by our competitors and the creditworthinefsthe borrowe
Many of those factors are, in turn, affected byal@nd national economic conditions, and the fistainetary and tax policies of the federal, statlacal government:

In general, consumers show a preference for ARMdda periods of high interest rates and for fixatk loans when interest rates are low. In periaf
declining interest rates, we may experience refimgnactivity in ARM loans, as borrowers show aference to lock-in the lower rates available oredixate loans. |
the case of ARM loans we originated, volume andistdjent periods are affected by the interest ratesother market factors as discussed above asawebnsum
preferences. We have not in the past, nor do wetly, originate ARM loans that provide for negatamortization.

Prior to 2007, we had grown our construction loartfplio. During 2007, we began to deemphasize taoson loans, as originations of new constructimams
declined. We have continued to deemphasize cattnuloans since then as we reduced the balanceirofonstruction loan portfolio, which totaled $4nillion ai
December 31, 2013. We intend to continue to deasiph construction loans in the near term. We pladirst lien position on the underlying collate@nd generall
obtain personal guarantees on construction loalnesd loans generally have a term of two yearssst Bonstruction loans involve a greater degredshfthan othe
loans because, among other things, the underwiirsgich loans is based on an estimated valueeofi¢iveloped property, which can be difficult toeatain in light o
uncertainties inherent in such estimations. Initaaid construction lending entails the risk thae tproject may not be completed due to cost overnrnchanges
market conditions. The greater risk associated withstruction loans could require us to increagepoavision for loan losses, and to maintain anwadince for loa
losses as a percentage of total loans in excebeg aflowance we currently maintain. To date, weehaot incurred significant losses in our constarctoan portfolio.

The business banking unit was formed in 2006 tagam loan and deposit relationships to busindssased within our market area. These loans arergély
personally guaranteed by the owners, and may heesby the assets of the business, includingestate. The interest rate on these loans is ggnarahdjustable ra
based on a published index. These loans, whileigirayus a higher rate of return, also presengadri level of risk. The greater risk associatedh\witsiness loans cot
require us to increase our provision for loan lsssed to maintain an allowance for loan lossea psrcentage of total loans in excess of the aleeave currentl
maintain. To date, we have not incurred signifidasses in our business loan portfolio.

From time to time, we may purchase loans from nagégbankers and other financial institutions whrenlbans complement our loan portfolio strategyans
purchased must meet our underwriting standards whey were originated. Our lending activities atdbjsct to federal and state laws and regulatioes ‘S—
Regulation.”




The following table sets forth the composition af tban portfolio at the dates indicated.

At December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Percen Percen Percen Percen Percen
Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands

Mortgage Loans

Multi-family residentia $1,712,03! 50.02% $1,534,43 47.6% $1,391,22 43.289% $1,252,17 38.4(% $1,158,70! 36.16%
Commercial real esta 512,55 14.9% 515,43t 16.0( 580,78 18.07 662,79: 20.3¢ 686,21( 21.42
One-to-four family - mixec-use
property 595,75 17.4C 637,35! 19.7¢ 693,93. 21.5¢ 728,81( 22.3¢ 744,56( 23.2¢
One-to-four family - residentia
1) 193,72¢ 5.6€ 198,96¢ 6.1¢ 220,43 6.8€ 241,37¢ 7.41 249,92( 7.81
Ca-operative apartment (. 10,13% 0.3C 6,30: 0.2C 5,50t 0.17 6,21° 0.1¢ 6,55° 0.2(C
Constructior 4,247 0.1Z 14,38: 0.4¢ 47,14( 1.47 75,51¢ 2.32 97,27( 3.0¢
Gross mortgage loal 3,028,45; 88.47 2,906,88 90.2¢ 2,939,01. 91.4¢ 2,966,89! 91.01 2,943,21. 91.87
Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic 7,792 0.2¢ 9,49¢ 0.2¢ 14,03¢ 0.44 17,51 0.5¢4 17,49¢ 0.5t
Taxi medallion 13,12 0.3¢ 9,92: 0.31 54,32¢ 1.6¢ 88,26« 2.71 61,42¢ 1.92
Commercial business and oth 373,64: 10.9: 295,07t 9.1¢ 206,61« 6.4° 187,16: 5.74 181,24( 5.6¢€
Gross non-mortgage loans 394,55¢ 11.5% 314,49« 9.7¢€ 274,98 8.5¢€ 292,93t 8.9¢ 260,16( 8.1
Gross loans 3,423,00: 100.0%6 3,221,37! 100.09% 3,213,99: 100.0% 3,259,82 100.0% 3,203,37: 100.0(%
Unearned loan fees and deferr
costs, ne 11,17( 12,74¢ 14,88¢ 16,50: 17,11¢(
Less: Allowance for loan loss: (31,776 (31,109 (30,344 (27,699 (20,329
Loans, ne $3,402,40: $3,203,01 $3,198,53 $3,248,63 $3,200,15!

(1) One-to-four family residential mortgage loans also inclddeme equity and condominium loans. At December2®13, gross home equity loans totaled §
million and condominium loans totaled $24.5 milli
(2) Consists of loans secured by shares representieigsts in individual -operative units that are generally owner occug




The following table sets forth our loan originatiofincluding the net effect of refinancing) and teanges in our portfolio of loans, including puases, salt
and principal reductions for the years indicated:

For the years ended December
(In thousands 2013 2012 2011

Mortgage Loans

At beginning of yea $ 2,906,88. $ 2,939,01. $ 2,966,89
Mortgage loans originate:
Multi-family residentia 382,04: 317,66: 249,01(
Commercial real esta 68,96¢ 31,78¢ 7,07C
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 40,89¢ 15,96: 23,75¢
One-to-four family residentia 27,49¢ 24,48" 24,07¢
Cc-operative apartmel 4,96¢ 1,81(C -
Constructior 3,08¢ 80¢€ 1,728
Total mortgage loans originated 527,45 392,51« 305,63:
Mortgage loans purchase
Commercial real estate 452 - -
Total mortgage loans purchased 452 - -
Less:
Principal reduction 363,80! 359,16¢ 284,32
Loans transferred to loans held for < 9,52« 6,49¢ -
Mortgage loan sale 18,30¢ 34,03: 24,83:
Charge-offs 12,32¢ 19,28 17,84t
Mortgage loan foreclosures 2,374 5,662 6,50¢
At end of year $ 3,028,45. $ 2,906,88. $ 2,939,01

Non-mortgage loans

At beginning of yea $ 314,49 $ 274,98 $ 292,93t
Loans originated
Small Business Administratic 603 52¢ 3,52¢
Taxi Medallion - 8 11,77¢
Commercial busines 292,38! 231,87 66,35:
Other 5,36( 4,13¢ 4,85¢
Total other loans originated 298,34t 236,55: 86,51¢
Non-mortgage loans purchase
Taxi Medallion 9,731 3,45¢ 19,05
Less:
Non-mortgage loan sale - 1,37¢ 4,10¢
Loans transferred to loans held for < - 5,40( -
Principal reduction 225,50¢ 191,73: 118,03:
Charge-offs 2,51¢ 1,98t 1,39(
At end of yeal $ 39455t $ 314,49 $ 274,98




Loan Maturity and Repricinglhe following table shows the maturity of our tdi@dn portfolio at December 31, 2013. Schedulg@dyments are shown in
maturity category in which the payments become due.

Mortgage loan: Non-mortgage loan
One-to-four
family ~ One-tofour Commercie
Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family  Cc-operativt Small Busines  Taxi business
(In thousands residential real estatc  property residentia apartmen Constructioi Administratior Medallior and othel Total loan:
Amounts due withinoneye. $ 147,76:$ 89,73« $ 37,48 $ 8,08( $ 321 $ 4247 $ 329 $ 6,998 $ 142,04¢ $ 439,96
Amounts due after one yei
One to two year 132,62: 68,38’ 35,88¢ 8,26( 33¢ - 827 3,70t 46,48:  296,50!
Two to three year 130,50t 61,61¢ 32,12: 8,30¢ 341 - 67€ 2,42: 39,15¢ 275,15.
Three to five year 129,38! 54,75¢ 28,11: 7,98¢ 35C - 44¢€ 1 31,45¢ 252,49:
Over five year: 1,171,76 238,05¢ 462,14 161,09 8,79: - 2,54 - 114,49: 2,158,89:
Total due after one ye. 1,564,27 422,81¢ 558,26! 185,64 9,81¢ - 4,49¢ 6,12¢ 231,59. 2,983,04.
Total amounts du $ 1,712,030 $ 512,55: $ 59575. % 193,72t $ 10,137 $ 4,247 $ 7,79 $ 13,120 $ 373,64: $3,423,00i
Sensitivity of loans to changes
interest rates - loans due aft
one year
Fixed rate loan $ 379,79t $ 84,19t $ 106,38 $ 46,11 $ 1,50C $ -$ 126 $ 6,12¢ $ 154,440 $ 778,68t
Adjustable rate loans 1,184,48 338,62: 451,88 139,53: 8,31¢ - 4,36¢ - 77,14¢ 2,204,35!
Total loans due after one yt$ 1,564,27 $ 422,81 $ 558,26{ $ 185,64( $ 9,81¢ $ -3 4,49¢€ $ 6,12¢ $ 231,59: $2,983,04.




Multi-Family Residential Lending .Loans secured by mulfémily residential properties were $1,712.0 million 50.02% of gross loans, at December 31, :
Our multi-family residential mortgage loans hadaaerage principal balance of $857,000 at DecembeP@13, and the largest muléimily residential mortgage lo
held in our portfolio had a principal balance oB¥2million. We offer both fixed-rate and adjudeabate multifamily residential mortgage loans, with maturitefsug
to 30 years.

In underwriting multifamily residential mortgage loans, we review thpested net operating income generated by the séatieecollateral securing the loan,
age and condition of the collateral, the finanoggources and income level of the borrower andtheowers experience in owning or managing similar propsrtiVt
typically require debt service coverage of at 1d2§% of the monthly loan payment. During 2008,imezeased the required debt service coverage fiatimulti-family
residential loans with ten units or less. We gdheaaiginate these loans up to only 75% of therapged value or the purchase price of the properychever is les
Any loan with a final loan-taralue ratio in excess of 75% must be approved byBank Board of Directors or the Loan Committeeansexception to policy. W
generally rely on the income generated by the ptpmes the primary means by which the loan is mepdowever, personal guarantees may be obtaineddiitiona
security from these borrowers. We typically orderavironmental report on our multi-family and coewgial real estate loans.

Loans secured by multamily residential property generally involve a ater degree of risk than residential mortgage l@awscarry larger loan balances.
increased credit risk is the result of severaldestincluding the concentration of principal ismaller number of loans and borrowers, the effettgeneral econom
conditions on income producing properties and tisegiased difficulty in evaluating and monitoringske types of loans. Furthermore, the repaymertaoifsl secured |
multi-family residential property is typically dependemion the successful operation of the related ptgpetich is usually owned by a legal entity wittetpropert
being the entity’s only asset. If the cash floanfrthe property is reduced, the borroweability to repay the loan may be impaired. If Hwerower defaults, our or
remedy may be to foreclose on the property, forclvlithe market value may be less than the balaneeoduhe related mortgage loan. Loans secureduly-family
residential property also may involve a greaterde®f environmental risk. We seek to protect agaims risk through obtaining an environmentalorep See “—Asse
Quality — Environmental Concerns Relating to Loans.

At December 31, 2013, $1,286.0 million, or 75.1B¥our multifamily mortgage loans consisted of ARM loans. WieloARM loans with adjustment peric
typically of five years and for terms of up to 3®ays. Interest rates on ARM loans currently offdrg us are adjusted at the beginning of each td@rg period bast
upon a fixed spread above the FHMNY- corresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timénte, we may originate ARM loans at an initialerddwer than the index
a result of a discount on the spread for the initdjustment period. Multi-family adjustabtate mortgage loans generally are not subjectmddtions on interest re
increases either on an adjustment period or aggréigeis over the life of the loan. We originatad aurchased mulfamily ARM loans totaling $197.8 million, $22:
million and $218.8 million during 2013, 2012 andl20respectively.

At December 31, 2013, $426.1 million, or 24.89%p0f multi-family mortgage loans consisted of fixedie loans. Our fixed-rate mufamily mortgage loar
are generally originated for terms up to 15 yeaid are competitively priced based on market comwttiand our cost of funds. We originated and pwethe184.
million, $95.9 million and $30.2 million of fixedate multi-family mortgage loans in 2013, 2012 afd®, respectively.

Commercial Real Estate LendinglLoans secured by commercial real estate were .65t#lion, or 14.97% of gross loans, at Decembg&r 3013. Ot
commercial real estate mortgage loans are secyre@dfgyoved properties such as office buildings elsitmotels, nursing homes, small business fadl|itérip shoppin
centers, warehouses, and, to a lesser extentiorgdidacilities. At December 31, 2013, our commareceal estate mortgage loans had an average ainicalance «
$646,000, and the largest of such loans, whichseasred by a multenant shopping center, had a principal balancg4f9 million. Commercial real estate mortg
loans are generally originated in a range of $1@M0 $6.0 million.

In underwriting commercial real estate mortgagespave employ the same underwriting standards esekgures as are employed in underwriting naftiily
residential mortgage loans.

Commercial real estate mortgage loans generally darger loan balances than onefoor family residential mortgage loans and involvgreater degree
credit risk for the same reasons applicable toirfauthily loans.

At December 31, 2013, $409.1 million, or 79.81%opof commercial mortgage loans consisted of ARMidoaVe offer ARM loans with adjustment period
one to five years and generally for terms of ud%oyears. Interest rates on ARM loans currentfgrefl by us are adjusted at the beginning of edgistment perio
based upon a fixed spread above the FHB<¢orresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timénhe, we may originate ARM loans at an initialeréower than th
index as a result of a discount on the spreadHerinitial adjustment period. Commercial adjustalke mortgage loans generally are not subjectmddtions ol
interest rate increases either on an adjustmemntcer aggregate basis over the life of the loar d¥ginated and purchased commercial ARM loarslitaf $43.¢
million, $19.9 million and $2.1 million during 2013012 and 2011, respectively.
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At December 31, 2013, $103.5 million, or 20.19%paf commercial mortgage loans consisted of fixad-toans. Our fixedate commercial mortgage lo:
are generally originated for terms up to 20 yeand are competitively priced based on market comlitiand our cost of funds. We originated and pwetha$25.
million, $11.9 million and $5.0 million of fixed-ta commercial mortgage loans in 2013, 2012 and 2@kpectively.

One-to-Four Family Mortgage Lending — Mixed-Use pedies. We offer mortgage loans secured by one-to-family mixeduse properties. The
properties contain up to four residential dwellingits and a commercial unit. We offer both fixeterand adjustable-rate one-to-four family mixese propert
mortgage loans with maturities of up to 30 yeamd amgeneral maximum loan amount of $1,000,000.nlar&ginations primarily result from applicatioreceived fror
mortgage brokers and mortgage bankers, existingast customers, and persons who respond to ouretirgkefforts and referrals. One-to-four family mdkuse
property mortgage loans were $595.8 million, oA0% of gross loans, at December 31, 2013.

In underwriting one-to-four family mixed-use progemortgage loans, we employ the same underwrisi@gndards as are employed in underwriting multi-
family residential mortgage loans.

At December 31, 2013, $467.6 million, or 78.49%puf one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgdg@ns consisted of ARM loans. We offer adjustable-
rate one-to-four family mixedse property mortgage loans with adjustment periggisally of five years and for terms of up to $€ars. Interest rates on ARM lo.
currently offered by the Bank are adjusted at tbgifming of each adjustment period based uponed fspread above the FHLUBY corresponding Regular Advar
Rate. From time to time, we may originate ARM loanhsn initial rate lower than the index as a rtesul discount on the spread for the initial atient period. One-
to-four family mixed-use property adjustalsbge mortgage loans generally are not subjectnbdtdtions on interest rate increases either ondjnsament period ¢
aggregate basis over the life of the loan. We oatgd and purchased one-to-four family mixeseé-property ARM loans totaling $20.3 million, $.@nillion and $17.
million during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

At December 31, 2013, $128.2 million, or 21.51%o00f one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgémgns consisted of fixed-rate loans. Our fixec: rate-
to-four family mixed-use property mortgage loans ariginated for terms of up to 15 years and arepstditively priced based on market conditions dreBanks cos
of funds. We originated and purchased $20.6 mill&»2 million and $6.1 million of fixed-rate one-tour family mixeduse property mortgage loans in 2013, 201z
2011, respectively.

One-to-Four Family Mortgage Lending — Residentiabgerties. We offer mortgage loans secured by onésta- family residential properties, includi
townhouses and condominium units. For purposelentlescription contained in this section, one-to-family residential mortgage loans, operative apartment loe
and home equity loans are collectively referredhéoein as “residential mortgage loans.” We offethbiixed-rate and adjustablate residential mortgage loans v
maturities of up to 30 years and a general maxirtman amount of $1,000,000. Loan originations geherasult from applications received from mortgdgekers an
mortgage bankers, existing or past customers, efiedrals. Residential mortgage loans were $203l8omior 5.96% of gross loans, at December 313201

We generally originate residential mortgage loanarmounts up to 80% of the appraised value or dfe [wice, whichever is less. We may make resial
mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios of up @®of the appraised value of the mortgaged prophdwever, private mortgage insurance is requirbénever loan-
to-value ratios exceed 80% of the appraised vdlteeoproperty securing the loan.

In addition to income verified loans, we have ia fhast originated residential mortgage loans tieesaployed individuals within our local community kdsor
stated income and verifiable assets that allowetd assess repayment ability, provided that theower’s stated income is considered reasonablthéoborrowers type
of business. The preponderance of stated incomeoefoair family residential mortgage loans were maalailable to selemployed individuals within our loc
community for their primary residence. Our undeting standards required that we verify the assketiseoborrowers and the sources of their cash fldve informatio
reviewed for purchases included at least three nsoand refinances included at least one monthrsbpal bank statements (checking and savings ats)pstatemen
of investment accounts, business checking accdatgrsents (when applicable), and other informapoovided by the borrowers about their personal ingsl Ou
review of these bank statements allowed us to asses
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whether or not their stated income appeared reasmimacomparison to their cash flows, and if the@ome level supported their personal holdings.al¢e obtained
and reviewed credit reports on these borrowersadaeptable credit report was one of the key fadgtoapproving this type of mortgage loan. We olsdiappraisals
from an independent third party for the propertyd &mited the amount we lent on the propertie8Q&6 of the lesser of the property’s appraised vatube purchase
price. Home equity lines of credit were offeredamre-to-four residential properties to homeownersetan various levels of income verification. Weited the amount
available under a home equity line of credit to 80Rthe lesser of the appraised value of the pitgpard the purchase price. These loans involvelaenidegree of risk
as compared to our other fully underwritten residémortgage loans as there is a greater oppaytfon self-employed borrowers to falsify or ovexrtst their level of
income and ability to service indebtedness. Tislsis mitigated by the requirements discussed alimwur loan policy. In addition, since 2008, threlerwriting
standards for home equity loans were modified $eatitinue originating home equity lines of credithaut verifying the borrower’s income. This waamplished in
two stages. Beginning in May 2008, we began virgfghe borrower’'s income when the home equity bheredit exceeded $100,000. Beginning in Oct@i$9, we
verified the income of all borrowers applying foheme equity line of credit. We also discontinuééring one-to-four family residential property mgage loans to
self-employed individuals based on stated incontevamifiable assets in June 2010. We had $15.8amiind $20.8 million outstanding of one-to foumfly residential
mortgage loans originated to individuals basedtated income and verifiable assets at Decembe2®13 and 2012, respectively. We had $49.9 milliod $52.8
million advanced on home equity lines of creditvidrich we did not verify the borrowers’ income ad@mber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2013, $152.0 million, or 74.58%pof residential mortgage loans consisted of AREh& We offer ARM loans with adjustment period
one, three, five, seven or ten years. Interess @teARM loans currently offered by us are adjustethe beginning of each adjustment period baped a fixed spre
above the FHLBNY corresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timénte, we may originate ARM loans at an initialeré&wer than the index as a result of a disc
on the spread for the initial adjustment period.M\Rans generally are subject to limitations orerast rate increases of 2% per adjustment periddaaraggrega
adjustment of 6% over the life of the loan. We wr@ged and purchased adjustable rate residentiebage loans totaling $17.6 million, $23.6 milliand $21.5 millio
during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The retention of ARM loans in our portfolio helps ieduce our exposure to interest rate risks. Kewén an environment of rapidly increasing ingneates,
is possible for the interest rate increase to ekdbe maximum aggregate adjustment on onedo-family residential ARM loans and negativelyfeaf the spree
between our interest income and our cost of funds.

ARM loans generally involve credit risks differdndm those inherent in fixetate loans, primarily because if interest rates, fiise underlying payments of
borrower rise, thereby increasing the potentialdefault. However, this potential risk is lessegdour policy of originating one-téeur family residential ARM loar
with annual and lifetime interest rate caps thattlthe increase of a borrower’s monthly payment.

At December 31, 2013, $51.8 million, or 25.42%,o0f residential mortgage loans consisted of fixa#-loans. Our fixedate residential mortgage lo:
typically are originated for terms of 15 and 30 ngeand are competitively priced based on marketlitions and our cost of funds. We originated anctpased $4.
million, $2.7 million and $2.6 million in 15-yeaixed-rate residential mortgages in 2013, 2012 abtil2respectively. We did not originate or purchasg 30yea:
fixed-rate residential mortgages in 2013, 2012 2(itil.

At December 31, 2013, home equity loans totale®.@#Hillion, or 1.71%, of gross loans. Home equagns are included in our portfolio of resider
mortgage loans. These loans are offered as adiegtale “home equity lines of credith which interest only is due for an initial terfinl® years and thereafter princi
and interest payments sufficient to liquidate tbanl are required for the remaining term, not toeedc30 years. These adjustable “home equity fiesedit” may
include a “floor” and/or a “ceiling” on the intetesate that we charge for these loans. These lasasmay be offered as fully amortizing closed-éred-rate loans fc
terms up to 15 years. The majority of home eqlagns originated are owner occupied ondeta- family residential properties and condominiumits. To a less
extent, home equity loans are also originated atodiour residential properties held for investment aedond homes. All home equity loans are subgeeint 809
loan-tovalue ratio computed on the basis of the aggreafatee first mortgage loan amount outstanding dwedproposed home equity loan. They are generadiytgd it
amounts from $25,000 to $300,000.

Construction Loans At December 31, 2013, construction loans totake@ $nillion, or 0.12%, of gross loans. Our congtiartloans primarily have been m:
to finance the construction of one-to-four famifsidential properties, multamily residential properties and residential canddums. We also, to a limited exte
finance the construction of commercial real estata. policies provide that construction loans mayntade in amounts up to 70% of the estimated \&ltiee develope
property and only if we obtain a first lien position the underlying real estate. However, we gdigelimit construction loans to 60% of the estimétealue of th
developed property. In addition, we generally regipiersonal guarantees on all construction loaosstuction loans are generally made with termisvofyears or les
Advances are made as construction progresses apdciion warrants, subject to continued title dsssco ensure that we maintain a first lien positigVe mad
advances on construction loans of $3.1 million8%Aillion and $1.7 million during 2013, 2012 andl2Qrespectively.
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Construction loans involve a greater degree oftligk other loans because, among other thingsintierwriting of such loans is based on an estimeaéae o
the developed property, which can be difficult szertain in light of uncertainties inherent in s@simations. In addition, construction lendingaéa the risk that tt
project may not be completed due to cost overrarchanges in market conditions.

Small Business Administration LendingAt December 31, 2013, SBA loans totaled $7.8iomlrepresenting 0.23%, of gross loans. Theseslaaa extende
to small businesses and are guaranteed by the $B& aimaximum of 85% of the loan balance for loaitk balances of $150,000 or less, and to a maxirati75% o
the loan balance for loans with balances greater #150,000. We also provide term loans and lifiesealit up to $350,000 under the SBA Express Runogron whic
the SBA provides a 50% guaranty. The maximum |loae snder the SBA guarantee program was $2.0 mjliath a maximum loan guarantee of $1.5 milliome
Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 permanently ine@ake limits to a maximum loan size of $5.0 milliavith a maximum loan guarantee of $3.75 milligil. SBA
loans are underwritten in accordance with SBA Saashddperating Procedures which requires collatemdl the personal guarantee of the owners with rtiane 209
ownership from SBA borrowers. Typically, SBA loaas originated in the range of $25,000 to $2.0ionilwith terms ranging from one to seven years apdo 2!
years for owner occupied commercial real estatetgages. SBA loans are generally offered at adilesteates tied to the prime rate (as publishechéWall Stree
Journal) with adjustment periods of one to three mont& generally sell the guaranteed portion of cer&BA term loans in the secondary market, realizrgain &
the time of sale, and retain the servicing rightgh@ese loans, collecting a servicing fee of apionaxely 1%. We originated and purchased $0.6 mmil0.5 million an
$3.5 million of SBA loans during 2013, 2012 and 20tespectively.

Taxi medallion. At December 31, 2013, taxi medallion loans tot##&8.1 million, or 0.38%, of gross loans. We orig&nand purchase loans made to New *
City taxi medallion owners. These loans, whichlete$13.1 million at December 31, 2013, are secthazligh liens on the taxi medallions. We origénahd purcha:
taxi medallion loans up to 80% of the value of tdve medallion. We originated and purchased $9lanj $3.5 million and $30.8 million of taxi med@n loans durin
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Commercial Business and Other LendiAg.December 31, 2013, commercial business and dtiagrs totaled $373.6 million, or 10.92%, of grésans. Wi
originate commercial business loans and other lé@risusiness, personal, or household purposesn@oaial business loans are provided to businesstae iNew Yor
City metropolitan area with annual sales of up 85®&0 million. Our commercial business loans ineldihes of credit and term loans including ownecuggec
mortgages. These loans are secured by busineds,asskiding accounts receivables, inventory a@al estate and generally require personal guamritée Bank als
at times, enters into participations/syndicationth wther banks on senior secured commercial besif@ans. Other loans generally consist of overdirads of credit
Generally, unsecured consumer loans are limitehtounts of $5,000 or less for terms of up to fieang. We originated and purchased $297.7 milli@86% millior
and $71.2 million of commercial business and otbans during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. trigerwriting standards employed by us for consuaner othe
loans include a determination of the applicant'yment history on other debts and assessment ofpipdicants ability to meet payments on all of his or
obligations. In addition to the creditworthinegste applicant, the underwriting process alsoudek a comparison of the value of the collatefany, to the propos:
loan amount. Unsecured loans tend to have higslerand therefore command a higher interest rate.

Loan Extensions, Renewals, Modifications and Restring . Extensions, renewals, modifications or restruogua loan, other than a loan that is classified
TDR, requires the loan to be fully underwrittendocordance with our policy for new loans. The bawo must be current to have a loan extended, rethem
restructured. Our policy for modifying a mortgagen due to the borrowertequest for changes in the terms will dependerchanges requested. The borrower mu
current and have a good payment history to hawam inodified. If the borrower is seeking additiohalds, the loan is fully underwritten in accordaneth our polic
for new loans. If the borrower is seeking a redircin the interest rate due to a decline in interates in the market, we generally limit our revias follows: (1) fo
income producing properties and business loare réview of the operating results of the propetsgibess and a satisfactory inspection of the ptppand (2) for one-
to-four residential properties, to a satisfactorypection of the property. Our policy on restruictyira loan when the loan will be classified as &RTD
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requires the loan to be fully underwritten in actzorce with Company policy. The borrower must dertratesthe ability to repay the loan under the nesnt. When th
restructuring results in a TDR, we may waive sogguirements of Company policy provided the borrolgs demonstrated the ability to meet the requingsnef the
restructured loan and repay the restructured Mérile our formal lending policies do not prohibiaking additional loans to a borrower or any relatedrest of the
borrower who is past due in principal or interestrenthan 90 days, it has been our practice notaicenadditional loans to a borrower or a relateerégt of the borrower
if the borrower is past due more than 90 days gsitwipal or interest. During the most recent éhfiscal years, we did not make any additional $o@na borrower or
any related interest of the borrower who was pastid principal or interest more than 90 days.exliensions, renewals, restructurings and modificatimust be
approved by either the Loan Committee or the Bao&rB of Directors.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authoritythe Board of Directors of the Company (the “BoafdDirectors”) approved lending policies establishes
approval requirements for our various types of Ipesducts. Our Residential Mortgage Lending Pofigkich applies to all one-ttpur family mortgage loans, includi
residential and mixed-use property) establishelsoaizied levels of approval. One-tour family mortgage loans that do not exceed $380,require two signatures
approval, one of which must be from either the ieeg, Executive Vice President or a Senior VicesRtent (collectively, “Authorized Officersgnd the other from
Senior Underwriter, Manager, Underwriter or Juribrderwriter in the Residential Mortgage Loan Demant (collectively, “Loan Officers”)and ratification by th
Management Loan Committee. For onéfdar family mortgage loans in excess of $750,00Qa.$1.0 million, three signatures are requireddpproval, at least two
which must be from Authorized Officers, and theestbne may be a Loan Officer, and ratification bg Management Loan Committee. The Loan Committethe
Bank Board of Directors also must approve onésta-family mortgage loans in excess of $1.0 mili®ursuant to our Commercial Real Estate Lendoigy all loan:
secured by commercial real estate and nfiaftifly residential properties must be approvedheyRresident or the Executive Vice President, Gifi&eal Estate Lendil
upon the recommendation of the appropriate Senice President, and ratification by the Managemeragr Committee. Such loans in excess of $1.0 millip to an
including $2.5 million must also be approved by Management Loan Committee and ratified by the LGammittee or the Bank Board of Directors. Sucta
excess of $2.5 million also require Loan Commitie®ank Board of Directors approval. In accordawidé our Business Credit Policy all business and\3d@ans up t:
$1.5 million must be approved by the Business L@ammittee and ratified by the Management Loan CdiemiBusiness and SBA loans in excess of $1.5omillp tc
$2.5 million, must be approved by the Managemerin.Gommittee and ratified by the Loan Committeen@ercial business and other loans require two siges fo
approval, one of which must be from an Authorizetic®r. Our Construction Loan Policy requires caunstion loans up to and including $1.0 million mbstapprove
by the Senior Executive Vice President, Chief oédRestate Lending and the Executive Vice Presidé@ommercial Real Estate, and ratified by the Mgmaent Loa
Committee or the Loan Committee. Such loans in &xcd $1.0 million up to and including $2.5 millioequire the same officer approvals, approval efNtanageme!
Loan Committee, and ratification of the Loan Contegtor the Bank Board of Directors. Constructiaanis in excess of $2.5 million up to and includiig.0 millior
require the same officer approvals, approval byMeamagement Loan Committee, and approval of thenl@ammittee or the Bank Board of Directors. Corwttan
loans in excess of $15.0 million require the sarffieer approvals, approval by the Management Loam@ittee, and approval of the Bank Board of DirextoAny
loan, regardless of type, that deviates from outewr credit policies must be approved by the LEGammittee or the Bank Board of Directors.

For all loans originated by us, upon receipt ofoanpleted loan application, a credit report is oedeand certain other financial information is obéal. Ar
appraisal of the real estate intended to secur@rbgosed loan is required to be received. An irddpnt appraiser designated and approved by usntiyrperform
such appraisals. Our staff appraisers reviewpgdtasals. The Bank Board of Directors annuallyrapes the independent appraisers used by the Bahkgproves tf
Bank’s appraisal policy. It is our policy to requirertmwers to obtain title insurance and hazard instgaon all real estate loans prior to closing. ¢estain borrower
and/or as required by law, the Bank may requireogs¢unds on a monthly basis together with eachnayt of principal and interest to a mortgage esa@owount fror
which we make disbursements for items such asestate taxes and, in some cases, hazard insursamaims.

Loan ConcentrationsThe maximum amount of credit that the Bank caermxtto any single borrower or related group of @eers generally is limited to 1&
of the Banks unimpaired capital and surplus, or $67.1 mill@nDecember 31, 2013. Applicable laws and reguiatipermit an additional amount of credit tc
extended, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital arrglgs, if the loan is secured by readily marketatnélateral, which generally does not include resflate. See “-
Regulation.” However, it is currently our policy not to exteneth additional credit. At December 31, 2013, theeee no loans in excess of the maximum dollar art
of loans to one borrower that the Bank was autlkdrio make. At that date, the three largest conggons of loans to one borrower consisted of losesured b
commercial real estate, muftimily income producing properties and businesadoaith an aggregate principal balance of $59.8anil $54.3 million and $48.4 millic
for each of the three borrowers, respectively.
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Loan Servicing.At December 31, 2013, we were servicing $1.5 millof mortgage loans and $11.5 million of SBA lofmsothers. Our policy is to retain 1
servicing rights to the mortgage and SBA loans tesell in the secondary market, other than perierming loans that are sold with servicing reézito the buyer.
order to increase revenue, management intendsitsae this policy.

Asset Quality

Loan Collection. When a borrower fails to make a required paymera éwan, we take a number of steps to induce thewer to cure the delinquency ¢
restore the loan to current status. In the caseasfgage loans, personal contact is made with theter after the loan becomes 30 days delingiettake a proacti
approach to managing delinquent loans, includingdooting site examinations and encouraging borrsviermeet with one of our representatives. Whenmee
appropriate, we develop shaetrm payment plans that enable borrowers to btied foans current, generally within six to ninentits. At times, when a borrowel
experiencing financial difficulties, we may restiwre a loan to enable a borrower to continue makengments when it is deemed to be in our best teng-interes
This restructure may include reducing the interat or amount of the monthly payment for a spedifieriod of time, after which the interest ratd egpayment tern
revert to the original terms of the loan. We clgstliese loans as “Troubled Debt Restructuredit.December 31, 2013, we had $16.0 million of loatessified a
Troubled Debt Restructured, with $13.7 million bkse loans performing according to their restrectulerms and $2.3 million not performing accordingtheil
restructured terms. We review delinquencies orea loy loan basis, diligently exploring ways to hbtprowers meet their obligations and return thexoktto currer
status, and we have increased staffing to handilegdent loans by hiring people experienced in leamkouts.

When the borrower has indicated that they will hahle to bring the loan current, or due to othezurhstances which, in our opinion, indicate therdaoer will
be unable to bring the loan current within a reabbmtime, the loan is classified as non-performigloans classified as nogperforming, which includes all loans p
due 90 days or more, are classified as acecrual unless there is, in our opinion, compelBr@lence the borrower will bring the loan currgnthe immediate future. ,
December 31, 2013, there were six loans, whichedt®0.6 million, past due 90 days or more andiatitruing interest.

Upon classifying a loan as ngerforming, we review available information and ditions that relate to the status of the loan,udiig the estimated value
the loan’s collateral and any legal consideratidra may affect the borrowear’ability to continue to make payments. Based upenavailable information, we w
consider the sale of the loan or retention of trenl! If the loan is retained, we may continue tokawith the borrower to collect the amounts duestart foreclosut
proceedings. If a foreclosure action is initiated ¢he loan is not brought current, paid in futlrefinanced before the foreclosure sale, thepegderty securing the lo
is sold at foreclosure or by us as soon thereaftqracticable.

Once the decision to sell a loan is made, we détermhat we would consider adequate consideratidretobtained when that loan is sold, based offiattte
and circumstances related to that loan. Investwisbaokers are then contacted to seek intereatrichpsing the loan. We have been successful infinguyers for sorr
of our nonperforming loans offered for sale that are willlogpay what we consider to be adequate considaraferms of the sale include cash due upon closirige
sale, no contingencies or recourse to us, servisingleased to the buyer and time is of the essélfeese sales usually close within a reasonalolgt §ime period.

This strategy of selling non-performing loans héevweed us to optimize our return by quickly conwegt our nonperforming loans to cash, which can thei
reinvested in earning assets. This strategy alswslus to avoid lengthy and costly legal procegslithat may occur with noperforming loans. We sold 72 delinqu
mortgage loans totaling $33.4 million, 77 delinguemortgage loans totaling $44.2 million, and 44irglent mortgage loans totaling $27.8 million dgrihe year
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respgctitviel recorded net chargéfs of $4.7 million, $5.7 million and $3.7 millicio the allowance for loan losses for
non-performing loans that were sold during 2013,28nd 2011, respectively. We realized gross g#i$d 34,000, $21,000 and $167,000 on the sal@wferforming
mortgage loans for the years ended December 3B, 2112 and 2011, respectively. We realized glosses of $81,000 and $69,000 on the sale ofpeoforming
mortgage loans for the years ended December 3B, &0d 2012, respectively. We did not record anggiosses for the year ended December 31, 201te Tha be
assurances that we will continue this strategyitare periods, or if continued, we will be abldital buyers to pay adequate consideration.

15




On mortgage loans or loan participations purchéseds for whom the seller retains the servicingptdgwe receive monthly reports with which we monthe
loan portfolio. Based upon servicing agreementh thie servicers of the loans, we rely upon theiser to contact delinquent borrowers, collect miglient amounts a
initiate foreclosure proceedings, when necessdhyjinaccordance with applicable laws, regulatiaml the terms of the servicing agreements betwseand oL
servicing agents. The servicers are required tongumonthly reports on their collection efforts delinquent loans. At December 31, 2013, we heldB3®.énillion of
loans that were serviced by others.

In the case of commercial business or other loarsgenerally send the borrower a written noticeaf-payment when the loan is first past due. In thent
payment is not then received, additional letterd pimone calls generally are made in order to ermgmuthe borrower to meet with one of our represeetato discus
the delinquency. If the loan still is not broughtrrent and it becomes necessary for us to take &gi@n, which typically occurs after a loan ididguent 90 days
more, we may attempt to repossess personal ordassproperty that secures an SBA loan, commeraghess loan or consumer loan.

Troubled Debt RestructuredNVe have restructured certain problem loans fordveers who are experiencing financial difficultieg either: reducing the inter
rate until the next reset date, extending the drativn period thereby lowering the monthly paynseieferring a portion of the interest paymenthanging the loan
interest only payments for a limited time period .tines, certain problem loans have been restredtby combining more than one of these optionss@ hestructuring
have not included a reduction of principal balaiWwie. believe that restructuring these loans in itesiner will allow certain borrowers to become ashain current c
their loans. These restructured loans are cladsifgetroubled debt restructured (“TDRLpans which have been current for six consecutivettrs at the time they ¢
restructured as TDR remain on accrual status. Lednish were delinquent at the time they are restined as a TDR are placed on rewerual status until they he
made timely payments for six consecutive months.

The following table shows our recorded investmaribans classified as TDR that are performing atiogrto their restructured terms at the periodscated:

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Multi-family residentia $ 3,081 $ 2347 $ 9,41: $ 7,946 $ 47¢
Commercial real esta 3,68¢ 8,49¢ 2,49¢ 5,81¢ 1,441
One-to-four family mixec-use property 2,692 2,33¢ 79t 20¢€ 57&
One-to-four family residentia 364 374 - - -
Constructior 74€ 3,80t 5,88¢ - -
Commercial business and ott 3,127 2,54( 2,00( - -
Total performing troubled debt restructul $ 13,70 $ 19,90 $ 20,59 % 13,967 $ 2,49¢

Loans that are restructured as TDR but are nobpaifg in accordance with the restructured ternesecluded from the TDR table above, as they aeex
on non-accrual status and reported as penierming loans. At December 31, 2013 and 201&gethivas one loan for $2.3 million and seven loateding $11.6 millior
respectively, which were restructured as TDR whiehe not performing in accordance with their resticed terms.

Delinquent Loans and Non-performing Assetie generally discontinue accruing interest on dglént loans when a loan is 90 days past due oclémsere

proceedings have been commenced, whichever ficsiroc At that time, previously accrued but unctbe interest is reversed from income. Loans imulé®0 days «
more as to their maturity date but not their paytsemowever, continue to accrue interest as lortgeborrower continues to remit monthly payments.
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The following table shows our ngrerforming assets, including Loans held for saleéha dates indicated. During the years ended mbee 31, 2013, 2012 and 20
the amounts of additional interest income that wddve been recorded on nacerual loans, had they been current, totaled #@libn, $7.3 million and $7.5 millior
respectively. These amounts were not includediimirgerest income for the respective periods.

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Loans 90 days or more past duand still accruing:
Multi-family residentia $ 52 $ - % 6,287 $ 102 % -
Commercial real esta - - 92 3,32¢ 471
One-to-four family - residentia 15 - - - 2,78¢
Commercial Business and ott 53¢ 644 - 6 -
Total 60€ 644 6,37¢ 3,431 3,25¢
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 13,68: 16,48¢ 19,94¢ 35,63 27,48:
Commercial real esta 9,962 15,64( 19,89 22,80¢ 18,15
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 9,06: 18,28( 28,42¢ 30,47¢ 23,42
One-to-four family residentia 13,25( 13,72¢ 12,76¢ 10,69¢ 4,95¢
Cao-operative apartmen 57 234 152 - 78
Constructior - 7,69¢ 14,72: 4,46¢ 1,63¢
Total 46,01« 72,06: 95,90¢ 104,07 75,73¢
Non-accrual nor-mortgage loans:
Small Business Administratic - 282 49¢ 1,15¢ 1,23
Commercial Business and other 2,34¢ 16,86( 14,66( 3,41¢ 3,151
Total 2,34¢ 17,14: 15,15: 4,57¢ 4,38
Total non-accrual loans 48,36: 89,20: 111,06: 108,65! 80,11°
Total non-performing loans 48,96¢ 89,84¢ 117,44 112,09. 83,37.
Other non-performing assets:
Real Estate Owne 2,98t 5,27¢ 3,17¢ 1,58¢ 2,26:
Investment securitie 1,871 3,33 2,562 5,13¢ 5,13¢
Total 4,85¢ 8,61( 5,741 6,722 7,39¢
Total non-performing assets $ 53,82: $ 9845 $ 123,18 $ 11881 $ 90,76¢
Non-performing loans to gross loa 1.4%% 2.7% 3.65% 3.44% 2.6(%
Non-performing assets to total ass 1.14% 2.21% 2.8 2.7%% 2.1%
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The following table shows our delinquent loans tiratless than 90 days past due and still accintegest at the periods indicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
60- 89 30-59 60- 89 30-59
days days days days
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 255 $ 14,10 $ 4,827 $ 24,05¢
Commercial real esta 522 5,02¢ 3,622 9,76¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1,09¢ 14,017 3,36¢ 21,012
One-to-four family - residentia 517 3,92 1,88¢ 3,407

Cc-operative apartmen - - -
- 2,462

Construction loan - -
Small Business Administratic - 10E - 404
Taxi medallion - - - -
Commercial business and ott 2 187 6 2
Total $ 4,69¢ $ 37,360 $ 13,70¢ $ 61,11(

Hurricane Sandy . Hurricane Sandy caused significant damage to numsenomes and businesses throughout the New Yorkoptgitan area, our prima
market, in late October 2012. In working with igribwers and depositors affected by this hurricéime Bank had entered into payment agreements ¢oaB8 totalin
$18.9 million. These agreements originally provided for partigirpent deferrals, generally for 90 days, but somreemgents provide for longer deferral periods. T
agreements were intended to provide the borrowerpportunity to fully assess any damage to tlopepties, apply for and receive insurance proceaad,repa
damages to the properties. At December 31, 2018a totaling $7.5 million remain under thesesagrents, of which eight loans totaling $5.6 millame considere
non-performing and we have placed them on accrual status until they reestablish a paymemoiyisind bring the loans current. Four of the remmagj loans, which a
current under their repayment plans, have had #dggements extended into 2014 to give the bormwagditional time to recover. Two loans are delamwnder the
repayment plans. Each borrower was required, coromgrat the end of the deferral period, to makertfegularly scheduled loan payments plus a portbnhe
deferred amounts. As of December 31, 2013, the Basknot incurred, and does not expect to incyr)@sses related to these agreements.

Other Real Estate Owned We aggressively market our Other Real Estata&d(*OREO")properties. At December 31, 2013, we owned 12 ptigsewith ¢
combined fair value of $3.0 million. At December, 2012, we owned 11 properties with a combinedvaiue of $5.3 million. At December 31, 2011, wened seve
properties with a combined fair value of $3.2 roili

Investment Securities Nonperforming investment securities included one pdbdtest preferred security with a fair value of$hillion at December 31, 20
and two pooled trust preferred securities withiavialue totaling $3.3 million at December 31, 2012

Environmental Concerns Relating to LoaWée currently obtain environmental reports in cotioecwith the underwriting of commercial real estétans, an
typically obtain environmental reports in connestimith the underwriting of multiamily loans. For all other loans, we obtain enmireental reports only if the nature
the current or, to the extent known to us, price asthe property securing the loan indicates am@il environmental risk. However, we may no&bere of such us
or risks in any particular case, and, accordintijigre is no assurance that real estate acquired byforeclosure is free from environmental conteation or that, if an
such contamination or other violation exists, wietlre will have any liability.
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Classified Assets. Our policy is to review our assets, focusingranily on the loan portfolio, OREO and the investinportfolios, to ensure that the cre
quality is maintained at the highest levels. Wheraknesses are identified, immediate action isnta@ecorrect the problem through direct contachwtiite borrower ¢
issuer. We then monitor these assets, and, in @coe with our policy and current regulatory guitks, we designate them as “Special Mentievhich is considered
“Criticized Asset,” and “Substandard,” “Doubtfulgr “Loss” which are considered “Classified Assetas’ deemed necessary. These loan designationgpdager
quarterly. We designate an asset as Substandaml avivelldefined weakness is identified that jeopardizesotiakerly liquidation of the debt. We designate aset a
Doubtful when it displays the inherent weaknesa 8ubstandard asset with the added provision dilgiction of the debt in full, on the basis of éiig facts, is highl
improbable. We designate an asset as Loss iflieésned the debtor is incapable of repayment. Weotibold any loans designated as loss, as loatsth designat
as Loss are charged to the Allowance for Loan Losgessets that are n@tcrual are designated as Substandard, Doubtfubss. We designate an asset as St
Mention if the asset does not warrant designatiéthinvone of the other categories, but does congapotential weakness that deserves closer atterflar tots
Criticized and Classified assets were $130.2 nilab December 31, 2013, a decrease of $94.0 mfilan $224.2 million at December 31, 2012.

The following table sets forth the Bank's Critidiz&nd Classified assets at December 31, 2013:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 9,94( $ 19,08¢ $ - % - % 29,02¢
Commercial real esta 13,50: 16,82( - - 30,32
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7,992 14,89¢ - - 22,89(
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84¢ 14,02¢ - - 16,87+
Cao-operative apartmen - 59 - - 59
Construction loan 74¢€ - - - 74¢€
Small Business Administratic 31C - - - 31C
Commercial business and other 7,314 8,45( 50 - 15,81«
Total loans 42,65! 73,34: 50 - 116,04!
Investment Securities: (1)
Pooled trust preferred securities - 11,13¢ - = 11,134
Total investment securities - 11,13« - - 11,13¢
Other Real Estate Own - 2,98¢ - - 2,98t
Total $ 4265 $ 87,46. $ 50 $ - $ 130,16
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The following table sets forth the Bank's Criticiz&nd Classified assets at December 31, 2012:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar  Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 16,34 $ 22,76¢ $ - % - % 39,11«
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,87 - - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,10« 26,50¢ - - 39,61(
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22: 15,32¢ - - 20,55!
Cao-operative apartmen 10s 237 - - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - - 14,40:
Small Business Administratic 322 212 244 - 77¢
Commercial business and ott 3,044 18,41¢ 1,08( - 22,54
Total loans 53,04« 121,94t 1,32¢ - 176,31«
Investment Securities: (1)
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 16,18¢ - - 16,18¢
Private issue CMO - 26,42¢ - - 26,42¢
Total investment securities - 42,61¢ - - 42,61¢
Other Real Estate Ownt - 5,27¢ - - 5,27¢
Total $ 53,04« $ 169,84 $ 1,32¢  $ - $ 224,21(

(1) Our investment securities are classified as seéesrdvailable for sale and as such are carrietieat fair value in our Consolidated Financial Stagats. Th
securities above had a fair value of $7.9 milliowl $35.2 million at December 31, 2013 and 201Z%eetvely. Under current applicable regulatory gliies, wi
are required to disclose the classified investnsecurities, as shown in the tables above, at Hwok values (amortized cost, or fair value for sities that ar
under the fair value option). Additionally, the ueégment is only for the Ban&’securities. Flushing Financial Corporation had twivate issue trust prefer
securities classified as Substandard at Decemhe&P2, with a combined market value of $0.8 mili&lushing Financial Corporation did not have aaguritie:
classified or criticized at December 31, 20

On a quarterly basis all mortgage loans that assdied as Substandard or Doubtful are intermafiyewed for impairment, based on updated cashsfifm
income producing properties, or updated indepenagptaisals. The loan balances of collateral dégeinloans reviewed for impairment are then compé&oehe loar
updated fair value. Weonsider fair value of collateral dependent loanbeé 85% of the appraised or internally estimataldiev of the property. The balance wt
exceeds fair value is generally charged-off agaimstallowance for loan losses. At December 3132@ie current loan-tealue ratio on our collateral dependent Ic
reviewed for impairment was 46.2%.

We classify investment securities as Substandaehwibased on an internal review, we concludedehargties are below investment grade. We have iiledt
a total of three investment securities that are hethe Bank as Substandard at December 31, ZfrXlassified investment securities at Decembef813 held by tr
Bank include three issues of pooled trust prefesemiirities. The investment securities which aaesified as Substandard at December 31, 2013 euetses that wet
rated investment grade when we purchased them eTéexsurities have each been subsequently downgiadati least one rating agency to below investngeatie
Through December 31, 2013, one of the pooled preferred securities is not paying principal aneriest as scheduled. The remaining investment ifesurontinue
to pay interest and principal as scheduled at Dbeerd1, 2013. We test each of these securitiegerligrthrough an independent third party, for innpent.

There were $1.4 million, $0.8 million and $1.6 moifl in credit related other-than-temporary impainn€¢'OTTI") charges recorded for the years er
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyinB@013 we recorded OTTI charges of $1.4 millionfour private issue collateralized mortgage oltigges. During
2012 we recorded OTTI charges of $0.8 million are fprivate issue collateralized mortgage obligatidburing 2011 we recorded OTTI charges of $1.6ionilon five
private issue collateralized mortgage obligations.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

We have established and maintain on our bookslawatce for loan losses that is designed to prosideserve against estimated losses inherent inwaral
loan portfolio. The allowance is established thtoagprovision for loan losses based on managementluation of the risk inherent in the variousmponents of tr
loan portfolio and other factors, including histali loan loss experience (which is updated quaiteclrrent economic conditions, delinquency and-accrual trend
classified loan levels, risk in the portfolio andlwmes and trends in loan types, recent trend$iéamgeeffs, changes in underwriting standards, experieabdgity anc
depth of our lenders, collection policies and eigrere, internal loan review function and other exaéfactors. Additionally, we segregated our ®arto two portfolio
based on year of origination. One portfolio wadeered for loans originated after December 31, 2889 a second portfolio for loans originated pr@danuary 1, 201
Our decision to segregate the portfolio based upiination dates was based on changes made inrmarwriting standards during 2009. By the endGfF®, all loan
were being underwritten based on revised and tigdateinderwriting standards. Loans originated pioo2010 have a higher delinquency rate and lost®ryi. Each ¢
the years in the portfolio for loans originatedoprio 2010 has a similar delinquency rate. Therdgtetion of the amount of the allowance for loasses include
estimates that are susceptible to significant ceamye to changes in appraisal values of collateasional and local economic conditions and ofhetors. We revie'
our loan portfolio by separate categories with Eimiisk and collateral characteristics. Impairedrs are segregated and reviewed separately. Addocrual loans a
classified impaired. Impaired loans secured byatethl are reviewed based on the fair value ofr tbeilateral. For norcollateralized impaired loans, manager
estimates any recoveries that are anticipateddon éoan. In connection with the determinationtef &llowance, the market value of collateral ondipas evaluated b
our staff appraiser. On a quarterly basis, thereded values of impaired mortgage loans are inlgrneviewed, based on updated cash flows for ineqgroducin
properties, and at times an updated independentigppis obtained. The loan balances of collatdependent impaired loans are then compared tgitbpertys
updated fair value. We consider fair value of dellal dependent loans to be 85% of the appraisadt@mally estimated value of the property. Théabee whicl
exceeds fair value is generally chargegfl-When evaluating a loan for impairment, we aa rely on guarantees, and the amount of impairpieaby, is based on t
fair value of the collateral. We do not carry loatsa value in excess of the fair value due to aautee from the borrower. Impaired mortgage ldhaswere writte
down resulted from quarterly reviews or updatedraispls that indicated the propertiestimated value had declined from when the loanaviggnated. The Board
Directors reviews and approves the adequacy ddltberance for loan losses on a quarterly basis.

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, wewewsur loan portfolio by separate categories wiiate similar risk and collateral characteristicg,,emulti-
family residential, commercial real estate, ondeta- family mixed-use property, one-to-four familysidential, casperative apartment, construction, SBA, comme
business, taxi medallion and consumer loans. Gepeoaisions are established against performingidom our portfolio in amounts deemed prudent basedu
qualitative analysis of the factors, including thistorical loss experience, delinquency trends landl economic conditions. We incurred total neargeoffs of $13.:
million and $20.2 million during the years endedcBmber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The natiand local economies were generally considerdoktin :
recession from December 2007 through the midd06B. This resulted in increased unemployment auotirdng property values, although the propertyueadlecline
in our market, the New York City metropolitan arbaye not been as great as many other areas obtimery. While the national and local economiesehstvown sigr
of improvement since the middle of 2010, improvetaen unemployment have lagged, with the unemploymate decreasing but remaining at an elevatesl.|&he
high level of unemployment has had a negative effecour loan portfolio. Noperforming loans totaled $49.0 million and $89.8liom at December 31, 2013 &
2012, respectively. The Bank’s underwriting stanaid generally require a loantalue ratio of no more than 75% at the time the lizaoriginated. At December <
2013, the outstanding principal balance of our imgghmortgage loans was less than 47% of the etgtthwurrent value of the supporting collateraleraéonsidering tt
chargeeffs that have been recorded. A provision for la@sses of $13.9 million, $21.0 million and $21.8lion was recorded for the years ended Decembef313
2012 and 2011, respectively. Management has coed|uand the Board of Directors has concurred,ah@tecember 31, 2013, the allowance was suffidiemtbsor
losses inherent in our loan portfolio.

Our determination as to the classification of osseds and the amount of our valuation allowanciligect to review by our regulators, which can nexjthe
establishment of additional general allowancespacHic loss allowances or require chafés. Such authorities may require us to make &utht provisions to tt
allowance based on their judgments about informatiwailable to them at the time of their examinatid policy statement provides guidance for examsinie
determining whether the levels of general valuatiowances for banking institutions are adequ@itee policy statement requires that if a bangeneral valuatic
allowance policies and procedures are deemed todolequate, recommendations for correcting defoiées including any examiner concerns regardindetel of the
allowance, should be noted in the report of exatiina Additional supervisory action may also beealased on the magnitude of the observed shomgsnin thi
allowance process, including the materiality of ampr in the reported amount of the allowance.
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Management believes that our current allowancddan losses is adequate in light of current econaronditions, the composition of our loan portfolibe
level and type of delinquent loans, our level afssified loans, charg&fs recorded and other available information dmel Board of Directors concurs in this belief
December 31, 2013, the total allowance for loasdesvas $31.8 million, representing 64.89% of nerfigoming loans and 59.04% of npefforming assets, compa
to 34.62% of non-performing loans and 31.59% of-performing assets at December 31, 2012. We contiouronitor and, as necessary, modify the leveba
allowance for loan losses in order to maintainatewvance at a level which we consider adequapedwide for probable loan losses based on availaldemation.

Many factors may require additions to the allowafaeloan losses in future periods beyond thoseeatlly revealed. These factors include further ask
changes in economic conditions, changes in intea¢ss and changes in the financial capacity dfiddal borrowers (any of which may affect the #hibf borrowers t
make repayments on loans), changes in the redkeastaket within our lending area and the valueaifateral, or a review and evaluation of our Igemtfolio in the
future. The determination of the amount of thevadlace for loan losses includes estimates thatusmeeptible to significant changes due to changegpjmaised values
collateral, national and local economic conditianggrest rates and other factors. In addition,auerall level of credit risk inherent in our loportfolio can be affecte
by the loan portfolio’s composition. At December, 2D13, multi-family residential, commercial redtate, construction and one-to-four family mixezk propert
mortgage loans, totaled 82.5% of our gross loahs. greater risk associated with these loans, dsasdiusiness loans, could require us to increasgmvisions fo
loan losses and to maintain an allowance for loasds as a percentage of total loans that is msexaf the allowance we currently maintain. Piiowss for loan losse
are charged against net income. See “—Lendingviies” and “—Asset Quality.”
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The following table sets forth changes in, andithkiance of, our allowance for loan losses.

At and for the years ended December

(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of ye $ 31,10: $ 30,34 $ 27,69¢ $ 20,32:  $ 11,02¢
Provision for loan losse 13,93¢ 21,00( 21,50( 21,00( 19,50(
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (3,585 (6,016 (6,807 (5,790 (2,327
Commercial real esta (2,05)) (2,746 (5,179 (2,68%) (72¢)
One-to-four family mixec-use propert (4,20¢) (4,286 (2,649 (2,580 (2,009
One-to-four family residentia (702) (1,589 (2,226 (23¢) (289
Cao-operative apartmel (10¢) (62) - - -
Constructior (2,67¢) (4,59) (1,08¢) (1,879 (2,075
SBA (457) (329 (877) (925) (1,106
Commercial business and other lo. (2,05%) (1,667 (642) (500 (3,847
Total loans charge-off (14,849 (21,269 (19,450 (14,599 (10,377
Recoveries
Mortgage loan: 1,407 83¢ 528 18¢ 1
SBA, commercial business and other loans 17: 191 72 787 16€
Total recoveries 1,58( 1,02¢ 59E 97C 167
Net charg-offs (13,269) (20,240 (18,855 (13,629 (10,20
Balance at end of ye. $ 31,77¢  $ 31,100 $ 30,34 $ 27,69¢ $ 20,32:
Ratio of net charc-offs during the yea to average loans outstanding during the 0.41% 0.62% 0.5% 0.42% 0.3%%
Ratio of allowance for loan lossesgross loans at end of the y 0.99% 0.97% 0.94% 0.85% 0.63%
Ratio of allowance for loan lossesnor-performing loans at the end of the y 64.8% 34.62% 25.8%% 24.7% 24.3%%
Ratio of allowance for loan lossesnor-performing assets at the end of the y 59.0% 31.5% 24.6% 23.31% 22.3%
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The following table sets forth our allocation ofetlallowance for loan losses to the total amountoahs in each of the categories listed at the
indicated. The numbers contained in the “Amowdlumn indicate the allowance for loan losses alied for each particular loan category. The numbentained i
the column entitled “Percentage of Loans in CatggoiTotal Loans” indicate the total amount of leam each particular category as a percentagerdban portfolio.

At December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Percen Percen Percen Percen Percen
of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir
Category t Category t Category t Category t Category t
Loan Categon Amount Total loans Amount Totalloans Amount Total loan: Amount Total loans Amount Total loan:
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia $ 12,08¢ 50.02% $ 13,00: 47.62% $ 11,267 43.2¢% $ 9,007 38.4% $ 6,581 36.11%
Commercial real esta 4,95¢ 14.97 5,70¢ 16.0C 5,21( 18.0% 4,90¢ 20.3¢ 4,39¢ 21.42
One-to-four family mixec-use
property 6,32¢ 17.4C 5,96( 19.7¢ 5,31« 21.5¢ 5,997 22.3¢ 4,33¢ 23.2¢
One-to-four family residential 2,07¢ 5.6€ 1,99¢ 6.1¢ 1,64¢ 6.8€ 93¢ 7.4C 844 7.8C
Cc-operative apartmel 104 0.3C 46 0.2C 80 0.17 17 0.1¢ 17 0.2C
Constructior 444 0.12 66 0.4¢ 66€ 1.47 58¢ 2.32 1,281 3.04
Gross mortgage loal 25,99¢ 88.41 26,77 90.2¢ 24,18¢ 91.4¢ 21,45 91.0] 17,457 91.87
Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic 45¢ 0.2: 50¢ 0.2¢ 987 0.4¢ 1,30: 0.5¢ 96& 0.5t
Taxi Medallion - 0.3¢ 7 0.31 41 1.6¢ 63¢ 2.71 582 1.92
Commercial business and ot 5,32( 10.92 3,81¢ 9.1¢ 5,12¢ 6.4: 4,304 5.7¢ 1,31¢ 5.6€
Gross no-mortgage loan 5,77¢ 11.5: 4,327 9.7¢€ 6,15¢€ 8.5¢ 6,24€ 8.9¢ 2,867 8.1:
Total loans $ 31,77¢ 100.0% $ 31,10« 100.0% $ 30,34« 100.0% $ 27,69¢ 100.0% $ 20,32« 100.0(%
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Investment Activities

General. Our investment policy, which is approved by theaRl of Directors, is designed primarily to man#tgeinterest rate sensitivity of our overall as
and liabilities, to generate a favorable returnheitt incurring undue interest rate and credit riskcomplement our lending activities and to prevaahd maintai
liquidity. In establishing our investment strateggieve consider our business and growth stratetfiessconomic environment, our interest rate rigkosxre, our intere
rate sensitivity “gap” position, the types of seties to be held, and other factors. See “Managémddiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiom &esults ¢
Operations — Overview—Management Strategy” in I#eof this Annual Report.

Although we have authority to invest in variousagmf assets, we primarily invest in mortgéigeked securities, securities issued by mutuabadbBunds the
invest in government and government agency seesirithunicipal bonds and corporate bonds. We didholotany issues of foreign sovereign debt at Déxerl, 201
and 2012.

Our Investment Committee meets quarterly to monitwestment transactions and to establish investrstrategy. The Board of Directors reviews
investment policy on an annual basis and investm@etitity on a monthly basis.

We classify our investment securities as availdblesale. We carry some of our investments underféir value option. Unrealized gains and losse
investments carried under the fair value optioniackided in our Consolidated Statements of Incddreealized gains and losses on the remaining imesg portfolio
other than unrealized credit losses considered otfae temporary, are excluded from earnings anllided in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomse(arat
component of equity), net of taxes. At December 2113, we had $1,017.8 million in securities au##afor sale, which represented 21.56% of totak@ssThes
securities had an aggregate market value at Dece3ith@013 that was approximately 2.4 times thewarhof our equity at that date.

There were $1.4 million, $0.8 million and $1.6 noifl in credit related OTTI charges recorded for ytears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
respectively. During 2013 we recorded OTTI chargfe$1.4 million on four private issue collateratizenortgage obligations. During 2012 we recorded OdfiRrges ¢
$0.8 million on five private issue collateralizedmyage obligations. During 2011 we recorded OTHdrges of $1.6 million on five private issue calalized mortgac
obligations. We sold these private issue collaizzdl mortgage obligations during 2013. As a reetithe magnitude of our holdings of securities kldée for sale
changes in interest rates could produce significaanges in the value of such securities and cordduce significant fluctuations in our operatimgults and equit
(See Notes 6 and 17 of Notes to Consolidated Fiab8tatements, included in Item 8 of this AnnuapRrt.)
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The table below sets forth certain information regay the amortized cost and market values of egusties portfolio, interestarning deposits and fede
funds sold, at the dates indicated. Securitiedabla for sale are recorded at market value. ($etes 6 and 17 of Notes to Consolidated Finandetegents, include
in ltem 8 of this Annual Report.)

At December 31
2013 2012 2011
Amortized Market Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(In thousands

Securities available for sale
Bonds and other debt securiti

U.S. government and agenc $ - % - % 31,40¢ $ 3151 % 1,98 $ 2,03¢
Municipal securitie: 127,96 123,42: 74,22¢ 75,297 4,53¢ 4,531
Corporate debenturt 100,36: 101,71: 83,38¢ 87,48t 20,771 20,59:
Total bonds and other debt securit 228,32¢ 225,13¢ 189,02¢ 194,29! 27,29 27,16:
Mutual funds 21,56¢ 21,56¢ 21,84 21,84: 21,36¢ 21,36¢
Equity securities
Common stocl 88¢ 88¢ 71€ 71€ 79C 79C
Preferred stoc 17,27. 14,04 17,07¢ 12,59% 21,23¢ 15,92:
Total equity securitie 18,16( 14,93t 17,79 13,31¢ 22,02: 16,712
Mortgagebacked securities
FNMA 217,61! 212,32. 168,04( 175,92¢ 175,62 182,63(
REMIC and CMC 494,98 489,67( 453,46¢ 474,05( 460,82 473,63¢
FHLMC 13,297 13,29( 22,56 23,20: 22,55¢ 23,381
GNMA 38,97« 40,87« 43,21: 46,93: 62,04( 67,63:
Total mortgage-backed securities 764,87( 756,15¢ 687,28 720,11: 721,04 747,28¢
Total securities available for s¢ 1,032,92. 1,017,791 915,94° 949,56¢ 791,73( 812,53(
Interest-earning deposits ancFederal funds sold 23,74¢ 23,74¢ 31,27¢ 31,27¢ 48,94« 48,94«
Total $ 105667, $ 104153 $ 94722« $ 980,84* $ 840,67: $ 861,47

Mortgage-backed securitiesAt December 31, 2013, we had $756.2 million inredsn mortgagéacked securities, of which $10.0 million was irteesir
adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities. Theagage loans underlying these adjustailie- securities generally are subject to limitagi@m annual and lifetin
interest rate increases. We anticipate that investsnin mortgage-backed securities may continugetaised in the future to supplement mortgiegeling activities
Mortgagebacked securities are more liquid than individuaktgage loans and may be used more easily to erdlate our obligations, including collateralizingythe
governmental deposits of the Bank.
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The following table sets forth our mortgage-backedurities purchases, sales and principal repayenthe years indicated:

For the years ended December
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Balance at beginning of ye $ 720,11 $ 747,28¢ $ 754,07
Purchases of mortga-backed securitie 357,02: 141,51 122,53(
Amortization of unearned premium, netaccretion of unearned discot (3,577 (3,269 (2,587
Net change in unrealized gains on mort-backec securities available for sa (41,546 6,591 22,124
Net realized gains (losses) recorded on mori-backecsecurities carried at fair vall (589) (381) (63€)
Net change in interest due on securities carriddiavalue (62) (51 (46)
Sales of mortga-backed securitie (126,849 (12,590 -
Othe-thar-temporary impairment charg (1,419 (77¢€) (1,57%)
Principal repayments received mortgag-backed securitie (146,939 (158,21 (146,599

Net increase (decrease) in mortgage-backed sesuriti 36,04 (27,17%) (6,789
Balance at end of ye. $ 756,15t $ 720,111 $ 747,28

While mortgagebacked securities carry a reduced credit risk agpeoed to whole loans, such securities remain stilipethe risk that a fluctuating interest |
environment, along with other factors such as #eggaphic distribution of the underlying mortgagaris, may alter the prepayment rate of such maettgsms and ¢
affect both the prepayment speed and value of sectrities. We do not own any derivative instrurag¢hat are extremely sensitive to changes in isteates.
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The table below sets forth certain information redgay the amortized cost, fair value, annualizedgited average yields and maturities of our investimr
debt and equity securities and intereatning deposits at December 31, 2013. The statiifin of balances is based on stated maturitigsitfEsecurities are shown
immediately maturing, except for preferred stockthwetated redemption dates, which are shown inpéméod they are scheduled to be redeemed. Assongpfo
repayments and prepayments are not reflected fotgagebacked securities. We carry these investmentseat éstimated fair value in the consolidated final

statements.
One year or Les One to Five Year Five to Ten Year More than Ten Year Total Securitie:
Average
Weightec Weightec Weighte( Weightec Remaining Estimated Weightec
Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Yearsto Amortized Fair Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Maturity Cost Value Yield
(Dollars in thousands
Securities
available for
sale
Bonds and othe
debt securities
Municipal
securities $ 1,000 0.2%%$ - -%$ 9,07t 4.2"%$ 117,89: 4.4% 17.41$ 127,96° $ 123,42: 4.3€y
Corporate
debentures 9,85¢ 0.5¢ 30,94¢ 1.47 55,00( 1.7¢€ 4,55¢ 0.6C 5.8¢ 100,36: 101,71: 1.51
Total bonds
and other
debt
securities 10,85¢ 0.5C 30,94t 1.47 64,07¢ 2.1£ 122,45( 4.2¢ 12.3¢  228,32¢  225,13: 3.11
Mutual funds 21,56 1.9¢ - - - - - - N/A 21,56t 21,56 1.95
Equity
securities
Common stocl - - - - - - 88¢ 3.4¢ N/A 88¢ 88¢ 3.4¢
Preferred stock - - - - - - 17,27: 4.2C N/A 17,27: 14,04% 4.2C
Total equity
securities - - - - - - 18,16( 4.17 N/A 18,16( 14,93¢ 4.17
Mortgage-
backed
securities
FNMA 11 6.0C 211 5.9¢ 83,39! 2.68 134,00( 3.27 14.2:  217,61' 212,32 3.04
REMIC and
CMO - - 42€ 3.7z 35,78¢ 4.6t 458,77- 3.0€ 23.3¢  494,98:  489,67( 3.1¢
FHLMC - - 33 4.41 2,571 4.71 10,69:¢ 2.71 12.11 13,297 13,29( 3.1
GNMA - - - - - - 38,97« 4.5¢ 22.1¢ 38,97« 40,87« 4.5
Total
mortgage-
backed
securities 11 6.0C 67C 4.47 121,74t 3.2¢ 642,44 3.1¢ 20.5C  764,87( 756,15t 3.21
Interest-
earning
deposits 23,74¢ 0.2% - - - - - - N/A 23,74¢ 23,74¢ 0.2%
Total $ 56,18: 0.9%¢$ 31,61¢ 1.59%$ 185,82 2.89%$ 783,05: 3.38% 18.6% $1,056,67. $1,041,53! 3.11y
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Sources of Funds

General. Deposits, FHLB-NY borrowings, repurchase agreets, principal and interest payments on loans,tgagebacked and other securities,
proceeds from sales of loans and securities arprauary sources of funds for lending, investing ather general purposes.

Deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts havinguage of interest rates and terms. Our depositsgpily consist of savings accounts, money m:
accounts, demand accounts, NOW accounts and catéi§i of deposit. We have a relatively stable Ird&posit base drawn from our market area throughl@ full-
service offices. We seek to retain existing deposilationships by offering quality service andangetitive interest rates, while keeping depositnghowithin reasonab
limits. It is management’s intention to balancegiéal to maintain competitive interest rates onodé@p while seeking to manage its cost of fund#nance its strategies.

In addition to our full-service offices we have ternet branch “iGObanking.cof”, which currently offers savings accounts, money mdccount:
checking accounts, and certificates of deposits Biiows us to compete on a national scale witklweigeographical constraints of physical locati@iace the numb
of U.S. households with accounts at Welly banks has grown, our strategy was to joinrttegket place by creating a branch that offers tdiehe simplicity an
flexibility of a virtual online bank, which is adsion of a stable, traditional bank that was esthbd in 1929. At December 31, 2013 and 2012/ e¢posits for tr
internet branch were $293.3 million and $294.1ionill respectively.

We have a government banking division, which pteothe Merger operated as the Commercial Bank, & Xerk Statechartered commercial bank, wh
provided banking services to public municipalitieluding counties, cities, towns, villages, sdhdistricts, libraries, fire districts, and the iars courts throughout t
New York City metropolitan area as an additionalrse of deposits. At December 31, 2013 and 2012l teposits in our government banking divisioraled $867.
million and $697.0 million, respectively.

Our core deposits, consisting of savings accolN@/V accounts, money market accounts, andintarest bearing demand accounts, are typicallyenstabl:
and lower costing than other sources of fundingweler, the flow of deposits into a particular typeaccount is influenced significantly by geneealonomi
conditions, changes in prevailing money market aftér interest rates, and competition. We expeeéran increase in our Due to depositahsting 2013 of $217
million. During the year ended December 31, 2Gh8, cost of Due to depositordecreased 27 basis points to 1.09% from 1.36%hiryear ended December
2012. This decrease in the cost of deposits imaily attributable to the Bank’reducing the rates it pays on its deposit predisthile we are unable to predict
direction of future interest rate changes, if ingrates rise during 2014, the result could benease in our cost of deposits, which could redua net interest marg
Similarly, if interest rates remain at their cutrégvel or decline in 2014, we could see a dedlineur cost of deposits, which could increase airimterest margin.

Included in deposits are certificates of deposthviialances of $100,000 or more (excluding broketeplosits issued in $1,000.00 amounts under a r
certificate of deposit) totaling $335.4 million, %87 million and $565.7 million at December 31, 202012 and 2011, respectively.

We utilize brokered deposits as an additional fngdiource and to assist in the management of ¢enest rate risk. We have obtained brokered ceatifis ¢
deposit when the interest rate on these depoditsidsv the prevailing interest rate for nbrekered certificates of deposit with similar métes in our market, or whe
obtaining them allowed us to extend the maturitiesur deposits at favorable rates compared tookong funds with similar maturities, when we arelsag to exten
the maturities of our funding to assist in the nggmaent of our interest rate risk. Brokered cedifés of deposit provide a large deposit for uslatvar operating cost
compared to nofwokered certificates of deposit since we only hame account to maintain versus several accourits milltiple interest and maturity checks.
Depository Trust Company is used as the clearingé&omaintaining each deposit under the name offE&Q0. These deposits are transferable just likek or bon
investment and the customer can open the accotimtowly a phone call, just like buying a stock ond. Unlike norbrokered certificates of deposit, where the de
amount can be withdrawn with a penalty for any eeasncluding increasing interest rates, a brokeredificate of deposit can only be withdrawn ir tvent of th
death, or court declared mental incompetence, efdgpositor. This allows us to better manage thenitya of our deposits and our interest rate ridke also utilize
brokers to obtain money market account deposite. rite we pay on brokered money market accourtteisame or below the rate we pay on boskered mone
market accounts, and the rate is agreed to in samirbetween the Bank and the broker. These atsawe similar to brokered certificates of depasitounts in that v
only maintain one account for the total deposithreker, with the broker maintaining the detailedards of each depositor.
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We also offer access to FDIC insurance coveragadess of $250,000 through a Certificate of Depbsttount Registry Service (“CDARS®3nd through &
Insured Cash Sweep service (“ICS”). CDARS@ ICS are deposit placement services. These rietwaarange for placement of funds into certificafteleposit accoun
or money market accounts issued by other membeshzirthe network in increments of less than $280,® ensure that both principal and interest agebée for full
FDIC deposit insurance. This allows us to accepbdits in excess of $250,000 from a depositor, @ade the deposits through the network to other begrbanks t
provide full FDIC deposit insurance coverage. Wey meceive deposits from other member banks in exgiador the deposits we place into the network.iiéy als:
obtain deposits from other network member bankbauit placing deposits into the network. We will ahtdeposits in this manner primarily as a shenta funding
source. We also can place deposits with other reerbanks without receiving deposits from other mertianks. Depositors are allowed to withdraw fundgh ¢
penalty, from these accounts at one or more ofrtbber banks that hold the deposits.

We also utilize brokers to obtain money market aotaeposits. These accounts are similar to brokeeetificate of deposit accounts in that we onlyimtair
one account for the total deposit per broker, withbroker maintaining the detailed records of edegositor.

Brokered deposits and funds obtained through thARE® and ICS networks are classified as brokered depfsitfinancial reporting purposes. At Decen
31, 2013, we had $517.4 million classified as breledeposits, with $446.9 million in brokered dastites of deposit and $70.5 million in brokerednep marke
accounts. The brokered certificates of deposiuihel$4.9 million obtained through the CDAR&@&work and the brokered money market accountsdiec$20.3 millio
obtained through the ICS network.
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The following table sets forth the distributionair deposit accounts at the dates indicated andi¢iighted average nominal interest rates on eaggyagy 0

deposits presented.

At December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Percen Average Percen Average Percen Average
of Total Nominal of Total Nominal of Total Nominal
Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Savings accouni $ 265,00: 8.2(% 0.1% $ 288,39t 9.5¢% 0.1¢% $ 349,63 11.11% 0.32%
NOW account: 1,416,77. 43.8: 0.5C 1,136,59 37.7C 0.57 919,02¢ 29.21 0.67%
Demand accouni 197,34: 6.1C - 155,78¢ 5.1% - 118,50 3.71 -
Mortgagors' escrow depos 32,79¢ 1.01 0.0¢ 32,56( 1.0¢ 0.0¢ 29,78¢ 0.9¢ 0.21
Total 1,911,91 59.1¢ 0.4C 1,613,341 53.51 0.44 1,416,95 45.0¢ 0.5Z
Money market accoun(8) 199,90° 6.1¢ 0.21 148,61 4,92 0.1 200,18: 6.3¢€ 0.3¢
Certificate of deposit account:
with original maturities of
Less than 6 Month(2) 10,11¢ 0.31 0.17 58,70¢ 1.9t 0.2Z 14,64: 0.47 0.17
6 to less than 12 Montl(3) 20,67: 0.64 0.1z 25,14° 0.8: 0.1z 22,84¢ 0.7: 0.2C
12 to less than 30 Montli(4) 236,41t 7.31 0.8¢ 298,55 9.9C 0.97 647,87 20.5¢ 1.7¢
30 to less than 48 Montl(5) 27,23 0.84 1.1t 84,90: 2.82 2.1% 91,70: 2.91 2.21
48 to less than 72 Montl(6) 764,56: 23.6t 2.3¢ 720,32 23.8¢ 2.5¢ 685,43: 21.7¢ 2.81
72 Months or more (7 61,957 1.92 3.64 65,58¢ 2.1¢ 3.7C 66,61: 2.12 3.71
Total certificate of depos
accounts 1,120,95! 34.67 2.01 1,253,22 41.5¢ 2.04 1,529,111 48.6( 2.31
Total deposit(1) $3,232,78! 100.0(% 0.9%% $3,015,19: 100.0% 1.0¢% $3,146,24! 100.0(% 1.3¢%

(1) Included in the above balances are IRA and Keoglosies totaling $117.4 million, $144.4 million a®d68.8 million at December 31, 2013, 2012 and =z

respectively

(2) Includes brokered deposits of $4.8 million, $53i0iom and $10.9 million at December 31, 2013, 2@t 2011, respectivel
(3) Includes brokered deposits of $0.8 million at DebenB1, 2013 and 201
(4) Includes brokered deposits of $10.0 million, $2@i8ion and $4.2 million at December 31, 2013, 2@t@ 2011, respectivel

(5) Includes brokered deposits of $105.4 million, $7@ibion and $188.5 million at December 31, 201812 and 2011, respective
(6) Includes brokered deposits of $262.8 million, $81rillion and $241.2 million at December 31, 202812 and 2011, respective

(7) Includes brokered deposits of $63.1 million and.$6gillion at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respelsti'
(8) Includes brokered deposits of $70.5 million at Deber 31, 2012
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The following table presents by various rate catiegpthe amount of time deposit accounts outstandt the dates indicated, and the years to mytofithe
certificate accounts outstanding at December 31320

At December 31, 201
At December 31 Within One to
2013 2012 2011 One Yeal Three Year: Thereaftel Total
(In thousands

Interest rate

1.99% or les: 1) $ 543,75 $ 571,10¢ $ 53544. $ 232,96 $ 230,21¢ $ 80,57¢ $ 543,75
2.00% to 2.999 2) 212,97: 279,69¢ 549,58¢ 48,30+ 84,72¢ 79,93¢ 212,97:
3.00% to 3.99% 3) 344,88 370,57( 401,65( 161,49: 158,23: 25,15¢ 344,88
4.00% to 4.99% 30¢ 10,30¢ 19,76¢ 294 14 - 30¢
5.00% to 5.99% (4) 19,03t 21,54« 22,66¢ 15,96 3,072 - 19,03t
Total $ 1,120,95 $ 1,253,220 $ 1,529,111 $ 459,01« $ 476,26 $ 185,67. $ 1,120,95

(1) Includes brokered deposits of $204.4 million, $221illion and $104.0 million at December 31, 202812 and 2011, respective
(2) Includes brokered deposits of $108.6 million, $152illion and $161.2 million at December 31, 202312 and 2011, respective
(3) Includes brokered deposits of $133.9 million, $548illion and $177.8 million at December 31, 202812 and 2011, respective
(4) Includes brokered deposits of $1.7 million at Deben81, 2011

The following table presents by remaining matudaégegories the amount of certificate of deposibants with balances of $100,000 or more at Decer8b,
2013 and their annualized weighted average inteaéss.

Weighted
Amount Average Rat
(Dollars in thousands

Maturity Period:

Three months or les $ 50,09¢ 0.9¢%
Over three through six mont 13,03t 1.92
Over six through 12 montt 83,70¢ 2.0
Over 12 months 188,51t 2.22
Total $  335,35¢ 1.9¢%

The above table does not include brokered depigsited in $1,000.00 amounts under a master caittfiof deposit totaling $437.7 million with a weigth
average rate of 2.03%.

The following table presents the deposit activitg]luding mortgagors’ escrow deposits, for the pasiindicated.

For the year ended December

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Net deposits (withdrawal $ 18447( $ (172,519 $  (93,98)
Amortization of premiums, n¢ 1,08( 1,08t 1,187
Interest on deposi 32,031 40,38: 48,43:
Net increase (decrease) in depo $ 21758 $ (131,05) $ (44,369
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The following table sets forth the distribution @ir average deposit accounts for the years indic#éite percentage of total deposit portfolio, amel averag
interest cost of each deposit category preseredrage balances for all years shown are derivea filaily balances.

At December 31

2013 2012 2011
Percent Percent Percent
Average of Total Average Average of Total Average Average of Total Average
Balance Deposits Cost Balance Deposits Cost Balance Deposits Cost

(Dollars in thousands

Savings accouni $ 274,79: 8.7%% 0.1% $ 317,09 10.11% 0.22% $ 369,20t 11.5% 0.51%
NOW account: 1,291,86 41.0¢ 0.5Z 1,025,111 32.67 0.61 838,64 26.3: 0.7¢
Demand accouni 169,191 5.37 - 134,16¢ 4.2¢ - 107,27¢ 3.37 -
Mortgagors' escrow depos 46,21° 1.47 0.0¢ 41,97 1.34 0.0¢ 39,43( 1.24 0.12
Total 1,782,05! 56.61 0.41 1,518,35! 48.4( 0.4¢€ 1,354,56: 42.5: 0.6t
Money market accoun 180,21 5.72 0.1€ 175,81 5.6( 0.22 278,69. 8.7¢ 0.47%
Certificate of deposit accour 1,185,69 37.6 2.0€ 1,443,19! 46.0( 2.2¢ 1,552,02 48.7: 2.41
Total deposits $3,147,96 100.0% 1.02% $3,137,36: 100.0(% 1.2% $3,185,27. 100.0% 1.52%

B orrowings. Although deposits are our primary source oftfsjrwe also use borrowings as an alternative astleftective source of funds for lending, investing
and other general purposes. The Bank is a membandfis eligible to obtain advances from, the FHNB. Such advances generally are secured by a &ldigk
against the Bank’s mortgage portfolio and the Bankvestment in the stock of the FHLB-NY. In addlitj the Bank may pledge mortgage-backed secutiies
obtain advances from the FHLB-NY. See “— RegulatierFederal Home Loan Bank System.” The maximum arhthat the FHLB-NY will advance for purposes
other than for meeting withdrawals fluctuates fréime to time in accordance with the policies of fRLB-NY. The Bank may also enter into repurchase
agreements with broker-dealers and the FHLB-NY.s€hagreements are recorded as financing transsadiodh the obligations to repurchase are reflected a
liability in our consolidated financial statemerits.addition, we issued junior subordinated debesstwvith a total par of $61.9 million in June andy2007. These
junior subordinated debentures are carried atvilire in the Consolidated Statement of Financialdition. The average cost of borrowings was 2.32%3% anc
4.08% for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2@11, respectively. The average balances obhimgs were $953.2 million, $767.6 million and $693
million for the same years, respectively.
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The following table sets forth certain informati@garding our borrowings at or for the periods ehale the dates indicated.

Securities Sold with the Agreement to Repurchas

Average balance outstandi

Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio
Balance outstanding at the end of pel

Weighted average interest rate during the pe

Weighted average interest rate at end of pe

FHLB -NY Advances

Average balance outstandi

Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio
Balance outstanding at the end of pel

Weighted average interest rate during the pe

Weighted average interest rate at end of pe

Other Borrowings
Average balance outstandi

Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio
Balance outstanding at the end of pel

Weighted average interest rate during the pe

Weighted average interest rate at end of pe

Total Borrowings
Average balance outstandi

Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio
Balance outstanding at the end of pel

Weighted average interest rate during the pe

Weighted average interest rate at end of pe

Subsidiary Activities

At or for the years ended December

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands
172,94. $ 18530 $ 171,09:
185,30 185,30 185,30
155,30( 185,30( 185,30
3.4% 3.62% 4.01%
3.41 3.47 3.77
754,30 $ 557,14 $ 491,01
864,86- 739,18 562,57t
827,25: 739,18 473,52
2.0% 2.3% 3.45%
1.4¢ 1.72 2.67
2593¢ % 25,19: $ 31,29¢
29,57( 26,38¢ 36,17°
29,57( 23,92: 26,31:
6.17% 12.65% 13.8%
5.67 6.92 16.9¢
953,18t $ 767,63t $ 693,40
1,067,171 948,40! 777,37
1,012,12: 948,40! 685,13!
2.3% 2.98% 4.08%
1.9C 2.21 2.5

At December 31, 2013, Flushing Financial Corporatiad four wholly owned subsidiaries: the Bank #ma Trusts. In addition, the Bank had three wt
owned subsidiaries: FSB Properties, Inc. (“Propstji Flushing Preferred Funding Corporation (“FPF@nd Flushing Service Corporation.

(a) Properties, which is incorporated in the StdtRew York, was formed in 1976 under the SaviBgak’s New York State leeway investment authority.
original purpose of Properties was to engage int jgénture real estate equity investments. Thén8awBank discontinued these activities in 1986e Tast joint ventul
in which Properties was a partner was dissolved989. The last remaining property acquired by tresalution of these joint ventures was disposednof998

Properties is currently used to hold title to restiate owned that is obtained via foreclosure.

(b) FPFC, which is incorporated in the State ofabare, was formed in 1997 as a real estate invadtrmust for the purpose of acquiring, holding

managing real estate mortgage assets. FPFC algdgs@n additional vehicle for access by the Campa the capital markets for future opportunities.

(c) Flushing Service Corporation, which is inamated in the State of New York, was formed in 189&arket insurance products and mutual funds.




Personnel

At December 31, 2013, we had 362 full-time empleyaed 16 partime employees. None of our employees are repreddnt a collective bargaining unit, ¢
we consider our relationship with our employeedéogood. At the present time, Flushing FinanciatpBmtion only employs certain officers of the Bafes:
employees do not receive any extra compensatioffiaers of Flushing Financial Corporation.

Omnibus Incentive Plan

The 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus PlanBecame effective on May 17, 2005 after adoptionth®y Board of Directors and approval by
stockholders. The Omnibus Plan authorizes the @osgtion Committee to grant a variety of equity pensation awards as well as loiegm and annual cash inceni
awards, all of which can be structured so as topdpmith Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue €olls of December 31, 2013, there are 374,658 steasalabl
under the full value award plan and 56,920 shaneleiuthe norfull value plan. We have applied the shares preshipauthorized by stockholders under the 1996K
Option Incentive Plan and the 1996 Restricted Stodentive Plan for use under the niofi-value and full value plans, respectively, fioture awards under t
Omnibus Plan. All grants and awards under the 86k Option Incentive Plan and 1996 RestrictedlStncentive Plan prior to the effective date af tbmnibus Ple
remained outstanding as issued. In May 2011, graganys stockholders approved an additional 625,000 sHarethe full value pool. The exercise price pleare ¢
a stock option grant may not be less than thenfiaitket value of the common stock of the Compantherdate of grant, and may not be repriced withloeitapproval ¢
the Companys stockholders. Options, stock appreciation rigtgstricted stock, restricted stock units and ottteck based awards granted under the Omnibusafd
generally subject to a minimum vesting period oééyears.

For additional information concerning this plare $blote 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Steets” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.
FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXATION

The following discussion of tax matters is intenaedly as a summary and does not purport to be griensive description of the tax rules applicablehe
Company.

Federal Taxation

General. We report our income using a calendar year aadtaorual method of accounting. We are subjettteédederal tax laws and regulations which a
to corporations generally, and, since the enactroérhe Small Business Job Protection Act of 199 (‘Act”), those laws and regulations governing Banks
deductions for bad debts, described below.

Bad Debt ReservesPrior to the enactment of the Act, which was sijiveo law on August 20, 1996, savings institutieviich met certain definitional te:
primarily relating to their assets and the naturéheir business (“qualifying thrifts”)such as the Savings Bank, were allowed deductionbdd debts under methe
more favorable than those granted to other taxgay@ualifying thrifts could compute deductions fad debts using either the specific charge ofhoebf Section 1€
of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Codet)the reserve method of Section 593 of the CodetiGh 1616(a) of the Act repealed the Section E&®rve method
accounting for bad debts by qualifying thrifts,effive for taxable years beginning after 1995. |@yiag thrifts that are treated as large bankghsas the Savings Bal
are required to use the specific charge off methadsuant to which the amount of any debt may leicied only as it actually becomes wholly or péitievorthless.

Distributions. To the extent that the Bank makes “non-dividersdrithutions” to stockholders that are consideredesult in distributions from its prE98¢
reserves or the supplemental reserve for lossdsams (“excess distributions”), then an amount dase the amount distributed will be included in Benk’s taxabl
income. Non-dividend distributions include distrilons in excess of the Bank’s current and d®81 accumulated earnings and profits, as calaufatefederal incom
tax purposes, distributions in redemption of staokl distributions in partial or complete liquidatioThe amount of additional taxable income resglfrom an exce:
distribution is an amount that when reduced byt#ixeattributable to the income is equal to the amad the excess distribution. Thus, slightly mtran one and one-
half times the amount of the excess distributiomlenaould be includable in gross income for federebme tax purposes, assuming a 35% federal cdgporeome ta
rate. See “Regulatiofl Restrictions on Dividends and Capital Distributibiier limits on the payment of dividends by the Barikhe Bank does not intend to |
dividends or make non-dividend distributions ddsedi above that would result in a recapture of amjign of its pre-1988 bad debt reserves.
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Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax The Code imposes an alternative minimum tax oparations equal to the excess, if any, of 20% tefrahtive minimur
taxable income (“AMTI") over a corporation'regular federal income tax liability. AMTI is @@ to taxable income with certain adjustmentsnésally, only 90% c
AMTI can be offset by net operating loss carrybaakd carryforwards.

State and Local Taxation

New York State and New York City TaxatioWe are subject to the New York State FranchisedraBanking Corporations in an annual amount ecquéhe
greater of (1) 7.1% of “entire net incomallocable to New York State during the taxable y&a(2) the applicable alternative minimum tax.eTdternative minimui
tax is generally the greater of (a) 0.01% of thieaf assets allocable to New York State withaiarmodifications, (b) 3% of “alternative entiret mecome”allocable
to New York State or (c) $250. Entire net incomesimilar to federal taxable income, subject tdasermodifications, including that net operatingdes arising durir
any taxable year prior to January 1, 2001 cannaiaoeed back or carried forward, and net operdiiisges arising during any taxable year beginnmgroafter Janua
1, 2001 cannot be carried back. Alternative entgeincome is equal to entire net income withoutaie deductions that are allowable in the caléofabf entire ne
income. We are also subject to a similarly caladaNew York City tax of 9% on income allocatedMew York City. For New York City tax purposes, ieatne
income is similar to federal taxable income, subjeacertain modifications, including that net ogiémg losses arising during any taxable year pgaadanuary 1, 20(
cannot be carried back or carried forward, ancpetating losses arising during any taxable yegmioéng on or after January 1, 2009 cannot be edfack and simil.
alternative taxes. In addition, we are subjec tax surcharge at a rate of 17% of the New Yo&teSEranchise Tax that is attributable to busiresisity carried o
within the Metropolitan Commuter Transportation toi.

Notwithstanding the repeal of the federal incomepvisions permitting bad debt deductions untlerreserve method, New York State had enacteddégi
maintaining the preferential treatment of additidioas reserves for qualifying real property andsgoalifying loans of qualifying thrifts for both NeWork State an
New York City tax purposes. Calculation of the amtof additions to reserves for qualifying reabperty loans was limited to the larger of the antalerived by th
percentage of taxable income method or the expegierethod. For these purposes, the applicable mageeto calculate the bad debt deduction undepeheentage
taxable income method was 32% of taxable incontijaed by additions to reserves for rauralifying loans, except that the amount of theitiaiu to the reserve cou
not exceed the amount necessary to increase thedeabf the reserve for losses on qualifying reaperty loans at the close of the taxable yeartood the balance
the qualifying real property loans outstandinghet €nd of the taxable year. Under the experiendhadethe maximum addition to a loan reserve géiyezgualed th
amount necessary to increase the balance of thaeldlaidreserve at the close of the taxable yeahdogteater of (1) the amount that bears the satiee tcaloan:
outstanding at the close of the taxable year atothénet bad debts sustained during the curneafii@e preceding taxable years bears to the sutheoloans outstandi
at the close of those six years, or (2) the balaficke bad debt reserve at the close of the “pase” or, if the amount of loans outstanding has declsiede the ba:
year, the amount which bears the same ratio tatteunt of loans outstanding at the close of thalifexyear as the balance of the reserve at the olothe base yei
For these purposes, the “base year” was the Ieeblayear beginning before 1988. The amount oitiaad to reserves for nogualifying loans was computed under
experience method. In no event could the additiorreserves for qualifying real property loans beager than the larger of the amount determinecutige experient
method or the amount which, when added to the iadditto reserves for nagualifying loans, equal the amount by which 12%haf total deposits or withdrawa
accounts of depositors of the Savings Bank at liteef the taxable year exceeded the sum of thim@aBanks surplus, undivided profits and reserves at thygnioénc
of such year.

In September 2010, the New York State legislathenged New York State and City tax law for thriftach as the Savings Bank, by eliminating the peacg
of taxable income method for determining bad dedatudtions for taxable years beginning on or afé&wuary 1, 2010. This change in the New York Statk @ity ta
law for thrifts did not require the recapture of tsad debt reserves previously established, amdrelied the requirement to recapture tax bad dedgrves if a thri
failed to meet the definition of a thrift institati under New York State and City tax law.

The Savings Bank had historically reported in issaNYork State and City income tax returns a deduactor bad debts based on the amount allowed uhé
percentage of taxable income method. This amoudthigtorically exceeded actual bad debts incurnedhe Savings Bank. Since the Savings Bank hasistensly
stated its intention to convert to a more “commadriike” bank, which would have previously required the 8gsiBank to recapture this excess bad debt regeit
failed to meet the definition of a thrift under tNew York State and City tax law, the Savings BhaH, in prior periods, recorded the tax liabiligjated to the possit
recapture of the excess tax bad debt reserve. résudt of the legislation passed by the New Yor&t&tegislature, this tax liability will no longée required to t
recaptured. As a result, the Savings Bank reveappdoximately $5.5 million of net tax liabilitiebrough income during the year ended December 310.20
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Delaware State Taxation As a Delaware holding company not earning incom®déftaware, we are exempt from Delaware corporatenre tax but a
required to file an annual report with and pay anuel franchise tax to the State of Delaware.

REGULATION

General

The Bank is a New York State-chartered commercialkband its deposit accounts are insured undeb#p®sit Insurance Fund (the “DIFbf the Feder:
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIGIp to applicable legal limits. The Bank is subjecextensive regulation and supervision by the N'8DE&s its charterir
agency, by the FDIC, as its insurer of deposits, laynthe Consumer Financial Protection Bureau {@%PB”), which was created under the Doeidink Wall Stree
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-FrAcK’) in 2011 to implement and enforce consumer proteddws applying to banks. The Bank must file reg
with the NYDFS, the FDIC, and the CFPB concernitsgaictivities and financial condition, in additiém obtaining regulatory approvals prior to enterintp certail
transactions such as mergers with, or acquisitidnether depository institutions. Furthermore, Bank is periodically examined by the NYDFS and FfHC to asse:
compliance with various regulatory requirements|uding safety and soundness considerations. Elgiglation and supervision establishes a comprefefisimewor
of activities in which a commercial bank can engagel is intended primarily for the protection bétinsurance fund and depositors. The regulatoongtstre also give
the regulatory authorities extensive discretiononnection with its supervisory and enforcemeniviigts and examination policies, including poligi@ith respect to tt
classification of assets and the establishmentlefjaate loan loss allowances for regulatory puosey change in such regulation, whether by theDR%, the FDIC
or through legislation, could have a material asdgempact on the Company, the Bank and its opestend the Company’s shareholders.

The Company is required to file certain reportsaménd otherwise comply with, the rules and retgpriia of the Federal Reserve Board of Governore
“FRB"), the FDIC, the NYDFS, and the Securities d&dhange Commission (the “SEGihder federal securities laws. In addition, the Fg&Biodically examines tl
Company. Certain of the regulatory requirementdiegiple to the Bank and the Company are referrebdefow or elsewhere herein. However, such discossiao
meant to be a complete explanation of all lawsragdlations and is qualified in its entirety byarsnce to the actual laws and regulations.

The Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act has significantly changed the currentkbeegulatory structure and will continue to affeictto the immediate future, the lending
investment activities and general operations obdepry institutions and its holding companies.atidition to creating the CFPB, the Dolidknk Act requires the FF
to establish minimum consolidated capital requiretsefor bank holding companies that are as stringsnthose required for insured depository institi; the
components of Tier 1 capital will be restrictedctpital instruments that are currently considerete Tier 1 capital for insured depository instdos. In addition, th
proceeds of trust preferred securities will be eded from Tier 1 capital unless (i) such securiéies issued by bank holding companies with asdeisse than $5C
million, or (ii) such securities were issued priorMay 19, 2010 by bank or savings and loan holdimigpanies with assets of less than $15 billiore DobddFrank Ac
created a new supervisory structure for oversigti® U.S. financial system, including the estdbtient of a new council of regulators, the FinanSiability Oversigt
Council, to monitor and address systemic risksiéofinancial system. Nobank financial companies that are deemed to béfisigmnt to the stability of the U.S. financ
system and all bank holding companies with $50dpillor more in total consolidated assets will bbjsct to heightened supervision and regulation. FR& will
implement prudential requirements and prompt cérre@ction procedures for such companies.

The DoddFrank Act made many additional changes in bankewylation, including: authorizing depository instibns, for the first time, to pay interest
business checking accounts; requiring originatbseouritized loans to retain a percentage of islefor transferred loans; establishing regulatatgsetting for certai
debit card interchange fees; and establishing abeuwf reforms for mortgage lending and consumetegtion.

The DoddFrank Act also broadened the base for FDIC ins@wassessments. The FDIC was required to promulgkete revising its assessment system sc
it is based not on deposits, but on the averageatiolated total assets less the tangible equitytalapt an insured institution. That rule took effédpril 1, 2011. Th
Dodd+rank Act also permanently increased the maximurowatnof deposit insurance for banks, savings ustits, and credit unions to $250,000 per depq
retroactive to January 1, 2008, and provided néerést-bearing transaction accounts with unliméegosit insurance through December 31, 2012.
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Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are yet effective. The Dodérank Act requires various federal agencies to ptgate numerous and extens
implementing regulations over the next several geaithough it is therefore difficult to predict #tis time what impact the Dodekank Act and the implementi
regulations will have on the Company and the Bam&y may have a material impact on operations tiitpamong other things, heightened regulatory stigien anc
increased compliance costs.

Basel Il

In the summer of 2012, our primary federal regufublished two notices of proposed rulemakingRRs") that would have substantially revised th&-ris
based capital requirements applicable to bank hgldompanies and depository institutions, includimgCompany and the Bank, compared to the theemud.S. risk-
based capital rules, which are based on the irtienad capital accords of the Basel Committee onk#g Supervision, which are generally referredsd'Basel I.”

During July 2013, our primary federal regulatosuisd revised NPRs that will revise and replaceagencies' current capital rulf$e NPRs include numerous revisi
to the existing capital regulations, including, hot limited to, the following:

« Revises the definition of regulatory capital comgots and related calculatior

« Adds a new common equity tier 1 capital ra

« Increases the minimum tier 1 capital ratio requeatfrom four percent to six percent.

« Incorporates the revised regulatory capital reguéets into the Prompt Corrective Action framew

« Implements a new capital conservation buffer thatibe limit payment of capital distributions and teén discretionary bonus payments to executivecefi an
key risk takers if the banking organization doeshmid certain amounts of common equity tier 1 tapn addition to those needed to meet its mininrigk-

based capital requiremen

« Provides a transition period for several aspectthefproposed rule: the new minimum capital raquirements, the capital conservation buffer, dre
regulatory capital adjustments and deductir

« Increases capital requirements for past-due Idagh,volatility commercial real estate exposures] eertain short-term loan commitments.
« Removes references to credit ratings consisteiht 8gtction 939A of the Dodd-Frank Act.
« Establishes due diligence requirements for seeatitin exposure:

The capital regulations would be effective Janugrg015 for bank holding companies and banks veidis than $15 billion in total assets, such as @ungzan
and Bank. Based on our preliminary assessmentoRfPRs, we believe we will see an increase in otal tiskweighted assets. However, the Company and the
based on our preliminary assessment, would meeetherements of the NPRs and will continue to tresadered well-capitalized.

Volcker Rule

On December 10, 2013, our primary federal regusadiopted Section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Act, comynaferred to as the “Volcker Rulevihich prohibit:
insured depository institutions from engaging inrstterm proprietary trading of certain securitidsrivatives and other financial instruments f@ finm’s own accour
subject to certain exemptions, including market imgland risk-mitigating hedging. The Volcker Rulsaimposes limits on banking entitigevestments in, and ott

relationships with, hedge funds and private eqiuibds.

The rule as adopted prohibited banking entitiesnfawning collateralized debt obligations backednarily by trust preferred securities (“TruPS CDOaflel
July 21, 2015. At December 31, 2013, the Compaiy fimiPs CDOs with an amortized cost and markeaievédtaling $11.2 million and $8.0 million, respeety.
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On January 14, 2014, our primary federal regulaaprzroved an interim final rule to permit bankingites to retain interests in certain TruPS CDfsrf the
investment prohibitions of Section 619 of the Ddttdnk Act.

Under the interim final rule, the agencies perinit tetention of an interest in or sponsorship ekeced funds by banking entities if the followingadjfications
are met:

« the TruPS CDO was established, and the interestasasd, before May 19, 201
« the banking entity reasonably believes that therof§ proceeds received by the TruPS CDO were fadgximarily in Qualifying TruPS Collateral; and
« the banking entity's interest in the TruPS CDO waeguired on or before December 10, 2013 .

The interim final rule defines Qualifying TruPS Gatéral as any trust preferred security or subatgich debt instrument that was:

« issued prior to May 19, 2010, by a depository tngtin holding company that as of the end of amorgéng period within 12 months immediately precepihe
issuance of such trust preferred security or subateld debt instrument had total consolidated assdess than $15 billion; «

« issued prior to May 19, 2010, by a mutual holdingpany.

As a result of the interim final rule, the Compadrgfieves that the TruPS CDOs it owns with an amedicost and market value of $9.3 million and $6illion,
respectively, are not prohibited by the Volcker &urhe Company has not determined if the remaiflind®S CDO it holds, which is carried at fair valireougt
earnings pursuant to the fair value option, is fisiodd by the Volcker Rule. This TruPS CDO had aodimed cost and market value of $1.9 million acBrmber 3
2013.

New York State Law

The Bank derives its lending, investment, and o#hwghority primarily from the applicable provisiooENew York State Banking Law and the regulatioh¢he
NYDFS, as limited by FDIC regulations. Under thémes and regulations, banks, including the Banky inaest in real estate mortgages, consumer andnesoia
loans, certain types of debt securities (includiegain corporate debt securities, and obligatmifederal, state, and local governments and ags)ctertain types
corporate equity securities, and certain othertas¥te lending powers of New York State-charter@shmercial banks are not subject to percentagesséts or capit
limitations, although there are limits applicalidddans to individual borrowers.

The exercise by an FDI®sured commercial bank of the lending and investrpewers under New York State Banking Law is lediby FDIC regulations a
other federal laws and regulations. In particuthg applicable provisions of New York State Banklrgw and regulations governing the investment aitth@anc
activities of an FDIC-insured stathartered savings bank and commercial bank have d&féectively limited by the Federal Deposit Insurae Corporation Improveme
Act of 1991 (“FDICIA") and the FDIC regulations issd pursuant thereto.

With certain limited exceptions, a New York Statgartered commercial bank may not make loans anextredit for commercial, corporate, or busi
purposes (including lease financing) to a singlerdwer, the aggregate amount of which would bexoess of 15% of the bark’net worth or up to 25% for loe
secured by collateral having an ascertainable rhakiee at least equal to the excess of such loaes the banls net worth. The Bank currently complies witk
applicable loans-to-one-borrower limitations. Aédember 31, 2013, the BasKargest aggregate amount of loans to one borreaer$59.2 million, all of which we
performing according to their terms. See “— Geherd_ending Activities.”

Under New York State Banking Law, New York Stateutbred stockerm commercial banks may declare and pay dividendf its net profits, unless th
is an impairment of capital, but approval of the DFS Superintendent (the “Superintendems”yequired if the total of all dividends declareyl the bank in a calenc
year would exceed the total of its net profitstfoat year combined with its retained net profitstfe preceding two years less prior dividends .paid

New York State Banking Law gives the Superintengrrihority to issue an order to a New York Stiaertered banking institution to appear and expde
apparent violation of law, to discontinue unauthed or unsafe practices, and to keep prescribekisbaod accounts. Upon a finding by the NYDFS thmt director
trustee, or officer of any banking organization héslated any law, or has continued unauthorizecuasafe practices in conducting the business ofb#reking
organization after having been notified by the Sinpendent to discontinue such practices, suctctiretrustee, or officer may be removed from afafter notice ar
an opportunity to be heard. The Superintendentl@scauthority to appoint a conservator or a reedir a savings or commercial bank under certagumstances.
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FDIC Regulations

Capital Requirements.The FDIC has adopted ridkased capital guidelines to which the Bank is stibjéhe guidelines establish a systematic anak
framework that makes regulatory capital requirermeensitive to differences in risk profiles amoaghking organizations. The Bank is required to namtertain leve
of regulatory capital in relation to regulatorykieeighted assets. The ratio of such regulatonytabfo regulatory risk-weighted assets is referteds a “riskbaser
capital ratio.” Risk-based capital ratios are deteed by allocating assets and specified off-badasteet items to four riskeighted categories ranging from 0%
100%, with higher levels of capital being requifedthe categories perceived as representing greske

These guidelines divide an institution’s capitaioiriwo tiers. The first tier (“Tier 1”) includes wonon equity, retained earnings, certain womulative
perpetual preferred stock (excluding auction rageés), and minority interests in equity accouhtsoasolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill and oth&angible asse
(except mortgage servicing rights and purchaseditceard relationships subject to certain limitagp Supplementary (“Tier 2'8apital includes, among other ite
cumulative perpetual and long-term limitéfé- preferred stock, mandatorily convertible séiies, certain hybrid capital instruments, term aulinated debt, and t
allowance for loan losses, subject to certain Atioins, and up to 45% of ptax net unrealized gains on equity securities wétddily determinable fair market valu
less required deductions. Commercial banks arenetjto maintain a total risk-based capital rafi@bleast 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tieagital.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulatioresgribing a minimum Tier 1 leverage capital rdtiwe ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted averagsetsa
specified in the regulations). These regulatiomvioie for a minimum Tier 1 leverage capital ratfd3é6 for institutions that meet certain specifigderia, including the
they have the highest examination rating and ar@xyeriencing or anticipating significant grow#il other institutions are required to maintain i@fTL leverage capit
ratio of at least 4%. The FDIC may, however, sghér leverage and ridgkased capital requirements on individual institosiavhen particular circumstances wari
Institutions experiencing or anticipating signifitgrowth are expected to maintain capital rafieduding tangible capital positions, well above thinimum levels.

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank was deemed tedilecapitalized under the regulatory framework poompt corrective action. To be categorized ad
capitalized, a bank must maintain a minimum Tiég\Eerage capital ratio of 5%, a minimum Tier 1 fizdsed capital ratio of 6%, and a minimum tota{-based capit
ratio of 10%. For a summary of the regulatory cpiatios of the Bank at December 31, 2013, sedé€Nd of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenigntéem 8 o
this Annual Report.

The regulatory capital regulations of the FDIC atiter federal banking agencies provide that thegige will take into account the exposure of aritingon’s
capital and economic value to changes in inteagstnisk in assessing capital adequacy. Accoradirguth agencies, applicable considerations indlueeuality of th
institution’s interest rate risk management process, overahéial condition, and the level of other riskgheg institution for which capital is needed. Ingiibns with
significant interest rate risk may be required twdhadditional capital. The agencies have issugdird policy statement providing guidance on ingtreate ris
management, including a discussion of the critfaators affecting the agenciesvaluation of interest rate risk in connection witipital adequacy. Institutions t
engage in specified amounts of trading activity rhaysubject to adjustments in the calculation efrtbkbased capital requirement to assure sufficienttiaai capita
to support market risk.

Standards for Safety and Soundned3ederal law requires each federal banking agencgyréscribe, for the depository institutions undesr jurisdiction
standards that relate to, among other things,naterontrols; information and audit systems; loaouimentation; credit underwriting; the monitorirfgrdgerest rate risl
asset growth; compensation; fees and benefits;santl other operational and managerial standardeeaagency deems appropriate. The federal banldegcie
adopted final regulations and Interagency Guidsliistablishing Standards for Safety and Soundrtess“Guidelines”)to implement these safety and sound
standards. The Guidelines set forth the safety smohdness standards that the federal banking a&gense to identify and address problems at insdepasitor
institutions before capital becomes impaired. & @ppropriate federal banking agency determines ahainstitution fails to meet any standard présai by th
Guidelines, the agency may require the institutiomprovide it with an acceptable plan to achievenpliance with the standard, as required by the Rédgeposi
Insurance Act, as amended, (the “FDI Act”). Thalfiregulations establish deadlines for the submisand review of such safety and soundness conegliplans.
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Real Estate Lending Standardd he FDIC and the other federal banking agentté® adopted regulations that prescribe standardsxfensions of credit tt
are (i) secured by real estate, or (ii) made fer prpose of financing construction or improvemennisreal estate. The FDIC regulations require éastitution tc
establish and maintain written internal real eskaeling standards that are consistent with safiesannd banking practices, and appropriate toiteeds the institutio
and the nature and scope of its real estate leratitigities. The standards also must be consistétht accompanying FDIC guidelines, which includadetovalue
limitations for the different types of real estégans. Institutions are also permitted to makeratéid amount of loans that do not conform to theppsed loan-taalue
limitations so long as such exceptions are revieamdl justified appropriately. The FDIC guidelinésoalist a number of lending situations in whickceptions to th
loan-to-value standard are justified.

Dividend Limitations. The FDIC has authority to use its enforcement psw@prohibit a commercial bank from paying dividerif, in its opinion, the payme
of dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsoprattice. Federal law prohibits the payment of dlvids that will result in the institution failing tmeet applicab
capital requirements on a pro forma basis. The Bargtso subject to dividend declaration restritcsiomposed by New York State law as previously utised und:
“New York State Law.”

Investment Activities. Since the enactment of FDICIA, all statieartered financial institutions, including commalcanks and their subsidiaries, h
generally been limited to such activities as ppatiand equity investments of the type, and inaim®unt, authorized for national banks. State laMCFA, and FDIC
regulations permit certain exceptions to thesetditiins. In addition, the FDIC is authorized torpgrinstitutions to engage in stadethorized activities or investme
not permitted for national banks (other than sabsidiary equity investments) for institutionsttheeet all applicable capital requirements if idietermined that su
activities or investments do not pose a signifiaésk to the insurance fund. The Gramm-Le&titey Act of 1999 and FDIC regulations impose eg@rtquantitative ar
qualitative restrictions on such activities andadmank’s dealings with a subsidiary that engagepétified activities.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory ActianFederal law requires, among other things, tedefal bank regulatory authorities take “promptective action"with
respect to institutions that do not meet minimurpite requirements. For such purposes, the lanbbskees five capital tiers: well capitalized, adatply capitalizec
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalizedd @ritically undercapitalized.

The FDIC has adopted regulations to implement ptarpprective action. Among other things, the retiates define the relevant capital measures forfitre
capital categories. An institution is deemed tolell capitalized” if it has a total risk-based @@ ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 riblased capital ratio of 6%
greater, and a leverage capital ratio of 5% ortgreand is not subject to a regulatory order, exgpent, or directive to meet and maintain a specdjuital level for an
capital measure. An institution is deemed to beetphtely capitalized” if it has a total risk-basegbital ratio of 8% or greater, a Tier 1 risksed capital ratio of 4%
greater, and generally a leverage capital ratid%for greater. An institution is deemed to be “undpitalized” if it has a total riskased capital ratio of less than 8¢
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of less than 4%gemerally a leverage capital ratio of less than A#binstitution is deemed to be “significantly wrdapitalized'if it has
a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6%ijea 1 riskbased capital ratio of less than 3%, or a levecagétal ratio of less than 3%. An institution isedeed to b
“critically undercapitalized” if it has a ratio ¢dngible equity (as defined in the regulationsiotal assets that is equal to or less than 2%.

“Undercapitalized”institutions are subject to growth, capital diaitibn (including dividend), and other limitationand are required to submit a cag
restoration plan. An institutioa’compliance with such plan is required to be guaed by any company that controls the undercamehinstitution in an amount eq
to the lesser of 5% of the baskotal assets when deemed undercapitalized amttoeint necessary to achieve the status of adeguateitalized. If an undercapitaliz
institution fails to submit an acceptable plansitreated as if it is “significantly undercapitadd.” Significantly undercapitalized institutions are gdb to one or moi
additional restrictions including, but not limitéd, an order by the FDIC to sell sufficient votiapck to become adequately capitalized; requiresnenteduce tot
assets, cease receipt of deposits from correspbbdeks, or dismiss directors or officers; andrresbns on interest rates paid on deposits, corsgion of executiv
officers, and capital distributions by the pareoiding company.

Beginning 60 days after becoming “critically undapitalized, critically undercapitalized institutions also magt make any payment of principal or interes

certain subordinated debt, or extend credit foighlii leveraged transaction, or enter into any maltéransaction outside the ordinary course ofitess. In additiol
subject to a narrow exception, the appointmentreicaiver is required for a critically undercapitatl institution within 270 days after it obtaingh status.
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Insurance of Deposit AccountsThe deposits of the Bank are insured up to aegble limits by the DIF. Under the FDIC's riflased assessment sysi
insured institutions are assigned to one of fosk KGategories based upon supervisory evaluati@gsilatory capital level, and certain other factovgh less risk
institutions paying lower assessments. An insttut assessment rate depends upon the category tb ivlEi@ssigned and certain other factors. Histdly, assessme
rates ranged from seven to 77.5 basis points df eestitution’s deposit assessment base. On Fepiyé011, as required by the DoBdank Act, the FDIC publishec
final rule to revise the deposit insurance assessaystem. The rule, which took effect April 1, 20thanged the assessment base used for calculigfugit insuran:
assessments from deposits to total assets lesblea(igier 1) capital. Since the new base is lathan the previous base, the FDIC also loweredsassent rates so tt
the rule would not significantly alter the total aamt of revenue collected from the industry. Ont8eyber 30, 2009, the FDIC collected, from all irslimstitutions,
special emergency assessment of five basis pdinttad assets minus Tier 1 capital (capped abisis points of an institutios’deposit assessment base as of Jul
2009), in order to cover losses to the DIF. The@®bbnsidered the need for similar special assedsndeming the final two quarters of 2009. Howevetjeu of furthe
special assessments, the FDIC required insureituiishs to prepay estimated quarterly risksed assessments for the fourth quarter of 26068gh the fourth quart
of 2012. The Bank prepaid a total of $16.9 milliorisk-based assessments.

Due to the decline in economic conditions, the dépgnsurance provided by the FDIC per account owves raised to $250,000 for all types of accouhis
change, initially intended to be temporary, was engdrmanent by the Dodéank Act. In addition, the FDIC adopted an optiohemporary Liquidity Guarant
Program (“TLGP”) under which, for a fee, non-intgrbearing transaction accounts would receive unlignitsurance coverage until December 31, 2009 (&atende
to December 31, 2010), and certain senior unseagbtlissued by institutions and their holding canmips between October 13, 2008 and June 30, 2869 @xtende
to October 31, 2009) would be guaranteed by theCRbtough June 30, 2012 or, in certain cases, Detilember 31, 2012. The Doéfdank Act provided for continu
unlimited coverage for certain non-interest-beatmgsaction accounts until December 31, 2012.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target DIF ratmnirl.15% of estimated insured deposits to 1.35%stimated insured deposits. The FDIC r
seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by September 320.2@sured institutions with assets of $10 billmnmore are supposed to fund the increase. ThelBoghk Ac
eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratio, leavingristead, to the discretion of the FDIC. The FDHS lexercised that discretion by establishing a fange fund rati
of 2%, which could result in our paying higher deppansurance premiums in the future.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Rpi@h a finding that the institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe sowmn
condition to continue operations, or has violateg applicable law, regulation, rule, order, or citiod imposed by the FDIC. Management does not krodvany
practice, condition, or violation that would leadtérmination of the deposit insurance of the Bank.

On September 30, 1996, as part of an omnibus apatioms bill, the Deposit Insurance Funds Act 8B& (the “Funds Act”was enacted. The Funds .
required Bank Insurance Fund (“BIRfjstitutions, including the Savings Bank, beginnilaguary 1, 1997, to pay a portion of the intedlest on the Finance Corporat
(“FICQO”) bonds issued in connection with the savings anad &ssociation crisis in the late 1980s, and redusi€ institutions to pay their full pro rata sharethe FICC
payments starting the earlier of January 1, 200B@date at which no savings institution contintzesxist. We were required, as of January 1, 269pay our full pr
rata share of the FICO payments. The FICO asses$satens subject to change. The Bank paid $269,$209,000 and $311,000 for their share of theréstedue o
FICO bonds in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelychvtvas included in FDIC insurance expense.

Brokered Deposits. The FDIC has promulgated regulations implementirggRDICIA limitations on brokered deposits. Undes tegulations, weltapitalize
institutions are not subject to brokered deposiititions, while adequately capitalized instituscare able to accept, renew or roll over brokeregbdits only with
waiver from the FDIC and subject to restrictionstbe interest rate that can be paid on such depadditdercapitalized institutions are not permiti@éccept brokere
deposits and may not solicit deposits by offerimgedfective yield that exceeds by more than 75sbpsints the prevailing effective yields on insuskbosits ¢
comparable maturity in the institutienhormal market area or in the market area in whigth deposits are being solicited. Pursuanteéae¢hulation, the Bank, a:
well-capitalized institution, may accept brokeregpdsits. At December 31, 2013, the Bank had $51ilibn in brokered deposit accounts.
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Transactions with Affiliates

Under current federal law, transactions betweerosiegry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Res&cv@nc
the FRBS Regulation W promulgated thereunder. An affiliate commercial bank is any company or entity twttrols, is controlled by, or is under commontonl
with, the institution, other than a subsidiary. @elly, an institutiors subsidiaries are not treated as affiliates unlemsare engaged in activities as principal thatr®
permissible for national banks. In a holding compeontext, at a minimum, the parent holding compahgn institution, and any companies that arerotiet by suc
parent holding company, are affiliates of the isibn. Generally, Section 23A limits the extentvibich the institution or its subsidiaries may eggan ‘coverel
transactions” with any one affiliate to an amoumi@ to 10% of the institution’capital stock and surplus, and contains an agtgdignit on all such transactions with
affiliates to an amount equal to 20% of such cépitack and surplus. The term “covered transactionludes the making of loans or other extensionsrefit to a
affiliate; the purchase of assets from an affilidbe purchase of, or an investment in, the seeardf an affiliate; the acceptance of securitiearoaffiliate as collater
for a loan or extension of credit to any personissuance of a guarantee, acceptance, or letteredft on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23A aksstablishes speci
collateral requirements for loans or extensionsreflit to, or guarantees or acceptances on letfecsedit issued on behalf of, an affiliate. Sect28B requires th
covered transactions and a broad list of otheriipedransactions be on terms substantially theesas, or at least asavorable to, the institution or its subsidiary
similar transactions with non-affiliates.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohilagss by the Company to its executive officers dimdctors. However, the Sarbar@sley Act contains
specific exemption for loans by an institution t® éxecutive officers and directors in compliandgaiederal banking laws. Section 22(h) of the FatiReserve Act, ar
FRB Regulation O adopted thereunder, governs lbgressavings bank or commercial bank to directexecutive officers, and principal shareholders. éirfsiection 22
(h), loans to directors, executive officers, andrsholders who control, directly or indirectly, 1086 more of voting securities of an institution,dacertain relate
interests of any of the foregoing, may not excéegether with all other outstanding loans to suerspns and affiliated entities, the institutietotal capital and surplt
Section 22(h) also prohibits loans above amourgsguibed by the appropriate federal banking agémdyrectors, executive officers, and shareholaérs control 109
or more of the voting securities of an institutiand its respective related interests, unless kahis approved in advance by a majority of thartef the institutiors
directors. Any “interesteddirector may not participate in the voting. Therilaanmount (which includes all other outstanding sotmsuch person) as to which such |
board of director approval is required, is the teeaf $25,000 or 5% of capital and surplus or Erans aggregating over $500,000. Further, pursieaSection 22(h
loans to directors, executive officers, and priatiphareholders must be made on terms substantied\same as those offered in comparable transact® othe
persons. There is an exception for loans made antda a benefit or compensation program that delyiavailable to all employees of the instituteomd does not gi
preference to executive officers over other empgy&ection 22(g) of the Federal Reserve Act pladdgional limitations on loans to executive offis.

Community Reinvestment Act

Federal Regulation Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA&s implemented by FDIC regulations, an instituti@s a continuing and affirmati
obligation consistent with its safe and sound dj@rao help meet the credit needs of its entinmicunity, including low and moderate income neighioads. The CR
does not establish specific lending requirementprograms for financial institutions, nor doesiihit an institutions discretion to develop the types of products
services that it believes are best suited to itiquéar community, consistent with the CRA. The £Requires the FDIC, in connection with its exantioas, to asse
the institutions record of meeting the credit needs of its comiyuamd to take such record into account in its @atén of certain applications by such institutidine
CRA requires public disclosure of an institutio€RA rating and further requires the FDIC to prov&deritten evaluation of an institutichCRA performance utilizir
a four-tiered descriptive rating system. The Bastdeived a CRA rating of “Satisfactori its most recent completed CRA examination, whiets completed as of Ag
30, 2012. Institutions that receive less than tesfaatory rating may face difficulties in securimgproval for new activities or acquisitions. TBRA requires a
institutions to make public disclosures of theirACRtings. As a special purpose commercial bark Gbmmercial Bank was not required to comply whth €RA prio
to the Merger. Since the Merger, the Bank is negito comply with CRA.

New York State RegulationThe Bank is also subject to provisions of thevNgork State Banking Law that impose continuing affirmative obligations upc
a banking institution organized in New York Stateserve the credit needs of its local communitg ((NYCRA”). Such obligations are substantially similar to tt
imposed by the CRA. The NYCRA requires the NYDFSnake a periodic written assessment of an ingtittgi compliance with the NYCRA, utilizing a fotierec
rating system, and to make such assessment aeatalthe public. The NYCRA also requires the Superident to consider the NYCRA rating when revigwvar
application to engage in certain transactionspiiclg mergers, asset purchases, and the establislofgranch offices or ATMs, and provides thatrsassessment m
serve as a basis for the denial of any such apiolita
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Federal Reserve System

Under FRB regulations, the Bank is required to it@mreserves against its transaction accounts. HRB regulations generally require that reserve
maintained against aggregate transaction accoaritdlaws: for that portion of transaction accouaggregating $79.5 million or less (subject to atipent by the FRE
the reserve requirement is 3%; for amounts grehger $79.5 million, the reserve requirement is 1B8bject to adjustment by the FRB between 8% afd)1%he firs
$12.4 million of otherwise reservable balances jethto adjustments bthe FRB) are exempted from the reserve requirem@iis Bank is in compliance with 1
foregoing requirements.

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the FHLNBY, one of 12 regional FHLBs comprising the FHLBs®m. Each regional FHLB manages its customerioaktips
while the 12 FHLBs use its combined size and stietmobtain its necessary funding at the lowesstjide cost. As a member of the FHDNB, the Bank is required
acquire and hold shares of FHLB-NY capital stodkrsBant to this requirement, at December 31, 268Bank was required to maintain $46.0 millionF6fLB-NY
stock.

Holding Company Regulation

Subsequent to the Merger, the Compasyligect to examination, regulation, and perioejgarting under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1986 amende
(the “BHCA"), as administered by the FRB. The Company is reduoebtain the prior approval of the FRB to aceuill, or substantially all, of the assets of aapk
or bank holding company. Prior FRB approval wouddrequired for the Company to acquire direct oirew ownership or control of any voting securit@sany ban
or bank holding company if, after giving effectsioch acquisition, it would, directly or indirectigywn or control more than 5% of any class of vosihgres of such ba
or bank holding company. In addition before anykbanquisition can be completed, prior approval ébémay also be required to be obtained from o#yEncie
having supervisory jurisdiction over the bank todeguired, including the NYDFS.

FRB regulations generally prohibit a bank holdilngnpany from engaging in, or acquiring, direct atiiact control of more than 5% of the voting setessi o
any company engaged in nbanking activities. One of the principal exceptiémshis prohibition is for activities found by tfRB to be so closely related to bankin
managing or controlling Bank as to be a properdiasct thereto. Some of the principal activities ttet FRB has determined by regulation to be scetfo®lated t
banking are: (i) making or servicing loans; (iiyfeeming certain data processing services; (iigyiing discount brokerage services; (iv) actindidsciary, investmen
or financial advisor; (v) leasing personal or rpabperty; (vi) making investments in corporationspoojects designed primarily to promote communitgifare; an
(vii) acquiring a savings and loan association.

The FRB has adopted capital adequacy guidelinebdnk holding companies (on a consolidated bagis)December 31, 2013, the Compangonsolidate
Total and Tier 1 capital exceeded these requiresndifte Dodd-rank Act required the FRB to issue consolidateglilisgory capital requirements for bank holc
companies that are at least as stringent as tippdieable to insured depository institutions. Suefulations eliminated the use of certain instruisiesuch as cumulati
preferred stock and trust preferred securitieSji@s1 holding company capital.

Bank holding companies are generally required Ye ¢ie FRB prior written notice of any purchaseestemption of its outstanding equity securitiethée gros
consideration for the purchase or redemption, wdtenbined with the net consideration paid for adtspurchases or redemptions during the precedietyéamonths, |
equal to 10% or more of the Compasyconsolidated net worth. The FRB may disapprowa su purchase or redemption if it determines thatproposal wou
constitute an unsafe or unsound practice, or weidlhte any law, regulation, FRB order or directiee any condition imposed by, or written agreemeith, the FRB
The FRB has adopted an exception to this appreeplirement for well-capitalized bank holding comiparthat meet certain other conditions.

The FRB has issued a policy statement regardingdyenent of dividends by bank holding companiesgéneral, the FRB’ policies provide that dividen
should be paid only out of current earnings ang dfrthe prospective rate of earnings retentiorthiy bank holding company appears consistent wélothjanizatiorg
capital needs, asset quality, and overall financtaddition. The FRBS policies also require that a bank holding compsgrye as a source of financial strength t
subsidiary banks by standing ready to use availegeurces to provide adequate capital funds teetti@nks during periods of financial stress or eitye and b
maintaining the financial flexibility and capitadising capacity to obtain additional resourcesassisting its subsidiary banks where necessary.Ddugl+rank Ac
codifies the source of financial strength policyl aaquires regulations to facilitate its applicatitJnder the prompt corrective action laws, thditgbdf a bank holdin
company to pay dividends may be restricted if asiliry bank becomes undercapitalized. These regylgolicies could affect the ability of the Commgato pa
dividends or otherwise engage in capital distrimsi
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Under the FDI Act, a depository institution mayliadble to the FDIC for losses caused the DIF ibenmonly controlled depository institution were &l fThe
Bank is commonly controlled within the meaning luditt law.

The status of the Company as a registered banknigoltbmpany under the BHCA does not exempt it froentain federal and state laws and regula
applicable to corporations generally, includingtheut limitation, certain provisions of the fedesekurities laws.

The Company, the Bank, and their respective affifiawill be affected by the monetary and fiscaligies$ of various agencies of the United States Gowent
including the Federal Reserve System. In view @gfing conditions in the national economy and i toney markets, it is difficult for managemeniatzuratel
predict future changes in monetary policy or tHectfof such changes on the business or finanoiadition of the Company or the Bank.

Acquisition of the Holding Company

Under the Federal Change in Bank Control Act (“CMBY; a notice must be submitted to the FRB if any per@ociuding a company), or group acting
concert, seeks to acquire 10% or more of the Cogipashares of outstanding common stock, unless tteHaR found that the acquisition will not resuliaichange i
control of the Company. Under the CIBCA, the FRBigrally has 60 days within which to act on suchaest taking into consideration certain factorg)uding the
financial and managerial resources of the acquiher,convenience and needs of the communities ddryehe Company and the Bank; and the aost effects of th
acquisition. Under the BHCA, any company would éguired to obtain approval from the FRB before déyrobtain “control’of the Company within the meaning of
BHCA. Control generally is defined to mean the orgh& or power to vote 25% or more of any classating securities of the Company or the abilityctmtrol in an'
manner the election of a majority of the Comparditectors. An existing bank holding company wouldder the BHCA, be required to obtain the FRBpprove
before acquiring more than 5% of the Companyoting stock. In addition to the CIBCA and the®A, New York State Banking Law generally requipgsr approve
of the New York State Banking Board before anyacts taken that causes any company to acquiretdirandirect control of a banking institution tha organized i
New York.

Federal Securities Law

The Companys common stock and (associated preferred stockhpsecrights) listed on the cover page of this repar registered with the SEC under
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tikeH&nge Act”).The Company is subject to the information and répgrequirements, regulations governing pi
solicitations, insider trading restrictions, andestrequirements under the Exchange Act.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau

Created under the Dodetank Act, and given extensive implementation amireement powers, the CFPB has broad rulemakittgpaty for a wide range !
consumer financial laws that apply to all banks|uding, among other things, the authority to pbitiunfair, deceptive, or abusiveicts and practices. Abusive act
practices are defined as those that (1) matetigtiéyfere with a consumesr’ability to understand a term or condition of asuamer financial product or service, or (2) 1
unreasonable advantage of a consusn@) lack of financial savvy, (b) inability to peat himself in the selection or use of consumearicial products or services,
(c) reasonable reliance on a covered entity tarattte consumes' interests. The CFPB has the authority to invatgigossible violations of federal consumer final
law, hold hearings and commence civil litigatiomeTCFPB can issue cease-atas$ist orders against banks and other entitiesvtblte consumer financial laws. 1
CFPB may also institute a civil action against atitg in violation of federal consumer financialian order to impose a civil penalty or an injuocti

Mortgage Banking and Related Consumer Protection Rgulations

The retail activities of the Bank, including lengimnd the acceptance of deposits, are subjectviariaty of statutes and regulations designed tdept
consumers. Interest and other charges collectedrdracted for by the Bank are subject to stateyuswvs and federal laws concerning interest rdtean operations a
also subject to federal laws applicable to creditsactions, such as:

* The federal Trut-In-Lending Act and Regulation Z issued by the FRB,agning disclosures of credit terms to consumerdyeers;

* The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act and Regulatiorsslied by the FRB, requiring financial institutidosprovide information to enable the public
public officials to determine whether a financiadtitution is fulfilling its obligation to help mééhe housing needs of the community it ser

45




« The Equal Credit Opportunity Act and RegulationsBued by the FRB, prohibiting discrimination on Hasis of race, creed or other prohibited factn
extending credit

« The Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulation V &by the FRB, governing the use and provisiomfafrmation to consumer reporting agenc

« The Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manimewhich consumer debts may be collected by cablecigencies; an

* The guidance of the various federal agencies clargh the responsibility of implementing such fesldaws.

Deposit operations also are subject to:

¢ The Truth in Savings Act and Regulation DD issugdhe FRB, which requires disclosure of deposinteto consumer:

* Regulation CC issued by the FRB, which relatesi¢oatvailability of deposit funds to consume

« The Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposeglaty to maintain the confidentiality of consumarahcial records and prescribes procedure
complying with administrative subpoenas of finahogords; anc

¢ The Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulatioisdtied by the FRB, which governs automatic depdésiend withdrawals from deposit accounts
customer’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of autied teller machines and other electronic bankargices

In addition, the Bank and its subsidiaries may &lssubject to certain state laws and regulatiesggded to protect consumers.

Many of the foregoing laws and regulations are ectibjo change resulting from the provisions inBeeld+Frank Act, which in many cases calls for revisitw
implementing regulations. In addition, oversighspensibilities of these and other consumer pratad@ws and regulations will, in large measurengfer from th
Bank’s primary regulators to the CFPB. We cannot pretliiet effect that being regulated by a new, addiicegulatory authority focused on consumer final
protection, or any new implementing regulationsr@risions to existing regulations that may resuinf the establishment of this new authority, widive on oL
businesses.

Available Information

We are a reporting company and file annual, qugreard current reports, proxy statements and atifermation with the SEC. We make available fré
charge on or through our web site at www.flushimdbeom our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarteegorts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forid 8nc
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyansto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicebdr wi
electronically file such material with, or furnighto, the SEC. Our SEC filings are also ava#ata the public free of charge over the InternghatSECS web site ¢
http://www.sec.gov.

You may also read and copy any document we fita@SECS public reference room located at 100 F. Stredf,,NRoom 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549.
may obtain information about the operation of thibliz reference room by calling the SEC at 1-80@SB30. You may request copies of these documentgritipg
to the SEC and paying a fee for the copying cost.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information contained filstAnnual Report, the following factors and othensiderations should be considered carefully adwating
us and our business.

Changes in Interest Rates May Significantly ImpacOur Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Like most financial institutions, our results ofevptions depend to a large degree on our net gitereome. When interesiearing liabilities mature or repri
more quickly than interegtarning assets, a significant increase in marketest rates could adversely affect net interasirire. Conversely, a significant decreas
market interest rates could result in increasedintetest income. As a general matter, we seekdnage our business to limit our overall exposarenterest rai
fluctuations. However, fluctuations in market it rates are neither predictable nor controllabl® may have a material adverse impact on ouatipes and financi
condition. Additionally, in a rising interest rag@vironment, a borrowes’ability to repay adjustable rate mortgages candmatively affected as payments increa
repricing dates.

46




Prevailing interest rates also affect the extentvtich borrowers repay and refinance loans. In dimiag interest rate environment, the number air
prepayments and loan refinancing may increase efisaa prepayments of mortgabaeked securities. Call provisions associated withinvestment in U.S. governm
agency and corporate securities may also advea$igt yield in a declining interest rate envirommeSuch prepayments and calls may adversely dfiecyield of ou
loan portfolio and mortgageacked and other securities as we reinvest theajarépnds in a lower interest rate environment. ldeer, we typically receive additior
loan fees when existing loans are refinanced, wpatially offset the reduced yield on our loantfmio resulting from prepayments. In periods olvlmterest rates, o
level of core deposits also may decline if depesiteek higheyielding instruments or other investments not @fteby us, which in turn may increase our cost ofif
and decrease our net interest margin to the eattarhative funding sources are utilized. An insieg interest rate environment would tend to extisedaverage lives
lower yielding fixed rate mortgages and mortghgeked securities, which could adversely affectimigrest income. In addition, depositors tend perolonger tern
higher costing certificate of deposit accounts Wwhiould adversely affect our net interest incomeatés were to subsequently decline. Additionalgjustable ra
mortgage loans and mortgabaeked securities generally contain interim anetilifie caps that limit the amount the interest cate increase or decrease at repri
dates. Significant increases in prevailing interats may significantly affect demand for loand #re value of bank collateral. See “— Local Ecorm@onditions.”

Our Lending Activities Involve Risks that May Be Exacerbated Depending on the Mix of Loan Types

At December 31, 2013, our gross loan portfolio %as123.0 million, of which 88% was mortgage loaesused by real estate. The majority of these rstalte
loans were secured by multi-family residential gnayp ($1,712.0 million), commercial real estate (% million) and one-to-four family mixedse property ($595
million), which combined represent 82% of our Igaortfolio. Our loan portfolio is concentrated iretNew York City metropolitan area. Multi-family idential, one-to-
four family mixeduse property, commercial real estate mortgage Jaars construction loans, are generally viewedxasging the lender to a greater risk of loss
fully underwritten one-to-four family residentialamigage loans and typically involve higher printipanounts per loan. Multi-family residential, orefour family
mixed-use property and commercial real estate mortgageslare typically dependent upon the successfubtipe of the related property, which is usuallynad by
legal entity with the property being the entity'slypasset. If the cash flow from the property idueed, the borrowes’ability to repay the loan may be impaired. If
borrower defaults, our only remedy may be to farselon the property, for which the market value ina@yess than the balance due on the related ngertgan. W
attempt to mitigate this risk by generally requiria loan-to-value ratio of no more than 75% ateetihe loan is originated, except for onefdar family residentic
mortgage loans, where we require a ltawalue ratio of no more than 80%. Repayment oftoiction loans is contingent upon the successfipletion and operati
of the project. The repayment of commercial busineans (the increased origination of which is prhanagemers’strategy), is contingent on the successful ojp#
of the related business. Changes in local econeoniditions and government regulations, which arsida the control of the borrower or lender, aleald affect th
value of the security for the loan or the futurslcélow of the affected properties. We continuallyiew the composition of our mortgage loan poitféd manage tf
risk in the portfolio.

In addition, prior to 2010, we have originated aadeour family residential mortgage loans withoetifying the borrowes level of income. These loans invc
a higher degree of risk as compared to our otHbr daderwritten one-tdeur family residential mortgage loans. These riskes mitigated by our policy to generally lii
the amount of one-téeur family residential mortgage loans to 80% af tppraised value or sale price, whichever is Essyell as charging a higher interest rate
when the borrower’s income is verified. At DecemBg, 2013, we had $15.8 million outstanding of -tméour family residential properties originated talividuals
based on stated income and verifiable assets, 4% #illion advanced on home equity lines of dréati which we did not verify the borrowers inconTée total loar
for which we did not verify the borrower’s incomeRecember 31, 2013 was $65.7 million, or 2.0%rofsg loans. These types of loans are generallyregf¢o as Alt
A” loans since the borrowes’income was not verified. These loans are noeadily saleable in the secondary market as our dtitlg underwritten loans, either
whole loans or when pooled or securitized. We mméo originate one-tésur family residential mortgage loans or home gglines of credit to individuals witho
verifying their income. We have not originated, dorwe hold in portfolio, any subprime loans.

Even in stable economic times, higher default ratag be expected for Alt A and similar loans. Alilgb we attempted to incorporate the higher defati:
associated with these loans into our pricing modélksre can be no assurance that the premiumsdeantethe associated investment income will pralegaate t
compensate for future losses from these loans.s®viamg economic conditions, rising unemploymengésand/or other regional real estate price decloetd eve
more significantly increase the default risks aggted with these loans. In addition, these sangatiee economic and market conditions could algaicantly increas
the default risk on loans for which we did not assthigher default and claim rates.
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In assessing our future earnings prospects, inkestemuld consider, among other things, our le¥@rigination of one-to-four family residential, mtiufamily
residential, commercial real estate and one-to-famrily mixeduse property mortgage loans, and commercial busiaad construction loans, and the greater
associated with such loans. See “Business — Lenditigities” in Item 1 of this Annual Report.

Failure to Effectively Manage Our Liquidity Could Significantly Impact Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our liquidity is critical to our ability to operateur business. Our primary sources of liquidity deposits, both retail deposits from our branchvoek
including our internet branch and brokered deppaitsl borrowed funds, primarily wholesale borrowfrmm the FHLB-NY and repurchase agreements froth bo
the FHLB-NY and commercial banks. Funds are atswigded by the repayment and sale of securitiesl@auas. Our ability to obtain funds are influendgdmany
external factors, including but not limited to, &#and national economic conditions, the directibrinterest rates and competition for depositshia tarkets we
serve. Additionally, changes in the FHLB-NY undetimg guidelines may limit or restrict our abilitgy borrow. A decline in available funding causedany of the
above factors or could adversely impact our abildyoriginate loans, invest in securities, meet exypenses, or fulfill our obligations such as repgyour
borrowings or meeting deposit withdrawal demands.

Our Ability to Obtain Brokered Certificates of Deposit and Brokered Money Market Accounts as an Additonal Funding Source Could be Limited

We utilize brokered deposits as an additional fngdiource and to assist in the management of tenest rate risk. The Bank had $517.4 million, 6:0% o
total deposits, and $522.1 million, or 17.3% ofataleposits, in brokered deposit accounts at Deeer@b, 2013 and 2012, respectively. We have obthbrokere
certificates of deposit when the interest ratetwsé deposits is below the prevailing interest f@teonbrokered certificates of deposit with similar métas in ou
market, or when obtaining them allowed us to extiredmaturities of our deposits at favorable ra@®pared to borrowing funds with similar maturitieghen we ar
seeking to extend the maturities of our fundingssist in the management of our interest rate Bstikered certificates of deposit provide a largpasit for us at
lower operating cost as compared to mookered certificates of deposit since we only hame account to maintain versus several accourtts multiple interest ar
maturity checks. Unlike nohrokered certificates of deposit where the depsibunt can be withdrawn with a penalty for any seaicluding increasing interest ra
a brokered certificate of deposit can only be witlweh in the event of the death or court declaredtaiéncompetence of the depositor. This allows$ausetter manag
the maturity of our deposits and our interest ragk. We also utilize brokers to obtain money méarkecount deposits. The rate we pay on brokeredegnomarke
accounts is the same or below the rate we pay arbrakered money market accounts, and the rate &eddo in a contract between the Bank and the brdkess:
accounts are similar to brokered certificates gfadét accounts in that we only maintain one accdonthe total deposit per broker, with the brokeaintaining th
detailed records of each depositor. The Bank h&dS$illion in brokered money market accounts atdheber 31, 2013. The Bank did not hold any brokenede)
market accounts at December 31, 2012.

The FDIC has promulgated regulations implementimgtétions on brokered deposits. Under the regofesti welleapitalized institutions, such as the Bank
not subject to brokered deposit limitations, wlakiequately capitalized institutions are able taeptarenew or roll over brokered deposits only véttvaiver from th
FDIC and subject to restrictions on the interet that can be paid on such deposits. Undercagathlnstitutions are not permitted to accept bre#teteposits. Pursui
to the regulation, the Bank, as a wedlpitalized institution, may accept brokered degosihould our capital ratios decline, this coinditl our ability to replace broker
deposits when they mature.

The maturity of brokered certificates of depositildoresult in a significant funding source maturatgne time. Should this occur, it might be difftdo replac
the maturing certificates with new brokered cegtifes of deposit. We have used brokers to obtasetldeposits which results in depositors with whaerhave no oth
relationships since these depositors are outsidriomarket, and there may not be a sufficientsmaf new brokered certificates of deposit at thetof maturity.
addition, upon maturity, brokers could require atfer some of the highest interest rates in thentry to retain these deposits, which would negatiimpact ou
earnings. The Bank mitigates this risk by obtainbrgkered certificates of deposit with various miéiegs ranging up to six years, and attempts toichvmaving
significant amount maturing in any one year.
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The Markets in Which We Operate Are Highly Competitive

We face intense and increasing competition botimaking loans and in attracting deposits. Our magke& has a high density of financial institutiamgsny o
which have greater financial resources, name retogrand market presence than us, and all of wiaigh our competitors to varying degrees. Partibulatense
competition exists for deposits and in all of teeding activities we emphasize. Our competitionlé@ns comes principally from commercial banks,irsgs banks
savings and loan associations, mortgage bankinganies, insurance companies, finance companie<rdlit unions. Management anticipates that competfior
mortgage loans will continue to increase in theifeit Our most direct competition for deposits histdly has come from savings banks, commerciakbasavings ar
loan associations and credit unions. In additioa, face competition for deposits from products @fteby brokerage firms, insurance companies and dithencia
intermediaries, such as money market and otherahfitmds and annuities. Consolidation in the bagkimdustry and the lifting of interstate bankingddsranchin
restrictions have made it more difficult for smalleommunity-oriented banks, such as us, to comgiéetively with large, national, regional and styegional bankin
institutions. We launched an internet branch, “i@@king.com® " a division of the Bank, to provide us with accessonsumers in markets outside our geogr:
locations. The internet banking arena also has rfeaggr financial institutions which have greateahcial resources, name recognition and markesepiee than we do.

Notwithstanding the intense competition, we havenbsuccessful in increasing our loan portfolios degosit base. However, no assurances can be thigi
we will be able to continue to increase our loartfpbos and deposit base, as contemplated by meanegt's current business strategy.

Our Results of Operations May Be Adversely Affectedby Changes in National and/or Local Economic Condibns

Our operating results are affected by nationallandl economic and competitive conditions, inclgdeéhanges in market interest rates, the strengtheoloca
economy, government policies and actions of regnfaauthorities. The national and our local ecoismvere generally considered to be in a rece$siom Decembe
2007 through the middle of 2009. This resultedntreased unemployment and declining property wlag&hough the property value declines in the Newk City
metropolitan area have not been as great as many ateas of the country. While the national amdlleconomies showed signs of improvement sincegbend half
2009, unemployment has remained at elevated leVeks housing market in the United States contirtoesee a significant slowdown during 2009, and dlmsures ¢
single family homes rose to levels not seen inpther five years. The downturn in the housing nearkas slowed. These economic conditions can regsblbrrower
defaulting on their loans, or withdrawing their flsnon deposit at the Bank to meet their finandidiigations. While we have seen an increase in siespave have al:
seen a significant increase in delinquent loarsylti@g in an increase in our provision for loasdes, although we have seen improvements in 201i8.iffcrease i
delinquent loans primarily consists of mortgagenkeollateralized by residential income producingperties that are located in the New York City mopolitan marke
Given New York City’s low vacancy rates, the prdfer have retained their value and have provideditislow loss content in our ngperforming loans. We canr
predict the effect of these economic condition®onfinancial condition or operating results.

A decline in the local or national economy or theaNYork City metropolitan area real estate marketid adversely affect our financial condition aedults o
operations, including through decreased demankb&mrs or increased competition for good loans,gased nomerforming loans and loan losses and resultingtiadadi
provisions for loan losses and for losses on retdte owned. Although management believes thatuhent allowance for loan losses is adequatéght bf curren
economic conditions, many factors could requireitaaits to the allowance for loan losses in futuegipds above those currently maintained. Thesefadnclude: (1
adverse changes in economic conditions and changeagerest rates that may affect the ability ofrlowvers to make payments on loans, (2) changeBerfihancia
capacity of individual borrowers, (3) changes ia thcal real estate market and the value of our twdlateral, and (4) future review and evaluatidour loan portfolic
internally or by regulators. The amount of thea#tnce for loan losses at any time represents faitid estimates that are susceptible to significdranges due
changes in appraisal values of collateral, natiamal local economic conditions, prevailing intemegés and other factors. See “Business — GenrerAllowance fo
Loan Losses” in Item 1 of this Annual Report.

These same factors have caused delinquenciesraasefor the mortgages which are the collaterahi® mortgagdsacked securities we hold in our investn
portfolio. Combining the increased delinquenciethiguidity problems in the market has resultediidecline in the market value of our investmentgrivately issue
mortgage-backed securities. There can be no assuthat the decline in the market value of thesestments will not result in an other-theamporary impairme!
charge being recorded in our financial statements.”
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Changes in Laws and Regulations Could Adversely Aétt Our Business

From time to time, legislation, such as the Déaldnk Act, is enacted or regulations are promutjetiat have the effect of increasing the cost afiglbusines:
limiting or expanding permissible activities or edfing the competitive balance between banks ahdrdinancial institutions. Proposals to change kaws an
regulations governing the operations and taxatfdsaoks and other financial institutions are fregtlermade in Congress, in the New York legislatamel before variot
bank regulatory agencies. No prediction can bearasdto the likelihood of any major changes (initimiuto the DoddFrank Act) or the impact such changes r
have on us. For a discussion of regulations affgais, see “Business —Regulation” and “Business-efeddState and Local Taxation” in Item 1 of thisnial Report.

There can be no assurance as to the actual impcany laws, regulations or governmental progrirasmay be introduced or implemented in the futumite
have on the financial markets and the economy. itigoation or worsening of current financial markenditions could materially and adversely affegt busines:
financial condition, results of operations, andesmscto credit or the trading price of our secigitie

Current Conditions in, and Regulation of, the Bankng Industry May Have a Material Adverse Effect on Qur Results of Operations

Financial institutions have been the subject ofificant legislative and regulatory changes and tmayhe subject of further significant legislationregulatiol
in the future, none of which is within our contr@ignificant new laws or regulations or changesoinrepeals of, existing laws or regulations, udighg those wit
respect to federal and state taxation, may causeesults of operations to differ materially. Iddition, the cost and burden of compliance, oveetihave significant
increased and could adversely affect our abilitggerate profitably.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the DoddkFAct into law. The Dodé&rank Act is intended to address perceived weaksessthe U.S. financi
regulatory system and prevent future economic arah€ial crises. There are many provisions ofbed-Frank Act which will be implemented through regidas tc
be adopted within specified time frames followihg effective date of the Dodetank Act, which creates a risk of uncertainty ashe effect that such provisions \
ultimately have. The full impact of the changeségulation will depend on new regulations thatéhget to be written. The new regulations couldehavmateric
adverse effect on our business, financial conditionesults of operations. Although it is not pbksfor us to determine at this time whether tred®¥frank Act will
have a material adverse effect on our businessndial condition or results of operations, we haliéhe following provisions of the Doderank Act will have an impa
on us:

. New Primary Regulator. On July 21, 2011, the OTS, our then primary febeegulator, was eliminated and the OCC took dkemregulation of all fedel
savings banks, such as the Savings Bank. The &ldRleserve acquired the OTS'’s authority over alirggs and loan holding companies, such as the Bank’
holding company, and became the supervisor ofuliigliaries of savings and loan holding companteerathan depository institutions. As a result
became subject to regulation, supervision and exation by two federal banking agencies, the OCCthed-ederal Reserve, rather than just by the
as was previously the case. The OCC was replacédoeb=DIC as the Bank's federal regulator as altes the Merger and the Savings Baskonversio
from thrift to a bank. The Dodd-Frank Act also pdwd for the creation of the Consumer Financiaté&ution Bureau (the “CFPB”)The CFPB has tl
authority to implement and enforce a variety ofsérg consumer protection statutes and to issueregulations. As a new independent bureau withé
FRB, it is possible that the CFPB will focus moteeation on consumers and may impose requirementg severe than the previous bank reguli
agencies

. Consolidated Holding Company Capital Requireme The Dod-Frank Act requires the federal banking agenciesstablish consolidated ri-based an
leverage capital requirements for insured depagsitastitutions, depository institution holding coempes and systemically important nonbank final
companies. These requirements must be no lessttibar to which insured depository institutions ewerently subject, and the new requirements
effectively eliminate the use of newlysued trust preferred securities as a componehienfl Capital for depository institution holdimgmpanies of o
size. As a result, no later than the fifth anrsaey of the effective date of the DoBidank Act, we will become subject to consolidategital requiremen
to which we have not previously been subject. Eiffed-ebruary 28, 2013, as a result of the Merther Holding Company became a bank holding com
and it became subject to consolidated capitalirements
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. Roll Back of Federal Preemptio The Dod«-Frank Act significantly rolls back the federal pnggtion of state consumer protection laws that faldsaiving
associations and national banks currently enjoy(ypermitting federal preemption of a state consuifinancial law only if such law prevents
significantly interferes with the exercise of adeal savings association’s or national banbwers or such state law is preempted by anétlderal law
(2) mandating that any preemption decision be nwde case by case basis rather than a blanketande(3) ending the applicability of preemptioi
subsidiaries and affiliates of national banks aeefal savings associations. As a result, we noay lve subject to state laws in each state wherea
business, and those laws may be interpreted awodceqf differently in different state

The DoddFrank Act also includes provisions, subject toHartrulemaking by the federal bank regulatory agendahat may affect our future operatic
including provisions that create minimum standdatsthe origination of mortgages, restrict propaigt trading by banking entities, restrict the smoakip of an
investment in hedge funds and private equity fundbanking entities that remove certain obstadethé conversion of savings associations to ndtiomaks. We wil
not be able to determine the impact of these pimvsuntil final rules are promulgated to implemémese provisions and other regulatory guidancprisidec
interpreting these provisions.

Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions May Increase the ©sts to or Discourage an Acquirer

On September 5, 2006, the Board of Directors redewe Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plam/hich was originally adopted on and had been icq
since September 17, 1996 and had been scheduéeghite on September 30, 2006. The Rights Plan waigded to preserve longrm values and protect stockholc
against inadequate offers and other unfair ta¢ticacquire control of us. Under the Rights Plaghestockholder of record at the close of busimesSeptember 3
2006 received a dividend distribution of one righpurchase from the Company one ¢uerdredth of a share of Series A junior participgipreferred stock at a price
$65. The rights will become exercisable only iperson or group acquires 15% or more of our comstonk or commences a tender or exchange offer wifi
consummated, would result in that person or graupilg at least 15% of the Common Stock (the “adggiperson or group”)In such case, all stockholders other -
the acquiring person or group will be entitled taghase, by paying the $65 exercise price, ComntookSor a common stock equivalent) with a valudvate the
exercise price. In addition, at any time afterhsagent, and prior to the acquisition by any persogroup of 50% or more of the Common Stock, tar8 of Director
may, at its option, require each outstanding rigiher than rights held by the acquiring persorgamup) to be exchanged for one share of CommonkSmrcone
common stock equivalent). If a person or groupbeEs an acquiring person and we are acquired iargenor other business combination or sell maaa 0% of oL
assets or earning power, each right will entitleottier holders to purchase, by payment of $65@semrice, common stock of the acquiring compaith & value c
twice the exercise price. The renewed rights plgires on September 30, 2016.

The Rights Plan, as well as certain provisions wf certificate of incorporation and bylaws, the Bancharter and bylaws, certain federal regulatiam
provisions of Delaware corporation law, and cergiovisions of remuneration plans and agreemenicaple to employees and officers of the Bank rhaye anti-
takeover effects by discouraging potential proxgtests and other takeover attempts, particuladgetwhich have not been negotiated with the Bo&Rirectors. Th
Rights Plan and those other provisions, as welipicable regulatory restrictions, may also prév@nnhibit the acquisition of a controlling pasit in the Commo
Stock and may prevent or inhibit takeover attentptg certain stockholders may deem to be in theiotber stockholdersinterest or in our interest, or in wh
stockholders may receive a substantial premiunthieir shares over then current market prices. Tight® Plan and those other provisions may alsceas® the cost
and thus discourage, any such future acquisiticattempted acquisition, and would render the rernofvthe current Board of Directors or managemérithe Compan
more difficult.

We May Not Be Able to Successfully Implement Our Cmmercial Business Banking Initiative
Our strategy includes a transition to a more “comuiaélike” banking institution. We have developed a compleneérdeposit, loan and cash manager
products to support this initiative, and intendetgpand these product offerings. A business baniirigbuilds relationships in order to obtain lovwersting deposit

generate fee income, and originate commercial lpssidoans. The success of this initiative is dependn developing additional product offerings, dndlding
relationships to obtain the deposits and loansrélban be no assurance that we will be able toesstually implement our business strategy with resfethis initiative.
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The FDIC’s Adopted Restoration Plan and the Relatedncreased Assessment Rate Schedule May Have a MaéEffect on Our Results of Operations

On October 19, 2010, the FDIC Board adopted a mstoration plan to ensure that the DIF reserve retiches 1.35% by September 30, 2020, as redoy
the DoddFrank Act, rather than 1.15% by the end of 2016régsired under the prior restoration plan). Amatiger things, the new restoration plan provides the
FDIC will forego the uniform three basis point ieases in initial assessment rates that was prdyisuBeduled to take effect on January 1, 2011 raathtains th
current assessment rate schedule. The FDIC interisrsue further rulemaking regarding the reqoaet under the DodBrank Act that the FDIC offset the effect
institutions with less than $10 billion in assetagh as us) of the requirement that the reserieenesich 1.35% by September 30, 2020, so that wfdtee cost of raisir
the reserve ratio to 1.35% will be borne by insititas with more than $10 billion in assets. Insthbnnection, the FDIC Board approved a rule thmdlémented
provision in the Dodd-rank Act that changes the assessment base frorhaseel on domestic deposits (as it has been s#8%) 10 one based on total average a
less Tier 1 Capital (as defined for regulatory mses). The FDIC also lowered assessment ratesctlzf April 1, 2011, the new assessment basessdban asse
rather than domestic deposits which is a much taagsessment base than in the past. The ranpe base assessment rates is 2.5 to 45 basis poieseas the pri
range was 7 to 77.5 basis points. In addition,RB¢C Board approved setting the designated DIErkesratio at 2% as a lorigrm, minimum goal, adopt a lov
assessment rate schedule when the reserve rativesed.15% and, in lieu of FDIC dividends, adopigpessively lower assessment rate schedules whardkrve rat
reaches 2% and 2.5%. Another rule approved byFDIE Board, which replaces a proposed rule apprdwethe FDIC on April 13, 2010, would revise thepdsil
insurance assessment system for insured deposisiitutions with over $10 billion in assets. Thige is not directly applicable to us.

There is no guarantee that the rules describedeabesufficient for the DIF to meet its funding uegments, which may necessitate further rulemalspgcie
assessments or increases in deposit insuranceymsmiAny such future rulemaking, assessmentsaeases could have a further material impact onresults o
operations.

A Failure in or Breach of Our Operational or Security Systems or Infrastructure, or Those of Our Third Party Vendors and Other Service Providers, Includig
as a Result of Cyber Attacks, Could Disrupt Our Buiess, Result in the Disclosure or Misuse of Confihtial or Proprietary Information, Damage Our
Reputation, Increase Our Costs and Cause Losses.

We depend upon our ability to process, record aaditor our client transactions on a continuous $a&§ client, public and regulatory expectatiorgarding
operational and information security have increased operational systems and infrastructure masticue to be safeguarded and monitored for patefdilures
disruptions and breakdowns. Our business, fingna@ounting and data processing systems, or ofenating systems and facilities, may stop opegapiroperly o
become disabled or damaged as a result of a nuofii@ctors, including events that are wholly ortjzly beyond our control. For example, there cooddelectrical ¢
telecommunications outages; natural disasters asigarthquakes, tornadoes and hurricanes; disaadenics; events arising from local or larger spaléical or socie
matters, including terrorist acts; and, as desdrlibelow, cybemttacks. Although we have business continuity pkntsother safeguards in place, our business apes
may be adversely affected by significant and widesg disruption to our physical infrastructure pe@ting systems that support our business anadtglie

Information security risks for financial institutie such as ours have generally increased in rgeans in part because of the proliferation of neehhologies
the use of the internet and telecommunicationsniglcigies to conduct financial transactions, anditiceeased sophistication and activities of orgaghizrime, hacker
terrorists, activists and other external parties.ndted above, our operations rely on the secureepsing, transmission and storage of confidemmfafmation in ou
computer systems and networks. Our business iti@sir digital technologies, computer and emaitesyis, software and networks to conduct its oparatim additior
to access our products and services, our clients usa personal smartphones, tablet?@ersonal computers and other mobile devicesateabeyond our cont
systems. Although we have information security pchoes and controls in place, our technologiegesys networks and our clienévices may become the targe
cyber-attacks or information security breaches tmatld result in the unauthorized release, gatbgenmonitoring, misuse, loss or destruction of ouroar clients’
confidential, proprietary and other information,adherwise disrupt our or our clients’ or otherdhparties’ business operations.

Third parties with whom we do business or thatlifate our business activities, including finandidlermediaries or vendors that provide servicesemurity

solutions for our operations, could also be soumnfegperational and information security risk tg ugluding from breakdowns or failures of their mwystems ¢
capacity constraints.
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Although to date we have not experienced any nati$ses relating to cybattacks or other information security breachegietlvan be no assurance tha
will not suffer such losses in the future. Our reskd exposure to these matters remains heightesrslige of the evolving nature of these threatsa Aessult, cybe
security and the continued development and enhagieofi our controls, processes and practices dedigmprotect our systems, computers, software, alad network
from attack, damage or unauthorized access remfaicua for us. As threats continue to evolve, wg lparequired to expend additional resources tdirmoa to modif
or enhance our protective measures or to investi@ad remediate information security vulnerabiitie

Disruptions or failures in the physical infrasturet or operating systems that support our busiaedsclients, or cybeattacks or security breaches of
networks, systems or devices that our clients asetess our products and services could resalteint attrition, regulatory fines, penalties otervention, reputation
damage, reimbursement or other compensation costsraadditional compliance costs, any of whichldamaterially and adversely affect our financiahdiion ol
results of operations.

We May Experience Increased Delays in Foreclosureréceedings

Foreclosure proceedings face increasing delaysileWike cannot predict the ultimate impact of anjagleén foreclosure sales, we may be subject totantdil
borrower and nomorrower litigation and governmental and regulatggutiny related to our past and current foredlesctivities. Delays in foreclosure sales, incig
any delays beyond those currently anticipated condcease the costs associated with our mortgageatipns and make it more difficult for us to prewisses in ot
loan portfolio.

We May Need to Recognize Other-Than-Temporary Impament Charges in the Future

We conduct a periodic review and evaluation ofdeurities portfolio to determine if the declinetlre fair value of any security below its cost bdsiother-
thantemporary. Factors which we consider in our analysilude, but are not limited to, the severity andation of the decline in fair value of the sétyithe financia
condition and neaterm prospects of the issuer, whether the declppears to be related to issuer conditions or gémesaket or industry conditions, our intent i
ability to retain the security for a period of timefficient to allow for any anticipated recoveryfair value and the likelihood of any ndarm fair value recovery. V
generally view changes in fair value caused by gharin interest rates as temporary. However, we havorded other-thaemporary impairment charges on st
securities in our portfolio. If we deem such deelito be other-thatemporary, the security is written down to a newtdmasis and the resulting loss is charge
earnings as a component of non-interest income.

We continue to monitor the fair value of our setiesi portfolio as part of our ongoing other-themporary impairment evaluation process. Therebmanc
assurance that we will not need to recognize dtten-temporary impairment charges related to seéesiin the future.

The Current Economic Environment Poses Significan€Challenges for us and Could Adversely Affect our Fiancial Condition and Results of Operations

We are operating in a challenging and uncertainnesic environment, including generally uncertairtioreal conditions and local conditions in
markets. While the national and local economiesaglll signs of improvement since the second halQff9, unemployment has remained at elevated leVék
housing market in the United States continued éoassignificant slowdown during 2009, and forecteswf single family homes rose to levels not saehe prior five
years. The housing market has shown improveme2®1i3, but has not returned to pesession levels. Financial institutions continuéé affected by sharp decline
the real estate market and constrained financiaketss While we are taking steps to decrease iamtldur exposure to residential mortgage loansnée@quity loar
and lines of credit, and construction and land $oave nonetheless retain direct exposure to thdemal and commercial real estate markets, andneeaffected
these events. Further declines in real estateesahome sales volumes and financial stress oowers as a result of the uncertain economic enmieott, including jo
losses, could have an adverse effect on our borsowetheir customers, which could adversely affaat financial condition and results of operatiofifie overa
deterioration in economic conditions has subjectedo increased regulatory scrutiny. In additifumther deterioration in national or local econoroanditions in ot
markets could drive losses beyond that which isigeal for in our allowance for loan losses and ltasuthe following other consequences: loan daliewcies, proble
assets and foreclosures may increase; demand f@roducts and services may decline; deposits reagedse, which would adversely impact our liquigitgition; an
collateral for our loans, especially real estataymdecline in value, in turn reducing customeseirowing power, and reducing the value of assats eollatere
associated with our existing loans. These santerfabave caused delinquencies to increase fandregages which are the collateral for the mortgaaeked securitie
that we hold in our investment portfolio. Combinitigg increased delinquencies with liquidity probdeim the market has resulted in a decline in theketavalue of oL
investments in mortgage-backed securities. Themebeano assurance that the decline in the markeé & these investments will not cause us to ieor other-than-
temporary impairment charge in our financial staets.
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We May Not Pay Dividends on Our Common Stock

Holders of shares of our common stock are onlytledtio receive such dividends as our Board of @imes may declare out of funds legally availabledoct
payments. Although we have historically declareshcdividends on our common stock, we are not requio do so and may reduce or eliminate our comstock
dividend in the future. This could adversely affgrt market price of our common stock.

Goodwill Recorded as a Result of Acquisitions CoulBecome Impaired, Negatively Impacting Our Earningsand Capital

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life amdested annually, or when certain conditionsraeg, for impairment. If the fair value of the refog unit is
greater than the goodwill amount, no further eviidenais required and no impairment is recordedhé fair value of the reporting unit is less thha goodwill amoun
further evaluation would be required to comparefétievalue of the reporting unit to the goodwithaunt and determine if a write down is required nisigement view
the Company as operating as a single uaittcommunity bank. At December 31, 2013, we hamtigdl with a carrying amount of $16.1 million. Blees in the fal
value of the reporting unit may result in a futimpairment charge. Any such impairment chargeatbalve a material effect on our earnings and dapita

We May Not Fully Realize the Expected Benefit of OuDeferred Tax Assets

At December 31, 2013, we have a deferred tax as$&7.7 million. This represents the anticipatedefral, state and local tax benefits expected tedleed il
future years upon the utilization of the underlybag attributes comprising this balance. In oraeuse the future benefit of these deferred taxtasae will need t
report taxable income for federal, state and lé@alpurposes. Although we have reported taxaldente for federal, state, and local tax purposesach of the pa
three years, there can be no assurance that thisowtinue in the future.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

At December 31, 2013, the Bank conducted its bgsitlerough 17 full-service offices and its interetnch, “iGObanking.corfi”.
Flushing Financial Corporation neither owns nosésaany property but instead uses the premisesanpment of the Bank.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in various legal actions arisingtle ordinary course of our business which, in d@ggregate, involve amounts which are believe
management to be immaterial to our financial coodjtresults of operations and cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Flushing Financial Corporation Common Stock is éadn the NASDAQ Global Select Mark&under the symbol “FFIC."As of December 31, 2013, we |
approximately 756 shareholders of record, not iiclg the number of persons or entities holding lstoc nominee or street name through various brolaer
banks. Our stock closed at $20.70 on Decembe2@l3. The following table shows the high and l@les price of the Common Stock and the dividendaded ol
the Common Stock during the periods indicated.hSpdces do not necessarily reflect retail markupsrkdowns, or commissions. (See Note 13 of Nob
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Mrisual Report for dividend restrictions.)

2013 2012
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quartel $ 17.1C 3 1502 $ 0.1z $ 14.4¢ 3 12.3¢  $ 0.1z
Second Quarte 16.81 15.02 0.1z 13.8: 12.2¢ 0.1z
Third Quartel 19.8¢ 16.4C 0.12 17.01 13.1¢ 0.12
Fourth Quarte 21.7( 17.9¢ 0.12 16.41 13.67 0.12

The following table sets forth information regarmglithe shares of common stock repurchased by usgitiré quarter ended December 31, 2013:

Maximum

Total Number o Number of
Total Shares Purchas Shares That Ma
Number as Part of Public Yet Be Purchast
of Shares Average Pric Announced Plar Under the Plan

Period Purchasel Paid per Sha or Program: or Program:
October 1 to October 31, 20 - $ - - 549,87(
November 1 to November 30, 20 - - - 549,87(
December 1 to December 31, 2( - - - 549,87(

Total - $ - -

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Comnpampleted the common stock repurchase prograinvitha approved by the CompasyBoard o
Directors on September 20, 2011. On May 22, 2@ Company announced the authorization by thedo&birectors of a new common stock repurchasgnam
which authorizes the purchase of up to 1,000,0@®eshof its common stock. During the years endecebber 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company repurcl@&aga9:
shares and 352,000 shares, respectively, of thep@ayls common stock at an average cost of $15.73 pee stmal $14.26 per share, respectively. At Decerfih
2013, 549,870 shares remain to be repurchased theleurrent stock repurchase program. Stock wilpbrchased under the current stock repurchasegonoigom time
to time, in the open market or through private semtions subject to market conditions and at therefion of the management of the Company. Theme expiration ¢
maximum dollar amount under this authorization.
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The following table sets forth securities authadifer issuance under all equity compensation ptditke Company at December 31, 2013:

(a) (b)
Number of securities Weighte-average
be issued upon exerc  exercise price ¢
of outstanding option outstanding option

(c)

Number of securitie
remaining available fi
future issuance und
equity compensatio
plans (excluding
securities reflected i

warrants and right  warrants and right column (a)
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holder 306,63( $ 16.0z 431,57¢
Equity compensation plans r
approved by security holde - - -
306,63( $ 16.0Z 431,57¢

(1) Consists of 56,920 shares available for fuhme-full value awards and 374,658 shares avaifabltuture full value awards.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison of cumuéatistal stockholder return on the Compangbmmon stock since December 31, 2008 with theutative
total returns of a broad equity market index ad welcomparative published industry indices. Theatrequity market index chosen was the Nasdaqg Csitep@\s i
result of the Banls conversion to a commercial bank charter, we hamging two of the comparative published industigides. The published industry indices b
replaced are the SNL Thrift Index and SNL Midlantic Thrift Index, as they only include Thrifistitutions. The replacement indices are the SKhIB$1 Billion to $!
Billion in Assets Index and the SNL Mid-Atlantic Bia Index. The SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index was choder inclusion in the Company’Stock Performance Gre
because the Company believes it provides valuabigparative information reflecting the Compasgeographic peer group. The SNL Bank $1 Billioi$%oBillion in
Assets Index was chosen for inclusion in the Comim®tock Performance Graph because it uses a brgadgp of banks and therefore more closely reflétot
Company'’s size. The Company believes that both iggddc area and size are important factors in aivadythe Companyg performance against its peers. The g
below reflects historical performance only, whismbt indicative of possible future performanceh&f common stock.

Total Return Performance
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The total return assumes $100 invested on DeceB1he2008 and all dividends reinvested through tiet & the Company fiscal year ended December
2013. The performance graph above is based upsinglprices on the trading date specified.

Period Ending
I ndex 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1( 12/31/1: 12/31/1: 12/31/1%
Flushing Financial Corporatic 100.0( 100.1¢ 129.8¢ 122.2: 154.0¢ 214.1¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 145.3:. 171.5( 170.0¢ 199.7¢ 279.9(
SNL Thrift 100.0( 93.2¢ 97.4¢ 81.97 99.7( 127.9¢
SNL Mid-Atlantic Thrift 100.0( 95.3¢ 109.5: 84.4¢ 101.5: 132.0¢
SNL Bank $1 Billion to $5 Billior 100.0( 71.6¢ 81.2¢ 74.1C 91.37 132.8}
SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank 100.0( 105.2% 122.8: 92.2¢ 123.5¢ 166.5¢
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

At or for the years ended December 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share ds
Selected Financial Condition Date
Total asset $ 4,72150 $ 4,451,417 $ 4,287,94 $ 4,324,741 $ 4,143,24
Loans, ne 3,402,40: 3,203,01 3,198,53 3,248,63 3,200,15!
Securities available for sa 1,017,791 949,56t 812,53( 804,18 683,80:
Deposits 3,232,78I 3,015,19: 3,146,24! 3,190,611 2,693,11!
Borrowed funds 1,012,12: 948,40! 685,13¢ 708,68: 1,060,24!
Total stockholders' equit 432,53: 442,36! 416,91 390,04! 360,14«
Common stockholders' equi 432,53: 442,36! 416,91 390,04! 360,14-
Book value per common shé(1) $ 14.3¢ $ 14.3¢ $ 13.4¢  $ 1248 $ 11.57
Selected Operating Date
Interest and dividend incon $ 20052t $ 213,71 $ 22449¢ $ 229,62( $ 230,06:
Interest expens 54,86: 63,27¢ 76,72 91,76% 115,27
Net interest incom 145,66 150,43¢ 147,77 137,86: 114,78t
Provision for loan losses 13,93¢ 21,00( 21,50( 21,00( 19,50(
Net interest income after provisi
for loan losse 131,72¢ 129,43t 126,27" 116,86: 95,28t
Nor-interest income
Net gains on sales of securit
and loan: 3,021 68 511 7 1,61
Othe-thar-temporary credit impairmel
charge on securitit (1,419 (77€) (1,579 (2,045 (5,894
Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustme (2,527 b5 1,96( 47 4,96¢
Other income 10,47t 9,713 9,38¢ 10,29: 10,26¢
Total norinterest incom 9,55¢ 9,06 10,28: 8,30( 10,95¢
Non-interest expens 80,57¢ 82,32t 77,73¢ 70,38t 64,90¢
Income before income tax provisi 60,70¢ 56,17¢ 58,817 54,77¢ 41,33.
Income tax provision 22,95¢ 21,84° 23,46¢ 15,94: 15,77:
Net income $ 37,75, $ 3433. % 35,34¢ % 38,83 $ 25,56
Basic earnings per common sh(2) $ 12¢ $ 11 $ 118 $ 12¢ $ 0.91
Diluted earnings per common shi(2) $ 12¢ $ 11 $ 118 $ 128 $ 0.91
Dividends declared per common sh(2) $ 052 $ 05z % 05z $ 052 $ 0.5Z
Dividend payout ratic 41.2% 46.(% 45.2% 40.6% 57.7%

(Footnotes on the following page)
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At or for the years ended December 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Dat:
Performance ratios
Return on average ass 0.82% 0.7% 0.82% 0.92% 0.62%
Return on average equ 8.7% 7.9¢ 8.7¢ 10.3: 7.8C
Average equity to average ass 9.4t 9.8 9.3¢ 8.8¢ 8.0¢
Equity to total asse 9.1¢ 9.9 9.72 9.02 8.6¢
Interest rate spre: 3.2t 3.5C 3.4¢ 3.27 2.7¢
Net interest margi 3.37 3.6 3.61 3.4% 2.9¢
Nor-interest expense to average as 1.7¢ 1.8¢ 1.8C 1.6¢€ 1.6C
Efficiency ratio 50.6¢ 50.7: 49.1¢ 47.3i 51.7¢
Average intere-earning assets to avere
interes-bearing liabilities 1.1Cx 1.0¢x 1.0€x 1.07x 1.07x
Regulatory capital ratios: (.
Core capital (well capitalized = 5¢ 9.48% 9.62% 9.6% 9.1&% 8.84%
Tier 1 risl-based capital (well capitalized =6¢ 14.5¢ 14.3¢ 14.2¢ 13.07 12.7¢
Total risl-based capital (well capitalized =10' 15.6: 15.4¢ 15.32 13.9¢ 13.4¢
Asset quality ratios
Nor-performing loans to gross loans 1.4%% 2.7% 3.65% 3.44% 2.6(%
Nor-performing assets to total assets 1.1¢ 2.21 2.87 2.7¢ 2.1¢
Net charg-offs to average loar 0.41 0.64 0.5¢ 0.4z 0.3
Allowance for loan losses to gross loi 0.9t 0.97 0.94 0.8t 0.6
Allowance for loan losses to to!
nor-performing assets ( 59.0¢ 31.5¢ 24.6% 23.31 22.3¢
Allowance for loan losses to to
nor-performing loans (4 64.8¢ 34.6: 25.8¢ 24.71 24.3¢
Full-service customer facilitie 17 17 16 15 15

(1) Calculated by dividing common stockholdeesjuity of $432.5 million and $442.4 million at Dedeer 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, by 30,123 A<
30,743,329 shares outstanding at December 31, @81 2012, respectively. Common stockholders’ edgitptal stockholdergquity less the liquidation preferel

value of preferred shares outstand

(2) The shares held in the Comp’s Employee Benefit Trust are not included in shatgstanding for purposes of calculating earnirgysshare
(3) Represents the Ba's capital ratios, which exceeded all minimum retuiacapital requirements during the periods preesb
(4) Non-performing loans consist of n-accrual loans and loans delinquent 90 days or thatteare still accruing

(5) Non-performing assets consist of I-performing loans, real estate owned and-performing investment securitie




Item 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations.

n o«

As used in this discussion and analysis, the wénds” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiamd ou
consolidated subsidiaries, including the survivergity of the merger (the “Merger'dn February 28, 2013 of our wholly owned subsidi&tyshing Savings Bank, F
(the “Savings Bank”) with and into the Savings Bankholly owned subsidiary Flushing Commercial Béthie “Commercial Bank”)The surviving entity of the Mer¢
was the Commercial Bank, whose name has been dhaad&lushing Bank”. References herein to the “B&nmean the Savings Bank (including its wholly ov
subsidiary, the Commercial Bank) prior to the Merged the surviving entity after the Merger.

General

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 199 Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Nexk Btatechartered mutual savings bank. In 1¢
the Savings Bank converted to a federally charteratal savings bank and changed its name fromhiigsSavings Bank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSB: $hving
Bank converted from a federally chartered mutusings bank to a federally chartered stock savirgyskbin 1995. On February 28, 2013, in the Merdeg, $aving
Bank merged with and into the Commercial Bank, \lith Commercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pargdo the Merger, the Commercial Baskharter was chang
to a New York State fulservice commercial bank charter, and its name viasiged to Flushing Bank. Also in connection wite terger, Flushing Financ
Corporation became a bank holding company. We damticipate any significant changes to our operetior services as a result of the Merger.

On July 21, 2011, as a result of the Dodd-Frankl\®taket Reform and Consumer Protection Act (thed®Frank Act”), the Savings Barskprimary regulatc
became the Office of the Comptroller of the Curse(/{©CC”). Upon completion of the Merger, the Baslprimary regulator became the New York State Diepamt 0
Financial Services (“NYSDFS").fgrmerly the New York State Banking Department)d ats federal regulator became the Federal Depositrance Corporati
(“FDIC”). The Bank's deposits are insured to the maximum allowableusinby the FDIC. The Bank owns three subsidiafdsshing Preferred Funding Corporat
Flushing Service Corporation, and FSB Properties In

Flushing Financial Corporation also owns FlushimgaRcial Capital Trust Il, Flushing Financial Cabifrust Ill, and Flushing Financial Capital Truigt(the
“Trusts”), which are special purpose business trusts formeithgl2007 to issue a total of $60.0 million of dapisecurities, and $1.9 million of common secat
(which are the only voting securities). Flushingdficial Corporation owns 100% of the common sdesritf the Trusts. The Trusts used the proceeds fine issuanc
of these securities to purchase junior subordindédxntures from Flushing Financial Corporatiore Thusts are not included in our consolidated forgrstatements
we would not absorb the losses of the Trusts gdesvere to occur.

The following discussion of financial condition arebults of operations includes the collective Itssof the Flushing Financial Corporation and itbsidiarie
(collectively, the “Company”), but reflects prinailly the Bank’s activities. Management views theripany as operating as a single urdatcommunity bank. Therefo
segment information is not provided.

The Bank has a business banking unit. Our busisieategy includes a transition from a traditiorfaift to a more “commercial-likebanking institution b
focusing on the development of a full complementaihmercial business deposit, loan and cash maragermoducts. As of December 31, 2013, the busibasking
unit had $378.3 million in gross loans outstanding $138.5 million of customer deposits.

The Bank has an internet branch, iGObanking.comt®ch provides access to consumers in marketsdsutair geographic locations. Accounts can be oy

online at www.iGObanking.com or by mail. The imtet branch does not currently accept loan apptinati As of December 31, 2013, the internet brdrazh $293.
million of customer deposits.
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The Savings Bank formed a wholly owned subsidi&tyshing Commercial Bank, a New York Stateartered commercial bank, for the limited purpot
providing banking services to public entities irdihg counties, cities, towns, villages, schoolriliss, libraries, fire districts and the variousuds throughout the Ne
York City metropolitan area. The Commercial Bankswarmed in response to New York State law, whiefuires that municipal deposits and state fundst e
deposited into a bank or trust company as definddew York State law. The Savings Bank was not iclemed an eligible bank or trust company for thispmse. O
February 28, 2013, in the Merger, the Savings Baekged with and into the Commercial Bank, with @@mmercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuantht
Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter was changedftll-service New York State commercial bankrtdra and its name was changed to Flushing Bank.

The Merger was the result of the combination of tities under common control, and in accordandb WSC 805-50-3(, the Bank measured -
recognized assets and liabilities transferredeit tarrying amounts (historical cost) for thisnsaction.
Overview

Our principal business is attracting retail demoBibm the general public and investing those diéptmgether with funds generated from ongoing apiens an
borrowings, primarily in (1) originations and puastes of multi-family residential properties andatiesser extent, one-to-four family (focusing omed-use propertie
which are properties that contain both residemiva¢lling units and commercial units) and commerogal estate mortgage loans; (2) construction lopnmarily for
residential properties; (3) Small Business Admiaitstn (“SBA”) loans and other small business lga(® mortgage loan surrogates such as mortyagked securitie
and (5) U.S. government securities, corporate fisedme securities and other marketable securli#salso originate certain other consumer loansiding overdra:
lines of credit. Our results of operations deperichgrily on net interest income, which is the diffece between the income earned on its inter@sting assets and
cost of our interest-bearing liabilities. Net irgst income is the result of our interest rate nmargihich is the difference between the averagedyéglrned on interest-
earning assets and the average cost of interestigdembilities, adjusted for the difference inetiaverage balance of interestrning assets as compared to the av
balance of interest-bearing liabilities. We alsogate norinterest income from loan fees, service chargedeposit accounts, mortgage servicing fees, and tles
income earned on Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLHividends on Federal Home Bank of New York (“FHNE") stock and net gains and losses on sal
securities and loans. Our operating expenses ¢grsisipally of employee compensation and benefittupancy and equipment costs, other generahdmihistrativ:
expenses and income tax expense. Our results odtapes also can be significantly affected by oerigdic provision for loan losses and specific gmn for losses ¢
real estate owned.

Management StrategyQur strategy is to continue our focus on beingrestitution serving consumers, businesses, and gmeartal units in our local marke
In furtherance of this objective, we intend to:

« continue our emphasis on the origination of mudtiafly residential mortgage loans;
« transition from a traditional thrift to a more ‘comercial-like’ banking institution;
« increase our commitment to the m-cultural marketplace, with a particular focus oa fsian community in Queer
« maintain asset qualit
. manage deposit growth and maintain a low cost md$uthrougt

= business banking deposi

= municipal deposits through government banking,

= new customer relationships via iGObanking.®;
« cross sell to lending and deposit custom
« take advantage of market disruptions to attraentaind customers from competitc
« manage interest rate risk and capital: and

« manage enterprise-wide risk.

There can be no assurance that we will be abl&eotiwely implement this strategy. Our strateggibject to change by the Board of Directors.
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Multi-Family Residential Mortgage Lendingln recent years, we have emphasized the origimaif higher-yielding multfamily residential mortgage loal
During 2013 and 2012, we reduced our emphasis eft@ifiour family — mixedise property and commercial real estate lendingeMpect to continue this emphasis
higher-yielding multi-family residential mortgageains, while we continue to deemphasize one-toffouily mixed-use property and commercial real eskanding.

The following table shows loan originations andghases during 2013, and loan balances as of Dec&hp2013.

Loan Loan Balance
Originations an December 31  Percent o
Purchase 2013 Gross Loar
(Dollars in thousands
Multi-family residentia $ 382,04. $ 1,712,03! 50.02%
Commercial real esta 69,42( 512,55: 14.9%
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 40,89¢ 595,75: 17.4(
One-to-four family — residentia 27,49¢ 193,72¢ 5.6€
Cao-operative apartmel 4,96¢€ 10,13% 0.3(
Constructior 3,08¢ 4,247 0.12
Small Business Administratic 603 7,792 0.2%
Taxi Medallion 9,731 13,12:¢ 0.3¢
Commercial Business and Other 297,74! 373,64 10.9:z
Total $ 835,99: $ 3,423,00 100.0(%

At December 31, 2013, multi-family residential, coercial real estate, construction and one-to-faorify mixeduse property mortgage loans, totaled 82.5
our gross loans. Our concentration in these typésaos has increased the overall level of craslit inherent in our loan portfolio. The greatekréssociated with multi-
family, commercial real estate, construction and-tmfour family mixeduse property mortgage loans could require us tee@se our provisions for loan losses ar
maintain an allowance for loan losses as a pergerdhtotal loans in excess of the allowance ctilyenaintained.

Transition to a Moré Commerciallike’ Banking Institution.We have an established business banking unit dtaffth a team of experienced commer
bankers. We have developed a complement of depassit,and cash management products to supporinttistive, and expanded these product offeringge busines
banking unit is responsible for building businesktionships in order to obtain loweosting deposits, generate fee income, and orgioatnmercial business loa
Building these business relationships could providewith a lower-costing source of funds and highelding adjustableate loans, which would help us manage
interestrate risk. On February 28, 2013, in the Merger,3hgings Bank merged with and into the CommercaikB with the Commercial Bank as the surviving tgr
Pursuant to the Merger, the Commercial Bank’s ehnasas changed to a fudervice New York State commercial bank charter, isydame was changed to Flust
Bank.

Increase Our Commitment to the Me@ultural Marketplace, with a Particular Focus oa #tsian Community in QueensOur branches are all located in
New York City metropolitan area with particular cemtration in the borough of Queens. Queens iticpdar exhibits a high level of ethnic diversibAn importan
element of our strategy is to service the multrettconsumer and business. We have a particulagerdration in the Asian communitiesmong them Chinese &
Korean populations. Both groups are noted for héykls of savings, education and entrepreneurdhiprder to service these and other importantietgroups in ot
market, our staff speaks more than 30 languad¥e. have an Asian advisory board to help broadenlipkirto the community by providing guidance andtring
awareness of our active role in the local commun@ur focus on the Asian community in Queens, whee have four branches, has resulted in us obg
approximately $400 million in deposits in theserfofzes. We also have over $400 million of loanslaves of credit outstanding to borrowers in théaf\scommunity.
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Maintain Asset Quality By adherence to our conservative underwritirnaards, we have been able to minimize net logses impaired loans with n
chargeeffs of $13.3 million and $20.2 million for the ysaended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectMéyseek to maintain our loans in performing stétasugh
among other things, disciplined collection effodsd consistently monitoring ngrerforming assets in an effort to return them tdquening status. To this end,
review the quality of our loans and report to tlemh Committee of the Board of Directors of the Banka monthly basis. We sold 72 delinquent mortdages totalin
$33.4 million, 77 delinquent mortgage loans to@lf#4.2 million, and 44 delinquent mortgage loastaling $27.8 million during the years ended Decengi, 201:
2012 and 2011, respectively. We recorded net chaffgeof $4.7 million, $5.7 million and $3.7 millioto the allowance for loan losses for the penforming loans th
were sold during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivVéie realized gross gains of $134,000, $21,000%16¥,000 on the sale of ngerforming mortgage loans for 1
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 cteshe We realized gross losses of $81,000 a#@l (0 on the sale of ngrerforming mortgage loans for 1
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgctivel did not record any gross losses for the yedled December 31, 2011. There can be no assurdratese
will continue this strategy in future periods, ércontinued, we will be able to find buyers to pagequate consideration. Npefforming assets amounted to $!
million and $98.5 million at December 31, 2013 &@d.2, respectively. Noperforming assets as a percentage of total assets W14% and 2.21% at Decembet
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Manage Deposit Growth and Maintain Low Cost of Fuvile have a relatively stable retail deposit basevdritom our market area through our faétvice
offices. Although we seek to retain existing defsoand maintain depositor relationships by offerguglity service and competitive interest ratesuo customers, v
also seek to keep deposit growth within reasonkaiés and our strategic plan. In order to implerneuar strategic plan, we have a business bankirgadipn that w
designed specifically to develop full businesstiefeships thereby bringing in lower cost checkimgl anoney market deposits. At December 31, 2013siepbalance
in the business sector are $138.5 million. We hbsee an internet branch, “iGObanking.c8rhy as a division of the Bank, to compete for depdsitm sources outsit
the geographic footprint of our full-service officdn creating iGObanking.com®ur strategy is to reduce our reliance on wholesateowings and reduce our fund
costs. Deposit balances in iGObanking.com@e $293.2 million at December 31, 2013, at réder than our borrowings. We have a governmenkingndivision
which prior to the Merger operated as the CommER&#amk, as an additional source of deposits. Atdbaicer 31, 2013, deposits in aqgwvernment banking divisic
totaled $867.1 million at rates below our averagst of funds. We also obtain deposits through &mland the CDARS@nd ICS network. Management intend
balance its goal to maintain competitive interetes on deposits while seeking to manage its dvesat of funds to finance its strategies. We galherely on ou
deposit base as our principal source of funding@ddition, the Bank is a member of the FHNB- which provides us with a source of borrowinge \also utilize rever:
purchase agreements, established with other fiahimstitutions. During 2013, we realized an inse@ Due to depositors of $217.3 million, as abeposits increas
$349.6 million while certificates of deposit decsed $132.3 million. At the same time our borrowadds increased by $63.7 million as we looked t@mtth
maturities of our funding.

Cross Sell to Lending and Deposit Custom@rsignificant portion of our lending and deposistamers do not have both their loans and depo#itsus. Wt
intend to continue to focus on obtaining additiod@posits from our lending customers and origimatidditional loans to our deposit customers. Prodfierings wer
expanded and are expected to be further expandedcdmmmodate perceived customer demands. In addsjeecific employees are assigned responsibilif
generating these additional deposits and loan®bydinating efforts between lending and deposibgang departments.

Take Advantage of Market Disruptions to Attract &rél and Customers From CompetitoFsie New York City market place has been dominatedabge
institutions, many of which recently have run idifficult situations due to the recessionary enmim@nt. During this time period we have been ablttract talent froi
such large commercial banks. That talent has btowgh it significant business relationships. Wesddeen able to see a larger number of strong coiegp#hat hav
been caught in a retrenchment by their existingdanstitution. We anticipate this environment rériray for some period of time.

We have in the past increased growth through aitiguis of financial institutions and branches dfertfinancial institutions, and will continue torpue growt
through acquisitions that are, or are expectedetavithin a reasonable time frame, accretive to iagey as well as evaluating the feasibility of cpgnadditiona
branches. We have in the past opened new brandhleplan to continue to seek and review potentiglasition opportunities that complement our curfamsiness, a
consistent with our strategy to build a bank tedbrused on the unique personal and small busbegsng needs of the multi-ethnic communities esvs.
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Manage Interest Rate Risk and Capitde seek to manage our interest rate risk by agtirmliewing the repricing and maturities of oureirgst rate sensiti
assets and liabilities. The mix of loans we orégén(fixed or ARM) is determined in large part lyrfowers’preferences and prevailing market conditions. B&kdc
manage the interest rate risk of our loan portfbjiaactively managing our security portfolio androwings. By adjusting the mix of fixed and adplse rate securitie
as well as the maturities of the securities, weehtére ability to manage the combined interest satesitivity of our assets. Additionally, we seekbilance the intere
rate sensitivity of our assets by managing the ritags of our liabilities. The Bank faces sevemahimum capital requirements imposed by federallagpn. Thes
requirements limit the dividends the Bank is alldvte pay, including the payment of dividends tosRimg Financial Corporation, and can limit the airgrowth of th:
Bank.

Manage EnterprisiVide Risk.We identify measure and attempt to mitigate rigieg affect, or have the potential to affect, ousibess. Due to the econol
crisis and resulting increase in government regathere is greater demand for us to devote igmit resources to risk management. In April 2064 8easoned ri
officer was hired to provide executive risk leatigrgsand an enterprisgide risk management program was implemented. Seeaterprise risk management analy
products have been implemented which include ksly indicators. Our management of enterpvigge risk enables us to recognize and monitor reskgd establis
procedures to disseminate the risk information sm@ur organization and to our Board of Directditse objective is to have a robust and focused mskagemel
process capable of identifying and mitigating erregdhreats to the Bank’s safety and soundness.

Trends and ContingenciesOur operating results are significantly affectedrational and local economic and competitive coondg, including changes
market interest rates, the strength of the locahemy, government policies and actions of reguatarthorities. As shorterm interest rates have declined from =
through 2013, we remained strategically focusedhenorigination of multi-family residential mortgeg and to a lesser extent, commercial real estateae-tofour
family mixed-use property mortgage loans. As a result of thateqy, we were able to continue to achieve a higiedd on our mortgage portfolio than we would &
otherwise experienced

The New York City metropolitan area, our primaryrke for lending, was generally considered to ba inecession from December 2007 through the miaoff
2009. In the New York City metropolitan area, Hirg permits for one-to-four family residential pesties, multifamily residential properties, and commer
properties all declined over this time period tstdiically low levels. Building permits issued imetNew York metropolitan area have increased dwerpast sever
years. The home price index for the New York Citgtrapolitan area declined from the beginning of 2@®the end of 2012 by approximately 23.7%, bt inarease
4.9% in 2013. The value of multi-family and commakproperties showed similar price movements.

Building permits for one-to-four family residentipfoperties, multfamily residential properties, and commercial prtips all declined over this time perioc
historically low levels. This resulted in increasedemployment and declining property values. Thgoritg of our impaired loans are income producimgidentic
properties located in the New York City metropaiitmarket. Due to the low vacancy rates for thepesyof properties, they have retained more of Wedire, therek
reducing their loss content. While the national &whl economies have shown signs of improvemertesthe middle of 2010, improvements in unemployinteve
lagged, with the unemployment rate decreasingdmgining at an elevated level of 7.5% at DecembB&B2nd 8.8% at December 2012, for the New York f&igion
according to the New York State Department of Lafblese economic conditions can result in borrowlefaulting on their loans. This lackluster econopgrformanc
has resulted in the balance of our non-performians remaining at an elevated level, although resfepming loans declined in 2013 and 2012. Nenforming loan
totaled $49.0 million, $89.8 million and $117.4 lioih at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respgtiWhile nonperforming loans have remained elevated, we
not yet experienced a significant increase in flasd properties due to an extended foreclosureepsoin our market. The extended foreclosure psacesur market
due to the high number of foreclosure actions fitethe court system in the counties for which we seeking foreclosure on delinquent mortgage lodfes have nc
encountered significant issues with documentat@ating to mortgages for which we are seeking flooe as we maintain custody of all loan documents$ reviev
them prior to providing them to our legal counselritiate the foreclosure action. The deterionatio the economy also resulted in an increase frchargeeffs from
impaired loans, although improvement was seen i82Bet chargeffs totaled $13.3 million, $20.2 million and $18llion for the years ended December 31, 2
2012 and 2011, respectively. We experienced aairtiiénd in the provision for loan losses, as voemed provisions of $13.9 million, $21.0 millionca$21.5 millio
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and, 28%pectively. We cannot predict the effect afsth economic conditions on the Companfyiture financie
condition or operating results.
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In addition, in response to the economic conditioneur market combined with the increase in panforming loans, we began tightening our undemg
standards in 2008 to reduce the risk associatedlarnting.

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatedending on income producing real estate prijps

When borrowers requested a refinance of an existiaggage loan when they had acquired the promerobtained their existing loan within t
years of the request, we generally required eviel@idmprovements to the property that increasedpttoperty value to support the additic
funds and generally restricted the I-to-value ratio for the new loan to 65% of the appisalue.

The debt coverage ratio was increased and thetteaalue ratio decreased for income producing propestiith fewer than ten units. This requ
the borrower to have an additional investment ia phoperty than previously required and provideditamhal protection should rental ur
become vacan

Borrowers who owned multiple properties were reggiito provide detail on all their properties tooallus to evaluate their total cash f
requirements. Based on this review, we may dettiadoan application, or require a lower I-to-value ratio and a higher debt coverage r:

Income producing properties with existing rentd thiare at or above the current market rent for Isinproperties were required to have a hi
debt coverage ratio to provide protection shouldseecline

Borrowers purchasing properties were required taafestrate they had satisfactory liquidity and mamagnt ability to carry the property sho
vacancies occur or increa:

The following changes were made in our underwriitgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk on orfiedtofamily residential property mortgage loans
home equity lines of credit:

We discontinued originating home equity lines mdit without verifying the borrowes’income. This was done in two stages. Beginniniglary
2008, we began verifying the borroneihcome when the home equity line of credit exeee$tL00,000. Beginning in October 2009, we ver
the income of all borrowers applying for a homeisgiine of credit.

We discontinued offering one-to-four family regidiel property mortgage loans to selfiployed individuals based on stated income aniiakele
assets in June 201

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk associatedusiness lending:

All borrowers obtaining a business loan were regglito submit a complete financial information paygkaregardless of the amount of the |
Previously, borrowers for SBA Express loans anéoltbans under $150,000 had been exempt fromehigirement

Background checks on all borrowers and guarantorddsiness loans were expanded to identify angweinformation in more public recort
including a search for judgments, liens, negatinesg articles, and affiliations with other entiti

The guarantee of related business entities prayidash flow to the borrowing entity became requf@dusiness loan
The allowable percentage of inventory and accorgtsivable pledged as collateral for a business \e@s reducec

We established specific risk acceptance critetigfivate not for profit school:

Since 2008, we have reduced our focus on commeme#lestate and one-to-four family mixese residential property mortgage loans, whichesgmte
$300.6 million, or 50%, of our mortgage loan orafions and purchases in 2008 compared to $1101®mibr 13%, in 2013. In addition to reducing dacus ot
commercial real estate lending, we further redumadorigination of smaller commercial real estateperties. We also reduced our focus on constnudéinding, whic
we reduced from $30.7 million in advances on exgsibans in 2008 to $3.1 million in advances orséxg loans in 2013, and new construction loan eyxds fron
$27.2 million in 2008 to $2.5 million in 2013. Weduced our focus on these types of loans due togeisain market conditions, increasing delinquenaies losse
incurred on delinquent loans associated with ttygses of loans. The Bank has cautiously resuimeatigination of non-owner occupied commercial estate.
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We also shifted our focus in multi-family lending farger properties. Our review of delinquent mfdtnily mortgage loans revealed that the majorityool
delinquent multfamily mortgage loans were on smaller propertieth iéwer rental units. We concluded that the manésua property had to rent, the less lil
vacancies would cause a disruption in the propegsh flow.

While we primarily rely on originating our own loginwe purchased $10.2 million of loans in 2013 carag to $3.5 million in 2012 and $19.1 million 61
We purchase loans when the loans complement onrpogfolio strategy. Loans purchased must meeuaderwriting standards when they were originated.

The economic conditions we have experienced simeend of 2007 reduced loan demand from 2008 tiwr@0d.2 in our market. In addition, the tightenirf
our underwriting standards and the shift in oudlag focus also contributed to total loan origipas and purchases remaining below r@eession levels. Howev
during 2013 loan originations returned back to q@eession levels and were a record $836.0 millmn2D13, an increase of $203.5 million, or 32.2%6nf $632.!
million for 2012.

During the three year period ended December 313,20t allocation of our loan portfolio has remairfairly consistent. The majority of our loans
collateralized by real estate, which comprised 88d our portfolio at December 31, 2013 compare@®% at December 31, 2012 and 91.4% at Deceniher03 1
Multi-family residential mortgage loans comprised 50.8%6% and 43.3% of our loan portfolio at Decemker2)13, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Commerced
estate mortgage loans comprised 15.0%, 16.0% ari®4l8f our loan portfolio at December 31, 2013, 2@&hd 2011, respectively. One-to-four family mixesi-
property mortgage loans comprised 17.4%, 19.8% 2in@% of loan portfolio at December 31, 2013, 2@t2 2011, respectively. Onedfour family residentie
mortgage loans comprised 5.7%, 6.2% and 6.9% of poatfolio at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201dpeetively.

Due to depositors increased $217.3 million in 26@Mpared to decreases of $133.8 million and $46l®min 2012 and 2011, respectively. Lowswsting
core deposits increased $349.6 million and $142lliomin 2013 and 2012, respectively, compared tdecrease of $55.4 million in 2011. Higlesting certificates
deposit decreased $132.3 million and $275.9 mildanng 2013 and 2012, respectively, compared tinarease of $8.5 million 2011. Brokered deposisresente
16.0%, 17.3% and 14.1% of total deposits at Dece®be2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Prevailing interest rates affect the extent to Wwhiorrowers repay and refinance loans. In a dexjimterest rate environment, the number of loapayment
and loan refinancing tends to increase, as do prepats of mortgage-backed securities. Call prowisiassociated with our investmenis U.S. government agency ¢
corporate securities may also adversely affectdyiela declining interest rate environment. Sucbppyments and calls may adversely affect the yoéldur loar
portfolio and mortgag®acked and other securities as we reinvest theaprépnds in a lower interest rate environment. ldeer, we typically receive additional Ic
fees when existing loans are refinanced, whichigihrtoffsets the reduced yield on our loan portfalesulting from prepayments. In periods of lowenest rates, o
level of core deposits also may decline if depesiteek higheyielding instruments or other investments not @fteby us, which in turn may increase our cost ofif
and decrease our net interest margin to the egternative funding sources, are utilized. By casitiy an increasing interest rate environment weerd to extend tt
average lives of lower yielding fixed rate mortgaged mortgageacked securities, which could adversely affectimetrest income. In addition, depositors tendper
longer term, higher costing certificate of depasitounts which could adversely affect our net egeiincome if rates were to subsequently declirgditfonally,
adjustable rate residential mortgage loans andgagebacked securities generally contain interim aretilifie caps that limit the amount the interest cafe increase
re-pricing dates.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we extetiteterm of 13 business loans totaling $11.lioniland 105 mortgage loans totaling $223.9 mil
which we did not consider as ngerforming loans nor troubled debt restructuredchEaf these loans was extended in accordance witHemding policies, whic
required the loans to be fully underwritten, anat thach of the borrowers is current as to paymétdse of these borrowers was experiencing finardiféitulties, anc
none received a below market interest rate or dénarable terms at the time the loans were exindderefore, we did not consider these loansetérdubled del
restructured.
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We attempt to pursue the guarantor on all loansviich a loss has been incurred and for which aaguee was obtained, when, after considering thefiie
and costs, we have concluded we will be successf@covering at least a portion of the loss weaiined. The success of this pursuit is based omadkets the guaran
holds when we obtain a judgment.

During 2013, we sought performance under guaramiaekl business loans, seeking judgments in exafe$2.8 million, and six real estate mortgage Ig
seeking judgments in excess of $1.1 million. ADetember 31, 2013, we had realized recoveriesssfttean $0.1 million on one business loan, andnoadeceived ar
recoveries on the mortgage loans. In addition,ndutie year ended December 31, 2013, we realizeeeies of approximately $0.1 million on busingsmns and $0
million on real estate mortgage loans for which seeight judgments prior to 2013. During 2012, wegbbperformance under guarantees on eight business
seeking judgments in excess of $1.9 million, andek® estate mortgage loans, seeking judgmentzdess of $5.0 million. As of December 31, 2012,hae realize
recoveries of less than $0.1 million on mortgags& and had not received any recoveries on thadsssloans. In addition, during the year endedebier 31, 201
we realized recoveries of approximately $0.2 millan business loans and real estate mortgage floandich we sought judgments prior to 2012.

During 2013 our net interest margin declined 28idhawints to 3.37% for the year ended December2813 from 3.65% for the comparable perio
2012. This decrease in the net interest marginltezsin a $4.8 million decrease in net interesbime to $145.7 million for the year ended Decen#igr2013 fror
$150.4 million in 2012. The decrease in the n&trgst margin for 2013 was primarily due to a dexlin the yield of our interestarning assets, partially offset b
reduction in our funding costs. The decline in yield of our interest earning assets was primatilg to rates earned on new loans originated andiges purchase
during 2013 being lower than the yield of the emigtportfolio. During 2013, the average balancéotél loans and total securities increased $71lfomiand $117.
million, respectively, to $3,258.7 million and $137 million, respectively. During 2013, the averdmplance of borrowed funds increased by $185.6omito $953.:
million compared to $767.6 million for 2012, whileducing the cost of borrowed funds 59 basis pan&39% for the year ended December 31, 2013 #@8% in th
comparable period in 2012. The decrease in theafdstrrowed funds was partially offset by a $2.#lion prepayment penalty, resulting from the prement of $69.
million in FHLB-NY advances in 2013. The advances that were prdmaidan average cost of 3.21%. At the same timextierage balance of deposits decreas
$24.4 million to $2,978.8 million for 2013 compared$3,003.2 million for 2012. However, the averdmlance of lower costing core deposits incre&228.8 millior
while the average balance of higher costing cediés of deposit decreased $257.5 million for & ynded December 31, 2013 from the comparabiedpier 2012
Combining this shift to lower costing core deposiith reductions in the rates we paid on all deptgies resulted in a 26 basis point reductionun apst of tote
deposits to 1.08% for the year ended December@il3 #om 1.34% in the comparable period in 2012aAssult of these changes to our funding mix, afavorabl:
interest rate environment, we were able to redugecost of funds 28 basis points to 1.40% for tearyended December 31, 2013 from 1.68% for the gede!
December 31, 2012.

We are unable to predict the direction of futureliast rate changes. Approximately 26% of our fiesites of deposit accounts and borrowings repic@atur
during the next year, which could result in a daseein the cost of our interdstaring liabilities. Also, in a decreasing intereste environment, mortgage loans
mortgage-backed securities with higher rates temgtépay, which could result in a reduction inyiedd on our interest-earning assets.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

A financial institutions exposure to the risks of changing interest natag be analyzed, in part, by examining the exterwhich its assets and liabilities
“interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring thetitagion’s interest rate sensitivity “gapAn asset or liability is said to be interest ragastive within a specific tin
period if it will mature or reprice within that tienperiod. The interest rate sensitivity gap is i as the difference between the amount of intessing asse
maturing or repricing within a specific time periadd the amount of interelsearing liabilities maturing or repricing withinahtime period. A gap is considered posi
when the amount of interest-earning assets matwaringpricing exceeds the amount of intetesaring liabilities maturing or repricing withingtsame period. A gap
considered negative when the amount of interestiripdiabilities maturing or repricing exceeds tmount of interestarning assets maturing or repricing within
same period. Accordingly, a positive gap may enbamet interest income in a rising rate environmand reduce net interest income in a falling rateirenment
Conversely, a negative gap may enhance net inte@sne in a falling rate environment and reducegimerest income in a rising rate environment.
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The table below sets forth the amounts of inteeasting assets and interégaring liabilities outstanding at December 31,2@Mhich are anticipated by 1
Company, based upon certain assumptions, to repriceature in each of the future time periods shoxtept as stated below, the amount of assetdiaitities
shown that reprice or mature during a particulaiogewas determined in accordance with the eadfethe term to repricing or the contractual ternighe asset «
liability. Prepayment assumptions for mortgage and mortgageacked securities are based on our experiencendndtry averages, which generally range fron
to 40%, depending on the contractual rate of istesed the underlying collateral. Money market aots and savings accounts were assumed to havihdravial o
“run-off’ rate of 8% and 16%, respectively, based on ourréqee. While management bases these assumpticesteel prepayments and withdrawals experienci
us, there is no guarantee that these trends witiraee in the future.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap Analysis at Decen®ier2013
More Than More Than More Than More Than

Three Three One Yeal Three Year: Five Years
Months Months To To Three To Five To Ten More Than
And Less One Yeal Years Years Years Ten Years Total

(Dollars in thousands
Interest-Earning Assets

Mortgage loan: $ 29534! $ 62995 $ 1,11128 $ 744,40 $ 226,67 $ 20,79¢ $ 3,028,45:
Other loan: 120,46¢ 91,74¢ 96,11( 40,797 33,86¢ 11,56¢ 394,55¢
Shor-term securitie|(1) 23,74¢ - - - - - 23,74¢
Securities available for sal -
Mortgage-backed securitie 35,23( 67,81¢ 169,07 137,39 336,72¢ 9,91( 756,15¢
Other 98,48¢ 3,85( - 14,75¢ 8,77¢ 135,76: 261,63
Total interes-earning asse! 573,28( 793,36t 1,376,46 937,35! 606,04( 178,03t 4,464,54

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Savings account 10,60( 31,80( 84,80( 84,80( 53,00¢ - 265,00:

NOW account: - - - - - 1,416,77 1,416,77

Money market accoun 3,99¢ 11,99« 31,98¢ 31,98¢ 79,96( 39,987 199,90°

Certificate of deposit accour 124,96( 334,05¢ 476,27. 159,99( 25,67 - 1,120,95!

Mortgagors' escrow depos - - - - - 32,79¢ 32,79¢

Borrowings 59,07( 69,30( 565,79: 317,95¢ - - 1,012,12:
Total interes-bearing liabilities(2) $ 19862 $ 447,15( $ 1,158851 $ 594,73. $ 158,64( $ 148955 $ 4,047,55

Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 37465 $ 34621t $ 21761 $ 342,620 $ 447400 $ (1,311,52) $ 416,98

Cumulative intere-rate sensitivity ga| $ 37465. $ 72086¢ $ 93848 $ 1,281,100 $ 1,728,500 $ 416,98

Cumulative intere-rate sensitivity ga|

as a percentage of total ass 7.94% 15.2°% 19.8¢% 27.1% 36.61% 8.82%

Cumulative net intere-earning asse!
as a percentage of inter-bearing
liabilities 288.6:% 211.6% 152.0(% 153.3% 167.5% 110.3(%

(1) Consists of interest-earning deposits.
(2) Does not include non-interest bearing demanzbaats totaling $197.3 million at December 31, 2013

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methoahalysis presented in the foregoing table. For gkanalthough certain assets and liabilities mayehamila
estimated maturities or periods to repricing, thegy react in differing degrees to changes in marketest rates and may bear rates that diffeanying degrees fro
the rates that would apply upon maturity and restwent or upon repricing. Also, the interest ratesertain types of assets and liabilities maytélate in advance
changes in market interest rates, while inter@ssran other types may lag behind changes in meakes. Additionally, certain assets, such as ARdhS, have featur
that restrict changes in interest rates on a gbant- basis and over the life of the asset. Furtimthe event of a significant change in the legklinterest rate
prepayments on loans and mortgage-backed secudtidsdeposit withdrawal or “run-offévels, would likely deviate materially from thoassumed in calculating t
above table. In the event of an interest rate as®esome borrowers may be unable to meet theaseuepayments on their adjustatdée debt. The interest r.
sensitivity analysis assumes that the nature ofCimapanys assets and liabilities remains static. Interagtsrmay have an effect on customer preferencedefuosit
and loan products. Finally, the maturity and rdpgacharacteristics of many assets and liabiléigset forth in the above table are not governecbbyract but rather |
management’s best judgment based on current meokeitions and anticipated business strategies.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our Consolidated Financial Statements have begrapgd in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of America,ch
requires the measurement of financial position @merating results in terms of historical dollarsheut considering the changes in fair value ofaierinvestments di
to changes in interest rates. Generally, the falwey of financial investments such as loans andrgiss fluctuates inversely with changes in ingémates. As a rest
increases in interest rates could result in deeseasthe fair value of our interesérning assets which could adversely affect ourltesf operations if such assets v
sold, or, in the case of securities classifiedvaslable for sale, decreases in our stockholdegsitg if such securities were retained.

We manage the mix of interest-earning assets aatestbearing liabilities on a continuous basis to maximieturn and adjust our exposure to interestrighe
On a quarterly basis, management prepares theitfggrand Economic Exposure to Changes in Interatt”Report for review by the Board of Directors, as suamizec
below. This report quantifies the potential chanigeset interest income and net portfolio valuedtanterest rates go up or down (shocked) 200shgints, assumit
the yield curves of the rate shocks will be patdtleeach other. Net portfolio value is definedtlas market value of assets net of the market vafd@bilities. The
market value of assets and liabilities is determhinsing a discounted cash flow calculation. Thepwetfolio value ratio is the ratio of the net golib value to th:
market value of assets. All changes in income aldevare measured as percentage changes fromdjeetpd net interest income and net portfolio vadt¢he bas
interest rate scenario. The base interest rateasoeassumes interest rates at December 31, 20®0é estimates regarding prepayment assumptiensade at ea
level of rate shock. Actual results could diffegrgficantly from these estimates. At December 3113 we were within the guidelines established ey Board ¢
Directors for each interest rate level.

Projected Percentage Change Net Portfolio

Change in Interest Ra Net Interest Incom Net Portfolio Value Value Ratio
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

-200 basis point -3.2% -2.1/% 5.82% 12.3%% 13.5¢% 14.81%
-100 basis point 0.2¢ -0.31 6.2° 7.4z 13.7% 14.3¢
Base interest rai — — — — 13.2¢ 13.71
+100 basis point -4.84 -2.9C -12.2¢ -11.52 12.0¢ 12.5¢
+200 basis point -9.7¢ -6.1¢ -24.3¢ -22.4¢ 10.7¢ 11.3¢

Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference batvwecome on interest-earning assets and expensgenastbearing liabilities. Net interest income depe
upon the relative amount of interest-earning asaedsinterest-bearing liabilities and the interast earned or paid on them.

The following table sets forth certain informatimiating to our Consolidated Statements of Findr@andition and Consolidated Statements of IncoaneHe
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 eé#edts the average yield on assets and averagefcikebilities for the periods indicated. Suclelgs and costs ¢
derived by dividing income or expense by the avetsgance of assets or liabilities, respectivaly tfie periods shown. Average balances are defieedaverage dai
balances. The yields include amortization of féxas &re considered adjustments to yields.
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Interest-earning assets
Mortgage loans, n(1)(2)
Other loans, net (1)(2)

Total loans, ne
Mortgag«-backecsecurities
Other securitie

Total securities

Interes-earning depositand

federal funds sold
Total interes-earningasset:
Other assets

Total assets

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits
Savings accoun
NOW account
Money market accoun
Certificate of depos
accounts
Total due to deposito
Mortgagors' escro'
account
Total intere-bearing
deposit
Borrowings
Total intere-bearing
liabilities
Non interes-bearing
demand deposi
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Total liabilities ant
equity

Net interest income

net interest rate spread (3)

Net interes-earning assets
net interest margin (4)

Ratio of interes-earning
assets to intere-bearing
liabilities

For the year ended December

2013 2012 2011
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interesi Cost Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
(Dollars in thousands
$2,928,69. $ 158,42( 5.41% $2,893,27. $ 167,92 5.8(% $2,929,64 $ 176,77 6.05%
329,96¢ 12,88¢ 3.91 293,73: 13,56¢ 4.62 290,97( 14,677 5.04
3,258,66. 171,30¢ 5.2€ 3,187,00. 181,48t 5.6¢ 3,220,61 191,45: 5.94
764,29( 22,84« 2.9¢ 700,94! 26,76¢ 3.8z 749,34° 30,99¢ 4.14
251,38( 6,294 2.5 197,77! 5,39 2.7% 58,43 1,93: 3.31
1,015,67! 29,13¢ 2.87 898,72( 32,16. 3.5¢ 807,77t 32,93 4.0¢
42,45 79 0.1¢ 41,32 67 0.1¢€ 62,04: 112 0.1¢
4,316,78! 200,52¢ 4.65 4,127,041 213,71 5.1¢ 4,090,43 224,49¢ 5.4¢
259,33¢ 243,73! 220,93:
$4,576,12. $4,370,78. $4,311,36
$ 274,79: 51t 0.1¢ $ 317,09 68¢ 0.2z $ 369,20t 2,091 0.57
1,291,86. 6,771 0.52 1,025,111 6,27¢ 0.61 838,64t 6,61( 0.7¢
180,21 294 0.1¢ 175,81 39¢ 0.2: 278,69:. 1,30¢ 0.47
1,185,69! 24,41« 2.0€ 1,443,19! 32,98:¢ 2.2¢ 1,552,02 38,37: 2.47
2,932,55! 32,00( 1.0¢ 2,961,22. 40,34¢ 1.3€ 3,038,56! 48,38: 1.5¢
46,21° 37 0.0¢ 41,97 3€ 0.0¢ 39,43( 49 0.12
2,978,771 32,037 1.0¢ 3,003,191 40,38: 1.34 3,077,99 48,43: 1.57
953,18¢ 22,82¢ 2.3¢ 767,63t 22,89 2.9¢ 693,40t 28,29: 4.0¢
3,931,96. 54,861 1.4C 3,770,83. 63,27¢ 1.6¢ 3,771,40. 76,72% 2.0:
169,19( 134,16t 107,27¢
42 ,56( 36,30¢ 29,35¢
4,143,71. 3,941,30! 3,908,03:
432,41( 429,47. 403,33(
$4,576,12. $4,370,78. $4,311,36
$ 145,66: 3.25% $ 150,43¢ 3.5(% $ 147,77! 3.4¢%
$ 384,82 331% $ 356,21 3.65% $ 319,03 3.61%
1.1(X 1.0¢X 1.0eX

(1) Average balances include r-accrual loans
(2) Loan interest income includes loan fee income (wiricludes net amortization of deferred fees argtx;date charges, and prepayment penalties) ofcqmately
$3.6 million, $3.2 million and $1.3 million for tlyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201lectsgely.

(3) Interest rate spread represents the difference éetvthe average rate on inter-earning assets and the average cost of int-bearing liabilities.
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest incoefere the provision for loan losses divided byrage interes-earning assets
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the impact of charigasterest rates and in the volume of interestiegy assets and interest-bearing liabilities onGoenpanys
interest income and interest expense during thiegeeindicated. Information is provided in eachegatry with respect to (1) changes attributablehtanges in volurr
(changes in volume multiplied by the prior rat®), ¢hanges attributable to changes in rate (chaingege multiplied by the prior volume) and (3kthet change. Tl
changes attributable to the combined impact ofmeland rate have been allocated proportionatelyet@hanges due to volume and the changes duteto ra

Increase (Decrease) in Net Interest Incc

Year Ended December 31, 2( Year Ended December 31, 2(
Compared t¢ Compared tc
Year Ended December 31, 2( Year Ended December 31, 2(
Due to Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollars in thousands
Interest-Earning Assets:

Mortgage loans, ne $ 2,012 $ (11,51) $ (9,500 $ 2,179 $ (6,68 $ (8,857)
Other loans, ne 1,55¢ (2,237) (677) 13€ (1,247 (1,113
Mortgage-backed securitie 2,26¢€ (6,18¢) (3,929 (1,927 (2,30€6) (4,237)
Other securitie 1,38( (481) 89¢ 3,851 (39%) 3,46:
Interes-earning deposits ar
federal funds sold 2 1C 12 (34) (11 (45
Total interes-earning asse! 7,217 (20,409 (13,189 (1439) (10,647 (10,789
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings accoun (86) (898) 1749 (262) (1,140 (1,4072)
NOW account: 1,49¢ (99¢) 502 1,32¢ (1,667) (33%)
Money market accoun 11 (11€) (10%) (382 (52¢) (910
Certificate of deposit accour (5,487 (3,08¢) (8,569 (2,642 (2,747 (5,389
Mortgagors' escrow accour 5 4) 1 2 (15) (23)
Borrowings 4,942 (5,009 (67) 2,801 (8,200 (5,399
Total interes-bearing liabilities 887 (9,299 (8,412 84: (14,297 (13,449
Net change in net interest incol $ 6,33C $ (11,100 $ (4,779 $ (9860 $ 3,65( $ 2,66¢

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Endedecember 31, 2013 and 2012

General. Net income for the twelve months ended DecerBtte2013 was $37.8 million, an increase of $3.4iomi) or 10.0%, compared to $34.3 million
the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. Dilatgdings per common share were $1.26 for the twalweths ended December 31, 2013, an increase b8 .$0
11.5%, from $1.13 for the twelve months ended Déwmar31, 2012.

Return on average equity was 8.73% for the tweleaiths ended December 31, 2013 compared to 7.99%héotwelve months ended December 31, 2z
Return on average assets was 0.79% for both divitlee months ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Interest Income Interest income decreased $13.2 million, or &,1# $200.5 million for the year ended December2®il3 from $213.7 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in interemine was primarily due to a 53 basis point reduacin the yield of interestarning assets to 4.65% for the \
ended December 31, 2013 from 5.18% for the yeae@icember 31, 2012, partially offset by a $188illion increase in the average balance of intee@shing asse
to $4,316.8 million for the year ended December2®13 from $4,127.0 million for the year ended Deber 31, 2012. The 53 basis point decline in tieddyof interest-
earning assets was primarily due to a 43 basig peituction in the yield on the loan portfolio t?6% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2@i8 5.69% fo
the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, combifthda 71 basis point decline in the yield on kskcurities to 2.87% for the twelve months endeddnber 3:
2013 from 3.58% for the comparable prior year mkrla addition, the yield of interesfarning assets was negatively impacted by a $1iflién increase in the avera
balance of the lower yielding securities portfdias the twelve months ended December 31, 2013.4héasis point decrease in the yield on the loatf@io was
primarily due to a decline in the rates earned @n loan originations and existing loans modifiedower rates. The 71 basis point decrease in thie win the securitit
portfolio was primarily due to the purchase of neeurities at lower yields than the existing pdidfolhe yield on the mortgage loan portfolio dexed 39 basis poit
to 5.41% for the twelve months ended December 813Z%rom 5.80% for the twelve months ended Decen®ier2012. The yield on the mortgage loan pouf
excluding prepayment penalty income on loans, dseae 42 basis points to 5.24% for the twelve moetited December 31, 2013 from 5.66% for the tweleath:
ended December 31, 2012.
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Interest Expense.Interest expense decreased $8.4 million, or 13.209%54.9 million for the year ended December 312from $63.3 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in the tastecest-bearing liabilities is primarily attritable to a 28 basis point reduction in the cosintérestbearing
liabilities to 1.40% for the year ended DecemberZl3 from 1.68% for the year ended December 312 2partially offset by a $161.1 million increanehe averac
balance of interediearing liabilities to $3,932.0 million for the yeended December 31, 2013 from $3,770.8 milliortiieryear ended December 31, 2012. The 28
point decrease in the cost of interbetring liabilities was primarily attributable toet Bank reducing the rates it pays on its deposiyrts. The cost of certificates
deposit, money market accounts, savings accoudt®dN&W accounts decreased 23 basis points, sevengmsts, three basis points and nine basis paiespectively
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 fiecomparable prior year period. This resulted thecrease in the cost of due to depositors dfa®% points 1
1.09% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2@18 1.36% for the twelve months ended DecembeR812. The decrease in the cost of due to depesita:
partially offset by a $2.6 million prepayment papakcorded on borrowings as a result of the Bangjpgying in 2013 $69.9 million of FHLBY advances scheduled
mature in 2014. Including the prepayment pendityrrowed funds decreased 59 basis points to 2.38%he year ended December 31, 2013 from 2.98%d
comparable prior year period. The 59 basis patrehse in the cost of borrowed funds was primdrily to maturing and new borrowings being replaoeti obtaine
at lower rates.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income for the year ended Decembei2813 totaled $145.7 million, a decrease of $4.Bianj or 3.17%, from $150
million for 2012. The decrease in net interesbime is attributed to a decrease in the net inteyetad of 25 basis points to 3.25% for the twehanths ende
December 31, 2013 from 3.50% for the comparabler ear period, partially offset by an increas¢hi@ average balance of interestning assets of $189.7 million
$4,316.8 million for the year ended December 31,320The yield on interegarning assets decreased 53 basis points to 4 @5#tef year ended December 31, Z
from 5.18% for the year ended December 31, 2012evthé cost of funds of decreased 28 basis painis40% for the year ended December 31, 2013 fr@&% fo
the prior year period. The net interest margin éased 28 basis points to 3.37% for the year enagmegiber 31, 2013 from 3.65% for the year ended mbee 31
2012. Excluding prepayment penalty income, thantetest margin would have been 3.26% and 3.53%hfoyears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, teshpc

Provision for Loan Losses A provision for loan losses of $13.9 million waorded for the twelve months ended Decembe2@®13, which was a decreast
$7.1 million from $21.0 million recorded in the twe months ended December 31, 2012. During theveveionths ended December 31, 2013, perferming loan
decreased $40.9 million to $49.0 million from $8tBlion at December 31, 2012. Net chamfés for the twelve months ended December 31, 206t8ed $13.3 millior
or 41 basis points of average loans. The curreart-to-value ratio for our noperforming loans collateralized by real estate #&2% at December 31, 2013. Wher
have obtained properties through foreclosure, we lheen able to quickly sell the properties at amthat approximate book value. We anticipate weawill continue
to see low loss content in our loan portfolio. Benk continues to maintain conservative undervgistandards. As a result of the analysis of thenalhce for loar
losses, management deemed it necessary to re@d@i@million provision for loan losses for the tweemonths ended December 31, 2013.

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the twelve months ended DecerBbe2013 was $9.6 million, an increase of $0.8ioni, or 5.4%, from $9.
million for the twelve months ended December 31,20The increase in non-interest income was piiyndue to the $2.9 million gain from the sale obrigagebacker
securities during the twelve months ended Decer@beP013. Norinterest income also improved due to a $0.6 milllmrease in BOLI income. These increases
partially offset by a $2.6 million increase in nesses from fair value adjustments and a $0.6 onilincrease in OTTI charges recorded on four peivsséue CMC
during the twelve months ended December 31, 20teaoed to the twelve months ended December 31,. Zddltionally, during the twelve months ended Dabe!
31, 2013, we sold five OTTI CMOs for total proce@d$18.3 million realizing a loss on sale of $miflion. In conjunction with this sale, we alsdd&22.8 million ir
corporate securities realizing a gain on sale of #iillion and sold a mortgage-backed security®:7 million realizing a gain on sale of $0.1 noiti
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Non-Interest ExpenseNon-interest expense was $80.6 million for the twehanths ended December 31, 2013, a decrease of $lidhnor 2.1%, from $82.
million for the twelve months ended December 31120The decrease was primarily due to decreas&4.6f million in FDIC insurance expense primarilyedio ¢
reduction in the assessment rate and base aslaafethe Merger, $0.7 million in OREO/forecloswegpense primarily due to a reduction in rperforming assets, $(
million in net losses on sales of OREO and $0.9ionilin professional services primarily due to deed legal expense. These decreases were patiady by a $1.
million increase in salaries and benefits expermfmarily due to annual salary increases and ine@asnual incentives for exceeding corporate pesdoce goal
partially offset by decrease in BOLI life insurari@ility primarily due to an increase in the disait rate used to calculate the liability. The@écy ratio was 50.6
and 50.7% for the twelve months ended Decembe2@13 and 2012, respectively.

Income Tax Provisions.Income tax expense for the year ended Decemhe2(®B increased $1.1 million to $23.0 million, quared to $21.8 million for tt
year ended December 31, 2012. The increase wasusimattributed to the increase of $4.5 millionintome before income taxes, partially offset byegline in th
effective tax rate.

The effective tax rate was 37.8% and 38.9% forydexrs ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgctiVee decline in the effective tax rate was priiy
due to an increase in tax preference items in 20h%ared to 2012.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Endedecember 31, 2012 and 2011

General. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2042 $34.3 million, a decrease of $1.0 million, @9, compared to $35.3 million for the y
ended December 31, 2011. Diluted earnings per canshare were $1.13 for the year ended Decembe2@P, a decrease of $0.02, or 1.7%, from $1.15heryea
ended December 31, 2011.

Return on average equity was 7.99% for the yeaeemkcember 31, 2012 compared to 8.76% for thegmaded December 31, 2011. Return on average
was 0.79% for the year ended December 31, 2012 a@dpo 0.82% for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Interest Income Interest income decreased $10.8 million, or %8t $213.7 million for the year ended December2®il2 from $224.5 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in interasine was primarily due to a 31 basis point reduactn the yield of interestarning assets to 5.18% for the \
ended December 31, 2012 from 5.49% for the yeaecimcember 31, 2011, partially offset by a $30il6an increase in the average balance of inteegsting asse
to $4,127.0 million for the year ended December28i,2 from $4,090.4 million for the year ended Deber 31, 2011. The 31 basis point decline in tleédydf interest-
earning assets was primarily due to a 25 basig pedtuction in the yield on the loan portfolio t®%9% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2@i2 5.94% fo
the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, combiitbda 50 basis point decline in the yield on katecurities to 3.58% for the twelve months endeddmber 3:
2012 from 4.08% for the comparable prior year gerla addition, the yield of interesarning assets was negatively impacted by a $3Bi6mtdecrease in the avere
balance of the higher yielding loan portfolio ftiettwelve months ended December 31, 2012 and & $3i0ion increase in the average balance of theetoyielding
securities portfolio for the twelve months endedc@maber 31, 2012. These factors that reduced tle wiere partially offset by a $20.7 million decreas the averag
balance of lower yielding interestrning deposits to $41.3 million for the twelventis ended December 31, 2012 from $62.0 milliontfier comparable prior ye
period. The 25 basis point decrease in the yieldhenloan portfolio was primarily due to the cutrémerest rate environment, as new loans were cddleates we
below the portfolio average yield, and higher vietdloans are prepaid. In addition, we experienaesignificantly higher than average activity imms refinancin
during 2012. The 50 basis point decrease in thiel yie the securities portfolio was primarily duettee purchase of new securities at lower yields e existin
portfolio. The yield on the mortgage loan portfaliecreased 23 basis points to 5.80% for the twalyeths ended December 31, 2012 from 6.03% fonileése month
ended December 31, 2011. The yield on the morttmage portfolio, excluding prepayment penalty in@on loans, decreased 29 basis points to 5.66%héatwelve
months ended December 31, 2012 from 5.95% fonileé/eé months ended December 31, 2011.

Interest Expense.Interest expense decreased $13.4 million, or 17,58%63.3 million for the year ended DecemberZ11,2 from $76.7 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in the tastecest-bearing liabilities is primarily attritable to a 35 basis point reduction in the cosintérestbearing
liabilities to 1.68% for the year ended December Z112 from 2.03% for the year ended December 8112combined with a $0.6 million decrease in theragt
balance of interediearing liabilities to $3,770.8 million for the yeended December 31, 2012 from $3,771.4 millionttieryear ended December 31, 2011. The 35
point decrease in the cost of interbetring liabilities was primarily attributable toet Bank reducing the rates it pays on its deposiyxts. The cost of certificates
deposit, money market accounts, savings accoudthN&Ww accounts decreased 18 basis points, 24 pasits, 35 basis points and 18 basis points, réispdg for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2012 from the ecalye prior year period. This resulted in a daseein the cost of due to depositors of 23 basistpto 1.369
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 ftd#8% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2044 cost of borrowed funds decreased 110 basisspm
2.98% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2@12 4.08% for the twelve months ended DecembefB11 with the average balance increasing $74llbmto
$767.6 million for the twelve months ended Decen8ier2012 from $693.4 million for the twelve mon#reded December 31, 20Mhe 110 basis point decrease in
cost of borrowed funds was primarily due to matgiramd new borrowings being replaced and obtainddwagr rates than the existing portfolio, and tesser extel
adjustable rate borrowings resetting to a lowes datring 2012.
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Net Interest Income. Net interest income for the year ended Decembe2812 totaled $150.4 million, an increase of $2illian, or 1.80%, from $147.
million for 2011. The increase in net interestome is attributed to an increase in the averaganbal of intereseéarning assets of $36.6 million, to $4,127.1 millfor
the year ended December 31, 2012, combined withaease in the net interest spread of four basistpto 3.50% for the year ended December 31, 2012 yield o
interestearning assets decreased 31 basis points to 5d8fhef year ended December 31, 2012 from 5.49%hfoyear ended December 31, 2011. However, thi
more than offset by a decline in the cost of fuofi85 basis points to 1.68% for the year ended Bxes 31, 2012 from 2.03% for the prior year. Theingrest margi
improved four basis points to 3.65% for the yeateghDecember 31, 2012 from 3.61% for the year ebds@mber 31, 2011. Excluding prepayment penattgrire, th
net interest margin would have been 3.53% and 3f%%e years ended December 31, 2012 and 204fecéavely.

Provision for Loan Losses A provision for loan losses of $21.0 million waecorded for the year ended December 31, 201Z%hnhias a decrease of $
million from $21.5 million recorded in the year emilDecember 31, 2011. During the twelve months @fEcember 31, 2012, ngerforming loans decreased $:
million to $84.1 million from $117.4 million at Dember 31, 2011. Net chargéfs for the twelve months ended December 31, 20ided $20.2 million, or 64 ba:
points of average loans. The current loan to vahi® for our norperforming loans collateralized by real estate ®#8%% at December 31, 2012. When we |
obtained properties through foreclosure, we haenlable to quickly sell the properties at amounéd approximate book value. We anticipate that weoantinue tc
see low loss content in our loan portfolio. The Baontinues to maintain conservative underwrititgndards. However, given the level of neerforming loans, tt
current economic uncertainties, and the chaf@erecorded in 2012, management, as a resutiefhalysis of the allowance for loans losses, @deinnecessary
record a $21.0 million provision for loan lossestfte twelve months ended December 31, 2012.

Non-Interest Income.Non-interest income for the twelve months ended DecerBbe2012 was $9.1 million, a decrease of $1.%anil or 11.8%, from $10
million for the twelve months ended December 31,120The decrease in namterest income was primarily due to a $1.9 millaecrease in net gains recorded from
value adjustments, partially offset by a decreas&8 million in other-than-temporary impairmerfOTTI") charges recorded during the twelve months e
December 31, 2012 compared to the twelve monthecebeécember 31, 2011.

Non-Interest ExpenseNondinterest expense was $82.3 million for the twehanths ended December 31, 2012, an increase oindilién, or 5.9%, from $77.
million for the twelve months ended December 311,120rhe increase was primarily due to the growtthefBank over the past year, which included thenom of
new branch in January 2012, an increase in stoskdaompensation expense, and an increase in rethleestate owned/foreclosure expense. Salariebamefit:
increased $4.2 million for the twelve months enBettember 31, 2012 compared to the twelve montheeBacember 31, 2011 due to a new branch, empksalag
increases as of January 1, 2012, and increasésci lsased compensation, payroll taxes, and emeloedical and retirement costs, while professisealices and de
processing decreased $0.6 million and $0.4 milli@spectively. In addition, other real estate ovifuedclosure expense and other operating expensthdotwelve
months ended December 31, 2012 increased $0.Dmadind $1.0 million, respectively, compared to tihelve months ended December 31, 2011. The effigieatic
was 50.7% for the twelve months ended Decembe2@®I2 compared to 49.2% for the twelve months efxzbmber 31, 2011.

Income Tax Provisions.Income tax expense for the year ended Decemhe203P decreased $1.6 million to $21.8 million, pamed to $23.5 million for tt
year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease waarjyiattributed to the decrease of $2.6 millioriinome before income taxes.

The effective tax rate was 38.9% and 39.9% foryészrs ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgctiVee decline in the effective tax rate was prity
due to an increase in tax preference items in 20bh%pared to 2011.
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Liquidity, Regulatory Capital and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, borrgsjiprincipal and interest payments on loans, ragegacked and other securities, and proceeds frors
of securities and loans. Deposit flows and mortgaggayments, however, are greatly influenced byeg® interest rates, economic conditions and cditigre At
December 31, 2013, the Bank had an approved ovwrhiige of credit of $100.0 million with the FHLRY. In total, as of December 31, 2013, the Bank wahle tc
borrow up to $1,895.0 million from the FHLBY in Federal Home Loan advances, letters of cradlit overnight lines of credit. As of December 2113, the Bank h:
$1,345.1 million outstanding in combined balancé$ldLB-NY advances and letters of credit. In addition,shing Financial Corporation has junior subordin
debentures with a face amount of $61.9 million anchrrying amount of $29.6 million (which are inddal in Borrowed Funds) and the Bank had $155.3amilin
repurchase agreements to fund lending and investopgportunities. (See Note 9 of Notes to the Cddat#d Financial Statements in Item 8 of this AririReport.
Management believes its available sources of fanesufficient to fund current operations.

Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equigalhich include cash and due from banks, overnigktestearning deposits and federal funds sold
original maturities of 90 days or less. The levethese assets is dependent on our operating,dimgnlending and investing activities during ariyep period. A
December 31, 2013, cash and cash equivalentsddtd®5 million, a decrease of $6.9 million fromd@mber 31, 2012We also held marketable securities availabl
sale with a market value of $1,017.8 million at Bber 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2013, we had commitments to extzadit (principally real estate mortgage loans$86.9 million and open lines of credit for borrog
(principally home equity loan lines of credit andgsimess lines of credit) of $153.9 million. Sin@ngrally all of the loan commitments are expectete drawn upo
the total loan commitments approximate future gasjuirements, whereas the amounts of lines of tredy not be indicative of our future cash requieais. The loz
commitments generally expire in 90 days, while ttsion loan lines of credit mature within 18 miasiand home equity loan lines of credit mature iwiftd years. W
use the same credit policies in making commitmantsconditional obligations as we do for on-balasiveet instruments.

Our total interest expense and operating expeng@ls were $54.9 million and $80.6 million, respesdy.

We maintain three postretirement defined beneéihplfor our employees: a noncontributory defineteliepension plan which was frozen as of Septer8b«
2006, a contributory medical plan, and a noncoataty life insurance plan. The life insurance plaas amended to discontinue providing life insurabeeefits t
future retirees after January 1, 2010 and the raégdian was frozen as of January 1, 2011. We alsotain a noncontributory defined benefit plandertain of our non-
employee directors, which was frozen as of JaniaB004. The employee pension plan is the only flabhwe have funded. During 201&e made contributions to 1
employee pension plan totaling $0.8 million, anclimed cash expenditures of $0.1 million for thedical and life insurance plans and $0.1 milliontfee nonemploye:
director plan. We expect to pay similar amountstifi@se plans in 2013, except for the employee perdan to which we do not expect to make a coatidn in 2013
(See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financigk8tants in Item 8 of this Annual Report.)

The amounts reported in our financial statemergsoltained from reports prepared by independeniages, and are based on significant assumptidme
most significant assumption is the discount raedus determine the accumulated postretirementfiveridigation (“APBQO”) for these plans. The APBO is the pre
value of projected benefits that employees andeetihave earned to date. The discount rate rggkesiate at which the liabilities of the plans digcounted into today’
dollars and could be effectively settled or elim@th The discount rate used is based on the QiigRension Liability Index, and reflects a ratet ttauld be earned
bonds over a similar period that we anticipateptla@s’ liabilities will be paid. An increase in the discduate would reduce the APBO, while a reductiothia discour
rate would increase the APBO. During the past s¢yerars, when interest rates have been at hiatlyriow levels, the discount rate used for oumglaas declined fro
7.25% for 2001 to 3.75% for 2012This decline in the discount rate has resultednrincrease in our APBO. However, in 2013 thealist rate increased to 4.6
which resulted in a decrease in the APBO from 2012.

The Companys actuaries use several other assumptions thatl d@mue a significant impact on our APBO and pedoekpense for these plans. Tt
assumptions include, but are not limited to, expeéctte of return on plan assets, future incremse®edical and life insurance premiums, turnoveéesaf employee
and life expectancy. The accounting standardsdetrptirement plans involve mechanisms that serVienit the volatility of earnings by allowing chges in the value
plan assets and benefit obligations to be amortized time when actual results differ from the asgtions used, there are changes in the assumptimts or there a
plan amendments. At December 31, 2013, our emplpgesion plan and medical and life insurance pkEvehunrecognized losses of $5.9 million and $0.Hanj
respectively. The noamployee director plan has a $0.5 million unrecpegghigain, due to experience different from what been estimated and changes in actt
assumptions. The employee pension gamirecognized loss is primarily attributed to tlduction in the discount rate over the past séye@s and the net decline
the market value of the pension plan’s investmérttie. medical and life insurance plansirecognized loss is attributed to the reductiothédiscount rate over the
several years. In addition, the nemployee director pension plan has an unrecogmpastiservice liability of $0.2 million due to plamendments in prior years ¢
the medical and life insurance plan have a $0.Wamipast service credit due to plan amendments.rit after tax effect of the unrecognized gairtslasses associal
with these plans has been recorded in accumulated comprehensive income in stockholders’ equégulting in a reduction of stockholdeesjuity of $2.9 million &
of December 31, 2013.
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The change in the discount rate and the reductionddical premiums are the only significant changeasle to the assumptions used for these plansfir @
three years ended December 31, 2013. During thegreded December 31, 2011 the actual return omiiy@oyee pension plan assets was approximatelyohalfe
assumed return used to determine the periodic @eresipense for that year. During the year endedciber 31, 2012 the actual return on the employesipe plai
assets approximated the assumed return used toniletethe periodic pension expense for that yearirg the year ended December 31, 2013, the acttain on th
employee pension plan assets was approximatelyn2es the assumed return used to determine theddepension expense for that year.

The market value of the assets of our employeeigensdan is $20.5 million at December 31, 2013, ehhis $0.8 million more than the projected bel
obligation. We do not anticipate a change in theketavalue of these assets which would have afsigni effect on liquidity, capital resources, esults of operations.

During 2013, funds provided by the Company's ofregedctivities amounted to $74.4 million. Thesedsntogether with $244.6 million provided by finarg
activities and $40.4 million available at the bemiy of 2013, were utilized to fund net investirgiaties of $326.0 million. The Company's primawysiness objecti
is the origination and purchase of multi-familyidestial properties, one-to-four family (includimgixed-use properties) and commercial real estate mortigeges, an
commercial, business and SBA loans. During the gealed December 31, 2013, the net total of loagir@iions and purchases less loan repayments desl \wa:
$211.1 million. During the year ended December2i1,3, the Company also funded $458.6 million inchases of securities available for sale. Fund® \wemarily
provided by increases of $216.3 million in custordeposits and $343.4 million in proceeds from maés; sales, calls and prepayments of securitiedlable fo
sale. The Company also used funds of $15.6 mificwrdividend payments and $13.2 million for refhases of the Comparsycommon stock during the year en
December 31, 2013.

At the time of the Savings Barktconversion from a federally chartered mutualregvibank to a federally chartered stock saving&,itae Savings Bank w
required by its primary regulator to establishquidation account which is reduced as and to thenéxhat eligible account holders reduce theirlifgiag deposits
Upon completion of the Merger, the liquidation azcbwas assumed by the Bank. The balance of thalltjon account at December 31, 2013 was $1.2amilln the
unlikely event of a complete liquidation of the Barach eligible account holder will be entitledrézeive a distribution from the liquidation acctubhe Bank is nc
permitted to declare or pay a dividend or to repase any of its capital stock if the effect wouddtb cause the Barkregulatory capital to be reduced below the an
required for the liquidation account but approvattee NYDFS Superintendent is required if the taifkll dividends declared by the Bank in a calengdzar woul
exceed the total of its net profits for that yeambined with its retained net profits for the pidiog two years less prior dividends paid. On Rily2011, as a result
the Dodd-Frank Act, the Bank’s primary regulatocdme the OCC and Flushing Financial Corporasigorimary regulator became the Federal ReservedBot
Governors (“Federal Reserve'fprior to July 21, 2011, unlike the Savings Bankysking Financial Corporation was not subject toul&mry restrictions on ti
declaration or payment of dividends to its stockee$, although the source of such dividends coefgtbdd upon dividend payments from the Savings Bebplvever
Flushing Financial Corporation was subject, to rémguirements of Delaware law, which generally lidiitidends to an amount equal to the excess ofetsassets (il
amount by which total assets exceed total liabgijtiover its stated capital or, if there is no sebess, to its net profits for the current andifomediately precedir
fiscal year. With the Federal Reserve becomingHthgsFinancial Corporatios’primary regulator, Flushing Financial Corporatistame subject to the same regule
restrictions on the declaration of dividends asSheings Bank.

Regulatory Capital Position. Under applicable regulatory capital regulatiotiee Bank is required to comply with each of threpasate capital adequs
standards: leverage capital, Tier | risk-basedtahpnd total riskeased capital. Such classifications are used bFEH€ and other bank regulatory agencies to detes
matters ranging from each institutisnquarterly FDIC deposit insurance premium assessm® approvals of applications authorizing igibns to grow their ass
size or otherwise expand business activities. Atebeber 31, 2013 and 2012he Bank exceeded its three regulatory capitgiirements. (See Note 14 of Note:
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8eof this Annual Report.)

76




Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys accounting policies are integral to understanttiegresults of operations and statement of firdrezindition. These policies are described it
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Seweéttilese policies require managen’s judgment to determine the value of the Compamgsets and liabilities. T
Company has established detailed written policies @ntrol procedures to ensure consistent apjaicatf these policies. The Company has identifigar faccountin
policies that require significant management vadumsjudgment: the allowance for loan losses, falue of financial instruments, goodwill impairmemtd income taxes.

Allowance for Loan Losse8n allowance for loan losses is provided to abgodbable estimated losses inherent in the loarigliort Management reviews t
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses by remigwll impaired loans on an individual basis. Tamaining portfolio is evaluated based on the Camijsahistorice
loss experience, recent trends in losses, collegimicies and collection experience, trends in tbkime of norperforming loans, changes in the composition
volume of the gross loan portfolio, and local amtional economic conditions. Judgment is requicedetermine how many years of historical loss erpee are to k
included when reviewing historical loss experien&dull credit cycle must be used, or loss estirmatey be inaccurate. This evaluation is inheresillyjective, as
requires estimates that are susceptible to sigmificevisions as more information becomes available

Notwithstanding the judgment required in assesgiegcomponents of the allowance for loan lossesCibmpany believes that the allowance for loanelos
adequate to cover losses inherent in the loangiartfThe policy has been applied on a consistastshfor all periods presented in the Consolid&iedncial Statement

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsThe Company carries certain financial assets aman€ial liabilities at fair value in accordance twihe Financiz
Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB") Accounting@dards Codification (“ASC") Topic 82%inancial Instruments”and values those financial assets and fina
liabilities in accordance with ASC Topic 82Bair Value Measurements and DisclosuresASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatild be received to s
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ogdgansaction between market participants atntieasurement date, establishes a framework for megdair value, an
expands disclosures about fair value measurem&8€: Topic 825 permits entities to choose to measuany financial instruments and certain other stetfair value
Management selected the fair value option for aeiitavestment securities, primarily mortgalgaeked securities, and certain borrowings. Chaingése fair value ¢
financial instruments for which the fair value ¢len is made are recorded in the Consolidated ®tés of Income. At December 31, 2013, financiakets an
financial liabilities with fair values of $37.3 rfidn and $29.6 million, respectively, are carri¢dadr value under the fair value option.

The securities portfolio also consists of mortghgeked and other securities for which the fair @alection was not selected. These securitieslassified a
available for sale and are carried at fair valughie Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditisith changes in fair value recorded in Accumudatethe
Comprehensive Income. If any decline in fair véfloiethese securities is deemed other-ttemporary, the security is written down to a newtdsasis with the resultil
loss recorded in the Consolidated Statements afiniec During 2013 and 2012, we recorded other-tearporary impairment charges of $1.4 million ancB$@illion,
respectively, for certain private issue collatedi mortgage obligations.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reporégdair value are required to be measured basebeofollowing alternatives: (1) quoted prices @tive market
for identical financial instruments (Level 1), (@pnificant other observable inputs (Level 2), 8y gignificant unobservable inputs (Level 3). Judgimis required i
selecting the appropriate level to be used to deter fair value. The majority of financial assetsldinancial liabilities for which the fair valudegetion was made, a
the majority of investments classified as Availafde Sale, were measured using Level 2 inputs, whéguire judgment to determine the fair value. Trhst preferre
securities held in the investment portfolio, and @ompanys junior subordinated debentures, were measured Lsivel 3 inputs due to the inactive market farsk
securities. The private label collateralized mogegabligations for which other-than-temporary inmpent charges were recorded in 2@t@l 2012 were valued usin
Level 3 input.

Goodwill ImpairmentGoodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life dadested for impairment, rather than amortizedab least an annual basis. For
purpose of goodwill impairment testing, managenters concluded that the Company has one reportiiigluithe estimated fair value of the reportingtuexceeds it
carrying amount, there is no impairment of goodwilbwever, if the fair value of the reporting urstless than its carrying amount, further evaluai® required t
determine if a write down of goodwill is required.
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Quoted market prices in active markets are the é@dence of fair value and are to be used as #ises for measurement, when available. Other adoke
valuation methods include an asset approach, wietérmines a fair value based upon the value @tsaset of liabilities, an income approach, whietledmines fa
value using one or more methods that convert gatied economic benefits into a present single atmama a market approach, which determines a &irevbased ¢
the similar businesses that have been sold.

The Company conducts its annual impairment tesifrgpodwill as of December 31. The impairment tesths of December 31, 2013 and 2@i®not show a
impairment of goodwill based on the fair value leé Company.

Income TaxesThe Company estimates its income taxes payablell@séhe amounts it expects to owe to the variaMgg) authorizes (i.e. federal, state
local). In estimating income taxes, managementsassethe relative merits and risks of the tax meat of transactions, taking into account statutgugicial anc
regulatory guidance in the context of the Compatgssposition. Management also relies on tax opisigecent audits, and historical experience.

The Company also recognizes deferred tax assetBadniliies for the future tax consequences ofatinces between the financial statement carryinguat:
of existing assets and liabilities and their reipedax bases. A valuation allowance is requireddeferred tax assets that the Company estimatemare likely tha
not to be unrealizable, based on evidence avaikttilee time the estimate is made. These estincatebe affected by changes to tax laws, statugryates, and futu
income levels.

Contractual Obligations

Payments Due By Peric

More
Less Thar 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands
Borrowings $ 98262: $ 255300 $ 537,79« $ 159,95¢ $ 29,57(
Deposits 3,232,78! 2,570,84. 476,26! 159,99! 25,67¢
Loan commitment 191,11: 191,11: - - -
Capital lease obligatior - - - - -
Operating lease obligatiol 29,88¢ 3,717 6,461 6,09( 13,61¢
Purchase obligatior 11,12 5,112 5,80¢ 202 -
Pension and other postretirem

benefits 8,40z 46¢ 1,01¢ 1,052 5,86¢
Deferred compensation pla 12,47¢ 861 1,722 1,722 8,174
Total $ 4,468,40. $ 3,027,411 $ 1,029,060 $ 329,01¢ $ 82,907

We have significant obligations that arise in tleermal course of business. We finance our assets déposits and borrowings. We also use borrowin
manage our interest-rate risk. We have the meansfittance these borrowings as they mature thrdingimcing arrangements with the FHINB¥Y and our ability ti
arrange repurchase agreements with broker-dealdrtha FHLBNY. (See Notes 8 and 9 of Notes to Consolidatedrttial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Rep

We focus our balance sheet growth on the originabbmortgage loans. At December 31, 2013, we fmadntitments to extend credit and lines of cred
$191.1 million for mortgage and other loans. Thiesss will be funded through principal and interpayments received on existing mortgage loans aodgage-
backed securities, growth in customer deposits, when necessary, additional borrowings. (See Nbtef Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementteim 8 of thi:
Annual Report.)

At December 31, 2013, the Bank had seventeen beanaheven of which are leased. The Bank leasdsatsch locations primarily when it is not the
tenant. Whether the Bank will purchase its futui@nioh locations will depend in part on the avallgbof suitable locations and the availability mfoperties. In additio
we lease our executive offices. We currently outsewur data processing, loan servicing and cheatessing functions. We believe that this is thestwost effectiv
method for obtaining these services. These arraegenare usually volume dependent and have vatgimgs. The contracts for these services usuallydigcannue
increases based on the increase in the consunseripdex. The amounts shown above for purchasgathiins represent the current term and volume tficof these
contracts. We expect to renew these contractsegsetkpire.
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The amounts shown for pension and other postretintrbenefits reflect our directorgénsion plan and the supplemental retirement bisneffiour presider
and amounts due under our plan for medical andrffiarance benefits for retired employees. The arnsliown in the “Less Than 1 Yeadlumn represents our curr
estimate for these benefits, some of which areasdnformation supplied by actuaries. The amoshtswvn in columns reflecting periods over one yegresent ol
current estimate based on the past peactual disbursements and information supplieddiyaries. The amounts do not include an increageossible future retirees
increases in health plan costs. The amount shouheifMore Than 5 Yearstolumn represents the amount required to incrdeséotal amount to the projected ber
obligation of the directorsplan and the medical and life insurance benefihqlaince these are unfunded plans. The emplogesign plan is not included in 1
contractual obligation table due to the employeesfmn plan being fully funded at December 31, 201See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financiake8tants i
Item 8 of this Annual Report.)

We currently provide a nogualified deferred compensation plan for officetsoshave achieved the level of at least senior president (certain officers w
had achieved the level of at least vice presideatirzcluded in this plan under previously existgugdelines). In addition to the amounts deferredtsy officers, w
match 50% of their contributions, generally up tmaximum of 5% of the offices’ salary. These plans generally require the defdraéance to be credited with earni
at a rate earned by certain mutual funds. Througbebhber 31, 2011, employees could not receivetabdiSon from these plans until their employmentérminatec
The amounts shown in the columns for less thanyfear's represent the estimate of the amounts weavitribute to a rabbi trust with respect to maighcontribution
under these plans, and the amounts to be paidtfiermabbi trust to two executives who have retifigdte amount shown in the “More Than 5 Yeassfumn represen
the current accrued liability for these plans, athid for the activity in the columns for less ttime years. This expense is provided in the Codstéid Statements
Income, and the liability has been provided in@wnsolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03, ethamends the authoritative accounting guidancemuA8C Topic 860Transfers and Servicing.” The
amendments in this update remove from the assessmhaffective control (1) the criterion requiririe transferor to have the ability to repurchaseedleem th
financial assets on substantially the agreed teeves) in the event of default by the transferee(@hdhe collateral maintenance implementation go@t related to th
criterion. The amendments in this update are gffedor the first interim or annual period begingion or after December 15, 2011 and should beaeapptospectivel
to transactions or modifications of existing trast&ms that occur on or after the effective datetlfeadoption is not permitted. Adoption of thisdape did not have
material effect on the Company’s consolidated tesafl operations or financial condition.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, wtaahends the authoritative accounting guidance uA8& Topic 820'Fair Value Measurement.” The
amendments in this update clarify how to measudedistlose fair value under ASC Topic 820. The agineents in this update are effective for the findéfim or annu:
period beginning on or after December 15, 2011 sivwlild be applied prospectively to transactionsmodifications of existing transactions that occorar after th
effective date. Early adoption is not permitted.option of this update did not have a material effat the Companyg consolidated results of operations or final
condition.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Wwhimends the authoritative accounting guidanceruA8€ Topic 220‘Comprehensive Income.” The
amendments eliminate the option to present comper&nother comprehensive income in the stateméstazkholders’equity. Instead, the new guidance reqt
entities to present all nonowner changes in stddens’ equity either as a single continuous statementoaiprehensive income or as two separate but cornge
statements. The amendments in this update aretieffefor the first interim or annual period begingi on or after December 15, 2011 and must be a
retrospectively. Early adoption was permitted. Atitap of this update did not have a material eff@etthe Companyg consolidated results of operations or final
condition. See the Consolidated Statements of Cengnrsive Income.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 20108;h amends the authoritative accounting guidamazier ASC Topic 350ntangibles —Goodwill anc
Other.” The amendments in the update permit an entityr$o dissess qualitative factors to determine wheth&more likely than not that the fair valueafeportin
unit is less than its carrying amount as a basisiétermining whether it is necessary to perforettho-step goodwill impairment test described ipi€B50. The more-
likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihoodnodre than 50 percent. The amendments in this upatateeffective for annual and interim good
impairment tests performed for fiscal years begigrafter December 15, 2011. Early adoption is piechi including for annual and interim goodwill iaipment test
performed as of a date before September 15, 204h, éntitys financial statements for the most recent annuaiterim period have not yet been issued. Adoptt
this update did not have a material effect on tbem@any’s consolidated results of operations omiwia condition.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-@Bjch amends the authoritative accounting guidannder ASC Topic 220 Comprehensiv
Income.” The amendments do not change the current requitenfenreporting net income or other comprehensgiegme in financial statements. However,
amendments require an entity to provide informa#ibout the amounts reclassified out of accumulatedr comprehensive income by component. In addito entit
is required to present, either on the face of tiatement where net income is presented or in thespaignificant amounts reclassified out of acciated othe
comprehensive income by the respective line itefsed income but only if the amount reclassifiedaguired under generally accepted accounting jples in the
United States of America (“GAAP'{p be reclassified to net income in its entiretyhia same reporting period. For other amountsateanot required under GAAP to
reclassified in their entirety to net income, anitgris required to crosseference to other disclosures required under GA#e® provide additional detail about th
amounts. The amendments in this update are eféeptiospectively for reporting periods beginningeafdbecember 15, 2013. Early adoption is permitéatbption o
this update did not have a material effect on tben@anys consolidated results of operations or financiaidition. (See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidatecafaia
Statements “Stockholders’ Equity”.)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2@%4+o clarify that when an in substance repossessioforeclosure occurs, a creditor is considexedave
received physical possession of residential reateproperty collateralizing a consumer mortgaga | upon either (1) the creditor obtaining leghd to the residenti
real estate property upon completion of a foregldsr (2) the borrower conveying all interest ie tiesidential real estate property to the creddosatisfy that loz
through completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosareghrough a similar legal agreement. Additionathe amendments require interim and annual disotosf both (1
the amount of foreclosed residential real estabpgnty held by the creditor and (2) the recordegstment in consumer mortgage loans collaterakecesidential rei
estate property that are in the process of forecdaccording to local requirements of the appliegrisdiction. ASU 201404 is effective for annual reporting peri
beginning after December 15, 2014. Adoption o tippdate is not expected to have a material effieche Companyg consolidated results of operations or finai
condition.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

This information is contained in the section capid “Interest Rate Riskdn page 69 and in Notes 15 and 16 of the Noteots@idated Financial Stateme
in ltem 8 of this Annual Report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:
Assets
Cash and due from ban $ 33,48t $ 40,42¢

Securities available for sale, at fair val
Mortgag«-backed securities (including assets pledged of $&286and
$679,285 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, régplc $7,119 and $24,911

at fair value pursuant to the fair value optedDecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectiv 756,15t 720,11:
Other securities (including assets pledged 6354 at December 31, 201$30,163 and $29,57
at fair value pursuant to the fair value optatDecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectiv 261,63« 229,45:
Loans held for sal 42¢ 5,31
Loans, net of fees and co 3,434,17. 3,234,12.
Less: Allowance for loan loss (31,776 (31,109
Net loan: 3,402,40: 3,203,01
Interest and dividends receival 17,37( 17,917
Bank premises and equipment, 20,35¢ 22,50(
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock, at « 46,02¢ 42,337
Bank owned life insuranc 109,60t 106,24
Goodwill 16,12° 16,12;
Core deposit intangible, n - 46€
Other assets 57,91} 47,50:
Total assets $ 4,721,50 $ 4,451,411
Liabilities
Due to depositors
Nor-interest bearin $ 197,34 $ 155,78¢
Interes-bearing 3,002,63 2,826,84.
Mortgagors' escrow depos 32,79¢ 32,56(
Borrowed funds ($29,570 and $23,922 at fair valuespant to th
fair value option at December 31, 2013 and 201sheetively) 856,82. 763,10!
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 155,30! 185,30(
Other liabilities 44,06° 45,45
Total liabilities 4,288,96! 4,009,05.

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 sreu#®rized; none issue - -
Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 sharémazed; 31,530,595 sharissuec

at December 31, 2013 and 2012; 30,123,253an#3,329 shares outstanding at December 31, 2013

and 2012, respectivel 31t 31t
Additional paic-in capital 201,90: 198,31
Treasury stock, at average cost (1,407,343 shackg&/,266 at December 31, 2(and 2012, respectivel (22,059 (10,257
Retained earning 263,74 241 ,85¢
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomephttxes (11,379 12,13
Total stockholders' equ 432,53: 442,36!

Total liabilities and stockholders' @gt $ 4,721,50 $ 4,451,411

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interesi
Dividends
Other interest income
Total interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Deposits

Other interest expen:
Total interest expen:

Net interest income
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan losse

Non-interest income
Otherthar-temporary impairment ("OTTI") charg
Less: Non-credit portion of OTTI charge recorde®ther Comprehensive Income, before taxes
Net OTTI charge recognized in earnir
Banking services fee incon
Net (loss) gain on sale of loans held for ¢
Net gain on sale of loat
Net gain on sale of securiti
Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustme
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide
Bank owned life insuranc
Other income
Total no-interest income

Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy and equipme
Professional service
FDIC deposit insuranc
Data processin
Depreciation and amortization of premises and eqaigt
Other real estate owned / foreclosure exp:
Other operating expenses
Total non-interest expense

Income before income taxe
Provision for income taxes
Federa
State and local

Total provision for income taxes
Net income

Basic earnings per common sh
Diluted earnings per common shi

For the years ended December

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands, except per share d¢
$ 171,30¢ $ 181,48t $ 191,45
28,31( 31,30¢ 32,12:
82¢ 85¢ 811
79 67 112
200,52¢ 213,71: 224,49¢
32,031 40,38: 48,43
22,82¢ 22,89: 28,29:
54,86 63,27¢ 76,72
145,66 150,43¢ 147,77
13,93¢ 21,00( 21,50(
131,72¢ 129,43 126,27!
(1,419 (3,139 (9,365)
- 2,362 7,781
(1,419 (776) (1,579
3,681 4,001 3,64(
(109) (9) 34z
284 31 16€
3,021 47 -
(2,52 55 1,96(
1,66: 1,507 1,50z
3,36: 2,79C 2,76¢
1,58¢ 1,412 1,47
9,55¢ 9,06% 10,28:
44,39’ 42,50 38,26:
7,64¢ 7,801 7,80¢
5,21( 6,10¢ 6,697
3,20¢ 4,18¢ 4,37¢
4,23¢ 4,101 4,45¢
2,95:% 3,201 3,18¢
2,29: 2,964 2,471
10,63¢ 11,45( 10,48¢
80,57¢ 82,32¢ 77,73¢
60,70¢ 56,17¢ 58,81’
17,34« 16,74( 17,74¢
5,61Z 5,107 5,72(
22,95¢ 21,847 23,46¢
$ 37,75: $ 34,33, $ 35,34¢
$ 12¢ $ 11 % 1.1t
$ 12 $ 1.1z $ 1.1t

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive Income
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of
Unrecognized actuarial gains (loss
Amortization of actuarial losse
Amortization of prior service crec
OTTI charges included in incon
Reclassification adjustment for gains includechicoime
Unrealized (losses) gains on securi
Comprehensive incorr

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.

For the years ended December

2011

(Dollars in thousands

35,34¢

(2,505)
311
(25)
88¢

9,89(

43,90t




FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

Common Stock

Balance, beginning of ye.

Shares issued upon the exercise of stock optid&E@lcommon shares for the year ended December 31, .

Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockauvairds(119,60C common shares for the year ended Decembe
2011)

Balance, end of year

Additional Paid-In Capital

Balance, beginning of ye.

Award of common shares released from Employee Behefst (143,941, 157,922 and 144,312 common share
the years endeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respecti

Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockaweirds(120,114, 113,272 and 127,653 common shares foretiies
endedDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respecti

Options exercised (463,245, 125,405 and 155,06 rmamsharefor the years ended December 31, 2013, 201z
2011, respectively

Stocl-based compensation activity, 1
Stock-based income tax (provision) benefit
Balance, end of year

Treasury Stock

Balance, beginning of ye.

Purchases of common shares outstanding (836,0220)@5and 624,08common shares for the years en
December 31, 2013, 2012 a2011, respectively

Issuance upon exercise of stock options (463,288,225 and 23,24common shares for the years ended Decel
31, 2013, 201:and 2011, respectivel

Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligations/ (@), 40,14&nd 29,83tcommon shares for the years en
December 31, 201:2012 and 2011, respective

Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockauvdirds (180,997146,149 and 8,053 common shares for the y
ended December 32013, 2012 and 2011, respective

Purchase of common shares to fund options exer(&#)517, 65,07and 3,794 common shares for the years e
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively)

Balance, end of ye:

For the years ended December

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:
31t $ 31t % 31z

- - 1

- - 1

31E 31E 31E
198,31 195,62¢ 189,34¢
1,652 1,48( 1,541
161 317 1,66¢
1,451 164 1,82¢
(119) 1,02¢ 954
442 (303 292
201,90: 198,31 195,62¢
(10,259 (7,355 -
(13,157) (5,019 (7,31¢)
6,76: 1,81¢ 32¢€
(999) (532) (40€)
2,40¢ 1,737 95
(6,819 (90€) (54)
(22,05Y) (10,259 (7,355

Continuet




FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity (continued)

For the years ended December

2013 2011
(Dollars in thousands, except per share ds
Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of ye. 241,85¢ 204,12¢
Net income 37,75 35,34¢
Stock options exercised (65,470, 24,820, and 23zb&8mon shares for the years ended December 31, 2013,&@

2011, respectively’ (128) (50)
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockauvéirds (60,883, 32,877 and 7,853 common sharekdagrears

ended December 31, 2013, 2(and 2011, respectivel (119 (6)
Cash dividends declared and paid on common sh#®e52(per share for each of the years ended Dece3tth2013,

2012 and 2011, respectively) (15,619 (15,910
Balance, end of ye: 263,74: 223,51(
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Netf Taxes
Balance, beginning of ye. 12,130 (3,749
Amortization of prior service credits, net of taxd#ss20 for each of the years ended December 3113,2012 and

2011, respectivel (26) (25)
Amortization of net actuarial losses, net of taakgp541), ($456) and ($243) for the years endedebeer 31, 2013

2012 and 2011, respective 69€ 311
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses), net of t§2$527), $340 and $1,932 fpears ended December 31, 2013, 7

and 2011, respective 3,261 (2,505
Change in net unrealized (losses) gains on sezsiatiailable for sale, net of taxes of approxiny$20,609, ($5,259

and ($7,706) for the years encDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respect (26,547 9,89(
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) lossesudet! in net income, net of taxes of approximat@@ad ($318) and

($692) for the years ended December 31, 2013, 23682011, respectively (902) 88¢
Balance, end of ye: (11,375 4,81:
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 432,53 416,91:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigealby operating activities
Provision for loan losse
Depreciation and amortization of premises and egaip
Origination of loans held for sa
Proceeds from sale of loans held for ¢
Net loss (gain) on sales of loans held for :
Net gain on sales of loans (including delinqueank)
Net gain on sales of securiti
Othe~thar-temporary impairment charge on securi
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disabd
Fair value adjustment for financial assets andniine liabilities
Income from bank owned life insuran
Stock based compensation expe
Deferred compensatic

Amortization of core deposit intangibl
Excess tax provision (benefits) from st-based payment arrangeme
Deferred income tax provision (bene

Net decrease in prepaid FDIC assessr

Increase in other asse

Increase (decrease) in other liabilit

Net cash provided by operating activit
Investing Activities

Purchases of premises and equipn

Net (purchases) redemption of Federal Home Loark-NY shares
Purchases of securities available for ¢

Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale

Proceeds from maturities and prepaymen securities available for sg
Net (originations) and repayments of loi

Purchases of loar

Proceeds from sale of delinquent loi

Purchase of bank owned life insural

Proceeds from sale of Real Estate Ow

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

For the years ended December

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands

37,75: $ 3433. % 35,34¢

13,93t 21,00( 21,50(
2,95¢ 3,201 3,18¢
- - (3,86%)
- - 4,20¢
10¢€ 9 (343
(2849 (31 (168)
(3,02)) 47 -
1,41¢ 77€ 1,57¢
7,58¢ 6,64 5,87:
2,521 (55) (1,960
(3,36%) (2,790 (2,769
3,412 3,26( 2,68¢
(790) (86) 512
46¢€ 46¢ 46¢€
(443 303 (292)
(682) (8049 68t
3,281 3,88¢ 4,06¢
(1,410 (3,69%) (1,63%)
10,98t 4,71¢ (4,35%)
74,43¢ 71,09° 64,72(
(809) (1,290 (4,56))
(3,68¢) (22,097 1,361
(458,599 (311,659 (157,74)
194,00¢ 12,631 8,00(
149,38° 170,79¢ 154,60(
(236,58)) (78,379 12,77:
(10,189 (3,456 (19,059
35,68: 44,22 27,81%
- (20,000 (4,55€)
4,768 1,22 4,05:¢
(326,029 (197,989 22,69¢
Continuet

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Financing Activities

Net increase in nc-interest bearing depos

Net (decrease) increase in interest bearing dex

Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc

Net proceeds (repayments) from s-term borrowed fund

Proceeds from lor-term borrowings

Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Purchases of treasury stc

Excess tax benefits (provision) from st-based payment arrangeme
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exsof stock option:
Cash dividends pai

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents, end of )

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosur
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Taxes paid if excess tax benefits on s-based compensatiwere not tax deductibl
Non-cash activities
Loans transferred to Other Real Estate Ow
Loans provided for the sale of Other Real Estatmed
Loans held for investment transferred to loard far sale
Loans held for sale transferred to loans heldrfeestmen

For the years ended December

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

$ 41,55 $ 37,28: % 22,30¢
174,71! (172,19) (70,337
23¢ 2,77¢ 2,471
(102,500 132,00( -
269,34t 212,51¢ 245,44
(109,91) (80,000 (258,079
(14,15)) (5,55)) (7,727)
442 (309 29z
532 88t 2,04C
(15,619 (15,81) (15,910
244,64¢ 111,59! (79,48))
(6,940 (15,29¢) 7,93:
40,42t 55,72: 47,78¢
$ 3348 $ 40,42  $ 55,72
$ 53,60: $ 62,36t $ 75,91«
21,38¢ 21,947 22,917
21,83: 21,64« 23,20¢
5,36¢ 6,127 7,28¢
3,011 2,11C 1,65¢
13,00¢ 12,20( -
2,21¢ 40C -

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ard 201

1. Nature of Operations

Flushing Financial Corporation (the “Holding Comp3n a Delaware business corporation, is a banklihngl company. On February 28, 2013 the Holding Camg{s
wholly owned subsidiary Flushing Savings Bank, K8 “Savings Bank) merged with and into Flushirgg®nercial Bank (the “Merger”Flushing Commercial Bai
was the surviving entity of the Merger, whose nam@s changed to Flushing Bank (the “Bank”). The kadCompany and its direct and indirect whabymnec
subsidiaries, including the Bank, Flushing Preféffending Corporation, Flushing Service Corporatanmd FSB Properties Inc., are collectively hereferred to as tt
“Company.”

The Merger was the result of the combination of amtities under common control, and in accordanite ASC 805-50-3(, the Bank measured the recognized a
and liabilities transferred at their carrying amtsufiistorical cost) for this transaction.

The Companys principal business is attracting retail depdsdm the general public and investing those depdsigether with funds generated from ongoing opere
and borrowings, primarily in (1) originations andrphases of multi-family residential properties anie a lesser extent, one-to-four family (focusom mixeduse
properties, which are properties that contain be#idential dwelling units and commercial unitsd aommercial real estate mortgage loans; (2) cocisdn loans
primarily for residential properties; (3) Small Busss Administration (“SBA”) loans and other smilisiness loans; (4) mortgage loan surrogates asichortgage-
backed securities; and (5) U.S. government seesritiorporate fixethcome securities and other marketable securifiee.Bank also originates certain other consi
loans including overdraft lines of credit. The Bgmkmarily conducts its business through sevenfelirservice banking offices, nine of which are located@ueen
County, two in Nassau County, five in Kings Cou(Byooklyn), and one in New York County (ManhattaNgw York. The Bank also operates “iGObanking.&®mar
internet branch, offering checking, savings andifaeates of deposit accounts.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Comypfatiow generally accepted accounting principlegtie United States of America (“GAAP&nhd general practic
within the banking industry. The policies which edlly affect the determination of the Compamnyinancial position, results of operations andhcélews art
summarized below.

Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statemietade the accounts of the Holding Company anddliewing direct and indirect whollypwned subsidiaries of t
Holding Company: the Bank, Flushing Preferred FogdCorporation (“FPFC”), Flushing Service Corparat(“FSC"), and FSB Properties Inc. (“Propertie$?PFC it
a real estate investment trust formed to hold éigroof the Banks mortgage loans to facilitate access to capitakets. FSC was formed to market insurance pro
and mutual funds. Properties is currently usedold title to real estate owned that is obtainedferaclosure. All intercompany transactions ancbaats are eliminatt
in consolidation. The Holding Company currently lia®e unconsolidated subsidiaries in the form lebNy-owned statutory business trusts, which were fortoasisut
guaranteed capital debentures (“capital securjtieBlease see Note 9, “Borrowed Funds and SecurBield Under Agreements to Repurchades’ additiona
information regarding these trusts.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the reported amourdsssts ar
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assetd Babilities at the date of the financial statertserand reported amounts of revenue and expensergydhe reportin
period. Estimates that are particularly susceptiblehange in the near term are used in conneatitmthe determination of the allowance for loasdes, the evaluati
of goodwill for impairment, the evaluation of theed for a valuation allowance of the Compangéferred tax assets, the fair value of the imvest portfolio and tr
evaluation of other-than-temporary impairment (“Q@")Ton securities. The current economic environmentihaeased the degree of uncertainty inherent @se
material estimates. Actual results could diffemirthese estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Comgaigfines cash and due from banks, overnight istex@ning deposits and federal funds sold with oelgmaturitie:
of 90 days or less as cash and cash equivalent®egeémber 31, 2013 and 2012, the Compagish and cash equivalents totaled $33.5 milliwh $40.4 million
respectively. Included in cash and cash equivakntisose dates were $23.7 million and $31.3 mniliiminterestearning deposits in other financial institutionsparily
consisting of balances due from the Federal Redgank of New York and the Federal Home Loan Bankeiv York (“FHLB-NY”). The Bank is required to mainti
cash reserves equal to a percentage of certairsiiepbhe reserve requirement totaled $10.1 millind $6.5 million at December 31, 2013 and 201sheetively.
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Securities Available for Sale:

Securities are classified as available for salenvn@nagement intends to hold the securities fandefinite period of time or when the securitiesynee utilized fo
tactical asset/liability purposes and may be salchftime to time to effectively manage intereser@tposure and resultant prepayment risk and ligguigeds. Premiun
and discounts are amortized or accreted, respégtiveing the levelfield method. Realized gains and losses on the sdilsecurities are determined using the spe
identification method. Unrealized gains and logs¢iser than unrealized losses considered other#raporary which are recognized in the Consolid&tdements «
Income) on securities available for sale are exadufiiom earnings and reported as part of accuntulatfeer comprehensive income, net of taxes. Inmediing other-
thantemporary impairment losses, management considgithé length of time and the extent to which thie ¥alue has been less than amortized cost, €§tinren
interest rate environment, (3) the financial caoditand neaterm prospects of the issuer, if applicable, andtl¢é intent and ability of the Company to retais
investment in the issuer for a period of time widfint to allow for any anticipated recovery in faalue. Other-thatemporary impairment losses for debt securitie
measured using a discounted cash flow model. Qtizgrtemporary impairment losses for equity securitiesraeasured using quoted market prices, when élailar
when market quotes are not available due to ajuitlimarket, we use an impairment model from altparty or quotes from investment brokers.

Goodwill:

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life aadested annually, or when certain conditionsraeg, for impairment, rather than amortized. If faig value of th
reporting unit is greater than the goodwill amoumd, further evaluation is required. If the fair walof the reporting unit is less than the goodaitiount, furthe
evaluation would be required to compare the faueaf the reporting unit to the goodwill amountiatetermine if a write down is required.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2081which gives entities the option of first perfong a qualitative assessment to test goodwillifigpairment on
reporting-unit-by-reportingmit basis. If, after performing the qualitativesassment, an entity concludes that it is moreylikehn not that the fair value of a repor
unit is less than its carrying amount, the entiguld perform the twestep goodwill impairment test described in ASC 3d0wever, if, after applying the qualitat
assessment, the entity concludes that it is noerilcely than not that the fair value is less thiaa carrying amount, the twstep goodwill impairment test is not requir

In performing the goodwill impairment testing, tBempany has identified a single reporting unit. Cwmnpany performed the qualitative assessmenttiinemliin ASL
201108 in assessing the carrying value of goodwill BBecember 31, 2013 and determined that there wampodwill impairment. At December 31, 2013, therypag
amount of goodwill totaled $16.1 million. The idiication of additional reporting units, the useather valuation techniques and/or changes to iapstimptions us
in the analysis could result in materially differewaluations of goodwill impairment.

Loans:

Loans are reported at their principal outstandiatpfce net of any unearned income, chaffe- deferred loan fees and costs on originateshdoand unamortiz
premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Intemesbans is recognized on the accrual basis. Theualcof income on loans is generally discontinwdgen certai
factors, such as contractual delinquency of 90 dmyshore, indicate reasonable doubt as to the yirellectability of such income. Uncollected intsrg@reviousl
recognized on non-accrual loans is reversed fraerast income at the time the loan is placed onauwmnual status. A noaecrual loan can be returned to accrual s
when contractual delinquency returns to less tiad&ys delinquent. Subsequent cash payments receivaonaccrual loans that do not bring the loan to leas
days delinquent are recorded on a cash basis. Quirsecash payments can also be applied first resliection of principal until all principal is recered and the
subsequently to interest, if in managemempinion, it is evident that recovery of all pial due is unlikely to occur. Loan fees and cerfaan origination costs &
deferred. Net loan origination costs and premiumdigscounts on loans purchased are amortized imévest income over the contractual life of thenkasing the level-
yield method. Prepayment penalties received onsledrich pay in full prior to their scheduled matyiare included in interest income in the periogythare collected.

Allowance for Loan Losses:

The Company maintains an allowance for loan loases amount, which, in managemserjtidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estinh@dses inherent in the Ic
portfolio. Managemens' judgment in determining the adequacy of the alowe is based on evaluations of the collectabiftyoans. This evaluation is inherer
subjective, as it requires estimates that are ptibte to significant revisions as more informatimecomes available.
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The allowance is established through a provisioidan losses based on managenseeavaluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents of the loan portfolio &
other factors, including historical loan loss exgece (which is updated quarterly), current ecomoaunditions, delinquency and nawgerual trends, classified Ic
levels, risk in the portfolio and volumes and trend loan types, recent trends in chaodis; changes in underwriting standards, experigabdity and depth of tt
Companys lenders, collection policies and experiencerirdl loan review function and other external fextoAdditionally, the Company segregated our ldatts twc
portfolios based on year of origination. One pditfavas reviewed for loans originated after DecemB®, 2009 and a second portfolio for loans oritgdaprior tc
January 1, 2010. Our decision to segregate théofiorbased upon origination dates was based ongggamade in our underwriting standards during 2B§3he end ¢
2009, all loans were being underwritten based wised and tightened underwriting standards. Laaiginated prior to 2010 have a higher delinqueratg and los
history. Each of the years in the portfolio for hsaoriginated prior to 2010 has a similar delinguyerate. The determination of the amount of thevedince for loa
losses includes estimates that are susceptiblgnifisant changes due to changes in appraisalegabf collateral, national and local economic ctbods and othe
factors. We review our loan portfolio by separadgegories with similar risk and collateral charastes. Impaired loans are segregated and revieseparately. A
non-accrual loans are classified impaired. The Gomwijs Board of Directors reviews and approves mamamnts evaluation of the adequacy of the allowancedar
losses on a quarterly basis.

The allowance for loan losses is established thHratigarges to earnings in the form of a provisionldan losses. Increases and decreases in theaalb@iother the
chargeeffs and recoveries are included in the provision lban losses. When a loan or a portion of a Isadetermined to be uncollectible, the portion dee
uncollectible is charged against the allowance,aarfzsequent recoveries, if any, are credited taltbavance.

The Company recognizes a loan as performing when the borrower has demonstratedrthbility to bring the loan current, or due to otle@cumstances which,
management’s opinion, indicate the borrower willumable to bring the loan current within a reasteméime. All loans classified as ngerforming, which includes
loans past due 90 days or more, are classifie@@accrual unless there is, in our opinion, compelér@ence the borrower will bring the loan currenthe immediat
future. Appraisals are obtained and/or updatedrnateevaluations are prepared as soon as pradivdlbefore the loan becomes 90 days delinquestldEm balances
collateral dependent impaired loans are comparehdetgropertys updated fair value. The Company considers fdirevaf collateral dependent loans to be 85% o
appraised or internally estimated value of the prgp The balance which exceeds fair value is gédlyechargedeff. Management reviews the allowance for loarsée
on a quarterly basis, and records as a provisierathount deemed appropriate, after consideringsiteumch as, current year charge-offs, chafferends, new loe
production, current balance by particular loan gaties, and delinquent loans by particular loaegaties.

A loan is considered impaired when, based uporeatiinformation, the Company believes it is prokablat it will be unable to collect all amounts dheth principe
and interest, in accordance with the original teainthe loan. Impaired loans are measured basebeopresent value of the expected future cash fitimsounted at tt
loan’s effective interest rate or at the Iobservable market price or, as a practical egpedihe fair value of the collateral if the loancobllateral dependent. Inter
income on impaired loans is recorded on the casls bBhe Company’s management considers all nonialdoans impaired.

The Company reviews each impaired loan on an iddali basis to determine if either a chaofleer a valuation allowance needs to be allocatethe loan. Th
Company does not chargéf or allocate a valuation allowance to loanswvidrich management has concluded the current valtieeafinderlying collateral will allow fi
recovery of the loan balance either through the sithe loan or by foreclosure and sale of theery.

The Company evaluates the underlying collaterauh a third party appraisal, or when a third pappraisal is not available, the Company will useirgerna
evaluation. The internal evaluations are prepasidguan income approach or a sales approach. Toenm approach is used for income producing pragsegid ust
current revenues less operating expenses to deetie net cash flow of the property. Once thecash flow is determined, the value of the propertyalculated usir
an appropriate capitalization rate for the propeftye sales approach uses comparable sales prites market. When an internal evaluation is usetplace great
reliance on the income approach to value the eshat

In preparing internal evaluations of property valudie Company seeks to obtain current data osubject property from various sources, includirig:the borrowe
(2) copies of existing leases; (3) local real eskabkers and appraisers; (4) public records (ssdor real estate taxes and water and sewer &)afggcomparable sa
and rental data in the market; (6) an inspectiothefproperty and (7) interviews with tenants. Ehegernal evaluations primarily focus on the ineoapproach ar
comparable sales data to value the property.
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As of December 31, 2013, we utilized recent thiadty appraisals of the collateral to measure inmpairt for $66.6 million, or 81.4%, of collateral dégplent impaire
loans, and used internal evaluations of the prgjsevalue for $15.2 million, or 18.6%, of collatédependent impaired loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable awerrexperiencing financial difficulties to contemaking payments when it is deemed to be in thagaoys bes
longterm interest. This restructure may include redytire interest rate or amount of the monthly paytrfema specified period of time, after which timerrest rate ar
repayment terms revert to the original terms ofitfa®. We classify these loans as Troubled Debtr&esred (“TDR”).

These restructurings have not included a redudtigrincipal balance. The Company believes thatueturing these loans in this manner will allowta& borrowers t
become and remain current on their loans. Restedtloans are classified as a TDR when the Banktgra concession to a borrower who is experienfimancia
difficulties. All loans classified as TDR are catsied impaired, however TDR loans which have beerent for six consecutive months at the time thaeyrestructure
as TDR remain on accrual status and are not indladegpart of noperforming loans. Loans which were delinquent atttine they are restructured as a TDR are p
on non-accrual status and reported as penfierming loans until they have made timely paytaéar six consecutive months. Loans that are wetired as TDR but &
not performing in accordance with the restructusgths are placed on non-accrual status and repasteadn-performing loans.

The allocation of a portion of the allowance foardosses for a performing TDR loan is based uperptesent value of the future expected cash fiiseunted at tt
loan’s original effective rate, or for a ngerforming TDR which is collateral dependent, tladr fvalue of the collateral. At December 31, 20it8re were n
commitments to lend additional funds to borrowermse loans were modified to a TDR. The modificatibrioans to a TDR did not have a significant efffen ou
operating results, nor did it require a significalibcation of the allowance for loan losses.

Loans Held for Sale:

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower ot cosestimated fair value. At December 31, 2013nkheld for sale consisted of one non-performindtisfamily
residential loan for $0.4 million. At December 2012, loans held for sale consisted of four norgoeting multifamily residential loans totaling $3.4 million afalr
non-performing one-to-four-family — mixed-use prdjes totaling $1.9 million.

Bank Owned Life Insurance:

Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI"yepresents life insurance on the lives of certampleyees who have provided positive consent allgutime Bank to be ti
beneficiary of such policies. BOLI is carried irethonsolidated statements of financial positioitsatash surrender value. Increases in the casie \wdlthe policies, i
well as proceeds received, are recorded in othefimerest income, and are not subject to incomesta

Other Real Estate Owned:

Other real estate owned (“OREQCEpnsists of property acquired by foreclosure. Thasperties are carried at fair value. The faiueals based on appraised vi
through a current appraisal, or at times througtinggrnal review, additionally adjusted by the estied costs to sell the property. This determimais made on ¢
individual asset basis. If the fair value of a mdp is less than the carrying amount, the diffeeeis recognized as a valuation allowance. Furtleereases to t
estimated value will be charged directly to expense

Bank Premises and Equipment:

Bank premises and equipment are stated at costdégseciation accumulated on a straigte-basis over the estimated useful lives of #lated assets (3 to 40 yee
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a strédiightiasis over the term of the related leaseb@lites of the assets, whichever is shorter. Maiance, repairs a
minor improvements are charged to non-interestmesgé the period incurred.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock:

The FHLBNY has assigned to the Bank a mandated membersiup purchase, based on its asset size. In addfio all borrowing activity, the Bank is requiréa
purchase shares of FHLB-NY non-marketable capitadksat par. Such shares are redeemed by FHLB-\Maawith reductions in the Barkborrowing levels. Tt
Bank carries its investment in FHLB-NY stock attbical cost. The Company periodically reviewsHtdLB-NY stock to determine if impairment exists. At Retbe
31, 2013, the Company considered among other thivegearnings performance, credit rating and agsalfty of the FHLBNY. Based on this review, the Company
not consider the value of our investment in FHLB-Bbgck to be impaired at December 31, 2013.
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Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchasaca@unted for as collateralized financing and aneied at amounts at which the securities will bésequent!
reacquired as specified in the respective agreemmkntérest incurred under these agreements isdadlin other interest expense.

Income Taxes:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeteed using the asset and liability (or balanceeshmethod. Under this method, the net deferne@saet or liability i
determined based on the tax effects of the tempdiffierences between book and tax bases of theuwsabalance sheet assets and liabilities. A dedletax liability i
recognized on all taxable temporary differences amtferred tax asset is recognized on all dededtdmporary differences and operating losses axaredit carry-
forwards. A valuation allowance is recognizeddduce the potential deferred tax asset if it isrérikely than not'that all or some portion of that potential defertax
asset will not be realized. The Company must &ége into account changes in tax laws or rates wauning the deferred income tax amounts it cardasits
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Stock Compensation Plans:

The Company accounts for its stock based compensati accordance with the Financial Accounting 8tads Board (“FASB”)Accounting Standards Codificati
(“ASC") Topic 718 “Stock Compensatidhwhich establishes fair value as the measuremigjective in accounting for shabmsed payment arrangements and requ
fair-value-based measurement method in accountingtfarebased payment transactions with employees. Itralgoires measurement of the cost of employee &=
received in exchange for an award of an equityrumsént based on the grant date fair value of tharéwThat cost is recognized over the period duvitich ai
employee is required to provide service in exchdngéhe award. The requisite service period isallguhe vesting period.

Benefit Plans:

The Company sponsors a qualified pension, 401¢d,mofit sharing plan for its employees. The Conypalso sponsors postretirement health care aadnguranc
benefits plans for its employees, a non-qualifietetted compensation plan for officers who havaeaed the level of at least senior vice presidant a norgualifiec
pension plan for its outside directors.

The Company recognizes the funded status of a iberafi — measured as the difference between paets at fair value and the benefit obligatidn the statement
financial condition, with the unrecognized creditsd charges recognized, net of taxes, as a compohaccumulated other comprehensive income. Thesdits o
charges arose as a result of gains or losses @vdsprvice costs or credits that arose duringr@iods but were not recognized as componentebperiodic bene
cost.

Treasury Stock:
The Company records treasury stock at cost. Trgasock is reissued at average cost.

Derivatives:

Derivatives are required to be recorded on the Qafeted Statements of Financial Condition at fa@ilue. The Company records derivatives on a grasslin ‘Othel
assets” and “Other liabilitiesh the Consolidated Statements of Financial CoowlitiThe accounting for changes in value of a dérie depends on whether or not
transaction has been designated and qualifieseldgén accounting. Derivatives that are not desighasehedges are reported and measured at fair theituegh earnings.

To qualify for hedge accounting, a derivative msthighly effective at reducing the risk associatétth the exposure being hedged. In addition, faegvative to b
designated as a hedge, the risk management olgjexniy strategy must be documented. Hedge docuneentatist identify the derivative hedging instrumehe assi
or liability or forecasted transaction and typeisk to be hedged, and how the effectiveness otfléievative is assessg@dospectively and retrospectively. The extel
which a derivative has been, and is expected ttramnto be, effective at offsetting changes infdievalue of the hedged item must be assessed@rumented at lee
quarterly. Any hedge ineffectiveness (i.e., the amidy which the gain or loss on the designated/deve instrument does not exactly offset the geim the hedge
item attributable to the hedged risk) must be reggbm currenperiod earnings. If it is determined that a defxais not highly effective at hedging the desigu
exposure, hedge accounting is discontinued.

Segment Reporting:
Management views the Company as operating as Esing, a community bank. Therefore, segment imfation is not provided.
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Advertising Expense:
Costs associated with advertising are expensetcaséd. The Company recorded advertising expesfsgs.9 million, $1.7 million, and $2.7 million fahe years end:
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Earnings per Common Share:

Earnings per share are computed in accordance A8 Topic 260“Earnings Per Share.”Basic earnings per common share is computed bylidiyinet incom
available to common shareholders by the total weijverage number of common shares outstandinighwitludes unvested participating securities. ésted share-
based payment awards that contain nonforfeitagtgsito dividends or dividend equivalents (whetbesd or unpaid) are participating securities anduh are include
in the calculation of earnings per share. The Camgjs unvested restricted stock and restricted stodkawards are considered participating securifidgerefore
weighted average common shares outstanding usembfioputing basic earnings per common share incladesnon shares outstanding plus unvested restritted
and restricted stock unit awards. The computatfatiloted earnings per share includes the additidiative effect of stock options outstanding asttier common stot
equivalents during the period. Common stock edeita that are antilutive are not included in the computation ofutild earnings per common share. The nume
for calculating basic and diluted earnings per camrshare is net income available to common shadeh®l The shares held in the Comparigmployee Benefit Tru
are not included in shares outstanding for purpo$ealculating earnings per common share.

Earnings per common share have been computed bagbé following, for the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands, except per share de
Net income, as reporte $ 37,75 % 34,33. % 35,34¢

Divided by:

Weighted average common shares outstar 30,047 30,40: 30,62
Weighted average common stock equivalents 26 31 31
Total weighted average common sharesandsig and common stock equivalents 30,073 30,43: 30,654
Basic earnings per common sh $ 12¢ $ 11 % 1.1t
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 12¢ $ 11 $ 1.1t

Options to purchase 151,900 shares, at an averageise price of $18.55, 550,400 shares, at amageeexercise price of $17.63, and 720,340 shatem) averag
exercise price of $16.71, are adiiutive and were not included in the computatidrdituted earnings per common share for the yeadeeé December 31, 2013, 2(
and 2011, respectively.
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3. Loans

The composition of loans is as follows at Decengder

2013 2012
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 1,712,03' $ 1,534,43
Commercial real esta 512,55: 515,43t
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 595,75 637,35:
One-to-four family — residentia 193,72t 198,96t
Cao-operative apartmen 10,13: 6,30¢
Constructior 4,247 14,38:
Small Business Administratic 7,792 9,49¢
Taxi medallion 13,12:¢ 9,922
Commercial business and other 373,64 295,07¢

Gross loan: 3,423,00: 3,221,37!
Unearned loan fees and deferred costs 11,17( 12,74¢

Total loans $ 3,434,170 $ 3,234,12.

The total amount of loans on naeerual status was $48.0 million and $84.1 milkdecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. dta¢amount of loans classified
impaired, which includes all loans on nacerual status, was $81.8 million and $128.6 mmillad December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. @feemlly adjust t
carrying value of collateral dependent impairechito their fair value with a charge to the alloegffior loan losses. The average balance of impéd@ts was $95
million and $148.9 million for 2013 and 2012, respeely.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aWwerrto continue making payments when it is deetoelde in our best lonterm interest. This restructure n
include reducing the interest rate or amount ofrtimathly payment for a specified period of timaeafvhich the interest rate and repayment termertdu the origine
terms of the loan. The Company classifies thesesl@a a TDR.

The following table shows loans modified and cléedias TDR during the years ended December 313 aadl 2012:

For the year ende For the year ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior Number Balance Modification descriptior

Received a below market
interest rate and the loan

Multi-family residentia 2 $ 69€ amortization was extends - $ =
Received a below mark Received a below mark
interest rate and the loan interest rate and the loan
Commercial real esta 1 272 amortization was extende¢ 3 5,30C amortization was extend
Received a below market
One-to-four family - mixec-use interest rate and the loan Received a below mark
property 1 39C amortization was extends 3 1,20C interest rate
Received a below mark
One-to-four family - residentia - - 1 40C interest rate
Construction loan
Received a below market Received a below market
interest rate and the loan interest rate and the loan
Commercial business and othe 2 687 amortization was extended 2 1,90( amortization was extended

Total 6 $ 2,04¢ 9 § 8,80(

The recorded investment of each of the loans mextiéind classified to a TDR, presented in the tabéee, was unchanged as there was no principal/érdn any of
these modifications.
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The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are performing etiog to their restructured terms at the periodtciated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number Recordec Number Recordec

(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 10 $ 3,081 8 $ 2,347
Commercial real esta 4 3,68¢ 5 8,49¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 8 2,692 7 2,33¢
One-to-four family - residentia 1 364 1 374
Constructior 1 74€ 1 3,80¢
Commercial business and ott 4 3,127 2 2,54(

Total performing troubled debt restructul 28 % 13,702 24 $ 19,90:

During the year ended December 31, 2013, no TDRslagere transferred to non-accrual status. Duttiegyear ended December 31, 2012, three rfartily TDR
totaling $6.9 million and one commercial TDR for.&nillion were transferred to naecrual status as they were no longer performiragaordance with their modifi
terms.

The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are not perfornaiagording to their restructured terms at the perindicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Number Recorded Number Recorded

(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia - 8 - 2 3 32z
Commercial real esta 1 2,33: 2 3,07t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert - - 2 81€
Constructior - - 1 7,36¢
Total troubled debt restructurinthat subsequently default 1 3 2,332 7 % 11,58:
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The following table shows our non-performing loahshe periods indicated:

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012
Loans ninety days or more past dur and still accruing:
Multi-family residentia $ 52 $ =
One-to-four family residentia 15 -
Commercial Business and ott 53¢ 644
Total 60€ 644
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 13,29% 13,09¢
Commercial real esta 9,96: 15,64(
One-to-four family mixec-use property 9,063 16,55
One-to-four family residentia 13,25( 13,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 57 234
Construction - 7,698
Total 45,62¢ 66,94:
Non-accrual nor-mortgage loans:
Small Business Administratic - 288
Commercial Business and ott 2,34¢ 16,86(
Total 2,34¢ 17,14¢
Total non-accrual loans 47,977 84,08¢
Total non-accrual loans and ninety day: or more past due and still accruing $ 48,58: $ 84,73(
The following is a summary of interest foregonenmm-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRheryears ended December 31:
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Interest income that would have been recognizedtmatbans performe in accordance with their original terr $ 465¢ $ 9,02¢ $ 9,654
Less: Interest income included in the resultsperations 1,21: 1,692 2,12¢
Total foregone interest $ 3,44 $ 7,33 $ 7,52¢
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The following table shows an age analysis of ooorded investment in loans at December 31, 2013:

Greatel
30 -59 Days 60 -89 Days than Total Past
(in thousands) Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 14,10. $ 255, % 13,297 $ 29,95 $ 1,682,08 $ 1,712,03
Commercial real esta 5,02¢ 522 9,962 15,51« 497,03¢ 512,55:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 14,01% 1,09¢ 9,06: 24,17¢ 571,57: 595,75!
One-to-four family - residentia 3,82¢ 51¢ 12,95 17,29¢ 176,42 193,72t
Cao-operative apartmen 99 - 144 243 9,89/ 10,13:
Construction loan - - - - 4,247 4,247
Small Business Administratic 10€ - - 10€ 7,68¢€ 7,792
Taxi medallion - - - - 13,12¢ 13,12¢
Commercial business and ott 187 2 1,21 1,402 372,23¢ 373,64:

Total $ 37,367 $ 4,69 $ 46,63 $ 88,69 $ 3,334,31. $ 3,423,00:
The following table shows an age analysis of ooorded investment in loans at December 31, 2012:

Greatel
30 -59 Days 60 -89 Days than Total Past
(in thousands) Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 24,05¢ % 4,82¢ $ 13,098 $ 41,98: $ 1,492,451 $ 1,534,43
Commercial real esta 9,76¢ 3,622 15,63¢ 29,02t 486,41: 515,43t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 21,01% 3,36¢ 16,55+ 40,93¢ 596,41¢ 637,35:
One-to-four family - residentia 3,407 2,01( 13,60: 19,01¢ 179,94¢ 198,96¢
Cao-operative apartmen - - 234 234 6,06¢ 6,30¢
Construction loan 2,462 - 7,69 10,157 4,224 14,38:
Small Business Administratic 404 - 28¢ 687 8,80¢ 9,49¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 9,92 9,92
Commercial business and ott 2 5 15,60 15,60¢ 279,46¢ 295,07¢

Total $ 61,11( $ 13,83: 3 82,70: $ 157,64t $ 3,063,720 $ 3,221,37
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe&x(3B:

One-to-four
family - One-tofour Commercia

] Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Cc-operative Constructiol Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands residentia  real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 13,00. $ 570t $ 5,96( $ 1,99¢ $ 4€ $ 66 $ 50t $ 7% 3,81t $§ 31,10¢
Charg-off's (3,585 (2,057 (4,20¢6) (701) (10¢) (2,67¢) (457) - (2,057 (14,849
Recoverie: 541 324 26€ 27z 4 - 87 - 86 1,58(
Provision 2,123 (19 4,30¢ 50¢ 162 3,05¢ 328 (@) 3,47¢ 13,93¢

Ending balanc $ 12,08: $ 4,95¢ $ 6,32¢ $ 2,07¢ $ 104 $ 444 $ 45¢ $ -$ 532( $ 31,77¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment $ 312 $ 164 $ 87t $ 58 $ -$ 17 $ - $ -$ 22z $§  1,64¢

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 11,77: $ 479 $ 5,45 $ 2,021 $ 104 $ 427 $ 458 $ -$ 509¢ $ 30,12¢

Financing Receivables

Ending balance $ 1,712,03¢ $ 512,55. $ 595,75: $ 193,72( $ 10,137 $ 4247 $ 7,792 $ 13,121$ 373,64: $3,423,00!

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment $ 2175 % 19,75 $ 1693¢$ 14,39 $ 59 $ 74€ $ -3 -$ 8,12( $ 81,76¢

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairment $ 1,690,28' $ 492,79 $ 578,81: $ 179,33( $ 10,07¢ $ 3,501 $ 7,792 $ 13,121$ 365,52 $3,341,24
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe&t(3P:

One-to-four
family - One-tofour Commercia

] Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Cc-operative Constructiol Small Busines  Taxi  businessanc

(in thousands residentia  real estatt  property residentia apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 11,267 $ 521C $ 531. % 1,64¢ $ 8C $ 66¢ $ 987 $ 41 $ 5,12¢$ 30,34«
Charg-off's (6,01¢) (2,74¢) (4,28¢) (1,587 (62) (4,59) (329 - (1,660 (21,269
Recoverie: 144 307 35¢ 28 - - 87 - 104 1,02¢
Provision 7,60¢ 2,934 4,57¢ 1,90« 28 3,98¢ (24%) (34 244 21,00(

Ending balanc $ 13,00: $ 5,70t $ 5,96( $ 1,99¢ $ 46 $ 66 $ 50t $ 7% 3,81t$  31,10¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment $ 18: $ 35¢ $ 571 $ 91 $ -$ 38 $ -$ -$ 24¢$ 1,49«

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 12,81¢ $ 5,34¢ $ 5,38¢ $ 1,90t $ 46 $ 28 $ 50t $ 793 3,566$ 29,61(

Financing Receivables

Ending balance $ 153443 $ 51543 $ 637,35. $ 198,96 $ 6,30 $ 14381 $ 9,49€ $ 9,92 $ 295,07¢ $3,221,37!

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairment $ 2167¢$ 23528 $  26,36¢$ 15,70: $ 237 $  1423. $ 85C $ -$  26,021% 128,61(

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairment $ 1,512,76: $ 491910 $ 610,98' $ 183,26( $ 6,06€ $ 14¢ $ 8,64t $ 9,92 $ 269,05! $3,092,76!
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance and allocated allowaneddan losses, average recorded investment ancesttencom
recognized for loans that were considered impaiteat for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recordec Principal Relatec Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognizec

(Dollars in thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 18,70¢ $ 20,93 % - $ 22,09: % 40z
Commercial real esta 16,72: 17,40¢ - 19,84¢ 26¢€
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 12,74¢ 15,25¢ - 13,91¢ 31¢
One-to-four family residentia 14,02¢ 17,527 - 14,52¢ 12&
Cc-operative apartmen 59 147 - 18¢ -
Constructior - 11¢€ - 4,01« -
Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - 247 -
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 3,22¢ 5,527 - 5,30¢ 26€
Total loans with no related allowance recor 65,48¢ 76,91 - 80,14 1,38(

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 3,04¢ 3,04¢ 312 2,892 17C
Commercial real esta 3,03¢ 3,102 164 6,38¢ 194
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 4,191 4,221 87t 4,041 22¢
One-to-four family residentia 364 364 58 36¢ 15
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior 74€ 74¢€ 17 1,92¢ 18

Non-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion = - - -
Commercial Business and ott 4,89¢ 4,89/ 222 4,35¢ 23¢

Total loans with an allowance recorc 16,28( 16,37¢ 1,64¢ 19,97 864
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loar $ 73,64¢ $ 82,86t $ 1,42¢ $ 90,20: $ 1,737

Total non-mortgage loans $ 8,12C $ 10,42 $ 222 $ 9,91C  $ 507
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance and allocated allowaneddan losses, average recorded investment ancesttencom
recognized for loans that were considered impaiteat for the year ended December 31, 2012:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recordec Principal Relatec Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognizec

(Dollars in thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 19,75 $ 22,88¢ $ - $ 27,72( % 42¢
Commercial real esta 34,67: 38,59« - 43,97¢ 53¢
One-to-four family mixec-use property 23,054 25,82 - 27,01¢ 48E
One-to-four family residentia 15,32¢ 18,99¢ - 15,04% 18¢€
Cc-operative apartmen 237 29¢ - 174 2
Constructior 10,59¢ 15,18: - 14,68¢ 172
Non-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic 85( 1,07t - 1,04z 25
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 4,391 5,741 - 5,10z 53

Total loans with no related allowance recor 108,88: 128,60( - 134,76¢ 1,88¢

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 1,927 1,937 18z 3,17¢ 124
Commercial real esta 7,772 7,83¢ 35¢ 6,53( 40C
One-to-four family mixec-use property 3,31¢ 3,31 571 4,38¢ 20t
One-to-four family residentia 374 374 94 18¢ 19
Cc-operative apartmen - - - 101 -
Constructior 3,80¢ 3,80¢ 38 4,27¢ 14C

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion o 5 - - -
Commercial Business and ott 2,53¢ 2,54( 24¢ 2,27 11€

Total loans with an allowance recorc 19,721 19,80¢ 1,494 20,92¢ 1,004
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loar $ 120,83( $ 139,05 $ 1248  $ 147277 $ 2,69¢

Total nor-mortgage loan $ 7,78C_ $ 9,35¢  $ 24¢  $ 8,41 $ 194
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In accordance with our policy and the current ratprly guidelines, we designate loans as “Specialtie,” which are considered “Criticized Loans,dan
“Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss,” which are csidered “Classified Loans”. If a loan does not faithin one of the previous mentioned categoriesntthe loan
would be considered “Pass.” These loan designatiomsipdated quarterly. We designate a loan ag@wzd when a well-defined weakness is identified
jeopardizes the orderly liquidation of the debt. Wésignate a loan Doubtful when it displays thesieht weakness of a Substandard loan with the gudedsion tha:
collection of the debt in full, on the basis ofstiig facts, is highly improbable. We designateamlas Loss if it is deemed the debtor is incapabtepayment. The
Company does not hold any loans designated asdsedsans that are designated as Loss are chargieel Allowance for Loan Losses. Loans that arearual are
designated as Substandard, Doubtful or Loss. Wigrtie a loan as Special Mention if the asset doesvarrant classification within one of the otleassifications, bt
does contain a potential weakness that deservssrctention.

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassidieDecember 31, 2013:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandar  Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 9,94C $ 19,08¢ $ - % - $ 29,02¢
Commercial real esta 13,50: 16,82( - - 30,328
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7,992 14,89¢ - - 22,89(
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84¢ 14,02¢ - - 16,87
Cao-operative apartmen - 59 - - 59
Construction loan 74¢€ - - - 74¢€
Small Business Administratic 31C - - - 31C
Commercial business and ott 7,314 8,45( 50 - 15,81«
Total loans $ 4265 $ 73,34: $ 50 $ - $  116,04!

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassidieDecember 31, 2012:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar  Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 16,34 $ 22,76¢ $ - % - $ 39,11«
Commercial real esta 11,09% 27,87 - - 38,97¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,10« 26,50¢ - - 39,61(
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22 15,32¢ - - 20,55:
Ca-operative apartmen 10s 237 - - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - - 14,40:
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 212 244 - 77¢
Commercial business and other 3,04¢ 18,41¢ 1,08( - 22,54
Total loans $ 53,04« $ 121,94t $ 132¢ $ - $ 176,31«
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the years ended Decenib

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Balance, beginning of ye. $ 31,10¢ % 30,34« % 27,69¢
Provision for loan losse 13,93t 21,00( 21,50(
Charge-offs (14,849 (21,269 (19,450
Recoveries 1,58( 1,02¢ 59t
Balance, end of ye: $ 3L,77¢  $ 31,10¢  $ 30,34«
The following are net loan charge-offs by loan typethe years ended December 31:
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 3,042 $ 587 $ 6,654
Commercial real esta 727 2,43¢ 4,98¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 3,94( 3,92¢ 2,521
One-to-four family — residentia 42¢ 1,55¢ 2,162
Cao-operative apartmen 104 62 -
Constructior 2,67¢ 4,591 1,08¢
Small Business Administratic 37C 237 811
Commercial business and ott 1,971 1,557 63C

Total net loan charge-offs $ 13,260 $ 20,24C  $ 18,85¢

4. Loans held for sale

The Company has implemented a strategy of selmtaim delinquent and ngmerforming loans. Once the Company has decidedlt@a $oan, the sale usually will clc
in a short period of time, generally within the saquarter. Loans designated held for sale arassified from loans held for investment to loanis! fier sale. Terms
sale include cash due upon the closing of the salepntingencies or recourse to the Company amitsg is released to the buyer.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ende
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed:  Net charg-offs Net gain (los¢
Multi-family residentia 21 $ 11,42 $ (1,029 $ 99
Commercial real esta 9 5,48¢ (709) 6
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 39 11,427 (2,797 (52)
Constructior 2 5,06¢ (164) -
Commercial business and ott 1 - (21) -

Total 72 $  3340. $ (4,709 $ 53
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The above table does not include one performingneernial real estate loan for $2.4 million which veadd for a net gain of $0.2 million during the yeaded
December 31, 2013.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perifiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ended
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed:  Net charg-offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 34 $ 21,42¢ % (2,979 $ (46)
Commercial real esta 11 5,86¢ (572) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 25 8,27( (1,92%) -
Constructior 3 2,54( (57 -
Commercial business and other 4 6,11¢ (136) 8

Total 77 % 44,220 $ (5,666 $ (38

The above table does not include $0.7 million ofgrening Small Business Administration loans tharevsold for a net gain of $60,000 during the yeated Decemb
31, 2012.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perifiog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ende
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed:  Net charg-offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 26 $ 15,247 $ (2,767 $ 16€
Commercial real esta 4 5,22¢ (367) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1C 3,067 (519 -
Constructior 2 4,03¢ (©)] -
Commercial business and ott 2 245 = 1

Total 4 % 2781 $ (3,65) $ 167

The above table does not include $3.9 million ofgrening Small Business Administration loans tharevsold for a net gain of $344,000 during the wealed
December 31, 2011.
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5. Other Real Estate Owned
The following table shows the activity in Other REatate Owned (“OREQ”) during the periods indicate

For the years ende
December 31
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Balance at beginning of ye $ 527¢ $ 3,17¢ $ 1,58¢
Acquisitions 5,36¢ 6,127 7,28¢
Reductions to carrying valt (243 (516) (209)
Sales (7,419 (3,512) (5,486)
Balance at end of ye. $ 298 $ 527¢ $ 3,17¢

The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and write-downs of OREO reported in the Caleteld Statements of Income during the periodsepites!:

For the years ende
December 31
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Gross gain: $ 44  $ 78 $ 357
Gross losse (89) (255) (135)
Write-down of carrying valu (243 (51€) (209)

Total $ 111 $ (693 $ 13

6. Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgatiiterminable fair values and all investmentsahtdecurities are classified in one of the follogvihre:
categories and accounted for accordingly: (1) trgdiecurities, (2) securities available for salé @) securities held-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitiesegurities held-tenaturity during the years ended December 31, 20tB2912. Securities available for sale
recorded at fair value.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at DecemberZ113:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands

Corporate $ 100,36: $ 101,712: $ 2,31 % 967
Municipals 127,96° 123,42: 93 4,637
Mutual funds 21,56¢ 21,56¢ - -
Other 18,16( 14,93t - 3,22¢
Total other securitie 268,05« 261,63¢ 2,40¢ 8,82¢
REMIC and CMC 494,98: 489,67( 6,51¢ 11,83(
GNMA 38,97 40,87 2,32¢ 42F
FNMA 217,61! 212,32. 2,23¢ 7,52¢
FHLMC 13,29’ 13,29( 22€ 233
Total mortgag-backed securitie 764,87( 756,15t 11,30( 20,01+«
Total securities available for sale $ 103292 $ 1,017,790 $ 13,70¢ $ 28,84

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table aloslede two private issue collateralized mortgagéigations (“CMQO”)that are collateralized by commercial
estate mortgages with an amortized cost and maake¢ of $13.9 million at December 31, 2013.

The following table shows the Compasyavailable for sale securities with gross unredlilbosses and their fair value, aggregated by oategnd length of time th
individual securities have been in a continuou®alized loss position, at December 31, 2013.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,03: $ %7 $ 39,03: $ %7 $ - 8 =
Municipals 100,87! 4,637 95,95¢ 4,187 4,917 45C
Other 6,337 3,22% - - 6,331 3,22%
Total other securitie 146,24! 8,82¢ 134,99: 5,15¢ 11,25¢ 3,67¢
REMIC and CMC 298,16! 11,83( 279,74: 10,65( 18,42: 1,18(C
GNMA 9,21: 42¢F 9,21: 42¢F - -
FNMA 139,99¢ 7,52¢ 131,24¢ 6,65¢ 8,751 872
FHLMC 7,47¢ 233& 7,47¢ 238 - -
Total mortgag-backed securitie 454,85! 20,01« 427,68: 17,96: 27,17: 2,052
Total securities available for se $ 601,100 $ 28,84 $ 562,67 $ 23,11¢ $ 38,427 $ 5,72

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fulognized in earnings if an investor has the intersell the debt security or if it is more likelyan not that the invesi
will be required to sell the debt security befoeeavery of its amortized cost. However, even ifirarestor does not expect to sell a debt secutity,ihvestor mu
evaluate the expected cash flows to be receiveddateimine if a credit loss has occurred. In thenéthat a credit loss has occurred, only the amotiimpairmen
associated with the credit loss is recognized mmiegs in the Consolidated Statements of Incomeoimts relating to factors other than credit losmesrecorded

accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI")hmitStockholdersEquity. Additional disclosures regarding the cadtian of credit losses as well as fac
considered by the investor in reaching a conclugiahan investment is not other-than-temporanipaired are required.

The Company reviewed each investment that had eealired loss at December 31, 2013. An unrealiaed éxists when the current fair value of an invest is les
than its amortized cost basis. Unrealized losseavailable for sale securities, that are deemdzkttemporary, are recorded in AOCI, net of taxrdahzed losses tr
are considered to be other-thi@mporary are split between credit related and reaticrelated impairments, with the credit relaiiegairment being recorded as a chi
against earnings and the noncredit related impaittneing recorded in AOCI, net of tax.
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The Company evaluates its pooled trust preferredrgges, included in the table above in the robelad “Other”,using an impairment model through an indeper

third party, which includes evaluating the finahcandition of each counterparty. For single isduest preferred securities, the Company evaludesssuess financia

condition. The Company evaluates its mortghgeked securities by reviewing the characteristfdbe securities, including delinquency and foosare levels, project

losses at various loss severity levels and cratiaecement and coverage. In addition, private i€3M©s are evaluated using an impairment model tjiroar

independent third party. When an OTTI is identifidee portion of the impairment that is credit tethis determined by management by using the faligunethods: (1

for trust preferred securities, the credit relaigairment is determined by using a discounted dlsth model from an independent third party, witte tdifferenc

between the present value of the projected castsflnd the amortized cost basis of the securitgrdedd as a credit related loss against earningsp(2mortgage-
backed securities, credit related impairment igheined for each security by estimating lossesdasea set of assumptions, which includes delinquamd foreclosui

levels, projected losses at various loss seveewels, credit enhancement and coverage and (3prfeate issue CMOs, through an impairment modemfrar

independent third party and then recording thoimated losses as a credit related loss againsinegs:

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities aeber 31, 2013 consist of losses on four Corpaaterities. The unrealized losses were causeddwemments i
interest rates. It is not anticipated that theseises would be settled at a price that is l&ésstthe amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of these secur
is performing according to its terms and, in thenimm of management, will continue to perform actog to its terms. The Company does not have tteairio sell thes
securities and it is more likely than not the Compwill not be required to sell the securities lvefoecovery of the securitieamortized cost basis. This conclusio
based upon considering the Compangash and working capital requirements and canthand regulatory obligations, none of which @empany believes wot
cause the sale of the securities. Therefore, tirep@aay did not consider these investments to be-dtiaa-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities atddeber 31, 2013, consist of losses on 33 muniagalrities. The unrealized losses were caused lwements i
interest rates. It is not anticipated that theseises would be settled at a price that is l&ésstthe amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of these secur
is performing according to its terms and, in thenimm of management, will continue to perform actog to its terms. The Company does not have tteairio sell thes
securities and it is more likely than not the Compuwiill not be required to sell the securities refoecovery of the securities amortized cost basis conclusion |
based upon considering the Compangash and working capital requirements and canthand regulatory obligations, none of which @empany believes wot
cause the sale of the securities. Therefore, tirep@aay did not consider these investments to be-dtiaa-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.

Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at Deeeib, 2013, consist of losses on one single igsustr preferred security and two pooled trust gmefd securities. Tl
unrealized losses on such securities were causathliet interest volatility, a significant widenio§ credit spreads across markets for these sisuand illiquidity an
uncertainty in the financial markets. These seasitire currently rated below investment grade. pbeled trust preferred securities do not haveatetél that i
subordinate to the classes the Company owns. Thgp&uwys management evaluates these securities usingpairiment model, through an independent third painy
is applied to debt securities. In estimating OTddses, management considers: (1) the length ofaimdehe extent to which the fair value has bess tean amortiz¢
cost; (2) the current interest rate environmenjttt§g financial condition and neterm prospects of the issuer, if applicable; andt{d intent and ability of the Compse
to retain its investment in the security for a pdrof time sufficient to allow for any anticipateecovery in fair value. Additionally, managementiesvs the financit
condition of each individual issuer within the pedltrust preferred securities. All of the issuefrshe underlying collateral of the pooled trustfpreed securities v
reviewed are banks.

For each bank, our review included the followpegformance items of the banks:

Ratio of tangible equity to assets

Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capital

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarters

Return on average assets for most recent two gsarte
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Texas Ratio (ratio of non-performing assets pleetsspast due over 90 days divided by tangibletgglis the reserve for loan losses)
Credit ratings (where applicable)

Capital issuances within the past year (where eable)

Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion (“FDIC”) assisted acquisitions (where apabte)

Based on the review of the above factors, we calecluhat:
All of the performing issuers in our pools are wepitalized banks, and do not appear likely talbsed by their regulators.
All of the performing issuers in our pools will dorue as a going concern and will not default agirteecurities.

In order to estimate potential future defaults deterrals, we segregated the performing underligagers by their Texas Ratio. We then reviewedoperihg issuet
with Texas Ratios in excess of 50%. The Texas Rsigokey indicator of the health of the institatiand the likelihood of failure. This ratio compsitee problem ass:
of the institution to the institution’available capital and reserves to absorb lossg¢ste likely to occur in these assets. Thereomasissuer in our pooled trust prefel
securities which had a Texas Ratio in excess of. B@% assigned a 25% default rate to this issudrothkr issuers in our pooled trust preferred séesrhad a Tex:
Ratio below 50%. We assigned a zero percent defatel to these issuers. Our analysis also asstimedssuers currently deferring would default withrecovery, ar
issuers that have defaulted will have no recovery.

We had an independent third party prepare a digedurash flow analysis for each of these poolest fpueferred securities based on the assumpticesisied abov
Other significant assumptions were: (1) two isstetaling $26.7 million will prepay in the first guter of 2014; (2) two issuers totaling $21.5 roilliwill prepay in th
second quarter of 2015; (3) senior classes willoaditthe debt on their portions; and (4) use ef fimward London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR:)rve. The cas
flows were discounted at the effective rate foresecurity.

The Company also owns a pooled trust preferredrisgdhat is carried under the fair value optionhexe the unrealized losses are included in the didasec
Statements of Income — Net gain (loss) from falugadjustments.

It is not anticipated at this time that the oneglrissuer trust preferred security and the twdgubtrust preferred securities would be settled ptice that is less than -
amortized cost of the Compasyinvestment. Each of these securities is perfaggnasiccording to its terms and, in the opinion of egement based on the rev
performed at December 31, 2013, will continue tdgren according to its terms. The Company doeshaoe the intent to sell these securities andritase likely tha
not the Company will not be required to sell theusiies before recovery of the securitieshortized cost basis. This conclusion is based wmorsidering th
Companys cash and working capital requirements and canaband regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cause the sale of the s&x
Therefore, the Company did not consider the onglesiissuer trust preferred security and the twdgmbtrust preferred securities to be other-ttemporarily impaired
December 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2013, the Company held five trusfesred issues which had a current credit ratingt deast one rating below investment grade. TWthose issue

are carried under the fair value option and thesgfehanges in fair value are included in the Chaated Statement of Income Net gain (loss) from fair val
adjustments.
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The following table details the remaining threestrpreferred issues that were evaluated to deterihthey were other-than-temporarily impaired &cBmber 31, 2013.
The class the Company owns in pooled trust prelesegurities does not have any excess subordination

Deferrals/Defaults

Actual as ¢ Expected
Cumulative Percentagt Percentage Current
Issuer Performing Amortized Fair Credit Related of Original  of Performing Lowest
Type Class Banks Cost Value OTTI Security Collateral Rating
(Dollars in thousands
Single issue n/e 1 30C 287 - None None BB-
Pooled issue B1 16 5,617 3,20( 2,19¢ 23.2% 0.C% C
Pooled issue C1 16 3,64% 2,85( 1,542 21.2% 1.5% C

Total $ 956z $ 633 % 3,73¢

REMIC and CMO:

The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage tmerg Conduit (‘REMIC")and CMO securities at December 31, 2013 consid¢bdtsues from the Federal Hc
Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC"), 17 issues frdhe Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMANd seven issues from Government National Mori
Association (“GNMA”).

The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO seesrisued by FHLMC FNMA and GNMA were caused by ements in interest rates. It is not anticipated
these securities would be settled at a price thisis than the amortized cost of the Compamwestment. Each of these securities is perfaratctording to its terrr
and, in the opinion of management, will continugéaform according to its terms. The Company dagsave the intent to sell these securities argritore likely tha
not the Company will not be required to sell theusities before recovery of the securities amodizest basis. This conclusion is based upon corisgithe Company
cash and working capital requirements, and contedend regulatory obligations, none of which tt@pany believes would cause the sale of the semuriTherefore
the Company did not consider these investments wther-than-temporarily impaired at December 81,32

Credit related impairment for mortgabacked securities are determined for each sedwyigstimating losses based on the following setsstimptions: (1) delinquer
and foreclosure levels; (2) projected losses dbuarloss severity levels; and (3) credit enhance#raad coverage. Based on these reviews, a ceddied OTTI charc
was recorded during the year ended December 3B @0Xour private issue CMOs of $1.4 million. TBempany recorded credit related OTTI charges tajaH0.¢
million on five private issue CMOs during the yeaded December 31, 2012 and $1.6 million on fowape issue CMOs during the year ended Decembe2(®1,.

The portion of the above mentioned OTTI, recordednd the year ended December 31, 2013, that wateceto credit losses was calculated using thieviiihg
significant assumptions: (1) delinquency and flosare levels of 7%-24%; (2) projected loss seyarft40%-50%; (3) assumed default rates of 5286 for the first 1
months, 2%-10% for the next 12 months, 2%-8% ferribxt six months, 2%-6% for the next six monthd 2%-4% for the next 12 months and 2% thereafter; a)
prepayment speeds of 6%-10%.

The private issue CMOs which incurred the abovéitrelated OTTI charges were sold during the yerated December 31, 2013 for proceeds of $18.3omitkealizing
a loss on sale of $1.7 million.

GNMA:

The unrealized losses in GNMA securities at Decerlie 2013 consist of losses on one security. Threalized losses were caused by movements in stteies. It i
not anticipated that this security would be setdéd price that is less than the amortized cogh@iCompanys investment. This security is performing accordimgts
terms and, in the opinion of management, will conti to perform according to its terms. The Compadwmgs not have the intent to sell this security inglmore likely
than not the Company will not be required to skd security before recovery of the secustgmortized cost basis. This conclusion is basexh wonsidering tt
Companys cash and working capital requirements and canhand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cause the sale of the gg«
Therefore, the Company did not consider this sectoibe other-than-temporarily impaired at Decengfe 2013.
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FNMA:

The unrealized losses in FNMA securities at Decer8he2013 consist of losses on 19 securities. Urirealized losses were caused by movements iregiteates. It
not anticipated that these securities would bdesktt a price that is less than the amortized cbtte Companys investment. Each of these securities is perfa
according to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according to itsmte. The Company does not have the intent to lsedlet securiti¢
and it is more likely than not the Company will et required to sell the securities before recoeémpe securities amortized cost basis. This amich is based up
considering the Comparg/cash and working capital requirements and conizbend regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes will cause the sal
the securities. Therefore, the Company did notidenshese investments to be other-than-temporemipaired at December 31, 2013.

FHMLC:

Theunrealized losses in FHMLC securities at Decemlie2813 consist of losses on one security. Thealizezl losses were caused by movements in inteatest. It it
not anticipated that this security would be setded price that is less than the amortized cogh@Companys investment. This security is performing accordimgts
terms and, in the opinion of management, will conti to perform according to its terms. The Compadwmgs not have the intent to sell this security iiglmore likely
than not the Company will not be required to skd security before recovery of the secustgmortized cost basis. This conclusion is basenh wonsidering tt
Companys cash and working capital requirements and canhand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cause the sale of the gg«
Therefore, the Company did not consider this sectoibe other-than-temporarily impaired at Decengie 2013.

The following table details gross unrealized losssrded in AOCI and the ending credit loss amamidebt securities, as of December 31, 2013, fuchvthe
Company has recorded a credit related OTTI charglee Consolidated Statements of Income:

Gross Unrealize
Losses Record¢ Ending Cred

(in thousands Amortized Cos  Fair Value In AOCI Loss Amoun
Trust preferred securitigd $ 9,262 $ 6,05( $ 3,212 $ 3,73¢
Total $ 9,26z $ 6,05 $ 3,21z $ 3,73¢

(1) The Company has recorded OTTI charges in the Ciolagetl Statements of Income on two pooled trusiepred securities for which a portion of the OT3
currently recorded in AOC

The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamargdebt securities held by the Company for whigortion of OTTI
was recognized in AOCI for the periods indicated:

For the years ende
December 31

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Beginning balanc $ 6,17¢ $ 6,92 $ 7,011
Recognition of actual loss! (842) 1,279 (1,667%)
OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eag 1,41¢ 77€ 1,57¢
Securities sold during the peri (3,017% (249) -
Securities where there is an intent to sell or ireguent to sell - - -
Ending balance $ 3,73t $ 6,17¢ $ 6,927
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofGbmpanys securities, classified as available for saleeddnber 31, 2013, by contractual maturity, are shioglow
Expected maturities will differ from contractual mgties because borrowers may have the right iamc@repay obligations with or without call orggayment penaltie

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Due in one year or le: $ 3242: $ 32,56:
Due after one year through five ye 30,94 32,46:
Due after five years through ten ye 64,07¢ 63,36
Due after ten yeal 140,61( 133,24«
Total other securitie 268,05« 261,63«
Mortgage-backed securitie 764,87( 756,15¢
Total securities available for s¢ $ 1,032,922 $ 1,017,79

The following table represents the gross gainsgaosds losses realized from the sale of securitiagable for sale for the periods indicated:

For the years ende
December 31

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Gross gains from the sale of securi $ 5,22 $ 154 $ -
Gross losses from the sale of securi (2,200 (107) -
Net gains from the sale of securit $ 3,021 $ 47  $ -
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The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at DecemberZ12:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands

U.S. government agenci $ 31,40¢ $ 3151 % 104 $ =
Corporate 83,38¢ 87,48 4,09¢ -
Municipals 74,22¢ 75,29 1,152 83
Mutual funds 21,84 21,84 - -
Other 17,79 13,31¢ 17 4,49¢
Total other securitie 228,66t 229,45 5,36¢ 4,582
REMIC and CMC 453,46¢ 474,05( 23,69( 3,10¢
GNMA 43,21: 46,93: 3,721 -
FNMA 168,04( 175,92¢ 7,971 82
FHLMC 22,56: 23,20: 64C -
Total mortgag-backed securitie 687,28 720,11: 36,02: 3,19(
Total securities available for s¢ $ 91594 $ 94956t $ 41,39, $ 7,772

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alslede two private issue collateralized mortgagéigations (“CMQO”)that are collateralized by commercial
estate mortgages with an amortized cost and maate¢ of $15.2 million and $15.7 million, respeetiy, at December 31, 2012. The remaining priveéeé mortgage-
backed securities are backed by one-to-four farejdential mortgage loans.

The following table shows the Compasyavailable for sale securities with gross unredlilbsses and their fair value, aggregated by oategnd length of time th
individual securities have been in a continuoualized loss position, at December 31, 2012.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Municipals $ 9,78. $ 83 $ 9,78. $ 83 % - % -
Other 5,06/ 4,49¢ - - 5,064 4,49¢
Total other securities 14,84¢ 4,582 9,782 83 5,064 4,49¢
REMIC and CMC 64,12¢ 3,10¢ 40,65: 15E 23,47 2,95:
FNMA 10,33: 82 10,33: 82 - -
Total mortgag-backed securitie 74,457 3,19( 50,98: 237 23,47¢ 2,95:
Total securities available for se $ 89,30: $ 7772 $ 60,76¢ $ 32C % 28,53¢ $ 7,452

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities atedeber 31, 2012, consisted of losses on four muatisiecurities. The unrealized losses were caug@dovements i
interest rates. It was not anticipated that thesmirities would be settled at a price that was thas the amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of the
securities was performing according to its termd, am the opinion of management, would continugéoform according to its terms. The Company did heote th
intent to sell these securities and it was morgyikhan not the Company would not be requirecetbtke securities before recovery of the secwiimortized cost bas
This conclusion was based upon considering the @ogip cash and working capital requirements and canh@nd regulatory obligations, none of which
Company believed would cause the sale of the seuriTherefore, the Company did not consider tli@gestments to be other-théemporarily impaired at Decem!
31, 2012.
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Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at Deeerdb, 2012, consisted of losses on one singleiigsust preferred security and two pooled trusfemred securitie
The unrealized losses on such securities were ddysmarket interest volatility, a significant widag of credit spreads across markets for thesgrisies and illiquidity
and uncertainty in the financial markets. Theseustes were rated below investment grade. The gmbatust preferred securities did not have col&ténat wa
subordinate to the classes the Company owns. Thgp@ays management evaluated these securities usingpairiment model, through an independent third painty
was applied to debt securities. In estimating OToBlses, management considered: (1) the lengthmef &ind the extent to which the fair value had Hess tha
amortized cost; (2) the current interest rate emvitent; (3) the financial condition and néamn prospects of the issuer, if applicable; andhd intent and ability of tt
Company to retain its investment in the securityderiod of time sufficient to allow for any asifiated recovery in fair value. Additionally, maeagent reviewed tt
financial condition of each individual issuer withihe pooled trust preferred securities. All of tksuers of the underlying collateral of the pootagst preferre
securities we reviewed are banks.

For each bank, our review included the followingf@enance items of the banks:

Ratio of tangible equity to assets

Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capital

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarters

Return on average assets for most recent two gsarte

Texas Ratio (ratio of non-performing assets plsespast due over 90 days divided by tangibleteglus the reserve for loan losses)
Credit ratings (where applicable)

Capital issuances within the past year (where egplée)

Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion (“FDIC") assisted acquisitions (where apahite)

Based on the review of the above factors, we cateciuhat:
All of the performing issuers in our pools are wepitalized banks, and do not appear likely talbsed by their regulators.
All of the performing issuers in our pools will dotue as a going concern and will not default airteecurities.

In order to estimate potential future defaults daterrals, we segregated the performing underligagers by their Texas Ratio. The Texas Ratiokisyaindicator of th
health of the institution and the likelihood ofltaie. This ratio compares the problem assets ofrthigtution to the institutiors available capital and reserves to ab
losses that are likely to occur in these assetsteltvere no issuers in our pooled trust prefereedrities which had a Texas Ratio in excess of B .assigned a ze¢
default rate to these issuers. Our analysis alsonasd that issuers currently deferring would défaith no recovery, and issuers that have defaultdidhave nc
recovery.

We had an independent third party prepare a didgedurash flow analysis for each of these poolest foueferred securities based on the assumptisesisied abov
Other significant assumptions were: (1) two isstietaling $21.5 million will prepay in five yearsid two issuers totaling $18.7 million will prepalytlheir next quarter!
payment date; (2) senior classes will not calldbbt on their portions; and (3) use of the forwanddon Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOREurve. The cash flows we
discounted at the effective rate for each security.

One of the pooled trust preferred securities wasr 80 days past due and the Company has stoppedracinterest. The remaining pooled trust pref@security, a
well as the single issuer trust preferred secuws performing according to their terms. Basedh&se reviews, a credit related OTTI charge wagewmrded on tf
single issuer trust preferred security or the twoled trust preferred securities during the yeaiedrDecember 31, 2012.

The Company also owns a pooled trust preferredriggdhat is carried under the fair value optionhexe the unrealized losses are included in the didasec
Statements of Income. This security was over 9@ gast due and the Company has stopped accruergsh
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It was not anticipated at the time that the ong@lsiissuer trust preferred security and the twdgubdrust preferred securities, would be settled ptice that was le
than the amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each of these securities was perfgyraccording to its terms; except for the pooledttpreferred securities
which the Company had stopped accruing interesliszsissed above, and, in the opinion of managetresed on the review performed at December 31, 2044lc
continue to perform according to its terms. The @any did not have the intent to sell these seesrind it was more likely than not the Company dowlt be require
to sell the securities before recovery of the séesramortized cost basis. This conclusion wasthaspon considering the Compasiycash and working capi
requirements, and contractual and regulatory otitiga, none of which the Company believed wouldseathe sale of the securities. Therefore, the Cagngéad no
consider one single issuer trust preferred seesrénd the two pooled trust preferred securitiégetother-than-temporarily impaired at December2812.

7. Bank Premises and Equipment, Net

Bank premises and equipment are as follows at DeeeB1:

2013 2012
(In thousands
Land $ 3,551 $ 3,551
Building and leasehold improvemel 22,464 22,12¢
Equipment and furniture 18,21¢ 18,06¢
Total 44,23« 43,74,
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza 23,87¢ 21,24
Bank premises and equipment, $ 20,35¢ $ 22,50(
8. Deposits
Total deposits at December 31, 2013 and 2012, lendi¢ighted average rate on deposits at Decemb@033, are as follows:
Weighted
Average
Rate
2013 2012 2013

(Dollars in thousands
Interes-bearing deposit:

Certificate of deposit accour $ 1,120,95 $ 1,253,22 2.01%
Savings account 265,00: 288,39¢ 0.1¢
Money market accoun 199,90° 148,61¢ 0.21
NOW accountt 1,416,77. 1,136,59 0.5C
Total interes-bearing deposit 3,002,63! 2,826,84.
Non-interest bearing demand deposits 197,34 155,78
Total due to depositol 3,199,98; 2,982,63:
Mortgagors' escrow depos 32,79¢ 32,56( 0.0¢
Total deposit: $ 3,232,78 $ 3,015,19

The aggregate amount of time deposits with denaiiima of $100,000 or more (excluding brokered dapassued in $1,000.00 amounts under a masteficate of
deposit) was $335.4 million and $393.7 million @&dember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The aggregnount of brokered deposits was $517.4 mitiot $522.
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Deposits obtained from the governmental divisioa ewllateralized by securities or letters of creditued by FHLBNY. The letters of credit are collateralized
mortgage loans pledged by the Bank.

At December 31, 2013, there were $407.4 millioséourities and $517.8 million of letters of creuliédged as collateral for $867.1 million in govermhdeposits. £
December 31, 2012, there were $439.5 million iusges and $414.6 million of letters of credit ¢ged as collateral for $697.0 million in governmeeaposits.
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Interest expense on deposits is summarized asv®lior the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Certificate of deposit accour $ 2441 $ 32,98: % 38,37
Savings account 51t 68¢ 2,091
Money market accoun 294 39¢ 1,30¢
NOW account: 6,77 6,27~ 6,61(
Total due to depositol 32,00( 40,34¢ 48,38:
Mortgagors' escrow deposits 37 36 49
Total interest expense on deposits $ 32,037 $ 40,38: $ 48,43

Scheduled remaining maturities of certificate gbakgt accounts are summarized as follows for tla@syended December 31:

Within 12 months

More than 12 months to 24 mont
More than 24 months to 36 moni
More than 36 months to 48 monti
More than 48 months to 60 mont
More than 60 months

Total certificate of deposit accounts
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2013 2012

(In thousands
$ 459,01t $ 410,05

318,21! 418,95¢
158,05( 248,59(
51,50¢ 111,05
108,48¢ 33,04¢
25,671 31,52¢

$ 1,120,950 $ 1,253,222




9. Borrowed Funds and Securities Sold Under Agreemés to Repurchase

Borrowed funds and securities sold under agreentemepurchase are summarized as follows at Dece&ibe

2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate

(Dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate:

Due in 201z - -% 30,00( 2.92%
Due in 201¢ 9,30( 1.27 9,30( 1.27
Due in 201¢ 68,00( 3.2 88,00( 3.4z
Due in 2017 38,00( 4.1¢ 58,00( 4.1¢
Due in 202C 40,00( 3.4E - -
Total repurchase agreeme- fixed rate 155,30( 3.41 185,30( 3.47
FHLB-NY advance: fixed rate:
Due in 201z - - 142,00( 0.4C
Due in 201¢ 89,50( 0.6 129,91: 2.07
Due in 201t 166,73. 1.21 166,34¢ 1.21
Due in 201¢ 331,06:. 1.2C 158,63t iL5E
Due in 2017 174,16( 2.7¢ 142,28 3.2¢
Due in 201¢ 65,79¢ 1.24 - -
Total FHLB-NY advance:- fixed rate 827,25. 1.4¢ 739,18: 1.6¢€
Junior subordinated debentu- adjustable rat
Due in 2037 29,57( 5.67 23,92: 6.92
Total borrowings $ 1,012,12. 1.90% $  948,40! 2.15%
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Borrowings which have call provisions are summatiae follows at December 31, 2013:

Amount Rate Maturity Date Call Date
(Dollars in thousands
FHLB-NY advance:- fixed rate $ 20,00( 4.45 10/10/201 1/9/201«
FHLB-NY advance:- fixed rate 30,00( 4.6( 10/10/201 1/9/201+
FHLB-NY advance:- fixed rate 10,00( 4.1z 9/18/201° 3/17/201«
FHLB-NY advance: fixed rate 10,00( 4.32 9/18/201 3/17/201-
FHLB-NY advance:- fixed rate 10,00( 4.1t 9/18/201 3/18/201-
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 3.7¢ 8/1/202( 2/1/201¢
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 18,00( 4.2¢ 10/18/201 1/21/201-
Repurchase agreemer fixed rate 10,00( 4.8¢ 7/28/201t 1/28/201-
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 5.0z 7/28/201( 1/28/201-
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 4.0t 9/19/201° 3/19/201«
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 18,00( 1.6C 4/19/201t 4/21/201-
Repurchase agreemer fixed rate 20,00( 2.2C 7/12/201¢ 7/14/201-
Repurchase agreemer fixed rate 10,00( 3.0¢ 8/1/202( 2/1/201¢
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00( 3.1¢ 2/1/202( 2/1/201¢

As part of the Company’s strategy to finance invesit opportunities and manage its cost of fundsGbmpany enters into repurchase agreements vakebdealer
and the FHLBNY. These agreements are recorded as financingactions and the obligations to repurchase arecatefl as a liability in the consolidated finar
statements. The securities underlying the agreenvegre delivered to the broker-dealers or the FHBwho arranged the transaction. The securitiesairemegistere
in the name of the Company and are returned upmikturity of the agreement. The Company retaiagitiht of substitution of collateral throughouetterms of th
agreements. All the repurchase agreements aaeamallized by mortgageacked securities. Information relating to thegeaments at or for the years ended Dece
31is as follows:

2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands
Book value of collatere $ 199,447 $  228,62(
Estimated fair value of collater 199,44 228,62(
Average balance of outstanding agreements durmgeht 172,94 185,30(
Maximum balance of outstanding agreements at almemd during the ye: 185,30( 185,30(
Average interest rate of outstanding agreemenisgitie yea 3.42% 3.62%

Pursuant to a blanket collateral agreement witHFHEB-NY, advances are secured by all of the Baskixk in the FHLBNY and certain qualifying mortgage loan:
an amount at least equal to 110% of the advancesanding. The Bank may also pledge mortgage-baekeddmortgageelated securities, and other securities
otherwise pledged.

The Holding Company has three trusts formed underlaws of the State of Delaware for the purposéssiing capital and common securities, and inmgsthe
proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentoféise Holding Company. Each of these trusts iss8816 million of securities which had a fixeate for the first fiv
years, after which they reset quarterly based spread over 3aonth LIBOR. The securities were first callablgpat after five years, and pay cumulative dividerids
Holding Company has guaranteed the payment of ttnasts’ obligations under their capital securities. Theniof the junior subordinated debentures are threse
those of the capital securities issued by thegrdgte junior subordinated debentures issued biAthding Company are carried at fair value in tbasolidated financi.
statements.
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The table below shows the terms of the securitigsad by the trusts.

Flushing Financia
Capital Trust Il

Flushing Financia
Capital Trust 1l

Flushing Financia
Capital Trust IV

Issue Dat¢ June 20, 20C
Initial Rate 7.1%
First Reset Dat September 1, 20
Spread over-month LIBOR 1.41%
Maturity Date September 1, 20:

June 21, 20C
6.8%%
June 15, 201
1.4%
September 15, 20:

July 3, 200

6.85%

July 30,201

1.42%

July 30, 203

The consolidated financial statements do not irelie securities issued by the trusts, but rati@ude the junior subordinated debentures of thiiig Company.

10. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatextiéral and combined New York State and New Yorly @itome tax returns with its subsidiaries, wite #xceptio
of the trusts, which file separate Federal incomereturns as trusts, and FPFC, which files a s¢pdfederal income tax return as a real estatestimest trust. Tt
Company remains subject to examination for its Feddend New York State income tax returns for tearg ending on or after December 31, 2010 andsddew Yor}
City income tax returns for years ending on orralitecember 31, 2011. During the three years endsztiber 31, 2013, the Company did not recognizemaateria

amounts of interest or penalties on income taxes.

The Company'’s annual tax liability for New York &and New York City was the greater of a tax basetentire net income,” “alternative entire netame,” ‘taxable
assets” or a minimum tax. For the years endedbbee31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company'’s stateity tax were based on “entire net income.”

Income tax provisions are summarized as followsHeryears ended December 31:

Federal:
Current
Deferred
Total federal tax provision
State and Loca
Current
Deferred
Total state and local tax provision
Total income tax provision
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2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

$ 17,80¢ $ 17,33 $ 17,31«
(469 (590 43¢

17,34« 16,74( 17,74¢

5,82¢ 5,321 5,47(

(216 (219 25C

5,61Z 5,107 5,72(

$ 22,95¢ $ 21,847 $ 23,46¢




The income tax provision in the Consolidated Stateis of Income has been provided at effective rafte37.8%, 38.9% and 39.9% for the years ended bee 31
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The effectivesrdiffer from the statutory federal income tateras follows for the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands
Taxes at federal statutory re $ 21,24¢ 35.(% $ 19,66: 35.(% $ 20,58¢ 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
State and local income tax, net of Fec income tax benef 3,64¢ 6.C 3,32( 5.¢ 3,71¢ 6.2
Other (1,940 (3.2 (1,135 (2.0 (83E) (1.4)
Taxes at effective ra $ 22,95¢ 37.8% $ 21,84" 38.% $ 23,46¢ 39.%%

The components of the income taxes attributabledome from operations and changes in equity afellasvs for the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Income from operation $ 22,95¢ $ 21847 % 23,46¢
Equity:

Change in fair value of securities available fde: (21,309 5,571 8,39¢

Current year actuarial gains (losses) of postmatnmt plans 2,527 (340 (1,939

Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior ggneredits 521 43¢ 22¢

Compensation expense for tax purposes in (8xoedess than that recognized for financial reporting pugs (443) 303 (292)

Total income taxe $ 425 $ 27,82: $ 29,86¢
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The components of the net deferred tax assetslified) are as follows at December 31:

2013 2012
(In thousands

Deferred tax asse

Postretirement benefi $ 488( $ 4,11¢
Allowance for loan losse 13,89 13,59:
Stock based compensati 2,32 2,37
Depreciatior 1,40( 1,217
Unrealized loss on securities available for ! 6,612 -
Fair value adjustment on financial assets cai at fair value 2,47( 3,152
Other-thar-temporary impairment charg 1,58¢ 2,70C
Adjustment required to recognize funded statupostretirement pension pla 2,21¢ 5,26¢
Other 2,33¢ 1,991

Deferred tax assi 37,711 34,40(

Deferred tax liability:

Core deposit intangible - 20t
Valuation differences resulting from acquilassets and liabilitie 2,80t 2,84¢
Fair value adjustment on financial liabilities ¢adrat fair value 14,91( 15,78:
Unrealized gains on securities available for : - 14,697
Other 1,89¢ 1,70%
Deferred tax liability 19,61: 35,23

Net deferred tax (liability) asset included in atfi@bilities) asset: $ 18,100 $ (837)

The Company has recorded a deferred tax asset7of $3llion. This represents the anticipated nefefal, state and local tax benefits expected toebbzed in futur
years upon the utilization of the underlying tatribtites comprising this balance. The Company bpsnted taxable income for federal, state, andl l@oapurposes |
each of the past three years. In management’saspim view of the Compang’previous, current and projected future earningrsdt, the probability that some of
Companys $19.6 million deferred tax liability can be ugedffset a portion of the deferred tax asset, el & certain tax planning strategies, it is nikely than no
that the deferred tax asset will be fully realizéktcordingly, no valuation allowance was deemetkssary for the deferred tax asset at Decemb&03B and 2012.

The Company does not have uncertain tax positioaisare deemed material. The Comparpplicy is to recognize interest and penaltiesneome taxes in operati
expenses. During the three years ended Decembg033, the Company did not recognize any matendumnts of interest or penalties on income taxes.

11. Stock Based Compensation

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ant tt@lCompany net income, as reported, includes $3.4 millidh33$million and $2.7 million, respectively,
stock-based compensation costs and $1.3 millios3, Sillion and $1.1 million, respectively, of incentax benefits related to the stock-based compensatlans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock otissing the Blacigcholes valuation model that uses the assumptiotesiin the table below. Key assumptions |
to estimate the fair value of stock options incltide exercise price of the award, the expectedopgdrm, the expected volatility of the Companyitsck price, the risk-
free interest rate over the optiorexXpected term and the annual dividend yield. Then@amny uses the fair value of the common stock erdtite of award to meas
compensation cost for restricted stock and restfictock unit awards. Compensation cost is recedn@er the vesting period of the award, usingstinaight line
method. There were no stock options granted folytees ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011e Twene 246,045, 230,675 and 214,095 restricteck stoits
granted for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2042011, respectively.
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The 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plan§ame effective on May 17, 2005 after approval leystockholders. The Omnibus Plan authorizes the
Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board cé®ors (the “Compensation Committee”) to grantgety of equity compensation awards as well ag-emm
and annual cash incentive awards, all of whichlmastructured so as to comply with Section 162(hthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended'iftternal
Revenue Code”). On May 17, 2011, stockholders ajgar@n amendment to the Omnibus Plan authoriziregditional 625,000 shares available for use fbvaiue
awards. As of December 31, 2013, there are 3746&8:s available for full value awards and 56,920es available for non-full value awards. To $atisock option
exercises or fund restricted stock and restrictecksunit awards, shares are issued from treasack sif available, otherwise new shares are isstldte Company
maintains separate pools of available shares fbvdiue as opposed to non-full value awards, ektegt shares can be moved from the non-full value to the full
value pool on a 3-for-1 basis. The exercise pramespare of a stock option grant may not be lesms the fair market value of the common stock ofGleenpany, as
defined in the Omnibus Plan, on the date of gradtraay not be re-priced without the approval of@wnpany’s stockholders. Options, stock appreaiatights,
restricted stock, restricted stock units and otiteck based awards granted under the Omnibus Riageaerally subject to a minimum vesting periothoge years with
stock options having a 10-year contractual termhe®awards do not have a contractual term of etipiraRestricted stock unit awards include partcigs who have
reached or are close to reaching retirement eliyipat which time such awards fully vest. Theseoaints are included in stock-based compensatioarse

Full Value AwardsThe first pool is available for full value awardsich as restricted stock unit awards. The pool lvéldecreased by the number of shares gran
full value awards. The pool will be increased frome to time by: (1) the number of shares thatraterned to or retained by the Company as a re$titte cancellatiol
expiration, forfeiture or other termination of dlfualue award (under the Omnibus Plan); (2) thdesaent of such an award in cash; (3) the deliverthe award hold
of fewer shares than the number underlying the éwacluding shares which are withheld from fulln@ awards: or (4) the surrender of shares by arcwolder il
payment of the exercise price or taxes with resgmeatfull value award. The Omnibus Plan will alltive Company to transfer shares from the fubinvalue pool to th
full value pool on a 3-for-1 basis, but does ntiwalthe transfer of shares from the full value pmothe non-full value pool.

The following table summarizes the Company'’s fallue awards at or for the year ended December(@8:2

Weighte-Average

Grant-Date

Full Value Awards Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at December 31, 20 318,05 $ 13.3¢
Grantec 246,04! 15.3(
Vested (187,87Y) 14.4;
Forfeited (29,637) 14.2¢
Non-vested at December 31, 20 346,58 $ 14.0¢
Vested but unissued at December 31, 2 215,43¢ $ 14.1¢

As of December 31, 2013, there was $3.5 milliototédl unrecognized compensation cost related tevested full value awards granted under the Omnitias. The
cost is expected to be recognized over a weightedage period of 3.0 years. The total fair valtiawards vested for the years ended December®B, 2012 ar
2011 were $2.9 million, $3.3 million and $1.8 nuhi, respectively. The vested but unissued fulleawards consist of awards made to employeesisradats who ar
eligible for retirement. According to the termstbé Omnibus Plan, these employees and directors ihavisk of forfeiture. These shares will be &bat the origini
contractual vesting dates.

Nor-Full Value Awards: The second pool is available for nart value awards, such as stock options. The pabhlbe increased from time to time by the numbé
shares that are returned to or retained by the @oynps a result of the cancellation, expiratiomfefture or other termination of a nduH value award (under tl
Omnibus Plan or the 1996 Stock Option IncentivenRla he second pool will not be replenished byrabavithheld or surrendered in payment of the egerprice ¢
taxes, retained by the Company as a result of¢hieedly to the award hold of fewer shares thannimaber underlying the award, or the settlemenhefaward in cash.
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The following table summarizes certain informati@garding the nofull value awards, all of which have been grantedstock options, at or for the year er
December 31, 2013:

Weighte- Weighted-Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Non-Full Value Awards Shares Price Term (years) (000) *
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 770,35 $ 15.92
Grantec - -
Exercisec (463,24 15.8¢
Forfeited (480) 15.23
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 306,63( $ 16.02 3.1 $ 1,43¢
Exercisable shares at December 31, Z 284,39( $ 16.61 3.0 $ 1,16¢
Vested but unexercisable shares at December 238, 20 8,16( $ 8.4 5.1 $ 10C

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the difénce between the market value of the underlytmeksand the exercise price of the option.

As of December 31, 2013, there was $1,000 of totedcognized compensation cost related to unvestedull value awards granted under the Omnibus Pléwat Tos
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-aeepagod of 0.1 years. The vested but unexerasabhfull value awards were made to employees who agibkd
for retirement. According to the terms of the OnusilPlan, these employees and directors have nmfifrfeiture. These shares will be exercisaliléha origina
contractual vesting dates.

Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefitd,iatrinsic value related to stock options exexdisand the weighted average grant date fair alueptions grante:
during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@ht are provided in the following table:

(In thousands, except grant date fair value) 2013 2012 2011

Proceeds from stock options exerci: $ 532 % 88t $ 2,04(
Fair value of shares received upon exercise okstptions 6,81¢ 90¢ 54
Tax benefit related to stock options exerci 151 56 184
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 1,22¢ 25€ 427
Weighted average fair value on grant ¢ n/e n/e n/e

Phantom Stock PlarThe Company maintains a ngualified phantom stock plan as a supplement tpritdit sharing plan for officers who have achievkd level o
Senior Vice President and above and completed eaeof service. However, officers who had achieaklast the level of Vice President and completeel year ¢
service prior to January 1, 2009 remain eligiblpadticipate in the phantom stock plan. Awardsmagle under this plan on certain compensation ligible for award
made under the profit sharing plan, due to the $esfithe profit sharing plan and the Internal Rese@€ode. Employees receive awards under this ptzpogtionate t
the amount they would have received under the tpsbfiring plan, but for limits imposed by the prsfiaring plan and the Internal Revenue Code. Wads are mac
as cash awards, and then converted to common stpgkalents (phantom shares) at the then currentanaalue of the Company’common stock. Dividends i
credited to each employeeaccount in the form of additional phantom shaaesh time the Company pays a dividend on its comstack. In the event of a change
control (as defined in this plan), an employeetsiiest is converted to a fixed dollar amount anehtked to be invested in the same manner as higstter the Banle
non-qualified deferred compensation plan. Employees$ ueder this plan 20% per year for 5 years. Empisyalso become 100% vested upon a change of ¢
Employees receive their vested interest in thia plathe form of a cash lump sum payment or instelits, as elected by the employee, after termimati@mploymen
The Company adjusts its liability under this plaritte fair value of the shares at the end of eaciog.

122




The following table summarizes the Company’s PhanBtock Plan at or for the year ended Decembe2@13:

Phantom Stock Ple Shares  Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 50,067 $ 15.3¢
Grantec 9,83: 15.9:
Forfeited (46) 19.9(
Distributions (530) 16.47
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 59,320 $§ 20.7(C
Vested at December 31, 20 59,20 $ 20.7C

The Company recorded stobksed compensation expense (benefit) for the ptrastock plan of $343,000, $155,000 and $(34,000jHe years ended December
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The total falug of distributions from the phantom stock plagrev$9,000, $12,000 and $3,000 for the years ebéeegmber 3:
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

12. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The amounts recognized in accumulated other corepeive income, on a pre-tax basis, consist ofdieviing, as of December 31:

Net Actuarial Prior Service
loss (gain cost (credit Total
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
(In thousands
Employee Retirement Ple $ 589¢ $ 11,841 $ 12,220 $ - % - 3 - $ 589¢ $ 11,841 $ 12,220
Other Postretirement Bene
Plans 20 1,19¢ 1,02¢ (70¢) (794 (879 (509) 408 14¢
Outside Directors Pla (49€) (409) (394) 171 21C 25C (325 (199) (1449
Total $ 5606 $ 12631 $ 1285 $ (537) $ (584 $ (629 $ 5071 $ 12,04¢ $ 12,22¢

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive incanieetrecognized as components of net periodic esepfem these plans in 2013 are as follows:

Net Actuaria  Prior Service

loss (gain’ cost (credit) Total
(In thousands
Employee Retirement Ple $ 75¢  $ - $ 75¢
Other Postretirement Benefit Ple - (85) (85)
Outside Directors Pla (60) 40 (20
$ 69¢ $ 45 $ 654

Employee Retirement Plan:

The Bank has a funded noncontributory defined beretfrement plan covering substantially all of alaried employees who were hired before Septeint2905 (th
“Retirement Plan”). The benefits are based on yeheervice and the employsetompensation during the three consecutive yadrsfahe final ten years of servi
which was completed prior to September 30, 2006 dtite the Retirement Plan was frozen, that pradiieehighest average. The Bankinding policy is to contribu
annually the amount recommended by the Retirem&nt'Pactuary. The Bank’s Retirement Plan investdiversified equity and fixedicome funds, which a
independently managed by a third party. The Comgamyributed $0.8 million, $0.7 million and $2.7Iloin to the Retirement Plan during the years enbledembe
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Compaery a December 31 measurement date for the Retitd?fan.

The following table sets forth, for the Retirem®tdn, the change in benefit obligation and assets for the Company, the amounts recognized ilCthesolidated
Statements of Financial Condition at December 31:
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2013 2012
(In thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 22,53. % 21,10:

Service cos - -

Interest cos 827 87¢

Actuarial (gains) los (2,485 1,42¢

Benefits paic (1,139 (877

Projected benefit obligation at end of y 19,74( 22,53

Change in plan asse

Market value of assets at beginning of y 17,30( 15,42:

Actual return on plan asse 3,49¢ 2,032

Employer contribution 831 72%

Benefits paid (1,139 (877)

Market value of plan assets at end of year 20,49¢ 17,30(
Accrued pension prepaid (liability) included in ettassets (liabilities $ 75€ $ (5,23))
Assumptions used to determine the Retirement Plaarigfit obligations are as follows at December 31:
2013 2012

Weighted average discount ri 4.6(% 3.7%%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e
Expected lon-term rate of return on asst 7.5(% 7.5(%

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Retirehf®an was $19.7 million and $22.5 million at Dexdxer 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The components of the net pension expense for ¢ieeent Plan are as follows for the years endeckbhber 31:

124




2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Service cos $ = & = & =
Interest cos 827 87¢ 91¢
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 1,22 1,032 63¢
Expected return on plan ass (1,267) (1,259 (1,169

Net pension expense (bene 78€ 654 394
Current year actuarial (gain) lo (4,722 652 3,71¢
Amortization of actuarial los (1,227) (1,037 (639)

Total recognized in other comprehensive incc (5,949 (380) 3,07¢
Total recognized in net pension cost (benefit) athetrcomprehensive incorr $ (5,15 $ 274 $ 3,46¢
Assumptions used to develop periodic pension arghe Retirement Plan for the years ended DeceStberere:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted average discount ri 3.7%% 4.25% 5.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e n/e
Expected lon-term rate of return on asst 7.5(% 7.5(% 8.0(%
The following benefit payments, which reflect exigetfuture service, are expected to be paid bR#étgement Plan:
Future
Benefit
For the years ending December Payments
(In thousands

2014 $ 1,03(
2015 1,09¢
2016 1,13(
2017 1,141
2018 1,13«
2019-2023 6,06(

The long-term rate-of-return-cassets assumption was set based on historicahse¢arned by equities and fixed income securitidpisted to reflect expectations
future returns as applied to the plan's targetation of asset classes. Equities and fixed inceeerrities were assumed to earn real rates ofnr@tuthe ranges of 8-
10% and 3-5%, respectively. When these overallmegupectations are applied to the plans targetaition, the result is an expected rate returrppf@imately 8%.

The Retirement Plan’s weighted average asset #ilbmsaat December 31, by asset category, were:

2013 2012
Equity securitiet 69% 64%
Debt securitie! 31% 36%

Plan assets are invested in a diversified mix oflstand bond investment funds on the pooled accamatip annuity platform of Prudential Retiremest\ices. Eac
fund has its own investment objectives, investnsémategies and risks as detailed in its prospectus.
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The long-term investment objectives are to mainpdém assets at a level that will sufficiently coleng-term obligations and to generate a return on piaeta that wi
meet or exceed the rate at which ldagn obligations will grow. A combination of equiynd fixed income portfolios are used to help aghihese objectives based ¢
long-term, liability based strategic mix of 60% equitaasd 40% fixed income. Adjustments to this mix ew&@de periodically based on current capital marketitions
and plan funding levels. Performance of the investinfund managers is monitored on an ongoing hasigy modern portfolio risk analysis and approprietde:
benchmarks.

The Bank does not expect to make a contributichédRetirement Plan in 2014.

Pooled Separate Accounts (Level 2) Valued as determined by the investmentaganand is based on the value of the underlyisgta$eld at December 31, 2013
2012.

The following table sets forth the employee pengitam’s assets that are carried at fair value,taednethod that was used to determine their fdireyaat December 31,
2013:

Quoted Prices  Significant Significant

in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservabl
Identical Assel Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands
Pooled Separate Account

U.S. larg-cap growth (a $ 4,60¢ $ - $ 4,60¢ $ -
U.S. larg-cap value (b 4,62 - 4,62t -
U.S. sma-cap blend (c 2,53¢ - 2,53¢ -
International blend (¢ 2,33¢ - 2,33¢ -
Bond fund (e 5,99: - 5,99: -
Prudential short term (f) 397 - 397 -
Total $ 20,49¢ $ - $ 20,49¢ $ -

a. Comprised of largeap stocks seeking to outperform, over the longté¢he Russell 1000 Growth Index. The portfolidl wipically hold between 55 and
stocks.

b. Comprised of large-cap stocks seeking to outperfilenRussell 1000®&alue benchmark over the rolling three and fiverygeriods, or a full market cyc
whichever is longel

c. Comprised of stocks with market capitalization efibeen $100 million and the market capitalizatibthe largest stock in the Russell 2000 index attitme
of purchase. The portfolio will typically hold lveten 40 and 100 stock

d. Comprised of nc-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicalhold between 80 and 90 stoc

. Comprised of a portfolio of fixed income securitiesluding U.S agency mortga-backed securities and investment grade bc

. Comprised of money market instruments with an ersighan safety and liquidit

-~ D
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The following table sets forth the employee pengilam’s assets that are carried at fair value, and thbadehat was used to determine their fair valt®ecember 3:
2012:

Quoted Prices  Significant Significant

in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservabl
Identical Assel Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands
Pooled Separate Account

U.S. larg-cap growth (a $ 340t $ - $ 3,40¢ $ -
U.S. larg-cap value (b 3,917 - 3,917 -
U.S. sma-cap blend (c 1,98( - 1,98( -
International blend (¢ 1,831 - 1,837 -
Bond fund (e 5,82( - 5,82( -
Prudential short term ( 34t - 34E =
Total $ 17,30 $ - 8 17,30 $ -

a. Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform, over the longté¢he Russell 1000 Growth Index. The portfolid tyipically hold between 55 and
stocks.

b. Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform the Russell ® Value benchmark over the rolling three and fiverygeriods, or a full market cyc
whichever is longel

c. Comprised of stocks with market capitalization efibeen $100 million and the market capitalizatibthe largest stock in the Russell 2000 index attiime
of purchase. The portfolio will typically hold veten 40 and 100 stock

d. Comprised of nc-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicalhold between 80 and 90 stoc

e. Comprised of a portfolio of fixed income securitiesluding U.S agency mortga-backed securities and investment grade bc

f. Comprised of money market instruments with an ersighan safety and liquidit

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans:

The Company sponsors two unfunded postretirememeflieplans (the “Postretirement Plans”) that coattretirees who were futime permanent employees witt
least five years of service, and their spousesdffe January 1, 2012, the Postretirement Plana@tonger available for new hires. One plan gtesimedical benef
through a 50% cost sharing arrangement. Effectwidry 1, 2000, the spouses of future retirees veepgired to pay 100% of the premiums for theirerage. The oth
plan provides life insurance benefits and is notrdmutory. Effective January 1, 2010, life insurargenefits are not available for future retireesdét these progran
eligible retirees receive lifetime medical and lifsurance coverage for themselves and lifetimeicaédoverage for their spouses. The Company resethe right t
amend or terminate these plans at its discretion.

Comprehensive medical plan benefits equal the legstbe normal plan benefit or the total amourit paid by Medicare. Life insurance benefits foirests are based

annual compensation and age at retirement. As cémber 31, 2013, the Company has not funded tHass.prhe Company used a December 31 measurenterfbt
these plans.
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The following table sets forth, for the PostretisgmPlans, the change in benefit obligation andtasand for the Company, the amounts recognizéteiConsolidated
Statements of Financial Condition at December 31:

2013 2012
(In thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 5927 $ 5,16¢€
Service cos 44¢ 40C
Interest cos 21¢ 217
Actuarial loss (gain (949) 211
Benefits paid (66) (67)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year 5,58¢ 5,92i

Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y -
Employer contribution 66 67
Benefits paid (66) (67)
Market value of plan assets at end of year - -

Accrued pension cost included in other liabilit $ (5,580 $ (5,92)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Posieatent Plans was $5.6 million and $5.9 million acBmber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Assumptions used in determining the actuarial priegalue of the accumulated postretirement beoéfigations at December 31 are as follows:

2013 2012

Rate of return on plan ass: n/e n/e
Discount rate 4.6(% 3.7%%
Rate of increase in health care cc

Initial 9.0(% 10.0(%

Ultimate (year 2018 5.0(% 5.0(%
Annual rate of salary increase for life insura n/e n/e
The resulting net periodic postretirement expemsesisted of the following components for the yearded December 31:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Service cos $ 4c % 400 $ 31z
Interest cos 21¢ 217 207
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 50 40 -
Amortization of past service cret (85 (85 (85)

Net postretirement benefit exper 638 572 43¢
Current year actuarial (gain) lo (949) 211 68€
Amortization of actuarial gai (50 (40) -
Amortization of prior service credit 85 85 85

Total recognized in other comprehensive income (909) 25€ 771
Total recognized in net postretirement expenseodimer comprehensive income $ (275 $ 82t $ 1,20¢

Assumptions used to develop periodic postretireregpense for the Postretirement Plans for the yeated December 31 were:
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2013 2012 2011

Rate of return on plan ass: n/e n/e n/e
Discount rate 3.7%% 4.2%% 5.7%
Rate of increase in health care cc
Initial 10.0(% 10.5(% 11.5%
Ultimate (year 2018 5.0(% 5.5(% 5.5(%
Annual rate of salary increase for life insura n/e n/e n/e

The health care cost trend rate assumptions haigndicant effect on the amounts reported. A orecpntage point change in assumed health care tadesl woul
have the following effects:

Increase Decreast
(In thousands
Effect on postretirement benefit obligati $ 90€ $ (711)
Effect on total service and interest c 13z (202
The Company expects to pay benefits of $158,00@wuitsl Postretirement Plans in 2014.
The following benefit payments under the Postreteat Plan, which reflect expected future service expected to be paid
Future
Benefit
For the years ending December Payments
(In thousands
2014 $ 15¢
2015 184
2016 20€
2017 22¢
2018 24¢
2019- 2023 1,42¢

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company maintains a tax qualified 401(k) pldmicW covers substantially all salaried employees Wwave completed one year of service. Currentlguahmatchin
contributions under the Bank’s 401(k) plan equa¥58f the employee’s contributions, up to a maximi3% of the employee’compensation. In addition, the 40:
plan includes the Defined Contribution RetiremelsinR“DCRP”), under which the Bank contributes amoaint equal to 4% of an employseligible compensation
defined in the plan, and the Profit Sharing PId»SP”"), under which at the discretion of the Compamoard of Directors a contribution is made. Cibntions for thi
DCRP and PSP are made in the form of Company constock at or after the end of each year. Annuatrdmrtions under these plans are subject to thédimmpose:
under the Internal Revenue Code. ContributionsheyGompany into the 401(k) plan vest 20% per year the employee's first five years of service. fibations tc
these plans also 100% vest upon a change of cqasalefined in the applicable plan). Compensatiqrense recorded by the Company for these plansr@ewto $2.
million, $2.4 million and $2.3 million for the yemended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, resplgctiv

The Bank provides a naualified deferred compensation plan as an incerftiv officers who have achieved the level of asteSenior Vice President and have at
one year of service. However, officers who had el at least the level of Vice President and ceteglone year of service prior to January 1, 2@0%ain eligible t
participate in the plan. In addition to the amautiéferred by the officers, the Bank matches 50%eaif contributions, generally up to a maximun®éé of the officers’
salary. Matching contributions under this plan v28% per year for five years. They also become 18@%ted upon a change of control (as defined inptag)
Compensation expense recorded by the Companyifoplin amounted to $0.4 million, $0.4 million a@.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2@0D32 an
2011.
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Employee Benefit Trust:

An Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT”) has been estdi#is to assist the Company in funding its benefihpibligations. In connection with the Savings Bardonversio
to a federal stock savings bank in 1995, the EBTdveed $7.9 million from the Company and used $@,60cash received from the Savings Bank to puei2a328,75
shares of the common stock of the Company. The Veas repaid from the Compaytliscretionary contributions to the EBT and dividepayments received
common stock held by the EBT. During the year erdedember 31, 2010, the loan was fully repaid. id&md payments received subsequent to the loam bepai
are used to purchase additional shares of comnoaok.s$hares purchased with the loan proceeds &térha suspense account for contribution to sgetibenefit plan:
Shares released from the suspense account aresoledg for funding matching contributions under tBank’s 401(k) plan, contributions to the 401(k) plan fioe
DCRP, and contributions to the PSP. Since annuatribations are discretionary with the Company epehdent upon employee contributions, compensatigable
under the EBT cannot be estimated. For the yeadgdemecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Compamyefl $2.3 million, $2.1 million and $2.0 millic
respectively, of employer contributions to the 4)Hnd profit sharing plans from the EBT.

Upon a change of control (as defined in the EBfig, EBT will terminate and any trust assets remagimifter certain benefit plan contributions will 8istributed to a
full-time employees of the Company with at least one géaervice, in proportion to their compensatiareothe four most recently completed calendar yphrs the
portion of the current year prior to the terminataf the EBT.

As shares are released from the suspense accbarfompany reports compensation expense equaktoutiient market price of the shares, and the sHageom
outstanding for earnings per share computations.HBIT shares are as follows at December 31:

2013 2012
Shares owned by Employee Benefit Trust, beginnalgrze 1,028,56! 1,147,33:
Shares purchast 29,16¢ 39,15¢
Shares released and allocated (143,94) (157,92)
Shares owned by Employee Benefit Trust, endingricala 913,79:. 1,028,56!
Market value of unallocated shares. $ 18,915,49  $ 15,778,18

Outside Director Retirement Plan:

The Bank has an unfunded noncontributory defineakfieOutside Director Retirement Plan (the “Dist Plan”), which provides benefits to each norptayee

director who became a non-employee director befareiary 1, 2004, who has at least five years efcens a non-employee director and whose yeassmice as a
non-employee director plus age equals or exceedBditefits are also payable to a hon-employee tirecho became a non-employee director before Jariy£2004

and whose status as a non-employee director tetesiteecause of death or disability or who is a employee director upon a change of control (asnddfiin the

Directors’ Plan). Any person who became a non-egggadirector after January 1, 2004 is not eligtblgarticipate in the Directors’ Plan. An eligitdé@ector who

terminates after November 22, 2005 will be paichanual retirement benefit equal to $48,000. Suctetiewill be paid in equal monthly installments fiie lesser of
the number of months such director served as aenguioyee director or 120 months. In the event t#rmination of Board service due to a change ofrobra non-

employee director who has completed at least tvemsyef service as a non-employee director will iseca cash lump sum payment equal to 120 monthgioéfit, and
a non-employee director with less than two yearseo¥ice will receive a cash lump sum payment etjualnumber of months of benefit equal to the nenah months
of his service as a non-employee director. In trentof the director’s death, the surviving spowdéreceive the equivalent benefit. No benefitdlwe payable to a
director who is removed for cause. The Holding Canyphas guaranteed the payment of benefits unddditiectors’ Plan. Upon adopting the Directors'rRltne Bank
elected to immediately recognize the effect of aidgpthe Directors’ Plan. Subsequent plan amendsnarg amortized as a past service liability. ThekBased a
December 31 measurement date for the Directors’. Pla

The following table sets forth, for the DirectoRlan, the change in benefit obligation and assetd,for the Company, the amounts recognized inCibiesolidate
Statements of Financial Condition at December 31:
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Change in benefit obligatiol

2013

2012

(In thousands

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 2,706 $ 2,647

Service cos 82 80

Interest cos 98 11C

Actuarial gain (122) (44)

Benefits paic (98 (87)

Projected benefit obligation at end of y 2,66¢€ 2,70¢€

Change in plan asse

Market value of assets at beginning of y - -

Employer contribution 98 87

Benefits paic (98) (87

Market value of plan assets at end of y - -
Accrued pension cost included in other liabilities $ (2,666 $ (2,706
The accumulated benefit obligation for the Direstétlan was $2.7 million at December 31, 2013 abit22
The components of the net pension expense for ifeetors’ Plan are as follows for the years endeddnber 31:
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Service cos $ 82 $ 80 $ 70
Interest cos 98 11C 124
Amortization of unrecognized ga (36) (29 (54)
Amortization of past service liabilit 12: 40 40

Net pension expen: 267 201 18C
Current actuarial loss (gai (122) (44) 67
Amortization of actuarial gai 36 29 54
Amortization of prior service co: (40) (40) (40)

Total recognized in other comprehensive incc (12€) (55) 81
Total recognized in net pension expense and ccomprehensive incon $ 141 $ 146 $ 261
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations@eriodic pension expense for the Directors’ Réarthe years ended December 31 were:

2013 2012 2011

Weighted average discount rate for the benefitgaltilbn 4.6(% 3.7%% 4.25%
Weighted average discount rate for periodic penkenmefit expens 3.7%% 4.25% 5.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e n/e
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The following benefit payments under the Directd?kin, which reflect expected future service, apgeeted to be paid:

Future Benefi

For the years ending December Payments
(In thousands
2014 $ 26C
2015 28¢
2016 28¢
2017 28¢
2018 272
2019-2023 1,312

The Bank expects to make payments of $260,000 utsdBirectors’ Plan in 2014.
13. Stockholders’ Equity
Dividend Restrictions on the Bank:

In connection with the Savings Baslktonversion from mutual to stock form in Novemb@85, a special liquidation account was establigtiéde time of conversion,
accordance with the requirements of its primarylagr, which was equal to its capital as of JuBeI®95. The liquidation account is reduced astarttie extent th:
eligible account holders have reduced their quialifydeposits. Subsequent increases in depositotioestore an eligible account holderhterest in the liquidatic
account. Subsequent to the Merger, the Bank asstimeelijuidation account. In the event of a conmléquidation of the Bank, each eligible accounidieo will be
entitled to receive a distribution from the liquiida account in an amount proportionate to the entrradjusted qualifying balances for accounts theld. As o
December 31, 2013, the Bank’s liquidation accousws %1.2 million, and was presented within retaieachings.

In addition to the restriction described above, N¢éwvrk State and Federal banking regulations plaséam restrictions on dividends paid by the Bamkhe Holding
Company. The total amount of dividends which mayaiel at any date is generally limited to the nebme of the Bank for the current year and priar ywars, less ai
dividends previously paid from those earnings. ABecember 31, 2013, the Bank had $50.8 milliorettained earnings available to distribute to thédihg Compan
in the form of cash dividends.

In addition, dividends paid by the Bank to the HiogdCompany would be prohibited if the effect trereould cause the Barg'capital to be reduced below applici
minimum capital requirements.

As a bank holding company, the Holding Companwlgext to similar dividend restrictions.
Stockholder Rights Plan:

The Holding Company has adopted a Shareholder Kiglsin under which each stockholder has one r@lputchase from the Holding Company, for each sbé
common stock owned, one ohandredth of a share of Series A junior participgfpreferred stock at a price of $65. The right$ macome exercisable only if a per:
or group acquires 15% or more of the Holding Comypaieommon stock or commences a tender or exchafeggewdiich, if consummated, would result in thatgmer o
group owning at least 15% of the Common Stock ‘({#oguiring person or group”)n such case, all stockholders other than the a@oguperson or group will be entitl
to purchase, by paying the $65 exercise price, Com&tock (or a common stock equivalent) with a @afitwice the exercise price. In addition, at &ime after suc
event, and prior to the acquisition by any persogroup of 50% or more of the Common Stock, therBad Directors may, at its option, require eaclstanding rigr
(other than rights held by the acquiring persogroup) to be exchanged for one share of Commork§twmne common stock equivalent). If a persogroup become
an acquiring person and the Holding Company is iaedun a merger or other business combinatioreths snore than 50% of its assets or earning pogazh right wil
entitle all other holders to purchase, by payméi#ié®d exercise price, common stock of the acquidampany with a value of twice the exercise pridee rights pla
expires on September 30, 2016.

Treasury Stock Transactions:

The Holding Company repurchased 836,092 commorestaran average cost of $15.73 during the yeardeBecember 31, 2013. The Holding Company repuec
352,000 common shares at an average cost of $tlard€y the year ended December 31, 2012. At Deeer®b, 2013, 549,870 shares remain to be repurdhasgte
the current stock repurchase program. Stock wilpbechased under the current stock repurchase grofrom time to time, in the open market or throygivate
transactions, subject to market conditions anchatdiscretion of the management of the CompanyreTie no expiration or maximum dollar amount unttes
authorization.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

The components of accumulated other comprehenssgeat December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the changeg the year ended December 31, 2013 are asv@llo

Other
December 3: Comprehensiv. December 3:
2013 Income 2012
(In thousands
Net unrealized (loss) gain on securil available for sal: $ (8,527 $ (27,44) $ 18,92:
Net actuarial loss on pension plans . other postretirement benef (3,15)) 3,957 (7,109
Prior service credit on pensiplans and other postretirement bene 29¢ (26) 324
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince $ (11,379 $ (23,519 $ 12,13}

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisiveme by component for the year ended Decemhe2(®I13:

Amounts Reclassified fror
Details about Accumulated Oth Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Stateme
Comprehensive Income Compone Comprehensive Incorr Where Net Income is Preseni
(Dollars in thousands

Unrealized gains (losses) on availa

for sale securities $ 3,021 Net gain on sale of securiti
(1,32]) Tax expens:
$ 1,70C Net of tax
OTTI charges $ (1,419 OTTI charge
621 Tax benefit
$ (79¢) Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse: $ (1,237) (1) Other expens
Prior service credits 46 (1) Other expense
(1,197 Total before ta
521 Tax benefit
$ (670 Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensiverisamdmponents are included in the computation bpegodic pension cost (see Note 12 of the Naié3dnsolidate
Financial Statements “Pension and Other Postretine@enefit Plans”).
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Shelf Registration Statement:

On November 18, 2010, the Company filed a shelistegfion statement which allows the Company tdquically offer and sell, individually or in any otination
preferred stock, common stock, warrants to purcipasterred or common stock, and debt securitiegpuptotal of $170.0 million. The shelf registoatiwas declare
effective on April 8, 2011. The Company’s abilityissue debt or equity under this shelf registraisosubject to market conditions and its capitsds.

14. Regulatory Capital

Under current capital regulations, the Bank is neglito comply with three separate capital adequaiapdards. As of December 31, 2013, the Bank moesi to b
categorized as “well-capitalized” under the prommtrective action regulations and continues to edadl regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Bank’s comm@&with banking regulatory capital standards.

Tier | (leverage) capita
Capital level
Requirement to be well capitaliz:
Excess

Tier | risk-based capita
Capital level
Requirement to be well capitaliz
Excess

Total risk-based capita
Capital level
Requirement to be well capitaliz
Excess

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Percent of Percent of
Amount Assets Amount Assets

(Dollars in thousands

$ 447,30 9.4¢% $ 425,14 9.62%
235,99: 5.0C 220,98( 5.0C
211,318 4.4¢ 204,16¢ 4.62

$ 447,30 1459 $ 425,14 14.3%%
183,94« 6.0C 177,40: 6.0C
263,36: 8.5¢ 247,74¢ 8.3¢

$  479,08: 15.6:% $  456,25: 15.4%%
306,57: 10.0¢ 295,66¢ 10.0¢
172,50¢ 5.6¢ 160,58 5.42
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As a result of its conversion to a bank holding pany on February 28, 2013, the Holding Company mecsubject to the same regulatory capital requirdsnas th
Bank. As of December 31, 2013, the Holding Compemmtinues to be categorized as “well-capitalizadtier the prompt corrective action regulations emntinues t
exceed all regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Holding Compsaiepmpliance with banking regulatory capital starts.

December 31, 201
Percent o
Amount Assets
(Dollars in thousands

Tier | (leverage) capital: (7

Capital level $ 456,77: 9.7(%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 235,54 5.0C

Excess 221,22¢ 4.7C
Tier | risk-based capital: (1

Capital level $ 456,77. 14.9%%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 183,57¢ 6.0C

Excess 273,19: 8.9:¢
Total risk-based capital: (1

Capital level $ 488,54t 15.9%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 305,96¢ 10.0¢

Excess 182,58: 5.97

(2) If the Holding Company had been subject to l&guy capital requirements at December 31, 20%2angible, leverage and core, and lisised capital ratios wot
have been 10.06%, 14.89%, and 15.95%, respectaety/it would have been categorized “well-capitadizunder regulatory guidelines at December 312201

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments:

The Company is a party to financial instrumenthweitf-balancesheet risk in the normal course of business to tireetinancing needs of its customers. These fiia¢
instruments include commitments to extend credit émes of credit. The instruments involve, towiag degrees, elements of credit and market riskextcess of tt
amount recognized in the consolidated financidakstents.

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperémce by the counterparty to the financial instmufer loan commitments and lines of credi
represented by the contractual amounts of thesiments.

Commitments to extend credit (principally real &staortgage loans) and lines of credit (principalyme equity lines of credit and business linesreéit) amounted -
$36.9 million and $153.9 million, respectively, @ecember 31, 2013. Included in these commitment® B29.4 million of fixedrate commitments at a weigh
average rate of 4.16%, and $161.4 million of adjolstrate commitments with a weighted average rate f &eoember 31, 2013, of 3.63%. Since generallyhthe
loan commitments are expected to be drawn uportothéloan commitments approximate future casluireqents, whereas the amounts of lines of credy not b
indicative of the Company’future cash requirements. The loan commitmernigrgdly expire in 90 days, while construction Idaes of credit mature within eighte
months and home equity lines of credit mature witkh years. The Company uses the same creditgmiit making commitments and conditional obligasias it doe
for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are legally bindingeagents to lend to a customer as long as them® igiolation of any condition established in theniract

Commitments generally have fixed expiration dated sequire payment of a fee. The Company evalusdes customer’s creditworthiness on a casedse basi
Collateral held consists primarily of real estate.

135




The Bank collateralized a portion of its depositshwetters of credit issued by FHLBY. At December 31, 2013, there were $517.8 mmillif letters of cred
outstanding. The letters of credit are collaieeal by mortgage loans pledged by the Bank.

The Trusts issued capital securities with a panevalf $61.9 million in June and July 2007. The HadCompany has guaranteed the payment of the sTroisligation:
under these capital securities.

The Company’s minimum annual rental payments farkBaremises due under non-cancelable leases fofoaes:

Minimum Rents

(In thousands
Years ended December :

2014 $ 3,717
2015 3,26¢
2016 3,19¢
2017 3,04:
2018 3,047
Thereafter 13,61¢

Total minimum payments required $ 29,88¢

The leases have escalation clauses for operatimgners and real estate taxes. Certain lease agrseonevide for increases in rental payments bage increases
the consumer price index. Rent expense under thases for the years ended December 31, 2013,&012011 was approximately $3.7 million, $3.7 roilliand $3.
million, respectively.

Contingencies:

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits. &geament of the Company, after consultation witrsidet legal counsel, believes that the resolutiothe$e variot
matters will not result in any material adverseetfon the Company’s consolidated financial cooditresults of operations or cash flows.

16. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company'’s lending is concentrated in the melitgm New York City metropolitan area. The Compawgluates each customer’s creditworthiness orsexlogeast
basis under the Company’s established underwrfinigties. The collateral obtained by the Compangegally consists of first liens on onefimur family residentia
multi-family residential, and commercial real estateDAtember 31, 2013, the largest amount the BankddenH to one borrower was approximately $67.liom|lanc
at that date, the Bank’s largest aggregate amduaans to one borrower was $59.2 million, all dfish were performing according to their terms.

17. Related Party Transactions

At December 31, 2013, two loans totaling $0.2 wmillivere outstanding to an immediate family memtber director and a executive officer of the Compatrtyese loar
were made in the ordinary course of business amd fudly approved in accordance with all of the Gm@my’s credit underwriting standards and were made akel
rates of interest and other normal terms but watfuced origination fees. No such loans were madegl2013. The Company believes that such loansalanvolve
more than the normal risk of collectability or prasother unfavorable features.

One director is a partner in a law firm which regenets the Company in connection with closings sidential and certain commercial real estate lo#mesfees of whic
are paid by borrowers. The borrowers paid an agdeegf $1.3 million to the firm in this regard dugi 2013. In addition, the firm handles certain legatters il
connection with loans (as well as any other gerlegal matters), the fees for which are paid byGeenpany. The Company paid an aggregate of $5d f%etfirm ir
this regard in 2013.

One director serves as Chief Equity StrategistdySAssets Management, Inc. and is axanager of the AMF Large Cap Equity Fund, whicimasnaged by Shi
Assets Management. The Company maintains invesgmeittvo funds managed by Shay Assets Manageméntantotal market value of $6.0 million at DecemBg|
2013. The Company’s investment in these funds ptesithe directos’ service as a director. The portion of the managerees paid to Shay Assets Manageme
these funds that are attributable to investmenthefCompany totaled approximately $30,739 in 20t director receives no remuneration from thelfutin additior
from time to time the Company executes trades usiadrokerage services of Shay Assets Management.
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18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets arahiial liabilities at fair value in accordancetwASC Topic 825 “Financial Instrumentahd values those financ
assets and financial liabilities in accordance W8C Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disgles.” ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatld
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfébdity in an orderly transaction between marlpetrticipants at the measurement date, establisliesmework fo
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures dhoutalue measurements. ASC topic 825 permitsiesito choose to measure many financial instntsiand certa
other items at fair value. At December 31, 2018,@lmmpany carried financial assets and finanaaillties under the fair value option with fair uak of $37.3 millio
and $29.6 million, respectively. At December 31120the Company carried financial assets and fiaafiabilities under the fair value option withifavalues of $54.
million and $23.9 million, respectively. During thyears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Cgmiidmot elect to carry any additional financiasats c
financial liabilities under the fair value option.

The following table presents the financial assatsfancial liabilities reported at fair value wrdhe fair value option at December 31, 2013 a@f®2and the chanc
in fair value included in the Consolidated Statetredrincome — Net gain (loss) from fair value adijosnts, for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2011:

Changes in Fair Values For Iltems Measured at Falné
Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opt

Fair Value Fair Value
Measurements Measurements
at December 3 at December 3 For the year ende For the year ende For the year ende

Description 2013 2012 December 31, 20  December 31, 20:  December 31, 20:
(Dollars in thousands

Mortgagebacked securitie $ 7,11¢ $ 2491: $ (725)  $ (539 $ (665)
Other securitie 30,16: 29,57° 241 79€ (1,139
Borrowed funds 29,57( 23,92: (5,657 2,062 5,91¢
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme® $ (6,135 $ 231¢  $ 4,11¢

(1) The net gain (loss) from fair value aljnents presented in the above table does nodiaciat losses of $18,000, $0.3 million and $2.2ianilfrom the
change in the fair value of interest rate capsmsmbduring the years ended December 31, 2013, &0d 2011, respectively.

(2) The net gain (loss) from fair value a&fjnents presented in the above table does nodiecnet gain of $3.6 million and a net loss of$fillion from
the change in the fair value of interest rate swapsrded during the years ended December 31, 2042012, respectively.

Included in the fair value of the financial assetsl financial liabilities selected for the fair waloption is the accrued interest receivable ormplyfor the relate
instrument. The Company reports as interest incomiaterest expense in the Consolidated Statemfehicome, the interest receivable or payable onfit@ncia
instruments selected for the fair value optiorhatrtrespective contractual rates.

The borrowed funds have a contractual principal@mhof $61.9 million at both December 31, 2013 20d2. The fair value of borrowed funds includesraed interes
payable of $0.1 million at December 31, 2013 ant220

The Company generally holds its earning assetsr aktian securities available for sale, to matuaityg settles its liabilities at maturity. Howeveirfvalue estimates ¢
made at a specific point in time and are basecelmvant market information. These estimates daefie#ct any premium or discount that could residtrf offering fo
sale at one time the Compasygntire holdings of a particular instrument. Actiogly, as assumptions change, such as interest aatd prepayments, fair value estimr
change and these amounts may not necessarily Ioeecei an immediate sale.

Disclosure of fair value does not require fair waloformation for items that do not meet the défmi of a financial instrument or certain otherdintial instrumen

specifically excluded from its requirements. Thgsms include core deposit intangibles and othetaruer relationships, premises and equipment, de@seome taxe
and equity.
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Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptaioe future income or business. These items mawdierial and accordingly, the fair value inforroatpresented do
not purport to represent, nor should it be consttoeepresent, the underlying “market” or franehiglue of the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reportgdair value are required to be measured base€itbar: (1) quoted prices in active markets fagniical financie
instruments (Level 1); (2) significant other obsdyle inputs (Level 2); or (3) significant unobsdneainputs (Level 3).

A description of the methods and significant assionp utilized in estimating the fair value of tB®mpanys assets and liabilities that are carried at falue on
recurring basis are as follows:

Level 1 —where quoted market prices are available in arvactiarket. The Company did not value any of itetssr liabilities that are carried at fair value &
recurring basis as Level 1 at December 31, 2012ada.

Level 2 —when quoted market prices are not available, faloer is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted for diéfiece
between the quoted instrument and the instrumeingbealued. Fair value can also be estimated liygugricing models, or discounted cash flows. iRgemodel:
primarily use markebased or independently sourced market parameténpats, including, but not limited to, yield cussenterest rates, equity or debt prices and ¢
spreads. In addition to observable market infoiwnatmodels also incorporate maturity and cash ff@sumptions. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, L 2wetludec
mortgage related securities, corporate debt aedest rate caps/swaps.

Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareacgund inputs to the valuation, financial instrumtseare classified as Level 3. At December 31, 281i¢
2012, Level 3 included REMIC and CMO securities,ninipal securities and trust preferred securitie;@d by and junior subordinated debentures issyethd
Company.

The methods described above may produce fair véhasnay not be indicative of net realizable vadueeflective of future fair values. While the Cpamy believes i
valuation methods are appropriate and consistetht tivose of other market participants, the useiftér@nt methodologies, assumptions and modelseterchine fai
value of certain financial instruments could proeldidferent estimates of fair value at the repartiate.

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, and the method that was usddtesmine their fair
value, at December 31:

Quoted Prices Uno
in Active Markets Significant Othel Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs bservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Assets:
Securities available for sa
Mortgage-backecSecurities $ - $ - $ 756,15t $ 696,63t $ - $ 2347 $ 756,15¢ $ 720,11
Other securitie - - 237,47¢ 213,37: 24,15¢ 16,07¢ 261,63: 229,45;
Interest rate cag - - - 18 - - - 19
Interest rate swaps - - 2,081 3 - - 2,081 3
Total assets $ = 8 - $ 995,710 $ 910,03¢ $ 24,158 $ 3955/ $1,019,87. $ 949,58t
Liabilities:
Borrowings $ - % = G = G - $ 2957C $ 2392 $ 2957C $ 23,920
Interest rate swag - - - 1,922 - - - 1,922
Total liabilities $ - % - 3 - % 1,92: $ 2957( $ 2392 $ 2957( $ 25,84«
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The following table sets forth the Company's asaettliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarchy fc

the period indicated:

Beginning balanc
Transfer into Level
Principal repayment
Sales

Net gain from fair value adjustmeof financial asset
Net loss from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie

Decrease in accrued interest pays
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg

Change in unrealized gains (losses) inclu in other comprehensive incor

Ending balanc

Changes in unrealized held at period

For the year ended
December 31, 201

REMIC anc Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands
$ 2347 $ 9,42¢ $ 6,65( $ 23,92:

- - 6,12¢ -

(5,03¢6) (20¢€) - -
(29,979 - - -

- - 884 -

- - - 5,651

- - - ©)

(1,419 - - -
2,95¢ - 1,27t -

$ - $ 9,22 $ 14,93 $ 29,57(
$ - $ - $ 127 $ -

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarchy for

the period indicated:

Beginning balanc
Transfer into Level

Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmeof financial asset
Net gain from fair valuradjustment of financial liabilitie

Decrease in accrued interest receivi
Decrease in accrued interest payz

Change in unrealized gains(losses) included ieratbmprehensive income

Ending balance

For the year ende
December 31, 201

REMIC anc Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands
$ = 8 = 8 5,63 $ 26,31:

23,47¢ 9,42¢ - -

- - 23¢ -

- - - (2,062)

- - (10) -

- - - (327)

- - 79t -

$  2347F $ 9,42¢ $ 6,65( $ 23,92:




During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 204£& were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, trandfers Level 2 to Level 3 included one private issuest preferred security for $6.1 million. This saty was
transferred due to illiquidity and reduced pricansparency. During the year ended December 312, 20dnsfers from Level 2 to Level 3 included twanitipa
securities totaling $9.4 million and five privassiie CMOs totaling $23.5 million. The transfer innicipal securities and private issue CMOs wastdubiquidity anc
reduced price transparency.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 204£& were no transfers from Level 3 to Level 2.

The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of fineddnstruments and the fair value measurements Becember 31,
2013:

December 31, 201 Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Municipals $  9,22:Discounted cash flown Discount rate 0.3% - 4.0% (3.6%)
Discount rate 7.0% - 15.5%(9.8%)
Prepayment assumptio 0% - 42.6%(30.4%
Trust Preferred Securiti¢ $ 14,93t Discounted cash flown Defaults 0% - 16.9%(15.0%
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debentu $ 29,57(Discounted cash flown Discount rate 7.0% (7.0%)

The significant unobservable inputs used in the falue measurement of the Company’s municipal rigesi valued under Level 3 are the securitieffective yield
Significant increases or decreases in the effegi®le in isolation would result in a significantigwer or higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s trust predeseurities valued under Level 3 are the secsritiféective yield
probability of default and loss severity in the mivef default. Significant increases or decreasesny of the inputs in isolation would result isignificantly lower o
higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the yalue measurement of the Companjunior subordinated Debentures are effectivedyiSignificant increases
decreases in the effective yield in isolation woidgult in a significantly lower or higher fair va measurement.

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valueanon-recurring basis, and the method that was toseetermine their
fair value, at December 31:

Quoted Price

in Active Markets Significant Othe Significant Othe
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair valu
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Assets:
Loans held for sal $ - $ - 0% - $ - % 425 $ 531: $ 425 $ 5,31z
Impaired loan: - - - - 23,544 49,70% 23,544 49,70¢
Other real estate owned - - - - 2,98t 5,27¢ 2,98t 5,27¢
Total asset $ -3 = 8 o B - $ 26954 $ 60294 $ 26,95 $ 60,29

140




The following table presents the quantitative infation about nomecurring Level 3 fair value of financial instrunierand the fair value measurements as of Dece
31, 2013:

December 31, 201 Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:

Loans held for sal $ 42t Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 33.9% (33.9%

Impaired loan: $ 23,54<Fair value of collatere Loss severity discoul 0.5% - 89.5%(33.2%

Other real estate ownt $ 2,98t Fair value of collatere Loss severity discoul 0.0% - 42.1% (5.6%)

The Company carries its Loans held for sale and @RE&he expected sales price less selling costs.
The Company carries its impaired collateral depahtib&ns at 85% of the appraised or internallynestéd value of the underlying property.
The Company did not have any liabilities that weaieried at fair value on a non-recurring basis eténber 31, 2013 and 2012.

The estimated fair value of each material cladinahcial instruments at December 31, 2013 and 20iPthe related methods and assumptions usetiraesfair
value are as follows:

Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that arers-term or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value thpt@pmates carrying
value (Level 1).

FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of thekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).

Securities Available for Sale:

The estimated fair values of securities availablestle are contained in Note 6 of Notes to Codatdid Financial Statements. Fair value is based gpoted mark:
prices (Level 1 input), where available. If a qubtearket price is not available, fair value is mstied using quoted market prices for similar séiesrand adjusted f
differences between the quoted instrument and ibgument being valued (Level 2 input). When thisréimited activity or less transparency arounduitgpto th
valuation, securities are valued using (Level 3ithp

Loans held for sale:

The fair value of non-performing loans held foresal estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.

Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans is estimated isgalinting the expected future cash flows usingctmeent rates at which similar loans would be midborrower
with similar credit ratings and remaining matustigevel 3 input).

For non-accruing loans, fair value is generallyneated by discounting managemenéstimate of future cash flows with a discouneé @mmensurate with the r
associated with such assets or for collateral dédgrrioans 85% of the appraised or internally estih value of the property.(Level 3 input).

Due to Depositors:

The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhay market deposits and escrow deposits are, fiyitd, equal to the amount payable on demanthe
reporting dates (i.e. their carrying value) (Letgl The fair value of fixednaturity certificates of deposits are estimatedlsgounting the expected future cash fl
using the rates currently offered for depositsiwfilar remaining maturities (Level 2 input).

Borrowings:

The estimated fair value of borrowings are estiohdtg discounting the contractual cash flows usimgrest rates in effect for borrowings with simitaaturities an
collateral requirements (Level 2 input) or usingnarket-standard model (Level 3 input).
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Interest Rate Caps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate capssetd upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Interest Rate Swaps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate swajaged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling costse fair value is based on appraised value thrauglurrent appraisal, or sometimes through anriatereview
additionally adjusted by the estimated costs tbtselproperty (Level 3 input).

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrber are estimated using the fees currently chaggephid to enter into similar agreements, taking iaccount th
remaining terms of the agreements and the pregeditworthiness of the counterparties or on thémeged cost to terminate them or otherwise settih the
counterparties at the reporting date. For fixatd loan commitments to sell, lend or borrow, failues also consider the difference between culkegels of interest rat
and committed rates (where applicable).

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair valueshefabove financial instruments approximate therossbamounts of the related fees and were not deresi to b
material.

The following table sets forth the carrying amouaisl estimated fair values of selected financiatriments based on the assumptions described alseeeby th
Company in estimating fair value at December 31,320

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 33,48 $ 33,48: $ 33,48: $ - % -
Mortgage-backecSecurities 756,15¢ 756,15¢ - 756,15t -
Other securitie 261,63¢ 261,63¢ - 237,47t 24,15¢
Loans held for sal 42F 42F - - 42F
Loans 3,434,17: 3,502,79; - - 3,502,79;
FHLB-NY stock 46,02¢ 46,02¢ - 46,02¢ -
Interest rate cag - - - - -
Interest rate swag 2,081 2,081 - 2,081 -
OREO 2,98t 2,98¢ - - 2,98t
Total asset $ 4,536,960 $ 4,60558 $ 33,48 $ 1,041,731 $ 3,530,36!
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,232,78 $ 3,253,26. $ 2,111,82' $ 1,14143 $ -
Borrowings 1,012,12; 1,034,79! - 1,005,22! 29,57(
Total liabilities $ 424490, $ 4,288,060 $ 2,111,820 $ 2,146,660 $ 29,57(
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouaisl estimated fair values of selected financiatriments based on the assumptions described alse¢eby th
Company in estimating fair value at December 31220

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ - % -
Mortgage-backec Securities 720,11 720,11 - 696,63 23,47
Other securitie 229,45; 229,45; - 213,37: 16,07¢
Loans held for sal 5,312 5,312 - - 5,312
Loans 3,234,12. 3,416,31. - - 3,416,31
FHLB-NY stock 42,331 42,331 - 42,337 -
Interest rate cag 19 19 - 18 -
Interest rate swaf 3 3 - 3 -
OREO 5,27¢ 5,27¢ - - 5,27¢
Total assets $ 427706, $ 4,45925 $ 40,42 $ 952,37. $ 3,466,45
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,015,190 $ 3,057,15 $ 1,76196 $ 1,29518 $ -
Borrowings 948,40: 992,06 - 968,14 23,92;
Interest rate swaps 1,922 1,922 - 1,92¢ -
Total liabilities $ 3,965521 $ 4,051,14° $ 1,76196 $ 226525 $ 23,92;
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19. Derivative Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Compsuigrivative financial instruments consist of pas#d options and swaps. The purchased optionseadeto mitigate tf
Company’s exposure to rising interest rates offintncial liabilities without stated maturities. &lCompany’s swaps are used to mitigate the Compagposure 1
rising interest rates on a portion ($18.0 milliaf)its floating rate junior subordinated debentutlest have a contractual value of $61.9 million.d&idnally, the
Company at times may use swaps to mitigate the @ogip exposure to rising interest rates on itsdirxate loans.

At December 31, 2013, derivatives with a combinetiomal amount of $118.0 million are not designadechedges and derivatives with a combined notiamaiunt o
$11.2 million are designated as fair value hedgé®ecember 31, 2012, derivatives with a combinetiomal amount of $118.0 million were not desigdats hedge
and a derivative with a notional amount of $4.3lionl was designated as fair value hedge. Changdiseirfair value of the derivatives not designatechadges a
reflected in “Net gain/loss from fair value adjusims”in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Thegrodf the changes in the fair value of the densatesignate
as a fair value hedge which is considered ineffedire reflected in “Net gain/loss from fair vakgjustments” in the Consolidated Statements ofrireo

The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company'’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2013:

At or for the year ended December 31, 2

Notional Net Carrying
Amount Purchase Pri Value (1)
(In thousands
Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03 $ =
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - 1,681
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 11,215 = 40C
Total derivatives $ 12921 $ 9,03 $ 2,081

The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2012:

At or for the year ended December 31, 2

Notional Net Carrying
Amount Purchase Pri Value (1)
(In thousands
Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03t $ 19
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - (1,929
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 4,30( =
Total derivatives $ 122,300 $ 9,03 $ (1,900

(1) Derivatives in a net positive position areamted as “Other assets” and derivatives in a ngatiee position are recorded as “Other liabiliti@sthe Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition. There were nealized losses on derivative financial instrument®ecember 31, 201
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The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statemenksamfme for the periods indicated:

For the year ende
December 31

(In thousands 2013 2012 2011
Financial Derivatives
Interest rate caf $ (18 $ (337) % (2,159
Interest rate sway 3,63 (1,929 -
Net gain (loss®) $ 361« $ (2,269 $ (2,159

(1) Netgains (losses) are recordec“Net gain (losses) from fair value adjustm in the Consolidated Statements of Inco
20. New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03, grhiamends the authoritative accounting guidanceeuA®C Topic 860Transfers and Servicing.” The
amendments in this update remove from the assessmhaffective control (1) the criterion requiririe transferor to have the ability to repurchaseedleem th
financial assets on substantially the agreed teewex) in the event of default by the transferee (@pdhe collateral maintenance implementation go@k related to th
criterion. The amendments in this update are gffedor the first interim or annual period begingion or after December 15, 2011 and should beaeapptospectivel
to transactions or modifications of existing trastgms that occur on or after the effective dataer\Eadoption is not permitted. Adoption of thisdape did not have
material effect on the Company’s consolidated tesafl operations or financial condition.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, whahends the authoritative accounting guidance uA®E Topic 820“Fair Value Measurement.” The
amendments in this update clarify how to measudedistlose fair value under ASC Topic 820. The asinegnts in this update are effective for the findéfim or annui
period beginning on or after December 15, 2011 sivwlild be applied prospectively to transactionsodifications of existing transactions that occoray after th
effective date. Early adoption is not permitted.oftion of this update did not have a material effac the Compang' consolidated results of operations or finai
condition.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Wwhamends the authoritative accounting guidance uA®C Topic 220“Comprehensive Income.” The
amendments eliminate the option to present comper&nother comprehensive income in the stateméstazkholders’equity. Instead, the new guidance reqt
entities to present all nonowner changes in stddens’ equity either as a single continuous statementoafprehensive income or as two separate but conge
statements. The amendments in this update aretieffefor the first interim or annual period begingion or after December 15, 2011 and must be &
retrospectively. Early adoption was permitted. Atitmp of this update did not have a material effectthe Company consolidated results of operations or finai
condition. See the Consolidated Statements of Cehgmsive Income.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 201®8h amends the authoritative accounting guidammer ASC Topic 350ntangibles — Goodwill and Other.”

The amendments in the update permit an entityrsd dissess qualitative factors to determine whathemore likely than not that the fair value afeporting unit i
less than its carrying amount as a basis for détémmwhether it is necessary to perform the twepsjoodwill impairment test described in Topic 350e more-likely-
thannot threshold is defined as having a likelihoodnafre than 50 percent. The amendments in this updateffective for annual and interim goodwill intpzent test
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decemtigr2011. Early adoption is permitted, includiieg &nnual and interim goodwill impairment testsfpened as of
date before September 15, 2011, if an erdtifiiancial statements for the most recent annuaiterim period have not yet been issued. Adoptibthis update did n
have a material effect on the Company’s consolilegsults of operations or financial condition.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013wWRich amends the authoritative accounting guidamger ASC Topic 220 “Comprehensive Incom@&lie
amendments do not change the current requiremantsgorting net income or other comprehensiverme financial statements. However, the amendnreqtsire a
entity to provide information about the amountdassified out of accumulated other comprehensicerime by component. In addition, an entity is reeghito preser
either on the face of the statement where net iecsnpresented or in the notes, significant amoreggkssified out of accumulated other comprehensiecome by th
respective line items of net income but only if #reount reclassified is required under GAAP todmassified to net income in its entirety in thensareporting perio
For other amounts that are not required under G#ABe reclassified in their entirety to net incorae,entity is required to crossference to other disclosures requ
under GAAP that provide additional detail aboutsta@amounts. The amendments in this update ardieffgrospectively for reporting periods beginnafter Decemb
15, 2013. Early adoption is permitted. Adoptiorttu update is did not have a material effect ean@ompanys consolidated results of operation or financialditon.
(See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financiakgtants “Stockholders’ Equity”.)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 20%4to clarify that when an in substance repossessioforeclosure occurs, a creditor is considemediave receive
physical possession of residential real estategutpgollateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, ugitimer (1) the creditor obtaining legal title keetresidential real esti
property upon completion of a foreclosure or (2 thorrower conveying all interest in the residdntiml estate property to the creditor to sati$fgttloan throug
completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosure or tigh a similar legal agreement. Additionally, theemaiments require interim and annual disclosureoti If1) the
amount of foreclosed residential real estate ptggezld by the creditor and (2) the recorded inwestt in consumer mortgage loans collateralizeddsydential re:
estate property that are in the process of forecdoaccording to local requirements of the appledlrisdiction. ASU 201404 is effective for annual reporting peri
beginning after December 15, 2014. Adoption of tippdate is not expected to have a material effieche Companyg consolidated results of operations or finai
condition.

21. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
Selected unaudited quarterly financial data forftbeal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012septed below:

2013 2012
4th 3rd 2nd 1st 4th 3rd 2nd 1st
(In thousands, except per share d¢

Quarterly operating data:

Interest incom: $ 5029« $ 4985 $ 50,298 $ 50,08 $ 51,72 $ 53,190 $ 5438 $ 5441t
Interest expens 13,05¢ 12,86¢ 12,99¢ 15,94( 14,49¢ 15,61( 16,097 17,07(
Net interest incom 37,23¢ 36,98¢ 37,29¢ 34,14¢ 37,22« 37,58t 38,28 37,34¢
Provision for loan losse 1,00(¢ 3,43t 3,50(C 6,00( 5,00(C 5,00(C 5,00(C 6,00(
Other operating incom 1,06¢ 94t 2,19¢ 5,34¢ 2,56¢€ 3,512 1,10¢ 1,87¢
Other operating expen: 18,89 19,05( 20,21 22,41¢ 19,80¢ 20,74 20,23¢ 21,53¢
Income before incom
tax expens: 18,40¢ 15,44¢ 15,78: 11,07t 14,98: 15,35: 14,15¢ 11,687
Income tax expens 6,45¢ 6,024 6,15t 4,31¢ 5,782 5,98¢ 5,561¢ 4,55¢
Net income $ 1194¢ $ 9,421 $ 9,627 $ 6,75¢ $ 9,20C $ 9,36 $ 8,631 $ 7,12¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 04C $ 03z $ 03z $ 02z $ 03C $ 031 $ 028 $ 0.2¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.4C $ 03z $ 03z $ 02: $ 03C $ 031 $ 0.2¢ % 0.2t
Dividends per common sha $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1
Average common shares outstanding for
Basic earnings per she 29,76: 29,77 30,21 30,44¢ 30,31( 30,43: 30,47: 30,39¢
Diluted earnings per sha 29,80: 29,80: 30,23t 30,48: 30,34( 30,46 30,49: 30,42(




22. Parent Company Only Financial Information

Earnings of the Bank are recognized by the Hol@ognpany using the equity method of accounting. Adiogly, earnings of the Bank are recorded as as®s in th
Holding Company'’s investment, any dividends wowdduce the Holding Company’s investment in the Bamkj any changes in the Baskinrealized gain or loss
securities available for sale, net of taxes, wanddease or decrease, respectively, the Holdingg2myls investment in the Bank. The condensed finantaa¢ments fc
the Holding Company are presented below:

December 3. December 3:

Condensed Statements of Financial Conditio 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 16,52 $ 21,04:
Securities available for sal
Other securities ($2,562 and $2,359 at fair@glursuant tthe fair value option at December 31, 2013 and 268spectively 2,84¢ 3,16t
Interest receivabl 4 13
Investment in subsidiarie 449,58( 451,19(
Goodwill 2,18¢ 2,18¢
Other asset 4,35¢ 4,41¢
Total asset $ 47549 $ 482,01
Liabilities:
Borrowings (at fair value pursuant to the fair veabptionat December 31, 2013 and 20: $ 29,57C $ 23,92¢
Other liabilities 13,39¢ 15,72«
Total liabilities 42,96t 39,64

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stoc - -
Common stocl 31t 31t

Additional paic-in capital 201,90: 198,31
Treasury stock, at average cost (1,407,343 shackg&7,266 aDecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectiv (22,059 (20,25%)
Retained earning 263,74 241,85t
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofstaxe (11,375 12,137
Total equity 432,53: 442,36!
Total liabilities and equity $ 475,497 $ 482,01
For the years ended December
Condensed Statements of Incom 2013 2012 2011
(In thousands

Dividends from the Ban $ 20,00 $ 20,00 $ 20,00(
Interest incom: 59C 694 75%
Interest expens (1,06€) (2,95%) (4,32
Gain on sale of securitit 17 - -
Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustme (5,475 1,991 5,72¢
Other operating expens (621) (730) (746€)
Income before taxes and equity in undistribiearnings of subsidial 13,44 18,99¢ 21,40%
Income tax (expense) bene 2,851 49€ (585)
Income before equity in undistributed earningsuifssdiary 16,30: 19,49¢ 20,82
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Be 21,45( 14,83t 14,52¢
Net income $ 37,75: $ 34,33, $ 35,34¢
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For the years ended December
Condensed Statements of Cash Flov 2013 2012 2011

(In thousands
Operating activities

Net income $ 37,75: % 3433. % 35,34¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenlby operating activities
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Be (21,45() (14,83Y) (14,52¢)
Net gain on sale of securiti (17) - -
Deferred income tax provisic (2,34%) 85¢€ 3,00:
Fair value adjustments for financial assets financial liabilities 5,47¢ (1,999 (5,725
Stock based compensation expe 3,06¢ 3,10¢ 2,72
Net change in operating assets and liabilities 1,74¢ 1,287 1,541
Net cash provided by operating activities 24,22¢ 22,75¢ 22,36
Investing activities
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (23 (29 (37
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale 517 = =
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 494 (29) (37
Financing activities
Purchase of treasury sto (24,15) (5,627) (7,722
Cash dividends pai (15,619 (15,817 (15,910
Stock options exercise 53: 95¢€ 2,04(
Net cash used in financing activiti (29,236) (20,487 (21,597
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (4,516 2,24: 732
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 21,04: 18,79¢ 18,06¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of \ $ 16,52 $ 21,04, % 18,79¢
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Flushing Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséaits of financial condition of Flushing Financ@érporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsie&(th
“Company”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, apdré¢fated consolidated statements of income, cdmpsive income, changes in stockholderuity and cas
flows for each of the three years in the periodeeh@®ecember 31, 2013. These financial statemeetshe@ responsibility of the Compasymanagement. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighaflaUnited States). Those standards requirenthgilan an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancaetathether the financial statements are free dera misstatement. An audit includes examinioig,a test basi
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréeirfinancial statements. An audit also includeseasing the accounting principles used and signifiestimate
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfiaemncial statement presentation. We belieat tiur audits provide a reasonable basis for ouniap

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaageferred to above present fairly, in all matemspects, the financial position of Flushing Ficial Corporation ar
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012thencksults of their operations and their cash dléov each of the three years in the period endstemBber 31, 201
in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Compaasyhternal control over financ

reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on aitestablished in the 1992ternal Control - Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQit aur report dated March 17, 2014 expressed aundalifigd opinion.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 17, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Flushing Financial Corporation

We have audited the internal control over financgorting of Flushing Financial Corporation (a &ehre corporation) and subsidiaries (the "Compargs) o
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishadeinl992 Internal Controdategrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpng Organizations of t
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companyianagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fis assessment
the effectiveness of internal control over finahegporting, included in the accompanying ManagefiseReport on Internal Control over Financial RepaytiOu
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Canys internal control over financial reporting bedson our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightld@nited States). Those standards require thaplam an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetalhether effective internal control over finalcieporting was maintained in all material respe@ur aud
included obtaining an understanding of internaltarover financial reporting, assessing the risatta material weakness exists, testing and ewvadutte design ar
operating effectiveness of internal control basedhe assessed risk, and performing such otheegures as we considered necessary in the circucestawe belie\
that our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is eogess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregghe reliability of financial reporting ande
preparation of financial statements for externalppses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. A compang’ internal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras () pertain to the maintenance of records thatasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions a
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) ippveasonable assurance that transactions aredegcas necessary to permit preparation of finarstéements i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that receipts and expenditures of tlepamy are being made only in accordance with aizgons o
management and directors of the company; and (B)iger reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedispositiol
of the company’s assets that could have a magffidt on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatif effectiveness
future periods are subject to the risk that costmiay become inadequate because of changes intioosdior that the degree of compliance with thécpes ol
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all malerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2013, basediteria establishe
in the 1992 Internal Control—Integrated Framewadued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@ynited States), the consolidated financial statets of th
Company as of and for the year ended December@3B, 2nd our report dated March 17, 2014 expresseathqualified opinion on those financial stateraent
/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 17, 2014
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out, under the supervision aitld the participation of the Company's managemeriuding its Chief Executive Officer and CF
Financial Officer, an evaluation of the effectives@f the design and operation of the Companydafisre controls and procedures (as defined in RBéel5(e) unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the @nthe period covered by this Annual Report. Baspdn that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officad &hie
Financial Officer concluded that, as of December281 3, the design and operation of these disabosomtrols and procedures were effective. Durirgpriod covere
by this Annual Report, there have been no changdlsei Company's internal control over financialomipg that have materially affected, or are reabbn likely tc
materially affect, the Company's internal contretéofinancial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financighaming, and for performing an assessment o
effectiveness of internal control over financiapogting as of December 31, 2013. Internal contngdr financial reporting is defined in Rule 13af)l%{r 15d15(f)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8#1#8s a process designed by, or under the supema$j the Company’ principal executive and principal finan
officers and effected by the CompasyBoard of Directors, management and other persotmerovide reasonable assurance regarding thebildy of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimdor external purposes in accordance with gelyeagicepted accounting principles. Internal cdntneer financia
reporting includes those policies and proceduras () pertain to the maintenance of records thatasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions a
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) ideveasonable assurance that transactions arelegcas necessary to permit preparation of findistéements i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of thegamy are being made only in accordance with aiztions o
management and directors of the Company; and B)ige reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usaligpositiot
of the Company’s assets that could have a matffedt on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any evabmabdi
effectiveness to future periods are subject torisiethat controls may become inadequate becausbasfges in conditions, or that the degree of campé with th
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management performed an assessment of the effaetigeof the Comparg/'internal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2013 based u
criteria in Internal Control -Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiof921 Frameworl
(“COSO0"). Based on this assessment, managementucted that the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting waseetfve as of December 31, 2013 be
on those criteria issued by COSO.

Grant Thornton LLP, the Company'’s independent tegesl public accounting firm that audited the Conyps consolidated financial statements included is
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued a repothereffectiveness of the Compasynternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2013, as stated il
report which appears on page 150.

Iltem 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

Other than the disclosures below, information reiyer the directors and executive officers of thenpany appears in the CompasiyProxy Statement for t
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 20142 (“Proxy Statement”) under the captions “Boahiihees,” “Continuing Directors,”"Executive Officers Wh
Are Not Directors” and “Meeting and Committees bé tBoard of Directors — Audit Committea@hd is incorporated herein by this reference. mftdion regardin
Section 16(a) beneficial ownership appears in tben@any’s Proxy Statement under the caption “Sectiéfa) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Complianeeid it
incorporated herein by this reference.

Code of Ethics The Company has adopted a Code of Business CoaddcEthics that applies to all of its directooffjcers and employees. This cod:
publicly available on the Company’s website atp$ittwww.snl.com/Cache/1001183751.PDF?Y=&0=PDF&D#8F1001183751&T=&1ID=102398
Any substantive amendments to the code and any gfamwaiver from a provision of the code requiridisclosure under applicable SEC or NASDAQ rulés ve
disclosed in a report on Form 8-K.

Audit Committee Financial ExpertThe Board of Directors of the Company has deteechithat Louis C. Grassi, the Chairman of the A@dimmittee, is ¢
“audit committee financial expert” as defined unttem 401(h) of Regulation &; and that he is independent as defined undericagige NASDAQ listing standarc
Mr. Grassi is a certified public accountant ancgified fraud examiner.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

Information regarding executive compensation appé@athe Proxy Statement under the caption “Exgeeuompensationand is incorporated herein by t
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information regarding security ownership of certh@neficial owners appears in the Proxy Statemedéuthe captionStock Ownership of Certain Benefic
Owners” and is incorporated herein by this refeeenc

Information regarding security ownership of managetmappears in the Proxy Statement under the eaptock Ownership of Managemen#ind it
incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships andtesl transactions and directors independence appetire Proxy Statement under the captid@srtipensatio
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” dRelated Party Transactions” and is incorporateckim by this reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding fees paid to the Companytependent auditor appears in the Proxy Statemelgrihe caption “Schedule of Fees to Independent
Auditors” and is hereby incorporated by this refers
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@ 1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements are includedt@m 8 of this Annual Report and are incorporatecen by this reference:
« Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionetédnber 31, 2013 and 20
« Consolidated Statements of Income for each ofttheetyears in the period ended December 31, 2013
« Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomedfch of the three years in the period ended Deeefih 2013
« Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeehDecember 31, 20:
« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheottiree years in the period ended December 33,
« Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem
« Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement Schedules have been omitteslibedhey are not applicable or the required inddion is shown in the Consolidated Financial Stetete
or Notes thereto included in Item 8 of this AnnRalport and are incorporated herein by this referenc
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3.

Exhibit

Exhibits Required by Securities and Exchage Commission Regulation S-K

NumbeDescription

4.2

10.1*
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
10.5*
10.6*
10.7*
10.8*
10.9*
10.10*
10.11*
10.12
10.13
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*
10.21*
10.22*
10.23*
10.24*
10.25*%
10.26*
10.27*

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decemie2(05 by and between Flushing Financial Corpomnatnd Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (1
Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ@brporation (1

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (1

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgrating Preferred Stock of Flushing FinancCorporation (6

Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated ag$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of Fingh-inancial Corporation (1!

Amended and Restated -Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation (Z

Certificate of Designation relating to the Fixed®&k&umulative Perpetual Preferred Stock SeriesAB

Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@&eka Flushing Financial Corporation and Computaesirust Company N.A., as Rights Agent, wt
includes the form of Certificate of Increase of @saDesignated as Series A Junior ParticipatinéeRezl Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right Certifieaas
Exhibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchasddpred Stock as Exhibit (12)

Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingaierton¢-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ten percdtitishing Financial Corporati’s total asset:
therefore, copies of constituent instruments degjrihe rights of the holders of such debt are mdtided as exhibits. Copies of instruments witlpeesto such
long-term debt will be furnished to the Securities andtiange Commission upon requ

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreemetmiden Flushing Bank anCertain Officers (20

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreenetmiden Flushing Financial Corporation aCertain Officers (20

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshifg Financial Corporation and John Buran (20)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwieshifg Bank and John R. Buran (¢

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshifg Financial Corporation and Maria A. Gras30)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshifg Bank and Maria A. Grasso (<

Flushing Bank Specified Officer Change in ContreV&ance Policy (1¢

Amended and Restated Employee Severance CompenBédio of Flushing Bank (¢

Amended and Restated Outside Director Retirement @I1)

Amended and Restated Flushing Bank Outside Dirdd¢derred Compensation Plan

Amended and Restated Flushing Bank Supplementah@aincentive Plan (1¢

Form of Indemnity Agreement among Flushing Bankisking Financial Corporation, and each Directol

Form of Indemnity Agreement among Flushing BankisRing Financial Corporation, and Certain Offid@e

Employee Benefit Trust Agreement |

Amendment to the Employee Benefit Trust Agreem&h

Loan Document for Employee Benefit Trust

Guarantee by Flushing Financial Corporation

1996 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan of Flushimwphcial Corporation (€

1996 Stock Option Incentive Plan of Flushing FinahCorporation (7

Description of Outside Director Fee Arrangemeng)

Form of Outside Director Restricted Stock Awardtee(9)

Form of Outside Director Restricted Stock Unit Adidetter (19)

Form of Outside Director Stock Option Grant Le{@y

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Award Letter

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Letféded herewith)

Form of Employee Stock Option Award Letter

Amended and Restated Flushing Financial Corpar&@95 Omnibus Incentive Plan (1
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10.2
10.2
10.3
10.3
211
23.1
311
31.2
32.1

32.2

101.
101.
101.
101.
101.
101.

*Indi

8 Amendment to Flushing Financial Corporation 2005n@ms Incentive Plan (1¢
9* Annual Incentive Plan for Executives and Senioiicaffs (19)
0 Form of Amendment to Employee Stock Option Awardtere(21)
1 Form of Amendment to Director Stock Option Awardtee (21)
Subsidiaries information incorporated herein brefce to Part— Subsidiary Activities
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeilétl herewith)
Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Saes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeiléd herewith)
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Offic
(furnished herewith
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Offic
(furnished herewith
INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit
SCHEXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed twtig)
CALXBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuniled herewith)
DEFXBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurnhéfiled herewith)
LABXBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documeng(fiherewith’
PREXBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doeninffiled herewith

cates compensatory plan or arrangement.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed witle fRegistration Statement on Fori-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration Nc-96488.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfrol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1
(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfrol(-K for the year ended December 31, 1¢
(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrifral(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withriroS-8 filed May 31, 2002

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfrol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Fol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Fol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrifrol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed December 23, 200!

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed September 11, 200

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed September 26, 200

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirce-K filed December 23, 200:

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Fol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(17) Incorporated by reference to Appendices filed Witbxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed April 7, 2(
(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrifrol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(21) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(22) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrirce-K filed December 18, 201.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1th@)Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Compasyduly caused this report, or amendment theretog
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized, in New York, New York, on March, 2014,

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION

By: /S/IJOHN R. BURAN
John R. Burai
President and CE

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Rhusirinancial Corporation (the “Companyigreby severally constitute and appoint John RaBand Davi
Fry as our true and lawful attorneys and agentsh @ating alone and with full power of substitutiand resubstitution, to do any and all things in our narimethe
capacities indicated below which said John R. BunaBavid Fry may deem necessary or advisable ablerthe Company to comply with the Securities Exgje Ac
of 1934, and any rules, regulations and requiresnehthe Securities and Exchange Commission, imection with the report on Form ¥Q-or amendment there
including specifically, but not limited to, powendauthority to sign for us in our names in theacdges indicated below the report on FormKL,0r amendment there
and we hereby approve, ratify and confirm all #&t John R. Buran or David Fry shall do or caodeetdone by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report on Form KQer amendment thereto, has been signed by thawfiolg person
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/S/JOHN R. BURAN Director, President (Principal Executive Offic March 4, 201¢
John R. Bura

/SIJOHN E. ROE, SF Director, Chairmai March 4, 201«
John E. Roe, S

/SIDAVID FRY Treasurer (Principal Financial and Accounting Gffic March 4, 201«
David Fry

/S/ JAMES D. BENNET1 Director March 4, 201«

James D. Benne

/SISTEVEN J. D'IORIC Director March 4, 201«
Steven J. D'loric
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/SILOUIS C. GRASS

Louis C. Grass

[SISAM S. HAN

Sam S. Ha

[SIMICHAEL J. HEGARTY

Michael J. Hegart

/S/IJOHN J. MCCABE

John J. McCalt

/SIVINCENT F. NICOLOSI

Vincent F. Nicolos

/SIDONNA M. O'BRIEN

Donna M. O'Brier

/SIMICHAEL J. RUSSC

Michael J. Russ

/[SITHOMAS S. GULOTTA

Thomas S. Gulott

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

157

March 4, 201«
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March 4, 201«

March 4, 201«

March 4, 201«
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Exhibit 10.25

Text of RSU Grant Letter Agreement, dated January Z, 2014

This award letter agreement sets forth the terndscamditions of the restricted stock units (“RSUs/fich have been granted to you by Flushing Find
Corporation (the “Company”), in accordance with gievisions of its 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (tR&n”). Your award is subject to, and being provided to iyt
consideration for accepting, the terms and constiset forth in the Plan, any rules and regulatenfspted by the Committee (as defined in the Pkmj, this awai
letter agreement

1. Grant of RSUs

You have been granted the number of RSUs set forthe grant header information for this grant be Wealthviews online equity platformEach RSl
represents the right to receive one share of tepgaay’s Common Stock (“Common Stocldf the applicable settlement date for the RSU. Naxe also been awarc
Dividend Equivalents on your RSUs, as describedenfdty below. You do not need to pay any purchasee to receive the RSUs granted to you by thiaravetter.

2. Vesting of RSUs

(@) General Vesting ScheduleUnless they vest on an earlier date as providedli-Section (b), (c) or (d) below, your RSUs will vastnstallments ¢
set forth in the grant header information for tipiant on the Wealthviews online equity platformrpyded that you are an employee of the Com
or one of its subsidiaries on each such ¢

(b) Death or Disability. If your employment terminates by reason of deatBisability, all of your RSUs will immediately vegpon your termination
employment. For this purpose, “Disabilityieans that you have been unable to perform thestinctions of your employment due to disalp
or incapacity for 270 consecutive days or suchelepsriod as may be determined by the Commi

(c) Retirement. If your employment terminates by reason of Retiretnall of your RSUs will immediately vest. For poses of this provisio
“Retirement” means termination of employment with the Compang és subsidiaries either (i) after your attainmeftage 65 with 5 years
service, or (ii) when your termination is precedsdat least 5 continuous years of service and tine af your age plus years of service equa
exceeds 75 years. For purposes of this definitipears of service” refers to “vested servicgith the Company or its subsidiaries as deterrr
under the Retirement Plan of Flushing Bank “Bank”).

(d) Change in Control. All of your RSUs will immediately vest upon the ocrence of a Change in Control (as defined in tlem)P if you are a
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries atithe of such Change in Contri

(e) Forfeiture upon other Termination of Employment. If your employment terminates for any reason othan death, Disability, or Retirement,
of your RSUs which have not vested prior to thenteation of your employment will be forfeite




Page .

® Committee Determinations. The Committee shall have absolute discretion teerddhe the date and circumstances of terminatioryafi
employment, and its determination shall be finahdusive and binding upon yc

3. Grant of Dividend Equivalents
(@) Award of Dividend Equivalents. You have been awarded Dividend Equivalents witpeesto each of your RSUs covered by this awatdrl¢
(b) Cash Dividends.The Dividend Equivalents that you have been awasiitle you to receive, at each time cash divideaie paid on the Comm
Stock, a cash payment for each of your then oudsigrRSUs (whether or not vested) equal to the aoithe dividend paid on a share of Comi
Stock.
(c) Stock Dividends.In the event the Company pays a dividend in Comi@tmtk or other property, your Dividend Equivalenti entitle you tc

receive, for each of your then outstanding RSUse(iver or not vested), the amount of Common Stoaklwer property paid as a dividend on a s
of Common Stock. Such Common Stock or other prgpeiit be paid to you at the time of settlementtloé underlying RSU and will be subjec
the same restrictions, risk of forfeiture, and westind delivery provisions as the underlying RSithwespect to which it was pai

4. Settlement of RSUs; Delivery of Share:

(@) Your RSUs that vest under Section 2 above willdtdedd on their vestin

dates, except as follows. If you both (1) are olt ecome eligible for Retirement prior to the Iasheduled vesting date, and (2) are a spe
employee within the meaning of Section 409A of khiernal Revenue Code of 1986 (“Section 409A43, determined by the Board of Director
accordance with the election made by the Companydébermining specified employees (a “Specified Eyge”), your RSUs will be settled
provided in Sections 4(b), 4(c) and 4(e) belowdf are or will become eligible for Retirement prio the last scheduled vesting date, whether t
you are a Specified Employee, your RSUs will bestas provided in Sections 4(d) and 4(e) below/sAon as practicable after the settlement d:
an RSU, the Company will deliver to you one shd&r€ammon Stock for each of your RSUs being settieguch date. The Common Stock deliv:
upon the settlement of your RSUs will be fully sérable (subject to any applicable securitiesdestrictions) and not subject to forfeiture. Tharsk
of Common Stock delivered upon the settlement of yRSUs will have full voting and dividend rightscawill entitle the holder to all other rights ¢
stockholder of the Company.




(b)

(©

(d)

©)
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If your RSUs vest on account of your Retirement yoid are a Specified Employee, the settlement of R5Us will be delayed until, and will oct
on, the six month anniversary of your Retirementlie date of your death if soone

If your RSUs vest on account of a Disability thaked not qualify as the date you become disable@ruSdction 409A and you are a Spec
Employee, settlement of your RSUs will be delayetil,uand will occur on, the six month anniversafyyour termination of employment (or the ¢
of your death if sooner

If your RSUs vest on account of a Change of Corntral does not qualify as a “change of controttler Section 409A, settlement of your RSUs
be delayed until, and will occur on, the earliet(9 the scheduled vesting date under Sectior) afove; (ii) the date of your termination
employment (or the six month anniversary of youmieation of employment if you are a Specified Eaygle); (iii) the date of your death; or (iv)
occurrence of a Change of Control which qualifie®“change of contr” under Section 409/

Notwithstanding Sections 4(b), 4(c) and 4(d) abmetflement upon your termination of employmentlishet occur unless your termination
employment is also “separation from servi” (within the meaning of Code Section 40¢

Income Tax Withholding

@)

(b)

©
(d)

You must make arrangements satisfactory to the @amp satisfy any applicable federal, state, oallevithholding tax liability arising with respe
to your RSUs. You can either make a cash paymethiet@ompany of the required amount or you cant ébesatisfy your withholding obligation

having the Company retain Common Stock having aevafjual to the amount of your withholding obligatfrom the shares otherwise deliverab
you upon the settlement of such RSUs. If you failkatisfy your withholding obligation in a time antanner satisfactory to the Company,
Company shall have the right to withhold the reggiiamount from your salary or other amounts pay@abj®u.

You must make your election regarding the mannevhiich your withholding obligation will be satiséieon the Wealthviews online equity platfo
To make the election, go to the Restricted Elestiscreen and select the Tax Election column. I€beation is made, the Company will withh
shares to satisfy the withholding electi

All cash payments of Dividend Equivalents will bet of any required withholding
The amount of withholding tax retained by the Compar paid by you to the Company will be paid te @ippropriate federal, state and loca

authorities in satisfaction of the withholding @ations under the tax laws. The total amount obiine you recognize and tax withheld with res
to your RSUs an
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Dividend Equivalents will be reported on your Fowi2 in the year in which you recognize the incomehwispect to that portion of the awi
Whether you owe additional tax will depend on youerall taxable income for the applicable year #mel total tax remitted for that year throi
withholding or by estimated payments.

6. Other Provisions of RSUs
(@) Voting. You will have no voting rights or other rights astackholder with respect to your RSl
(b) Transfer Restrictions. You may not sell, transfer, assign or pledge yo8UR or any rights under this award. Any attempddcso will be null an
void.
(c) Death. In the event of your death, any shares of CommonkSand other amounts you are entitled to receindeuthe Plan will instead be delive

to the legal representative of your est

7. Administration of the Plan

The Plan is administered by the Committee. The Cibi@enhas authority to interpret the Plan and #wsrd letter, to adopt rules for administering Ftan, tc
decide all questions of fact arising under the Péandl generally to make all other determinatioreessary or advisable for administration of the Phlhdecisions an
acts of the Committee with respect to the admiaiitn and interpretation of the Plan are final hirdling on all affected Plan participants.

It is intended that this award letter comply witte tprovisions of Section 409A and the regulatiams guidance of general applicability issued thedeurso a
to not subject you to the payment of additionadiest and taxes under Section 409A, and in funtiveraf this intent, this award letter shall be ipteted, operated a
administered in accordance with these intentions.
8. Amendments and Adjustments to your Award

The Plan authorizes the Committee to make amendnasrdt adjustments to outstanding awards, inclutiagRSUs and Dividend Equivalents granted by
letter, in specified circumstances. Details arevjpled in the Plan.

These circumstances include the Committegght, in its sole discretion, to amend the Péemdl/or outstanding awards, including this granR&Us an
Dividend Equivalents, without your consent, to éxtent the Committee determines that such amendisieetessary or appropriate to comply with Secti@@A.
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9. Effect on Other Benefits

Income recognized by you as a result of the graegting, or settlement of RSUs or the receipt ofid@nd Equivalents will not be included in the fara for
calculating benefits under the Company’s other fiepkans.

10. Regulatory Compliance

Under the Plan, the Company is not required tordelCommon Stock (including upon the settlemeriR81s) if such delivery would violate any applicalae
or regulation or stock exchange requirement. lunegl by any federal or state securities law oulaipn, the Company may impose restrictions onryahility to
transfer shares received under the Plan.

11. Restrictive Covenants

You agree that at all times during your employmeitih the Company and/or the Bank and for a peribdne year thereafter, you will not, directly odirectly,
(i) solicit for employment, recruit or hire, or &stsany other entity to solicit for employment, mgit or hire, either as an employee or a consultany employe:
consultant or independent contractor of the Compard/or the Bank who was an employee, consultamd@&pendent contractor of the Company and/or duekBat an
time during the 12 months preceding or following termination of your employment, (ii) induce oteatpt to induce, or assist any other entity to aedar attempt |
induce, any employee, consultant or independentactor of the Company and/or the Bank who wasrapl@yee, consultant or independent contractor @@bmpan
and/or the Bank at any time during the 12 montlesguaing or following the termination of your empiognt, to terminate his or her employment with, thieowise ceas
his or her relationship with, the Company and/er Bank, or (iii) solicit, interfere with, divert aake away or attempt to interfere with, diverttake away, or assist ¢
other entity to interfere with, divert or take awélye business or patronage of (A) any of the tdiecustomers or accounts of the Company and/oB#mk who wer
such at the time of the termination of your empley or (B) prospective clients, customers or antoof the Company and/or Bank who were such atiamy during
the 12 months preceding the termination of your legimpent (the entities listed in clauses (A) and épve are collectively referred to herein as tRestricte
Entities”).

For purposes of this Paragraph 11, the term “$dliaiith respect to all means of communication oth@ntcommunication facilitated by or through a sc
media website including, but not limited to, FacghoTwitter, MySpace, LinkedIn, Pinterest, or Vimhall mean initiating any communication, whetheitten or oral
With respect to communication facilitated by oraiigh a social media website such as those idehti#i®ove, “solicit” shall mean initiating a connectj “inviting,
“following”, requesting “friend” status, “liking”joining any group, or initiating any communicatishatsoever through the social media website, orsamifar action.
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In order to help ensure adherence to the restnigtmntained herein, Employee agrees to “defriéndifollow”, “remove connection”or any other similé
term, as the case may be, with respect to any laRéstricted Entities on any social media websitevhich Employee has an account, Employee fudbeges to allo
the Company to review the social media websitewloich he/she has an account (in his/her presenagrtfirm such actions have been taken. Employehdr agree
to certify his/her compliance with the foregoinglightion under oath to the Company upon request tardEmployees failure or refusal to do so will entitle -
Company to an inference that Employee has violateédtends to violate the non-solicitation provisscset forth in this Agreement.

You acknowledge that in carrying out the Comparayisl/or the Banlg business, you may learn confidential or propryetaformation about the Company
the Bank or third parties. Confidential or propaigtinformation includes, among other things, aagpublic information concerning the Company or Bask, including
their respective business, financial performantarketing or strategic plans, customers, and proplicing information, as well as any nonpublicanmhation provide
by a third party with the expectation that the mfiation will be kept confidential and used solety the business purpose for which it was conveyediectively
“Confidential Information”). You agree that at all times during your employmesith the Company and/or the Bank and thereaftey gball not disclose a
Confidential Information outside of the Companytbe Bank or use such information for your own omeone else benefit. You agree that such Confide!
Information may be disclosed within the Company #r@Bank only to those individuals who need tHermation to carry out their business responsibait

You acknowledge and agree that the restrictionsagoed in this Section 11 are reasonable and nagepsotection of the immediate interests of thenPany
and the Bank, and any violation of these restnitiovould cause substantial injury to the Compard/tae Bank and that neither the Company nor thekBayuld hav
entered into this Agreement without receiving thetgctive covenants contained in this Section fithé event of a breach or a threatened breactobyf/any of th
terms of this Section 11, the each of the Compar/the Bank will be entitled to an injunction resting you from such breach or threatened breadthd@ut the
necessity of providing the inadequacy as a remédyomey damages or the posting of bond); provitiesyever, that the right to injunctive relief wilbhbe construed
prohibiting the Company and/or the Bank from punguiny other available remedies, whether at lam @quity, for such breach or threatened breacladutition, an
breach of these restrictions will result in an incia¢e forfeiture of your award.
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12. Data Privacy

By accepting this award you expressly consentecctiilection, use and transfer, in electronic teeoform, of your personal data by and among the@my
its subsidiaries and any broker or third party sisgj the Company in administering the Plan or mliog recordkeeping services for the Plan, for thepose ¢
implementing, administering and managing your pagudtion in the Plan. By accepting this award yaiwe any data privacy rights you may have with egspo suc
information. You may revoke the consent and wadescribed in this paragraph by written notice ® @ompanys Senior Vice President/Human Resources; hov
any such revocation may adversely affect your @ttiti participate in the Plan.

* * * * *

Please click “I ACCEPT this granbelow to acknowledge your acceptance of this awHns letter and the related grant header inforomationtains the form
terms and conditions of your award and accorditigdy should be printed and retained in your fisféiture reference.

Very truly yours,

[s/ Maria A. Grasso

Maria A. Grasso

Executive Vice President/COO and
Corporate Secretal



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We have issued our reports dated March 17, 2014, r@spect to the consolidated financial statemandsinternal control over financial reporting imdéd in the Annu.
Report of Flushing Financial Corporation on FormKLfr the year ended December 31, 2013. We herehgent to the incorporation by reference of saubmes in th
Registration Statements of Flushing Financial Cafon on Forms S-8 (File Nos. 33-98202, effecidetober 16, 1995; 333-125358, effective May 31,32(8B3-
136669, effective August 16, 2006, 333-151185,ctiffe May 23, 2008, 333-151187, effective May 2808, 333-163010, effective November 9, 2009, 338064
effective August 4, 2011 and 333-188776, effeckitay 22, 2013), and on Form S-3 (File No. 333-170686éctive April 8, 2011).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 17, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John R. Buran, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlushing Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesantain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact necessary to ntia&e
statements made, in light of the circumstancesunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this annyabnte

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all material resqgabe
financial condition, results of operations and ciaivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined im&hge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowtvet financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 155(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedartes designed under our supervision, to ensate th
material information relating to the registrantlirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this annual report is being pregare

b) designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under our supervidioprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiiisiannual report our conclusions about the &ffeness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrileoéthe period covered by this annual report da@sesuch evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any change érégistrant’s internal control over financial refprg that occurred during the registrant’s moserg quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonablylyite materially affect, the registrant’s interrcgintrol over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial reporting, twetregistrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registeantiard of directors (or persons performing thenedent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corvel financial reporting which are reasonably lijke
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to regqutbcess, summarize and report financial inforamtand

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inveslweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal controls ofieancial
reporting.

Dated: March 17, 201 By: /s/John R. Bura
John R. Burai
President and Chief Executive Offic



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Fry, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlushing Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesantain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact necessary to ntia&e
statements made, in light of the circumstancesunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this annyabnte

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all material resqgabe
financial condition, results of operations and ciaivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined im&hge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowtvet financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 155(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedartes designed under our supervision, to ensate th
material information relating to the registrantlirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this annual report is being pregare

b) designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under our supervidioprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiiisiannual report our conclusions about the &ffeness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrileoéthe period covered by this annual report da@sesuch evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any change érégistrant’s internal control over financial refprg that occurred during the registrant’s moserg quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonablylyite materially affect, the registrant’s interrcgintrol over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial reporting, twetregistrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registeantiard of directors (or persons performing thenedent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corvel financial reporting which are reasonably lijke
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to regqutbcess, summarize and report financial inforamtand

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inveslweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal controls ofieancial
reporting.

Dated: March 17, 201 By: /s/David Fry
David Fry
Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Flushingddicial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form KGer the year ending December 31, 2013 as fileith wie
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehghe “Report”), I, John R. Buran, Chief Execati@fficer of the Corporation, certify, pursuantli®U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knogéed

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repomtlygpresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the Cogpion.

By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
March 17, 2014



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Flushingddicial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form KGer the year ending December 31, 2013 as fileith wie
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat®hghe “Report”), |, David Fry, Chief Financial fifer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18lLC. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repomtlygpresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the Cogpion.

By: /s/David Fry
David Fry

Chief Financial Officer
March 17, 201«



